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 SUBJECT INDEX  

   ôCõ 

Code of Civil Procedure, 1908 - Section 96 - A civil suit for declaration was filed, which was 
dismissed by the Trial Court - a finding was recorded that the Will set up by the defendant is null 
and void - an appeal was preferred b y the defendant, which was dismissed - held in second appeal 

that appeal against finding is not maintainable ð the findings recorded by the Trial Court 
regarding the invalidity of the Will set up by the defendant No.1 will not constitute res -judicata ð 
appeal dismissed.   

Title: Chain Singh Vs. Piar Singh and others   Page-328  

 

Code of Civil Procedure, 1908 - Section 96 - A suit for redemption was filed, which was decreed 
and a preliminary decree for redemption was passed - it was directed that the principal mon ey be 

depositedalong with interest @ 6% per annum within three months ð an appeal was preferred, 
which was allowed on the ground that plaintiffs had failed to deposit the mortgage amount within 
the specified period ð aggrieved from the decree, second appeal  has been filed - held in appeal that 
the judgment and decree were passed on 16.12.1995 - period of three months was granted  to 
deposit the money ð however, a stay order was issued by the Appellate Court prior to the expiry of 
the period ð there was no will ful disobedience on the part of the plaintiffs in not complying with 
the decree - the Appellate Court had wrongly allowed the appeal - judgment and decree of appellate 
court set aside.   

Title: Tripta Devi and ors.Vs. Chuni Lal and ors.    Page-581  

 

Code of C ivil Procedure, 1908 - Section 96 - Plaintiffs applied for felling trees and selling them to 
defendants ð 98 pine trees were marked for felling - it was found subsequently that permission 
was obtained for felling 18 trees, whereas  98 trees were marked and fe lled ð plaintiffs sought the 
damages ð the suit was dismissed by the Trial Court - held in appeal that the best documentary 
evidence for proving that 98 trees were marked and felled was not led ð further, felling more trees 
than permitted would be an illici t act for which the individual official would be liable and not the 
State - the suit was wrongly filed against the State  ð appeal dismissed.  (Para-7 to 9)  

Title: Leela  Dutt and another Vs. State of H.P. and others   Page-139  

 

Code of Civil Procedure, 1908 - Section 100 - Plaintiff is working as an agent of M/s B - the 

defendant acknowledged the receipt of Rs.1,09,430/ - from the plaintiff and agreed to pay the 
same with interest at the rate of 5% - the amount was not paid - hence, the suit was filed  for the 
recovery ð the defendant denied the claim of the plaintiff ð suit was decreed by the Trial Court - an 
appeal was filed, which was partly allowed - held in second appeal that photocopy and not the 
original ledger was exhibited - the signatures of the defendant we re also not proved ð the Courts 
had not properly appreciated the evidence - appeal allowed - the judgment and decrees of the 
Courts set aside and the suit of the plaintiff dismissed.  

Title: Bhagat Ram Vs. Bal Krishan   Page- 264  

 

Code of Civil Procedure, 19 08 - Section 114 - An application for seeking permission to produce 

evidence was filed which escaped the notice of the Court - it was contended that additional 
evidence was necessary for adjudication of the dispute pending between the parties ð the appeal 
cou ld not have been decided without deciding the application ð hence, it was prayed that order be 
reviewed and the appeal be decided afresh - held that jurisdiction to review an order or judgment 
should be exercised sparingly - a party cannot seek review of ju dgment on merits - review is 
permissible on the discovery of new evidence or when there is some error or mistake apparent on 
record ð the dismissal of appeal without considering the application under Order 41 Rule 27 is an 
error apparent on the face of reco rd ð petition allowed ð the judgment recalled and matter posted 
for hearing on merits.   

Title: Sauju and ors.Vs. Gulab Singh &ors.   Page-725  
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Code of Civil Procedure, 1908 - Section 151 - The evidence of the defendants was ordered to be 
closed but certified copies of judgment and decree passed in previous suit were received in 
evidence ð it was contended that the document could not have been received without recalling the 
order - held that the certified copies of the judgment and decree are per se admissible -  permission 
was sought to produce the documents, which was granted ð therefore, no illegality was committed 
by the exhibition of the documents - petition dismissed.  

Title: Singho Ram and others Vs. Balbir Singh and others   Page-726  

 

Code of Civil Procedur e, 1908 - Order 6 Rule 17 - An application for amendment of the objection 
petition was filed, which was dismissed - subsequently, the objection petition was also d ismissed 
by the Trial Court - aggrieved from the order, present revision has been filed - held tha tthe order 
passed in the application had merged in the final order - if the order on application was wrong, it 
would affect the final order as well ðrevision allowed.   

Title:  Surjit Singh Vs. Harmohinder Singh &  others    Page-736  

 

Code of Civil Procedure, 1908 - Order 6 Rule 17 - An application for amendment was filed 
pleading that defendants started raising construction  near the house of the plaintiff during the 
course of hearing and when he objected to the construction being raised by them it transpired 
th at the construction was being raised on the land bearing  khasra No.479 ð plaintiff was  
informed by patwari that his house is over khasra No.460 and he was wrongly informed that 
house is over Khasra No.479 ð the application was dismissed on the ground that  the amendment 
was not applied prior to the commencement of trial ð held, that amendment is formal in nature to 
correct an error, which had crept due to the wrong information supplied by Patwari ð plaintiff had 
failed to plead the correct information despi te the exercise of due diligence ð application allowed 
subject to the payment of cost of Rs.2,000/ - . (Para -5 to 9)  

Title: Dilbag Singh Vs. Surjeet Singh and another   Page-199  

 

Code of Civil Procedure, 1908 - Order 6 Rule 17 - Order 8 Rule 6A - A civil suit  for recovery of 
arrears of rent along with interest and also the use and occupation charges was filed ð separate 
applications for pleading a counter -claim and amendment of written statement were filed by the 
tenant ð the applications were dismissed by the  Trial Court - aggrieved from the order, present 
revision has been filed ð held that  earlier an order of eviction was passed against the tenant on 
the ground of arrears of rent - he had not filed any counter -claim and had not taken any plea 
resisting the pe tition - the order of eviction was successfully executed - the tenant is estopped from 
raising any counter -claim ð further the application for amendment could have been filed after the 
commencement of trial on establishing sufficient cause for not seeking the  amendment earlier - 
the documents sought to be filed with the counter -claim were also available earlier - the counter -
claim is also barred by the provision of Order 2 Rule 2 of C.P.C. ð petition dismissed.  

Title: Naresh Sharma Vs. Shiv Ram Sharma   Page-537 

 

Code of Civil Procedure, 1908 - Order 7 Rule 11 - Plaintiffs/appellants filed a suit for recovery of 

Rs. 29 lacs and Rs. 5 lacs as interest ð single Judge held that the suit did not fall within the 
pecuniary jurisdiction and ordered return of the plaint ð held, that the plaintiffs had claimed a 
decree of Rs. 34 lacs ð Rs. 5 lacs was not pendente lite interest but was an interest till the filing of 
the suit ð the matter falls within the pecuniary jurisdiction of the Court - order set aside - plaintiffs 
direc ted to deposit the deficient court fees within eight weeks.  

Title: Jai Pal and others Vs. The State of HP and others (D.B.)   Page-98  

 

Code of Civil Procedure, 1908 - Order 7 Rule 14(3) - An application for producing jamabandi on 
record was filed, which was  dismissed by the Trial Court on the ground that provisions of Order 7 
Rule 14(3) are not applicable, after the plaintiff had closed the evidence in affirmative ð held that 
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copy of jamabandi tendered in evidence did not bear the signatures of HalkaPatwari,  on which the 
applicant approached the Patwari to supply fresh jamabandi - application was filed to produce the 
signed jamabandi on record - document is essential for adjudication of the dispute - application 
can be filed during the hearing of the suit - since  the hearing continues even after theclosing of 
the evidence by the plaintiff - therefore,  Trial Court had wrongly rejected the application - Trial 
Court directed to permit the applicant to adduce the copy of jamabandi  in evidence.  

Title: Tulsi Ram Vs. State of H.P. & others   Page-222  

 

Code of Civil Procedure, 1908 - Order 9 Rule 13 - Applicant was proceeded ex -parte on 
22.9.2015 for which date he was served by way of publication in the daily newspaper ð attempts 
to serve him personally  could not succeed a s he had left the address mentioned in the petition ð 
an application for setting aside ex -parte order was filed by the applicant contending that the 

applicant had not read the newspaper ð held that the service by way of publication in the 
newspaper circula ting in the area where the applicant last resided is proper service ð it is not 

required to be proved that the applicant had actually read the newspaper to complete the service 
ð the service was proper and there is no justification for setting aside ex -par te order ð application 
dismissed.  

Title: Vijaya Shakti Gupta Vs. Rakesh Khanna   Page-223  

 

Code of Civil Procedure, 1908 - Order 14 Rule 5 - An application for framing issues was filed, 
which was dismissed by the Rent Controller - held that no objection was raised at the time of 
framing of issues that any specific issue was not framed ð evidence was led - no application was 
filed for framing any specific issue - application was filed when the case was listed for arguments ð 
when the parties knew their case and they had led evidence on all aspects of the case, non -
framing of any issue is not detrimental for adjudication of the case - issue was already framed to 
the effect whether the petitioner is entitled for arrears of rent and the Rent Controller is bound to 
adjudicate the rate of rent - hence, the plea that issue regarding the rent being less than 
Rs.5,000/ - should also have been framed is not acceptable - application was rightly dismissed by 
the Rent Controller - petition dismissed.  

Title: Kamal Kant Bhatia &  another  Vs. Roop Singh Verma   Page-216  

 

Code of Civil Procedure, 1908 - Order 21 Rule 30 - An execution for recovery of money was filed - 
the notice was served upon the daughter of J.D. - however, the process server did not record that 
J.D. could not be found a t the residence within a reasonable time ð hence, the service was not 
proper - however, the ex -parte order was not sought to be set aside by the J.D. - further, the 
property was ordered to be sold and the notice required under Order 21 Rule 66 (2) was not 
served ð however, the compliance of Order 21 Rule 54(1A) was made - hence, no prejudice was 
caused to the J.D. ð petition dismissed.  

Title: Parma Nand Vs. Kasturi  Lal  &  others    Page-488  

 

Code of Civil Procedure, 1908 - Order 21 Rule 37 - Petitioner/judgment  debtor was ordered to be 

detained in civil imprisonment for a period of two months - aggrieved from the order, the present 
revision petition has been filed ð held that the judgment debtor can be ordered to be detained in 
civil imprisonment on service of sh ow cause notice to him and after giving an opportunity of being 
heard - judgment debtor pleaded that he is a man of no means and is not in a position to satisfy 
the decree ð there is no evidence that judgment debtor had disposed of his property after 
instit ution of the suit or had neglected to pay the decretal amount intentionally and deliberately ð 
merely because judgment debtor does not have any movable and immovable property is not 
sufficient to detain him ð order set aside.   

Title: Ashok Kumar Vs. Socia l Mutual Benefits Company Ltd.    Page-477  
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Code of Civil Procedure, 1908 - Order 22 Rule 4 - Respondent No.30 died during the pendency of 
the appeal before the Appellate Court, while the respondent No.38, 50 and 51 had died during the 
pendency of the civil s uit before the Trial Court - the judgments passed by the Courts are nullity ð 
hence, they are set aside and matter r emanded to the Appellate Court.  

Title: Jai Kishan and others Vs. Mehar Chand and others    Page-668  

 

Code of Civil Procedure, 1908 - Order 26  Rule 9 - An application for demarcation was filed 
pleading that the defendant had encroached upon suit land by raising construction during the 
pendency of suit ð he had also cut a Biuhal tree - application was filed to determine the extent of 
encroachment ð demarcation was conducted by the Field Kanungo after filing the application - the 
demarcation report was affirmed by the Competent Authority ð Trial Court dismissed the 
application on the ground that there was no necessity of demarcation by the Courtin vie w of the 

demarcation having been conducted by the Revenue Authorities, - aggrieved from the order, 
present petition has been filed - held that once the demarcation has been conducted, no 

permission to demarcate the land afresh can be granted ð Trial Court h ad rightly dismissed the 
application ð petition dismissed.   

Title: Jai Chand Vs. Jagdish  Chand    Page-877  

  

Code of Civil Procedure, 1908 - Order 26 Rule 9 - An application for appointment of Local 
Commissioner to demarcate the land was filed by the plainti ff, which was dismissed by the Trial 
Court - held, that on the one hand, the plaintiff has sought the relief of injunction for restraining 
the defendants from getting the suit land demarcated and on the other hand he has filed an 
application for demarcation , which is not permissible ð a person seeking equity must do equity ð 
the application was rightly dismissed by the Trial Court - revision dismissed.  

Title: Satya Devi Vs. Jagir Singh and others   Page-146  

 

Code of Civil Procedure, 1908 - Order 41 Rule 27 - An application for leading additional evidence 
was filed ð the appeal was dismissed, without  taking note of the application ð held, that 
application under Order 41 Rule 27 is required to be decided  alongwith the main appeal - it was 
incumbent  upon the Ap pellate Court to decide the application before disposing of the appeal ð 
disposal of the appeal without deciding the application was not proper ð appeal allowed - the 
judgment of the Appellate Court set aside - case remanded to the Appellate Court with a dir ection 
to decide the application and the appeal in accordance with law within a period of 6 months.  

Title: Bhisham Lal Garg  Vs. Hardei and Ors.   Page-28  

 

Code of Civil Procedure, 1908 - Order 43 Rule 1(d) - An ex -parte decree was passed against the 
appella nt ð they filed an application for setting aside ex -parte decree along with an application for 
condonation of delay ð the application for condonation of delay was dismissed ð aggrieved from 
the order, present appeal was filed ð it was contended that appeal  is not maintainable - held that 
an appeal lies against the order dismissing the application for condonation of delay - objection 
overruled and appeal ordered to be listed for arguments.  

Title: M/s Isotech Electrical & Civil Projects (P) Ltd. and anotherVs.  M/s Sturdy Industries Ltd.  
(D.B.)    Page-815  

 

Code of Civil Procedure, 1908 - Order 47 Rule 1 - An application for review of judgment was filed 
ð held that power of review is to be exercised sparingly in accordance with Section 114 and Order 
47 ð Revision  Petition can be entertained only on the ground of error apparent on the face of 
record ð re-hearing of matter is not permissible while reviewing the judgment ð the applicant has 
failed to show any error apparent on the face of record ð petition dismissed.  

Title: Kameshwar Sharma and others Vs. State of H.P. and others (D.B.)   Page-352  
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Code of Civil Procedure, 1908 - Order 47 Rule 1 - Section 114 - An application was filed for 
review of the judgment passed by the Court vide which the appeal filed by the petit ioner was 
dismissed with a cost of Rs.10,000/ - - it was pleaded that there is an error apparent on the face 
of record as the Court had wrongly concluded that allotment was not questioned ð held that 
review proceedings are not similar to the appeal ð an err or which is self -evident can be called to 
be an error apparent on the face of record ð the error which is to be established by long drawn 
reasoning is not an error apparent on face of record ð it was contended that the order was 
challenged in a civil suit before Learned Civil Judge - however, no declaration was sought 
regarding its invalidity ð the Court had rightly concluded that the order was not challenged - the 
review petition is an abuse of the process of the Court - hence, dismissed with the cost of 
Rs.50,000/ -.  

Title:  Balbir Singh Vs. State of H.P. and others (D.B.)    Page-662  

 

Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973 - Section 125 -Applicant claimed maintenance for herself and 

her minor children - Trial Court allowed the application partly and granted maintenanc e at the 
rate of Rs.1500/ - per month  in favour of minor children but declined the maintenance to the 
applicant ð separate revisions were filed which were dismissed - held that the applicant is residing 
in adulterous relationship with R and her husband had f iled an FIR against her ð the applicant 
was lodged in judicial custody at the time of filing of the application ð hence, maintenance was 
rightly declined to her - petition dismissed.   

Title: Bala Devi Vs. Ved Prakash   Page-252  

 

Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973 - Section 125 - The marriage between parties was solemnized 
as per Hindu Rites and Customs ð two children were born ð husband and his family members 
started  harassing the wife for dowry ð she started residing in the house of her parents - wife had 
no in dependent source of income while the husband was earning Rs. 40,000/ - per month ð an 
application for interim maintenance was filed, which was allowed and maintenance of Rs. 1,000/ - 
per month was awarded in favour of the wife and children - aggrieved from th e order, the present 
revision was filed - held, that the merits of the claim are not to be seen while deciding the 
application for ad -interim maintenance ð wife and the children cannot be left without  means 
during the pendency of the petition ð the revisio nal jurisdiction can be exercised to correct 
miscarriage of justice, irregularity of the procedure, neglect of proper  procedure  or apparent 
harshness of the treatment - no such fact has been proved ð revision petition dismissed.  

Title: Anil Sharma  Vs. Al ka Sharma and others   Page-42  

 

Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973 - Section 127 - Maintenance of Rs.2,500/ - was awarded to the 
wife in the year 2004 - an application for enhancement of maintenance was filed, which was 
allowed and maintenance was enhanced from Rs.2,500/ - to Rs.4,500/ - - aggrieved from the 
order, present revision has been filed - held, that husband had retired as Superintendent and his 
salary was Rs.49,000/ - at the time of superannuation ð he received a sum of Rs.18,67,344/ - as 
GPF and reasonable amount as Death -cum -Retirement Gratuity - his pension was Rs.15,000/ - to 

18,000/ - per month - wife was engaged as daily mid -day meal worker and her income was 
Rs.10,000/ - per annum - taking into consideration the amount of the pension and escalation in 

price,  amount of Rs.4,500/ - per month cannot be said to be excessive - petition dismissed.  

Title: Chain Singh Vs. Kavita   Page-239  

  

Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973 - Section 169 - An FIR was registered for the commission of 
offences punishable under Sections 41 9, 420, 467, 468 read with Section 34 of I.P.C ð the police 
filed a cancellation report - notice was issued to the complainant but complainant had died prior 
to issuance of the notice - notice was issued to general power of attorney - held that a general 
power of attorney had expired on the death of the complainant and general power of attorney 
could not have represented the complainant during the proceedings ð order set aside.  

Title: Hitesh Bisht and others Vs. State of H.P.    Page-812  
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Code of Criminal Proc edure, 1973 - Section 227 - A challan was filed for the commission of 
offence punishable under Section 147 of I.P.C. and Section 3(X) of  Scheduled Caste  and 
Scheduled Tribe (Prevention of Atrocities Act), 1989 ð the Trial Court discharged the accused 
holdi ng that there was a dispute  regarding the passage between the parties, there was delay in 
lodging the FIR and the official witnesses had  not supported the prosecution version ð held, that 
the Court has to see a prima facie case at the time of  framing of charge and is not to dissect the 
evidence - strict standard of proof  is not to be applied at that time ð the Court is not to hold a 
mini trial at the time of framing of charge - complainant and his witnesses had duly supported the 
prosecution version in the ir statements recorded by the police - a prima facie case was made out 
against the accused on the basis of the police challan ð revision accepted and the order of the 
Trial Court set aside.  

Title: State of Himachal Pradesh Vs. Mohinder Singh and others   Page-153  

 

Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973 - Section 228 - Police filed a charge sheet for the commission 

of offence punishable under Section 307 of I.P.C - the Court framed the charge - aggrieved from the 
order, present revision has been filed - held that the Court is not required to make a formal 
opinion that accused is certainly guilty of the commission of offence ð the Court had not properly 
appreciated the material on record - revision allowed - order of the Trial Court set aside.   

Title: Varun Bhardwaj Vs. St ate of H.P.    Page-847  

  

Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973 - Section 256 -The Magistrate dismissed the complaint  for 
want of appearance of the complainant or its counsel ð aggrieved from the order, present revision 
has been filed - held that the complainant h ad engaged a counseland it was the duty of the 
counsel to appear before the Court ð sufficient reason was given in the petition for non -
appearance ð the revision allowed -order passed by Trial Court set aside.  

Title: Golf Link Finance and Resorts Pvt. Ltd.  Vs. Jagdev Singh   Page-348  

 

Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973 - Section 311 - An application for leading additional evidence 
was filed, which was dismissed on the ground that the need for examination of the witness was 
not specified  and the application can not be filed to fill up the lacuna ð aggrieved from the order, 
the present application has been filed - held, that the examination of the witness is necessary to 
adjudicate the dispute - the prosecution evidence is being led and no prejudice would be caused  
to the other side as it will have a right of cross -examination - therefore, the revision petition is 
allowed subject to the payment of cost of Rs.10,000/ -.  

Title: Achhar  Singh  Vs. Kapoor Singh and others   Page-402  

 

Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973 - Secti on 320 - An application was filed for compounding the 
offences punishable under Sections 406, 420, 506 read with Section 120 -B of I.P.C. on the 
ground  that matter has been compromised between the parties - the charge was framed for the 
commission of offence  punishable under Section 420 of I.P.C read with Section 120 -B and 506 of 
I.P.C., which is compoundable with the permission of the Court, however,the application was 

dismissed on the ground that offence punishable under Section 120 -B of I.P.C is not 
compou ndable - held, that the offence punishable under Section 120 -B of I.P.C is not an 
independent and substantive offence ð the substantive offences are punishable under Sections 
506 and 420 of I.P.C. ð the matter has been compromised between the parties and th ere is every 
possibility that it will result in acquittal ð therefore, the petition allowed - FIR and further 
proceedings pending against the petitioner are ordered to be quashed.  

Title: Anju Thakur Vs. State of H.P. &  ors.   Page-115  

 

Code of Criminal Pro cedure, 1973 - Section 378 - Petitioners were tried and acquitted of the 
commission of offences punishable under Sections 41 and 42 of Indian Forest Act and 120 -B of 
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Indian Penal Code ð an appeal was filed, which was allowed and the judgment of acquittal was set 
aside ð petitioners were held guilty of violation of Rule 5 of H.P. Forest Produce Transit (Land 
Routes) Rules, 1978  punishable under Rule 20 and Section 42 of Indian Forest Act ð held, that 
appeal against bailable and non -cognizable offences is not m aintainable before the Court of 
Sessions but the same has to be filed  before the High Court ð Sections 41 and 42 of Indian 
Forest Act are bailable and non -cognizable ð the appeal filed before Sessions Judge was not 
maintainable ð adjudication of the same by the Sessions Judge was without jurisdiction - appeal 
allowed ð judgment of the Sessions Judge set aside.  

Title: Pushap Raj and another Vs. The State of Himachal Pradesh   Page-219  

 

Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973 - Section 438 - Applicant was found in po ssession of 18.140 
kgs of poppy husk ð he filed an application seeking pre -arrest bail, which was dismissed by the 

Trial Court as not maintainable - held that rigors of Section 37 of N.D.P.S. Act are applicable when 
a person is booked for the commission of offences punishable under Section 19 or 24 or Section 

27(a) of N.D.P.S. Act and where the quantity seized is commercial quantity ð in the present case, 
the quantity stated to have been recovered is less than commercial quantity and rigors of Section 
37 are  not applicable - seven criminal cases have been registered against the applicant and 
present case is the eighth one - therefore, the concession of pre -arrest bail cannot be granted to 
the applicant ð application dismissed.  

Title: Veerdeen @ Biru  Vs. State of Himachal Pradesh   Page-278  

 

Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973 - Section 439 - Accused has been charged for the commission 
of offences punishable under Sections 364 -A, 420 and 342 read with Section 120 -B of I.P.C and 
Section 66 (d) of I.T. Act, 2000 - an FI R was registered on the basis of complaint made by A stating 
that he was made to travel to Delhi on the pretext of taking him abroad but he was taken to 
Bagdogra and forced to part with  a sum of Rs. 22 lakhs - he was kept in confinement and was 
physically as saulted - petitioner seeks bail on the ground that witnesses examined by the 
prosecution do not establish the charged offences and he is in custody for more than one year, he 
is permanent resident of Himachal Pradesh and is a student having bright future - held that the 
grant or refusal of bail lies in the discretion of the Court - the primary purposes of bail are to 
relieve the accused in imprisonment, to relieve the State of the burden of keeping him pending 
trial and to keep the accused constructively in th e custody of the Court - accused has wrongly 
stated that he is permanent resident of Himachal Pradesh - he is actual resident of Orissa ð
petitioner was traced and brought back from his native place after the lapse of two years - there is 
nothing on record to establish that petitioner has got roots in the society -hence, he is not entitled 
to the concession of the bail - petition dismissed.  

Title: Amit Jha  Vs. State of Himachal Pradesh   Page-527  

 

Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973 - Section 439 - An FIR was registe red against the accused for 
the commission of offences punishable under Sections 376, 354 -A, 328 and 506 of I.P.C. and 
Sections 4 and 8 of POCSO Act ð the petitioner filed an application seeking bail pleading that  he 

is innocent and has been falsely impli cated ð he is behind bar for a long time and he be released 

from custody ð held that the Court has to consider nature of crime, seriousness of the offence, 
character of the evidence, circumstances of the case, possibility of securing the presence of the 
accused, apprehension of the witnesses being tampered with and the larger interest of the public 
ð prosecutrix had made material improvements in her statement - no injury was found on her 
person - there was delay in recording the FIR ð hence, the bail applicat ion allowed and petitioner 
ordered to be released on bail of Rs.25,000/ - with one surety for the like amount .  

Title: Rahul Thakur @ Lucky Vs. State of Himachal Pradesh  Page-684  

 

Constitution of India, 1950 - Article 226 - A memo was issued to the petitione r intimating that 
the respondent proposed to hold an inquiry against him - the petitioner was directed to submit his 
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written statement whether he admitted or denied all the articles of charge ð the petitioner 
accepted the allegation in the articles of charg e and Inquiry Officer was appointed ð the petitioner 
appeared before Inquiry Officer and admitted all the articles of charge ð the Inquiry Officer 
submitted a report holding that the charges against the petitioner stood proved ð the petitioner 
was called u pon to submit his representation against the findings recorded by Inquiry Officer ð 
the petitioner submitted a representation and admitted all the allegations ð the disciplinary 
authority imposed a penalty of removal, which shall not be disqualification fo r future employment 
ð the petitioner filed an appeal in which he stated that he was forced to confess the charges to 
save the other officers of the Company ð the appeal was dismissed by the Appellate Authority - 
aggrieved from the order of the disciplinary authority, present writ petition was filed - held, that 
three communications of guilt were submitted by the petitioner on different dates - there is no 
material on record to show that the confession was not voluntary but on account of coercion or 
duress exer cised by his senior officers ð the officers asking the petitioner to confess have not been 

impleaded as parties ð no violation of the procedure was pointed out ð the penalty was imposed 

on the basis of confession - the order passed by Appellate Authority is  self speaking and does not 
suffer from any infirmity, irregularity or illegality ð Writ Court does not act as the Appellate Court 
- principles of natural justice were followed ð the order was passed on the basis of  material on 
record - writ petition dismi ssed.  

Title: Bhoop Ram Garg Vs. United India Insurance Company Ltd.and others  

 Page-124  

 

Constitution of India, 1950 - Article 226 - A process for filling 500 temporary posts of Transport 
Multipurpose Assistantswas initiated ð it was contended that notific ation and rules are in 
violation of Section 45 of Road Transport Corporation Act, 1950 - the applications were allowed 
and the process was held to be bad ð aggrieved from the  order, the present writ petition has been 
filed ð held that preliminary objection s were raised, which went to the root of the case - the locus 
standi of the applicants was challenged ð no discussion was made regarding the objection - the 
writ petition allowed, order of the Tribunal set aside and matter remanded to the Tribunal for 
dispos al in accordance with law.   

Title: Himachal Road Transport Corporation and another Vs. Bhupinder Singh and another (D.B.)  

   Page-818  

 

Constitution of India, 1950 - Article 226 - An application was filed for placing on record the 
identity card and other doc uments to show that the status of the petitioner was not of a trainee 
but of a workman ð the Labour Court did not pass any order on the application but non suited 
the petitioner on the ground that he was unable to prove his status as a workman - held that the 
Labour Court should have passed an order on the application and should not have non -suited 
the petitioner without considering his application - writ petition allowed and award of the Labour 
Court set aside - matter remanded with a direction to decide the  same afresh after passing an 
order on the application.  

Title: Mukesh Kumar Vs. M/s Ansysco through its MD  Page-814  

 

Constitution of India, 1950 - Article 226 - Applications were invited for awarding distribution 

dealership outlet of Rajiv Gandhi Grameen L PG VitrakYojna under open category ð petitioner was 
declared qualified for the draw of selection and was called upon to be present along with his 
photo identity for draw of lots - a letter was sent that there was a mistake in the description of 
khasra numbe r- certain short -comings were noticed  and the petitioner was called upon to 
remove the same within a period of seven days - thereafter his candidature was cancelled without 
affording an opportunity of being heard - aggrieved from the order, petitioner filed  the present writ 
petition - held, that candidature of the petitioner was cancelled without affording an opportunity, 

which is a violation of principle of natural justice - present writ petition allowed and the 
Corporation directed to afford an opportunity of being heard.  

Title: Srijan Sharma Vs. Union of India and Ors.   Page-241  
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Constitution of India, 1950 - Article 226 - Deceased was standing - he was caught by electric 
wire, which was hanging very low - deceased was shifted to Hospital but he succumbed to t he 
injuries - a writ petition was filed for seeking compensation - held that where there is prima facie 
evidence of negligence, the Court cannot grant relief in exercise  of writ jurisdiction -  deceased 
was a boy of 13 years whose life was curtailed due to a ccident - there is violation of right of life - 
respondent stated that deceased had died due to his own negligence but a person undertaking an 
activity involving hazardous or risky exposure to human life, is liable  to compensate other person 
for the injury s ustained by the other person ð contributory negligence is no defence in such 
situation  - considering the age of the deceased, respondent directed to pay a compensation of 
Rs.6 lacs w ith interest @ 7.5% per annum.   

Title: Rekha  Vs.The H.P. State Electricit y Board & another   Page- 558  

 

Constitution of India, 1950 - Article 226 - Departmental inquiry was drawn against the writ 
petitioner after his retirement ð held, that departmental inquiry cannot be drawn against the 

employee after his retirement ð The Tribu nal had rightly allowed the application - writ petition 
dismissed.  

Title: The Himachal Pradesh State Co -operative Milk Producers' Federation Limited Vs. Sudhir 
Chand Katoch (D.B.)   Page-157  

 

Constitution of India, 1950 - Article 226 - Industrial Disputes Ac t, 1947 - Section 25 - The 
workman was engaged as field man in the year 1989 on daily wage basis - he was posted as 
conductor in a truck - he made a representation against his postings and his services were 
terminated ð a reference was made and the Industrial Tribunal dismissed the claim of the 
workman - aggrieved from the order, present writ petition was filed - held thatthe workman had 
failed to prove that he had completed 240 days in the preceding 12 months period - it was proved 
by the respondents that workman  was habitual absentee and did not respond to the notices 
issued by the Corporation to join his duties and his services were rightly terminated ð the Writ 
Court has limited jurisdiction while deciding the writ petition and it cannot re -appreciate the 
evidence ð the Industrial Tribunal had rightly dismissed the reference - writ petition dismissed.  

Title: Prem Singh  Vs. H.P. State Forest Development Corporation     Page-432  

 

Constitution of India, 1950 - Article 226 - Petitioner applied for an appointment as anga nwari 
worker ð petitioner was declared selected while respondent No.4 was kept in the waiting list ð 
respondent No.4 preferred objection before Competent Authority ð a writ petition was filed, in 
which a direction was issued to decide the representation of  respondent No.4 within two months ð 
Deputy Commissioner set aside the appointment of the petitioner on the ground that marks were 
not awarded properly ð aggrieved from the order, present writ petition has been filed - held that 
the reasoning of the Deputy Commissioner on the basis of broad guidelines is not sustainable as 
no guidelines were brought to the notice of the Court ð there is no practice or law to bind 
interview committee to award certain minimum percentage of marks in an interview -  the Court 
wil l not sit in appeal over the assessment of an individual candidate - writ petition allowed - order 

of the Deputy Commissioner set aside.   

Title: Reeta Devi Vs. State of Himachal Pradesh & others   Page-788  

 

Constitution of India, 1950 - Article 226 - Petitione r had not approached the Tribunal within a 
reasonable time and had invoked the jurisdiction of the Tribunal after the lapse of ten years - 
held, that a person who is a fence sitter cannot claim any benefit after noticing that the same had 
been granted to si milarly situated persons - Tribunal had rightly dismissed the original 
application - writ petition dismissed.  

Title: Raj Kumar Vs. Bharat Sanchar Nigam Limited and others (D.B.)  Page-101  
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Constitution of India, 1950 - Article 226 - Petitioner has done his B. Sc. in Medical Laboratory 
Technology from Janardhan Rai Nagar, Rajasthan Vidyapith University, Udaypur - he applied for 
registration but the registration was declined ð aggrieved from the order of non -registration, the 
present writ petition was filed ð the respondent pleaded that the university is not competent to 
run extension Centre/study Centre/learning Centre outside the State of its origin ð the University 
did not have recognition to run the course in the year 2005 ð the recognition was given in the 
year 2007 -08 - the degree obtained by the petitioner is not valid ð held thata person cannot be 
registered as a paramedical practitioner  unless he possesses a recognized qualification - Centre in 
Kurukeshtra was an authorized Distance Education Study Centre of  the University - ex post facto 
approval/recognition was granted till 2005 ð thereafter provisional approval was granted for the 
year 2007 -08 ð the qualification gained by the petitioner between 2005 to 2007 cannot be said to 
be recognized - respondent No.2  had rightly declined the recognition to the petitioner ð writ 
petition dismissed .  

Title: Arvind Sharma Vs. State of Himachal Pradesh and another   Page-585  

 

Constitution of India, 1950 - Article 226 - Petitioner has purchased the land from the previous 
own ers who were inducted as non -occupancy tenants and had become the owners on the 
commencement of H.P. Tenancy and Land Reforms Act - the petitioner constructed a site office 
and a store after obtaining permission from Municipal Corporation, Nahan - the respon dent 
directed the Jawans to obstruct the passage leading to the land in dispute ð demarcation was 
conducted and the path was found to be owned by M.C., Nahan - army jawans trespassed into the 
suit land and demolished the site office, store and retaining wal l ð FIR was registered ð the 
petitioner restarted the construction but it was also demolished - a civil suit was filed, which was 
decreed - proceedings for eviction of the petitioner were initiated under Public Premises (Eviction 
of Unauthorized Occupants) Act, 1971 and an order of eviction was passed ð an appeal was filed, 
which was dismissed - aggrieved from the order, present writ petition has been filed - held that the 
land was in the ownership of the State Government - proprietary rights could not have be en 
conferred upon the tenants ð the plea of the petitioner that he had acquired ownership from the 
previous owner is not tenable -  the petitioner is a trespasser ð civil court has already held the 
Government to be the owner and liberty was granted to initi ate proceedings for eviction of the 
tenants in accordance with law ð the appeal was dismissed ð hence, the proceedings for eviction 
under the Act are maintainable ð the orders passed by the estate officer and appellate authority 
are legal ð writ petition d ismissed.   

Title: Manish Kumar Aggarwal Vs. Union of India &ors. (D.B.)    Page-700  

 

Constitution of India, 1950 - Article 226 - Petitioner has questioned the result of entrance 
examination for SAS conducted by H.P. Public Service Commission on the ground tha t no marks 
were awarded to the petitioner for some of the correct answers ð the respondent stated that the 
answer sheets were rightly evaluated by the Experts and re -checking of the answer -sheets is not 
permissible ðheld, that the Court cannot sit in appea l over the expertõs opinion- further, it was 
specifically mentioned in the advertisement that re -evaluation or re -checking is not permissible ð 

the petitioner had gone through the advertisement and had participated after knowing about the 
conditions - he ca nnot seek the re -evaluation of the answer sheets - writ petition dismissed.  

Title: Dalip  Kumar  Vs. H.P. Public Service Commission (D.B.)   Page-267  

 

Constitution of India, 1950 - Article 226 - Petitioner was appointed as a clerk in H.P. Vidhan 
Sabha Secretar iat - he was promoted and was placed against the post of Superintendent (Ex -
Cadre) in the year 2000 - Himachal Pradesh Vidhan Sabha Secretariat (Recruitment and 
Condition of Service) Amendment Rules, 2008 were notified in the year 2008 ð eight posts of 
Secti on Officers were to be filled on the basis of seniority ð petitioner was promoted as 
Superintendent Grade -II on 1.7.2009 ð respondent No.2 who was shown at Serial No.6 was 
promoted as Section Officer w.e.f. 1.4.2008 on notional basis ð notional promotion o f respondent 
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No.2 was regularized and he was promoted on regular basis as Section Officer w.e.f. 1.10.2010 ð 
respondent No.2 was wrongly promoted against ST category ð respondent No.1 stated in the reply 
that the promotion was made in accordance with 13 po ints roster and in accordance with the 
instructions issued by Government from time to time ð held that actual representation of 
incumbents belonging to different categories in a cadre isto be determined at the time of initial 
operation of the roster ð any excess representation is to be adjusted at the time of future 
recruitment ð respondent no.1 had wrongly adjusted a candidate belonging to ST category against 
the post meant for unreserved category ð ST candidate was to be adjusted against 7 th replacement 
point and was adjusted against 6 th  replacement point ð respondent No.2 could not have been 
adjusted against the reserved post for ST as it was already occupied by ST candidate - the 
petitioner was not unfit and was entitled to promotion ð writ petition allowe d- direction issued to 
consider the case of the petitioner for promotion in accordance with law and if the petitioner is 
found entitled to promotion, to grant him the consequential relief.  

Title: Ran Singh Vs. Himachal Pradesh Vidhan Sabha, Shimla and ano ther   

 Page-594  

 

Constitution of India, 1950 - Article 226 - Petitioner was appointed as anganwadi worker - her 
appointment was quashed and set aside in an appeal filed by respondent No.6 - the petitioner filed 
an appeal, which was initially allowed but the o rder was set aside in review - aggrieved from the 
order, the present writ petition has been filed - held that Divisional Commissioner had set aside 
his order in review but there is no provision of review in the scheme ð writ petition allowed and 
the order pa ssed by Divisional Commissioner set aside.  

Title: Ruma Devi Vs. State of H.P.& others   Page-564  

 

Constitution of India, 1950 - Article 226 - Petitioner was appointed as Lecturer ð she applied for 
extraordinary leave for three years and did not turn up to j oin her services after 15.3.1999 ð she 
claimed the arrears on account of revision of pay till the date of service ðheld that no 
representation was made by the petitioner seeking revision of her pay - no explanation was given 
for the delay on the part of the  petitioner ð writ petition dismissed.   

Title: Neelam Sharma Vs. Baba BalakNath Temple Trust & Others   Page-542  

 

Constitution of India, 1950 - Article 226 - Petitioner was appointed as Anganwari worker in the 

month of August, 2007 ð an appeal was preferred against the appointment on the ground that 
petitioner is not resident of survey area of Anganwari center ð the appeal was allowed and the 
appointment of the petitioner was set aside - the petitioner preferred a second appeal before 
Divisional Commissioner, which was dismissed - direction was issued to conduct fresh interview 
to select eligible candidate strictly in accordance with the scheme/guidelines issued by the 
department ð a writ petition was filed, which was disposed of with a direction to the Appellat e 
Authority to consider the case afresh ð again it was held that petitioner is not a resident of 
survey/feeding area and her appointment was against the guidelines ð the present writ petition 
has been filed against the order passed by Appellate Authority ð held, that it was specifically held 
in the writ petition that the person should be resident of Village/ward, where the Center is 

located ð it was specifically stated in the affidavit of respondent No. 4 that part of the Village 
where house of the petition er is situated does not fall under the feeder area of Anganwari, where 
she was appointed - patwari had also reported the same fact - no document was placed on record 
to show that the house of the petitioner falls within the feeder area ð the Appellate Author ity had 
rightly set aside the appointment of the petitioner ð petition dismissed.  

Title: Savita Vs. State of H.P. and others   Page-117  

 

Constitution of India, 1950 - Article 226 - Petitioner was appointed as Chowkidar on Contract 
basis ð he was transferred  as security guard - subsequently, his services were terminated in the 
year 2003 ð a reference was sought but the same was declined by Labour Commissioner on the 



 
 
 
 

- 12 - 
 

ground of delay - aggrieved from the order, present writ petition has been filed - held that  no 
reason for delay was given by the petitioner ð stale claims should not be allowed unless there is 
specific explanation for the delay ðthere is no illegality in the order passed by the Commissioner ð 
writ petition dismissed.   

Title: Nishi Sharma Vs. Secreta ry, Department of Labour& Employment and others   

 Page-5 

 

Constitution of India, 1950 - Article 226 - Petitioner was appointed as anganwari helper - her 
selection was assailed by the private respondent by filing an appeal, which was allowed ð a 
direction was  issued to conduct fresh interview ð the respondent was selection as anganwari 
helper ð Appellate Authority held the respondent to be ineligible for appointment ð a direction was 
issued to conduct fresh interview ð aggrieved from the order, the petitioner filed the present writ 

petition ð held that once the Appellate Authority concluded that the respondent was not eligible, a 
direction should not have been issued to hold the fresh interview, in which the respondent would 
also participate - the order of the Appellate Authority set aside and direction issued to re -engage 
the petitioner.  

Title: Achhri Bibi Vs. State of Himachal Pradesh and others   Page-359  

 

Constitution of India, 1950 - Article 226 - Petitioner was selected as a drawing master by PTA ð 
responde nt No.5 filed a complaint before Inquiry Committee stating that merit was ignored at the 
time of selection ð the Inquiry Committee concluded that the proper procedure was not adopted 
by the PTA and held the appointment of the petitioner to be bad - an appea l was filed before 
Deputy Commissioner, which was dismissed - a writ petition was filed and the matter was 

remitted to the Inquiry Committee who concluded that petitioner had secured 8 th  position while 
the complainant had secured 6 th  position ð the appointm ent was not proper ð aggrieved from the 
report, present writ petition was filed ð held that the appointment of the petitioner is not in 
accordance with the direction issued by the Government ð the Inquiry Committee had rightly 
concluded that petitioner was  not the most meritorious person - writ petition dismissed.   

Title: Kamal Kishore Vs. State of H.P. & Others   Page-533  

 

Constitution of India, 1950 - Article 226 - Petitioner worked as Balwadi  teacher in Balwadi 
Centre, Bathmana - respondent No.3 sanctioned an Anganwadi Centre ð applications were invited 
from the eligible candidates - petitioner submitted her candidature but the respondent No.3 
refused to entertain her application - respondent No.6 was appointed by way of transfer - 
notification was issued to fi ll up the post, which had fallen vacant due to the transfer - she filed 
an appeal, which was rejected as time barred - a further appeal was filed, which was also 
dismissed as time barred - aggrieved from the orders, present writ petition has been filed - held 
that clause 4 of the terms and conditions reads that under the ICDS programme there is no 
provision of transfer of Anganwadi Workers/ Helpers as these are honorary workers - it has been 
stated that in case of marriage of Anganwadi workers or helpers, if any  vacancy exists, she would 
be transferred or adjusted in that Anganwadi Centre - only a female who is resident of the 
Village/Ward, where Anganwadi Centre is located or who belongs to feeder area is eligible for 

appointment - adjustment of respondent No.6 b y way of transfer is arbitrary and colourable 
exercise of power - once the discretionary power had been exercised by adjustment, it was not 
incumbent to adjust her again - application for second adjustment is contrary to guidelines ð 
petition allowed - direct ion issued to initiate the process to fill up the post of Anganwadi worker.  

Title: Manju  Sharma  Vs. State of Himachal Pradesh and others   Page-483  

 

Constitution of India, 1950 - Article 226 - Petitioners were appointed as Safaiwalas in Rashtriya 
Military S chool, Chail ð they were on probation of two years ð they were issued warnings for 

unauthorized absence ðtheir  services were terminated on 1.6.2015 ð petitioners filed original 
applications before Central Administrative Tribunal -  respondent pleaded that the performance of 
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both the petitioners was not satisfactory during the probation period and they were issued 
various warnings ð the Tribunal dismissed the original application - aggrieved from the order, 
present writ petitions have been filed - held that lo ts of complaints were filed against the 
petitioners - repeated warnings were issued to the petitioners - the performance of the petitioners 
was not found satisfactory and authorities took a conscious decisions not to extend the probation 
period ð no inquiry was required to be conducted as the termination was not stigmatic ð the 
applications were rightly dismissed by th e Tribunal - petition dismissed.   

Title: Narender Kumar Vs. Union of India and others (D.B.)   Page-16  

 

Constitution of India, 1950 - Article 226 - Respondent is a consumer of electricity supplied by 
the petitioner and had agreed to pay the tariff levied upon it in accordance with the prevalent 
rules ð the petitioner sought demand and energy charges from the respondent - a dispute was 

raised before F orum for Rederessal for Grievances of HPSEB Consumers, who decided that the 
final claim raised by the petitioners is not based upon actual figures and facts - aggrieved from 

the order, present writ petition has been filed ð held that respondent had agreed to pay the 
electricity tariff as per the prevalent rules  - it had sought assured contract demand of 754.08 
KVAð demand and energy charges were in accordance with the prevalent rates ð there is no 
infirmity in the demand of charges from the respondent - pet ition allowed .  

Title: HPSEB and others Vs. Agro Industrial Packaging India Ltd.   Page-875  

 

Constitution of India, 1950 - Article 226 - Respondents invited expression of interest for 
construction, operation/maintenance and running of parking complexes in Sh imla under Public 
Private Partnership Mode (PPP) ð petitioners submitted the expressions of interest which were 
accepted ð sanction for construction of complex was accorded subject to conditions - a dispute 
arose, which was referred to Arbitrator who comme nced proceedings ð separate writ petitions 
were filed by the petitioners ð held that the matter was referred to the sole arbitrator in 
accordance with the request for proposal ð the arbitrator was bound to proceed in accordance 
with law and to pronounce th e award within stipulated time ð reference was made prior to the 
amendment in Arbitration and Conciliation Act and will not apply to the pending arbitral 
proceedings ð writ petition is not maintainable and proceedings in accordance with Arbitration 
and Con ciliation Act have to be taken regarding the arbitration matters -  the High Court does not 
have the power to intervene in the proceedings/orders passed by Arbitral Tribunal ð petition 
dismissed.   

Title: M/s P K Construction Co and another Vs. The Shimla Mu nicipal Corporation and others  
(D.B.)    Page-706  

 

Constitution of India, 1950 - Article 226 - The father of the petitioner was having a shop -cum -
residence, which was acquired for the construction of Bhakra Dam Project ð compensation of 
Rs.556/ - was paid to  him and he fell in the definition of oustee ð the petitioner claimed that he 
was entitled for allotment of plot in new Bilaspur Township but no plot was allotted to him - 
hence, he filed the writ petition - held that no document was placed on record to sho w that the 

petitioner had raised the issue from 1979 till 30 th  August, 2011, the date of filing of writ petition ð 

the petition is hopelessly barred by time ð the relief cannot be granted to a person who does not 
approach the Court within time - petition di smissed.   

Title: Durga Dass Sharma Vs. State of H.P. &  Others    Page-530  

 

Constitution of India, 1950 - Article 226 - The Office of Naib Tehsildar was functioning at Village 
Chandol ð office of Kanungo is already located at Village Salech ð the Government ha s issued a 
notification establishing the headquarters of newly created sub -Tehsil Pajhota at Nohri - it was 
contended by the petitioner that there is insufficient accommodation at Nohri for establishing the 
headquarters ð offices are already working at Vill ages Salech/Chandol and they are appropriate 
places for setting up the headquarters ð Gram Panchayats have also passed resolution for 
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establishing the headquarters at Salech/Chandol ð residents have also offered 2.5 bighas of land 
and there is no justifica tion for issuance of notification ð respondents contended that the decision 
was taken to establish headquarters at Nohri for providing better services ð held that petitioner is 
not authorized by the public to file the present writ petition ð the decision t o establish 
headquarters at Nohri has been taken in public interest ð people had made land available free of 
cost to establish headquarters at Nohri ð Courts cannot interfere in the policy decision unless the 
decision is capricious or arbitrary ð the decis ion is not shown to be arbitrary or based upon 
irrational consideration - petition dismissed.   

Title: Prem Singh Chauhan Vs. The State of H.P. and others (D.B.)   Page-380  

 

Constitution of India, 1950 - Article 226 -Respondent No.4 was engaged by the petition er ð a 
dispute arose between different societies, which was ultimately referred to Divisional 

Commissioner - work was re -distributed and the petitioner was left with no work ð a decision was 
taken to remove respondent No.4 - a demand was raised by respondent s No. 4 and 5 ð Labour 

Inspector -cum -Conciliation Officer directed the petitioner to re -engage the respondents No. 4 and 
5ð aggrieved from the order, present writ petition has been filed ð held that conciliation had not 
taken place and the Conciliation Offi cer has no adjudicatory powers - his duties are administrative 
and not judicial ð petition allowed ð order of the Labour Officer set aside.   

Title: The Kohinoor Sarvahitkari  Parivahan  Sahkari Sabha Samiti Vs. State of Himachal Pradesh 
and others   Page-630  

 

Constitution of India, 1950 - Article 226 -The Notification providing calendar for preparation of 
electoral roll has been issued - any aggrieved person can approach the authority for 
inclusion/exclusion of the names from the rolls ð parties can file their cl aims/objections, which 
would be considered by the authority concerned ð petition disposed of.  

Title: Om Prakash Vs. State Election Commission Himachal Pradesh & others (D.B.)  

 Page-882  

 

Constitution of India,, 1950 - Article 226 - TehsildarKangra submitted  his report  to ADM, 
Kangra, wherein the annual income of the petitioner was shown as Rs.16,742/ -  and earlier 
income certificate was cancelled - while computing  the income of the petitioner, the income of her 
mother -in -law received as pension was also con sidered ð the petitioner claimed that her mother -

in -law resides separately and she has annexed  copy of parivar register  to this effect ð the 
petitioner challenged the report by filing an appeal before the Appellate Authority, which was 
dismissed - aggriev ed from the order, present writ petition has been filed ð held, that mother -in -
law of the petitioner has been shown as family member along with the petitioner ð the pension 
amount goes to the family of the petitioner and is being used for its well -being ð the Tehsildar had 
rightly taken the pension into consideration - writ petition dismissed.  

Title: Tripta Devi Vs. Sub Divisional Officer (Kangra)   Page-197  

 

Contempt of Courts Act, 1971 - Section 12 - A consent order was passed by the Writ Court 
directing th e respondents to convene a general house in the presence of Assistant Registrar of the 

Co-operative Societies after following due process of law - a contempt petition was filed pleading 
that the respondents have not obeyed the order passed by the Writ Court  ð held that the 
respondent had taken all possible steps for convening of general house ð the petitioners 
frustrated the managing committee meeting so that general house meeting could not be held ð the 
respondents have not violated the order passed by writ  court - Contempt petition dismissed.   

Title: Shyam Lal & Others Vs. Praveen Verma & Others (D.B.)   Page-437  

 

Contempt of Courts Act, 1972 - Section 12 - The respondents were directed to implement the 
policy framed by them within a period of 6 months ð Stat e Government formulated a policy for 
taking over the services of the petitioners and similarly situated persons with the condition 
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precedent that all those who are to be benefited by the policy should not have any litigation 
pending - the respondents are no t implementing their policy - held, that the tables filed by the 
respondent show that the judgment stands complied with ð no case of willful contempt is made 
out ð petition dismissed.   

Title: Abhilash Chand and others Vs. Sanjay Gupta and others (D.B)    Page-82  

 

Contempt of Courts Act, 1972 - Section 12 - The petitioner -union comprising of employees of 
erstwhile Central Co -operative Consumers Store Shimla raised an industrial dispute claiming 
regular pay scales at par with the employees of federation with arr ears ð the reference was 
allowed ð writ petitions were filed and it was held that petitioners would be entitled to all 
monetary benefits which were being paid to them on 18.6.1994 including increments and other 
emoluments ð LPA was filed, which was partly allowed - the judgment was modified by directing 

H.P. State Co -operative Marking and Consumers Federation Limited, Shimla to do the needful 
and take follow up action ð a contempt petition was filed pleading that the corporation has not 

complied with the ord ers passed in the writ petition ð held, that power of contempt has to be 
exercised with great care and circumspection ð the petitioners were held entitled to pay scales 
which were payable to them on 18.6.1994 and were specifically held disentitled to the D A and 
ADA etc. at par with the regular employees of the federation ð the plea of the entitlement of 
revised pay scales at par with the employees of the federation was never upheld by the Court ð 
the members of the union cannot claim any benefit over and ab ove to what they were held 
entitled in the judgment - contempt petition dismissed.   

Title: General Secretary / Pradhan, Employees Union Central Cooperative Consumer Store, 
Shimla Vs. K.C. Chaman (D.B.)    Page-90  

 

 ôEõ 

Employees Compensation Act, 1923 - Section 3 - Deceased was engaged as driver who died in a 
motor vehicle accident - it was contended that vehicle was transferred and the liability was 
wrongly fastened upon the appellant - held, that employment is a necessary condition for getting 
compensation in  Workmen Compensation Act - deceased was employed by the appellant  and, 
therefore, he is liable for the payment of compensation - liability cannot be fastened upon the 
person recorded as owner in R.C. - appeal dismissed.  

Title: Jagdish Vs. Pinky Devi and ot hers   Page-245  

 

Employees Compensation Act, 1923 - Section 4 - Deceased was employed under respondent 
No.1 - he died in an  accident ð it was contended that the insurer is not liable as the vehicle was 
transferred by respondent No.1 to respondent No.4 and the re is no privity of contract between 
respondent No.1 and the insurer ð held, that it was proved that deceased was employed as driver 
by respondent No.4 and the insurer was rightly held liable ð the deceased was drawing wages of 
Rs.3,000/ - per month and dail y expenses of Rs. 100/ - - the compensation of Rs.3,14,880/ - 
cannot be said to be excessive ð appeal dismissed and penalty of Rs.1 lac imposed upon the 
respondent No.4.  

Title: United India Insurance Ltd.  Vs. Fulan Devi and others   Page-121  

 

Employees Com pensation Act, 1923 - Section 4 - Deceased was working as a beldar - a boulder 
slided from the hill side and hit the deceased on his head - he died on the spot - a compensation of 
Rs.2,58,336/ - was awarded by the Commissioner - a sum of Rs.1,52,313 was awarded as interest - 
Insurer was directed to deposit the amount with interest within a period of one month from the 
date of the award or to pay the penalty - held, that the terms of the policy were not brought on 
record to show that insurer was  not liable to pay t he interest - the liability to pay the penalty is 
that of the insured and not of the insurer - hence, award modified to the extent that liability to pay 
the penalty imposed upon the insurer is quashed and set aside.  

Title: New India Assurance Company Ltd. V s. Bhim  Chhring  Maghar  &  ors.   

 Page-99  
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Employees Compensation Act, 1923 - Section 4 - S was employed as additional foreman -cum -
driver with H.P. Power Corporation Limited ð he died while discharging his duties - Commissioner 
assessed the compensation as Rs.2 ,71,120/ -  and awarded the same without interest - aggrieved 
from the award, present appeal has been filed - held that where an employer is in default in 
paying due compensation, the Commissioner shall award the interest @ 12% per annum or 
higher ð the inter est of 12% per annum is statutory and has to be awarded along with 
compensation - appeal allowed - interest awarded @ 12% per annum from a date after one month 
when the same fell due.  

Title: Hazar Mani Vs. The Secretary, H.P. State Electricity Board & anoth er  

 Page-641  

 

 ôHõ 

H.P. Excise Act, 2011 - Section 39 - A vehicle was seized for transporting 7 bottles of English 
Wine - An application for release of vehicle was filed, which was dismissed by the Trial Court - 
aggrieved from the order, present revision has  been filed - held that  there is provision of 
confiscation of the vehicle under Section 60 of the Act ð however, this power can be exercised only 
after final adjudication of the case ð this provision is not relevant while deciding the interim 
custody of th e vehicle -  there is no bar for the interim release of the vehicle ð the order set aside 
and direction issued to the Trial Court to decide the same afresh.   

Title: Kuldeep Singh Vs. State of H.P.   Page-670  

 

H.P. Municipal Corporation Act, 1994 - Section 2 54(1) - Petitioners were directed by respondent 
No.2 to stop the construction work and to take  demarcation by associating their immediate 
neighbours - an appeal was filed, which was dismissed - aggrieved from the order, the present 
petition has been filed co ntending that the order is beyond the scope of Section 254(1) ð held, that 
the notice issued by the Commissioner did not touch any of the conditions contemplated by 
Section 254 of the M.C. Act ð the power was exercised for extraneous consideration ð the 
Appellate Court had also not looked into this aspect while deciding the appeal ð notice under 
Section 254(1) cannot be served in a routine, casualor callous manner on the basis of allegations 
made in the complaint by the neighbour ð it was incumbent upon the respondent to set out in 
detail various acts of omission and commission to afford an opportunity to meet the case against 
the petitioners ð reply filed by the petitioners was not even taken into consideration while passing 

the order ð no reasons were assig ned in support of the order - the notice was to be issued by the 
Commissioner and could not have been issued by Architect planner ð he had exercised a 
jurisdiction not vested in him ð petition allowed - order passed by respondent No.2 quashed and 
set aside.  

Title: Ashok Thakur and another Vs. M.C. Shimla and others    Page-226  

 

H.P. Urban Rent Control, 1987 - Section 14 - An eviction petition was filed on the ground of 
arrears of rent, the premises being more than 100 years old having outlived its life, the pr emises 
having become unfit and unsafe for human habitation, the tenant having sublet the premises and 
the premises being required bonafide for reconstruction, which cannot be carried out without 

vacating the building ð the petition was allowed by the Rent Controller - an appeal was filed, 
which was allowed and the order of the Rent Controller was set aside - held in revision that the 
eviction petition has been filed  for eviction of the tenant from the ground floor but no  eviction 
petition was filed for evic tion of the tenant residing on the upper floor - the premises is owned by 
various co -owners and all of them have not been impleaded - the Appellate Authority had not 
taken into consideration the relevant factors while deciding the appeal - revision allowed an d order 
of Appellate Authority set aside.   

Title: Anil Kumar Vs. Vijay Kumar and another   Page-632  
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Himachal Pradesh Agricultural & Horticultural Produce Marketing (Development and 
Regulation) Act, 2005 - Section 40 - Petitioner, a company registered under Indian Companies 
Act, 1956, has a manufacturing unit at Una and is exclusively engaged in the manufacture of 
Liquid Glucose, Dextrose, Monohydrate, Liquid Malto  Dextrine, Malto  Dextrine Powder, Maize 
Glutane, Maize Germ and Maize Husk out of Maize ðit was asked to get itself registered under 
H.P. Agricultural & Horticultural Produce Marketing (Development and Regulation) Act, 2005 - the 
petitioner contended that it is not engaged in the processing of any agriculture produce and is not 
covered under the Act ð an amount of Rs. 22,52,535/ - was recovered and a prayer was made for 
the refund of the amount ð it was stated in the reply that maize is an agricultural produce and 
the petitioner is duty bound to pay the fee and get itself registered - held that there is a distinction 
between manufacturing and processing activity ð in case of manufacturing, there is complete 
transformation of the original  articles to produce a commercially different article or commodity 
having its own character, use and name, whereas in c ase of processing, the identity remains 

exactly the same - the end product produced by the petitioner is totally different from the original 

product namely, maize - petitioner is carrying out manufacturing activity and not processing 
activity and is not cove red under the Act - it is not liable to pay any market fee ð therefore, a 
direction issued to refund market fee realized from the petitioner within three months.  

Title: M/s. Sukhjit Starch and Chemicals Ltd. Vs. The Agriculture Produce Market Committee, 
Un a, Himachal Pradesh, through its Secretary   Page-362  

 

Himachal Pradesh Panchayati Raj Act, 1994 - Section 163 - Petitioner was elected as ward 
panch - election was challenged before authorized officer by filing an election petition - petitioner 
was held to be  disqualified to hold the post - an appeal was filed, which was dismissed - aggrieved 
from the order, present writ petition has been filed - held that election petition filed before the 
prescribed authority was beyond the period of limitation as election peti tion can be filed within 
thirty days only - authorized officer erred in entertaining  the petition after the period of limitation - 
writ petition allowed and the order of disqualification of the petitioner set aside subject to 
payment of cost of Rs.10,000/ -.  

Title: Veena Devi Vs. State of Himachal Pradesh and others   Page-523  

 

Hindu Adoption and Maintenance Act, 1956 - Section 18 and 23 - Trial Court granted interim 
maintenance of Rs.1,000/ - per month to each of the plaintiffs/applicants - aggrieved from the 
order, the present petition was filed - held thatTrial Court had relied upon the pleadings to grant 
interim relief - although issues have been framed, parties were not called upon to produce the 
evidence ð the reliance placed upon the pleadings is improper as  in case of dismissal of main suit, 
recovery proceedings would have to be  initiated ð petition allowed - order of the Trial Court set 
aside.  

Title: Sanjay Kumar Vs. Sumna  Kumari  & others   Page-464  

 

Hindu Marriage Act, 1955 - Section 13 - Wife filed a petit ion on the ground that her husband is a 
known patient of Schizophrenia and had treated herwith cruelty ð the husband pleaded that he 

was suffering from depression, which is curable ð the petition was dismissed ð aggrieved from the 

order, the present appeal  has been preferred - held that wife has to prove that the disease  with 
which the spouse is suffering is not curable and it is not possible to live with the ailing spouse ð 
the Doctor was not examined to prove the nature of ailment ð it was not proved that  the disease 
was not curable ð the respondent suffered first attack after 4½ years of marriage, which reveals 
that respondent was not suffering from the attacks regularly ð the husband is prepared to live 
with the petitioner in a matrimonial home - the divo rce petition was rightly dismissed - appeal 
dismissed.   

Title: Suchita  Bhaik  Vs. Rajesh Kumar Bhaik   Page-452  
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Income Tax Act, 1961 - Section 260 -A- Respondent is an assessee and a credit institution within 
the meaning of Section 2(5A) of the Interest  Tax Act, 1974 - assessee failed to furnish the return 
within the stipulated period - a notice was issued on which return was filed ð an assessment order 
was passed raising tax demand ð Commissioner of Income Tax set aside the assessment - an 
appeal was file d which was dismissed as infructuous ð however, penalty was imposed upon the 
assessee by the Deputy Commissioner of Income Tax ð an appeal was filed and the penalty was 
modified ð separate appeals were filed against this order - the Appellate Authority canc elled the 
order of penalty ð aggrieved from the order, an appeal was filed before the High Court ð the matter 
was remanded to Assessing Authority, who imposed the fresh penalty - appeal was preferred 
against this order, which was dismissed ð further appeal was allowed ð aggrieved from the order 
of Appellate Authority, the present appeal has been filed - held that penalty can be imposed 
against assessee in case the Assessing Officer comes to a definite conclusion that assessee had 

concealed  particulars of cha rgeable interest or had furnished inaccurate particulars of such 
interest - the return was accepted in its entirety ð advance tax was paid by the assessee before the 
closure of Financial year ð return was delayed on account of non -availability of return for m -  
there was no concealment on the part of the assesse - assesse had furnished complete particulars 
of income in the profit and loss account ð the Tribunal had passed the order rightly - appeal 
dismissed.   

Title: Commissioner of Income Tax, Shimla Vs. M/s H.P. State Co -operative Bank Ltd., Shimla 
(D.B.)    Page-797  

 

Indian Forest Act, 1927 - Section 52 -A- The vehicle of the respondent was seized for transporting 

the forest produce ð an application for release of vehicle was filed before Authorized Officer -cu m-
Divisional Forest Officer, which was rejected - a revision was filed before Additional Sessions 
Judge, which was converted into an appeal  and the order of Authorized Officer was set aside ð 
aggrieved from the order, present revision has been filed - held that no report of seizure was made 
to the Authorized Officer ð a challan was filed before the Magistrate who had jurisdiction to 
release the vehicle ð order of release can be passed by a Court which had taken cognizance of the 
charge sheet - however, in the  peculiar facts and circumstances of the case, the order of 
Authorized Officer upheld .  

Title: State of Himachal Pradesh Vs. Prakash Chand    Page-765  

 

Indian Partition Act, 19 - Section 4 - Plaintiff filed a civil suit seeking partition of the property 
pleading that the property is jointly owned by large number of co -sharers and it is difficult to 
enjoy the same - the suit was decreed by the Trial Court - an appeal was filed, which was allowed ð
held in second appeal that when a partition is sought, the entire joint property owned by the co -
owners must be brought into hotchpot for division amongst the co -sharers ðhowever, partial 
partition is permissible in certain circumstances provided that no prejudice is caused to the other 
side ð the Appellate Court had mad e a general observation that the suit was bad for partial 
partition and no prejudice was pointed out ðappeal allowed ð judgment of the Appellate Court set 
aside and that of the Trial Court restored.  

Title: Pradeep Chand Sharma and others Vs. Budhi Devi an d others  Page-545  

 

Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section 147, 148, 149, 323, 324, 325, 341 and 427 - Complainant and 
his son were ploughing their field ð accused H and N came armed with sickle and stick - accused 
K was present on the spot and he asked the compla inant to stop ploughing the field ð the accused 
attacked the complainant and complainant sustained injuries ð he and his son raised alarm on 
which K and R arrived at the spot, who were also beaten ð the accused were tried and acquitted 
by the Trial Court - held in appeal that there was a cross FIR - accused had also sustained 

injuries - the place where the incident took place does not belong to the complainant but is in the 
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possession of the accused - it was not proved that accused were aggressors and they were  rightly 
acquitted by the Trial Court - appeal dismissed.  

Title: State of Himachal Pradesh Vs. Hardev Singh &  ors.   Page-213  

 

Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section148, 341, 323, 324 read with Section 149 - Complainant was 
going to drop his driver ð when the car reached near M, the driver stated that he could not 
undertake the journey on foot to his house as it was pitch dark  - he requested the complainant 
to return ð a tractor was found parked in the middle of the road which was causing obstruction to 
the traffi c ð the complainant got down from the car and requested the persons standing near the 
tractor to give him the way but accused R and R attacked the complainant ð other accused 
inflicted stick blows ð driver and occupant of the  complainantõs car cried for he lp on which 
accused ran away ð the accused were tried and acquitted by the Trial Court - held in appeal 

thatthere are contradictions in the testimonies of prosecution witnesses - the disclosure statement 
was not recorded prior to effecting recovery and the r ecovery is not admissible ð Trial Court had 
properly appreciated the evidence - appeal dismissed. (Para-9 to 17)  

Title: State of Himachal Pradesh Vs. Ranjeet Singh &  Others    Page-248  

 

Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section 228 - Accused was appearing as a prosec ution witness in the 
Court of the complainant ð she started quarreling with defence counsel ð she was requested to 
remain calm ð she started shouting that she had no faith in the system and especially in the 
Court of the complainant - she was advised to mai ntain decorum in the Court but she continued 
with her behaviour ð she was informed that her behaviour amounted to contempt of Court but 
she replied that she did not care for anyone ð the complainant took cognizance and filed a 
complaint before the Court - the accused was tried and convicted by the Trial Court - an appeal 
was preferred pleading that the same be treated as a mercy petition on which the Appellate Court 
reduced the sentence imposed by the Trial Court - held in revision that the conviction of the 
accused was not challenged in appeal on merit and it was pleaded that the appeal be treated as a 
mercy petition ð the Appellate Court has reduced the sentence and it is not open to the accused 
to agitate the matter on merit ðhowever, considering the fact th at the complaint was filed by a 
judicial officer, the matter re -examined on merit ð it was duly proved by the prosecution 
witnesses that accused was asked to remain calm and to maintain the decorum of the Court but 
the accused continued to disrupt the proc eedings - the defence version was not probable ð the 
accused was rightly convicted by the Courts - revision dismissed.  

Title: Subhadra KumariVs. State of Himachal Pradesh   Page-413  

 

Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section 279 - Accused was driving a tanker with a high speed in a rash 
and negligent manner ð the accused was tried and acquitted by the Trial Court ð an appeal was 
filed, which was dismissed - held in revision that there are contradictions regarding the vehicle  
being driven by the witnesses ð this fact w as ignored by the Courts ð revision allowed ð orders of 
the Courts set aside.   

Title: Ravinder Kumar Vs. State of H.P.    Page-784  

 

Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section 279 and 304 -A- Accused was driving a Maruti van in a rash 
and negligent manner and hit P wh o died at the spot ð the accused was tried and convicted by the 
Trial Court - an appeal was filed which was also dismissed ð held in appeal that the prosecution 
version was proved by PW -1 - PW-4 and PW -5 did not support the prosecution version ð however, 
none of the witnesses had identified the accused ð owners said that he had employed three 
persons as drivers and the possibility of some other person driving the vehicle at the time of 
accident cannot be ruled out - it was not proved that rashness and neglige nce of the accused had 
caused the accident - revision allowed - accused acquitted.   

Title: Karam Chand Vs. The State of Himachal Pradesh    Page-756  
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Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section 279 and 337 - Accused was riding a motorcycle with high 
speed and hit the cyc le due to which cyclist sustained injuries - the accused was tried and 
convicted by the Trial Court - an appeal was filed, which was allowed and the accused was 
acquitted ð held, that independent witnesses had not supported the prosecution version - sole 
test imony of the victim does not inspire confidence ð the Appellate Court had rightly appreciated 
the evidence to hold that prosecution version was not proved - appeal dismissed .  

Title: State of H.P.Vs. Akhilesh Kumar   Page-32  

 

Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Sectio n 279 and 337 - Complainant and her aunt were going to temple 
in a bus ð when the complainant tried to get down from the bus, the conductor whistled - the 
complainant fell down and sustained injuries ð the accused was tried and acquitted by the Trial 
Court - held in appeal that presence of PW -2 was suspect due to which the whole prosecution case 

also became suspect - it was admitted by the complainant in cross -examination that there was a 
heavy congestion of the passengers ð possibility of complainant having f allen down cannot be 
ruled out ðthe Trial Court had correctly appreciated the evidence - appeal dismissed.   

Title: State of H.P. Vs. Hukam Chand and another   Page-576  

  

Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section 279 and 338 - Accused was driving HRTC Bus in a rash an d 
negligent manner ð he struck driver side of the bus with a wall due to which minor R sustained 
injury on his arm ð the accused was tried and convicted by the trial Court - an appeal was 
preferred, which was dismissed - held in revision that photographs sho w that there was sufficient 
space for driving the bus after keeping sufficient distance from the wall ð there are scratches on 
the back side of the bus starting from the rear tyre of the bus ð scratches were also visible on the 
wall against which the drive r side of the bus was struck ð this shows that the bus was taken to 
the extreme right side of the Road due to which child sustained injuries ð it was the duty of the 
accused driving the bus to keep in mind the possibility of the passengers having some part  of 
their body outside of the bus ð rashness and negligence of the accused was duly proved - revision 
dismissed.  

Title: Jiwa  Nand  Vs. State of Himachal Pradesh   Page-878  

 

Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section 279, 337 and 201 - Accused was driving a truck in a rash and 
negligent manner ð the complainant was riding a scooter - the truck hit the scooter from the side 
as a result of which the complainant sustained injuries - accused was tried and convicted by the 
Trial Court - an appeal was preferred, which was allowe d- held in appeal that it was duly proved 
that accused was driving the truck - accused had sped away from the spot which is inconsistent 
with his innocence ð the Appellate Court had wrongly held that the identity of the accused was 
not established ð the ap peal allowed - judgment of Appellate Court set aside and judgment of Trial 
Court restored.  

Title: State of H.P. Vs. Pradeep Singh   Page-579  

 

Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section 279, 337 and 304 -A- Accused was driving a tempo - he could 

not control the same an d hit the bus coming from the opposite side ð 4-5 passengers sustained 
injuries ð one passenger succumbed to the injures - the accused was tried and acquitted by the 
Trial Court - held in appeal that the death was proved by post mortem report ð prosecution 
version was proved by the prosecution witnesses ð mere non -association of the passengers will 
not make the prosecution case doubtful ð the Trial Court had relied upon the report of the 
mechanical expert but there is no evidence of any defect in the vehicle prior to the accident ð the 
Trial Court had wrongly acquitted the accused ð appeal allowed - judgment passed by the Trial 
Court set aside - accused convicted of the commission of offences punishable under Sections 279, 
337 and 304 -A of I.P.C.  

Title: State o f H.P. Vs. Hari Singh   Page-309  
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Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section 279, 337 and 338 - Accused was driving a bus ð he took it to 
the wrong side and the bus fell down ð the complainant sustained injuries ð the accused was 
tried and acquitted by the Trial Court - held in appeal that according to mechanical expert the 
steering and braking system of the vehicle had suffered break down ð he was not cross -examined 
at all - hence, the defence version is probable ð Trial Court had rightly acquitted the accused - 
appeal di smissed.  

Title: State of H.P. Vs. Bhim  Singh    Page-502  

 

Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section 279, 337 and 338 - Accused was driving a jeep in a rash and 
negligent manner and struck his jeep against B ð B sustained simple and grievous injuries - he 
was taken to  hospital, where he succumbed to the injuries ð the accused was tried and acquitted 
by the Trial Court - held in appeal that PW -1 had supported the prosecution version - mere fact 

that PW -3 and PW -4 had turned hostile will not make the prosecution case suspe ct - no 
mechanical defect was found in the vehicle ðthe accident was caused  due to the high speed of the 

vehicle ð the Trial Court had wrongly acquitted the accused - appeal allowed - accused convicted of 
the commission of offences punishable under Sections 279, 337 and 338 of I.P.C.  

Title: State of H.P. Vs. Kewal Singh    Page-76  

 

Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section 279, 337 and 338 - Accused was driving a motor cycle with 
high speed - the motor cycle hit the bus ð accused and pillion rider sustained injuries  - the 
accused was tried and acquitted by the Trial Court - held in appeal thatbus was moved after the 
accident and no reliance can be placed upon the site plan ð the presence of eye -witnesses was not 
established as the tickets were not collected by the Inves tigating Officer from them to show their 
presence - pillion rider did not support the prosecution version ð the Trial Court had taken a 
reasonable view while acquitting the accused - appeal dismissed.  

Title: State of H.P. Vs. Sanjiv  Kumar    Page-151  

 

India n Penal Code, 1860 - Section 279, 337 and 338 - Accused was driving a Mahindra Jeep with 
a high speed ð the complainant and his brother -in -law were waiting for a bus on the side of the 
road ð the jeep hit the complainant due to which the complainant fell dow n- he sustained injuries 
on his legs ð the accused was tried and convicted by the Trial Court for the commission of 
offences punishable under Sections 279, 337 and 338 of IPC ð an appeal was preferred, which 
was dismissed ð held in revision that the accuse d had  admitted in his statement recorded under 
Section 313 Cr.P.C that he was driving the vehicle slowly, which shows that the fact that accused 
was the driver was not in dispute - PW-4 and PW -5 expressly stated that accused was driving the 
vehicle in a ras h and negligent manner ð medical evidence corroborated the version of the 
prosecution ð the Courts had rightly convicted the accused, in these circumstances - however, 
considering the time, which has elapsed since the date of incident, sentence modified.  

Title: Prem  Chand Vs. State of Himachal Pradesh   Page-417  

 

Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section 279, 337 and 338 -Accused was driving a truck in a rash and 

negligent manner and hit the car causing hurt to the occupants of the car - the accused was tried 
and acqu itted by the Trial Court - held in appeal that the injured has supported the prosecution 
version ð his testimony was not shaken in cross -examination -  no mechanical defect was found in 
the vehicle - the Trial Court had not properly appreciated the evidence - appeal allowed and 
judgment of Trial Court set aside - accused convicted of the commission of offences punishable 
under Sections 279, 337 and 338 of I.P.C.  

Title: State of Himachal Pradesh Vs. Roop Lal    Page-733  

  

Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section 279, 33 7, 338 and 304 - Accused was driving a truck - he took 
his truck towards the wrong side and hit the right side of a bus - one passengers fell down and 
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suffered fatal injuries - other passengers suffered multiple injuries - accused was tried and 
convicted by the  Trial Court - an appeal was filed, which was dismissed - held in revision that 
mechanical report makes the defence  version  probable that there was mechanical defect in the 
vehicle due to which the truck went towards the wrong side of the road - the Courts h ad ignored 
this part of the evidence - judgments of the Courts set aside and the accused acqu itted of the 
charged offences.   

Title: Diwan Chand Vs. State of Himachal Pradesh   Page-1 

 

Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section 279, 337, 338 and 304 -A- Accused was dr iving a bus in a 
rash and negligent manner ð the bus hit a car due to which one occupant of the car sustained 
injuries and another  died at the spot - the accused was tried and acquitted by the Trial Court - 
held in appeal that the vehicles were moved after t he accident and site plan does not reflect the 

position at the time of accident ð however, the pieces of glass were found in the middle of the road, 
which shows that bus was being driven on inappropriate side of the road ð identity of the accused 

was establ ished ð the Trial Court had not properly appreciated the evidence - appeal allowed - 
judgment of the Trial Court set aside.   

Title: State of H.P. Vs. Narender Chand    Page-627  

 

Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section 279, 337, 338, 304 -A and 201 -Accused was driving a truck in 
a rash and negligent manner ð the truck hit S, who sustained injuries below the abdomen ð the 
accused was tried and acquitted by the Trial Court - held in appeal that the testimonies of the 
prosecution witnesses did not establish that accused had  an opportunity to see the deceased and 
despite that he had hit the deceased ð the author of the FIR was not examined - no blood stain was 
found on the tyre of the truck ð the prosecution case became suspect due to all these infirmities ð 
the Trial Court had  properly appreciated the evidence - appeal dismissed.   

Title: State of Himachal Pradesh Vs. Manohar Lal    Page-449  

 

Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section 302 - Accused, deceased and A were engaged as labourers by 
PW-1 and PW -8 for laying marble in their house ð the deceased abused  the accusedunder the 
influence of liquor -  the accused inflicted a blow of  pick -axe on the person of the deceased due 
to which he died - the accused was tried and acquitted by the Trial Court - held in appeal that  A 
was not examined by the prosecution and no reasonable cause was assigned for his non -
examination ð extra judicial confession and recovery were not established ð the Tria l Court had 
taken a reasonable view while acquitting the accused - appeal dismissed.    

Title: State of H .P. Vs. Dalip Kumar (D.B.)   Page-34  

 

Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section 302 - Dead body of wife of accusedwas found - it was revealed 
that accused had murdered the deceased by giving multiple blows with a rod - accused was 
subjecting the deceased to cruelty fo r more than 10 years - accused was tried and convicted by 
the Trial Court - held in appeal that incident was witnessed by PW -14 who called PW -1, PW-2, 
PW-3, R and also K to the spot - they did not support the prosecution version - witnesses to the 

recovery als o did not support the prosecution version - Trial Court had relied upon the 
circumstantial evidence to convict the accused, whereas, it was a case of direct evidence ð it was 
not obligatory for the accused to explain the presence of the blood stains - furthe r, prosecution 
witness has stated that accused took the deceased on his lap and tried to wake her, which would 
explain the presence of blood on the person of the accused - the possibility of involvement of 
others cannot be ruled out - it was not established  that weapon of offence contained the blood of 
the deceased - prosecution evidence did not prove the guilt of the accused - Trial Court had erred 
in convicting the accused - appeal allowed and accused acquitted.  

Title: Rajender  Kumar  Vs. State of Himachal Pr adesh (D.B.)    Page-566  
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Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section 302, 201 read with Section 34 - Deceased went to work but did 
not return ð his dead body was found ð it was found on inquiry that deceased and accused V had 
consumed liquor in the room of D ð the ac cusedwere tried and acquitted by the Trial Court - held 
thatthe wife of the deceased had improved upon her previous version ð it was not proved that 
deceased was last seen in the company of the accused ðno independent witness, who was present 
at the time of  recovery of dead body, was examined - further, the mere recovery of the dead body 
will not connect the accused with the commission of offences - disclosure statements and 
consequent recoveries were not established ð the motive to commit the crime was also n ot proved - 
the Trial Court had taken a reasonable view while acquitting the accused - appeal dismissed.   

Title: State of Himachal Pradesh Vs. Desh Raj and another (D.B.)    Page-257  

  

Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section 307 and 323 - Complainant had asked his b rother to take the 

cattle for drinking water - when brother of the complainant reached near the old house, his 
parental uncle (accused) asked as to why he had come there and started abusing him ð brother of 

the complainant objected, on which accused inflict ed a blow of axe on the forehead ð when the 
complainant tried to lift his brother, accused pelted stones due to which complainant sustained 
injuries ð the accused was tried and convicted by the Trial Court - held in appeal that PW -4 is an 
interested witness  and independent witnesses were not examined by the prosecution ð witness to 
the recovery resiled from his testimony - further, no disclosure statement was recorded prior to 
effecting recovery - axe was not sent to FSL for examination and is, therefore, not  connected to 
the accused ð the defence version is made probable by the injury sustained by the accused - the 
victims were the aggressors and accused was in possession ð the Trial Court had wrongly 
convicted the accused - appeal allowed - judgment passed by the Trial Court set aside.   

Title: Rasal Singh Vs. State of H.P    Page-103  

  

Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section 325 - Complainant and K had gone to pluck walnut from a 
tree - accused B came to the spot and claimed that walnut tree was in joint owner -ship - th e 
complainant refused to give walnut to the accused on which the accused gave a danda blow on 
the face of the complainant ð one tooth  of the complainant was broken ð the accused went away 
ð the accused was tried and acquitted by the Trial Court ð held in appeal there are  contradictions 
in the testimonies of complainant and his father - recovery of danda is suspicious ð the presence 
of eye-witnesses at the spot was doubtful ð two views are possible and Trial Court had taken a 
reasonable view while acquittin g the accused ð appeal dismissed.  

Title: State of Himachal PradeshVs. Bhagat Ram   Page-211  

 

Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section 325 read with Section 34 - Accused assaulted the complainant 
by giving him kicks and fist blows - he fell down and lost his two tee th - one A tried to rescue the 
complainant but he was also assaulted by the accused - the accused was tried and acquitted by 
the Trial Court - held in appeal that there are contradictions in the ocular and medical versions - 
no independent witness was examined - delay in lodging the report was not explained - Trial Court 
had properly appreciated the evidence - appeal dismissed.   

Title: State of H.P. Vs. Suresh Kumar and others   Page-40  

 

Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section 325, 341, 504 - P was filling water  by the s ide of the road ð 
accused B came and told P that P had got his name registered in Antyodya scheme, whereas he 
was not eligible for the same - B started abusing P ð he picked up a bamboo stick and inflicted 
injury on the head of P ð K and A rescued the compl ainant - accused was tried and acquitted by 
the Trial Court - held in appeal that the accused had also lodged an FIR regarding the incident 
prior to FIR lodged by the complainant ð accused had sustained injuries ð there are discrepancies 
in the testimonies of the complainant and his mother ðthe stick was not connected with the 
commission of offences - the Trial Court had rightly acquitted the accused - appeal dismissed.  

 Title: State of H.P. Vs. Bhag Singh   Page-148  
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Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section 326 and 50 6- Complainant and accused are residing in the 
same building ð the room of the accused is above the room of the complainant - complainant 
noticed that water was dripping from the room of the accused , which was falling on her bed ð the 
complainant went to the room of the accused to complain about this fact - the accused started 
abusing her ð her husband came on the spot ð the accused took out a knife and stabbed the 
husband of the complainant ð the accused was tried and convicted for the commission of the 
offence punishable under Section 326 of IPC ð an appeal was preferred, which was dismissed ð 
held in revision that medical evidence proved the injuries ð the statement of accused was not 
recorded prior to recovery and the recovery is not admissible ð there a re contradictions in the 
statements of PW -2 and PW -6- report of the FSL did not say that the blood found on the knife 
belonged to the accused ð the possibility of sustaining injury by falling upon nails cannot be ruled 
out ð the Courts had wrongly convicte d the accused ð appeal allowed ð judgments of the Courts 
set aside - accused acquitted of the offences charged.  

Title: Dharam Chand Vs. State of H.P.    Page-480  

 

Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section 341 and 354 read with Section 34 - Prosecutrix was going to 
Jungle to bring  grass ð a motor cycle came on which two persons were sitting ð they parked the 
motorcycle and proceeded towards the prosecutrix ð she identified pillion rider as S ð S restrained 
her and K embraced her ð S caught hold of her arm and started  kissing her ð she raised hue and 
cry on which K arrived at the spot ð the accused went away on seeing K - the prosecutrix 
narrated the incident to K ð K was taking her to her mother ð they met sister -in -law of the 
prosecutrix on the way ð prosecutrix also  narrated the incident  to her -  accused were tried and 
convicted by the Trial Court - an appeal was filed, which was dismissed - held in revision that 
mother of the prosecutrix and PW -5 have corroborated the case of the prosecution ð prosecutrix 
admitted i n her cross -examination that she was not deposing against the accused as the matter 
had been compromised between the accused and her father ð she supported the prosecution 
version in cross -examination ð it was correctly concluded by the Trial Court that th e case was 
proved beyond reasonable doubt ð revision dismissed .   

Title: Kamal Kishore Vs. State of Himachal Pradesh    Page- 293  

 

Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section 341, 353 and 332 read with Section 34 - Complainant was 
working as room attendant in a restaur ant owned and managed by the Punjab Tourism - some 
customers came and  complainant was directed by the Manager to show the room to the 
customers - customers opted to occupy the room shown to them - complainant went out to bring 
the luggage - accused were the employees of Hotel Ishan and told that they were charging 
Rs.100/ - only for the night stay - complainant made a report to the Manager - accused threatened 
to beat the complainant and thereafter gave beating to him - he suffered injuries - accused were 
tried an d convicted by the Trial Court - an appeal was preferred, which was allowed - held that 
complainant  had  stated that he had lost gold chain and money, but these articles were not 
recovered - medical evidence did not support the version of the complainant - comp lainant had 
improved upon his version - it was not found that clothes were torn ð presence of eye -witness was 

suspicious - Appellate Court had taken a reasonable view while acquitting the accused - appeal 
dismissed.  

Title: State of H.P. Vs. Kamal and others    Page-316  

 

Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section 353 and 506 read with Section 34 - Accused went to the blood 
bank where the complainant was discharging duty as in charge ð they had donated blood in the 
morning and were to take blood in exchange for administra tion to a patient ð the accused were 
late - technician and other officials had left the blood bank - the accused could not provide blood  
so the accused misbehaved with the complainant ð they caught hold of the complainant, abused 
and threatened him - the ac cused were tried and convicted by the Trial Court - an appeal was filed, 
which was allowed and the judgment of Trial Court was reversed - aggrieved from the judgment of 
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the Appellate Court, present appeal has been filed -  held in appeal that complainant had not 
deposed about the presence of any person at the time of incident ð hence, the statements of 
alleged eye witnesses cannot be believed - testimony of the complainant was not creditworthy ð the 
Appellate Court had rightly acquitted the accused - appeal dism issed.   

Title: State of H.P. Vs. Ved Prakash &  others    Page-349  

 

Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section 353 -Complainant was working as Conductor in HRTC and 
was deputed on Kaza -Shimla route ð the accused boarded the bus at Tapri ð the complainant 
asked the acc used for a ticket on which the accused started abusing the complainant and 
thereafter slapped him - the accused was tried and convicted by the Trial Court - an appeal was 
preferred, which was allowed - held that complainant and other witnesses had supported t he 
prosecution version ð the occurrence was not disputed in the cross -examination and it was 

suggested that the accused had apologized, which apology was accepted by the complainant ð the 
prosecution case was proved beyond reasonable doubt and the Appellat e Court had wrongly 

acquitted the accused - appeal allowed ð judgment of Appellate Court set aside and accused 
convicted of the Commission of offence punishable under Section 353 of I.P.C.  

Title: State of H.P. Vs. Mahinder Singh   Page-170  

 

Indian Penal Co de, 1860 - Section 363,366 and 376 - Prosecutrix was returning from School ð 
she was kidnapped by the accused with an intent to compel her to marry him - she was sexually 
assaulted against her will in the house of the uncle of the accused - police was informed - 
prosecutrix and accused were recovered ð the accused was tried and acquitted by the Trial Court - 
aggrieved from the judgment, present appeal has been filed - held that prosecutrix was proved to 
be aged 16 years 11 months and 12 days on the date of inciden t ð Medical Officer found the 
evidence of sexual intercourse ð the prosecutrix had not complained to any person in the bus that 
she was being taken away forcibly ð prosecutrix had a mobile phone but did not complain to any 
person ð hence, her consent was pr oved ð she had left the home voluntarily - the Trial Court had 
taken a reasonable view while acquitting the accused - appeal dismissed.   

Title: State of Himachal Pradesh Vs. Subhkaran  (D.B.)    Page-831  

 

Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section 363, 366, 120 -B and 3 76 - Prosecutrix was studying in 9 th  
standard ð she went with PW -20 and spent the night in the house of PW -2 ð accused finding the 
prosecutrix alone at bus stand took her to Bilaspur on the allurement of marriage ð she was 
subjected to sexual assault ð the prosecutrix was taken by accused S ð accused were tried and 
convicted by the Trial Court - held in appeal that prosecutrix was proved to be minor at the time 
of incident ð prosecutrix had not disclosed the details of the accused ð names of the parents of 
th e accused S or his residence were also not disclosed ð she had altered the core story regarding 
the sexual assault - she stated that she was assaulted by R but B was arrested for which no 
explanation was provided ð no test identification parade was conducte d to establish that B was R - 
the prosecution version did not inspire confidence ð delay in reporting the matter was not also 
explained - the evidence was not properly appreciated ð the judgment of the Trial Court set aside 
and the accused acquitted.   

Title:  Bihari Lal Vs. State of H.P. (D.B.)    Page-158  

 

Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section 363, 366, 376(2) and 506(1) - Scheduled Castes and 
Scheduled Tribes (Prevention of Atrocities) Act 1989 - Section 3(2)(v)-Protection of Children 
from Sexual Offences Act,, 201 2 - Section 6 -Prosecutrix belongs to scheduled caste - accused 
used to harass her on the way to school - one day the accused took her to the upper storey of his 
sweet shop and raped her under threat ð the accused took one photograph of her and used to 
abuse h er by threatening to show the photograph ð the accused and another boy came to the 
house of the  prosecutrix and threatened the prosecutrix and her sister - they raised alarm on 
which people gathered - the accused was tried and convicted by the Trial Court f or the 
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commission of offence punishable under Section 363 - the accused was acquitted of the 
commission of remaining offences - aggrieved from the acquittal, the State filed the present 
appeal - held that there are inconsistencies in the statement of the pros ecutrix and her mother 
regarding the incident, which were not explained ð the prosecution case became suspect due to 
these discrepancies ð no explanation was provided for the delay in lodging the FIR ð sister of the 
prosecutrix was not examined and no expl anation was provided for the same ð the Trial Court 
had taken a reasonable view while acquitting the accused ð appeal dismissed.   

Title: State of Himachal Pradesh Vs. Gorkha alias Vijay Kumar  (D.B.)    Page-727  

 

Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section 376 -Prosecutrix left the house at 9:30 A.M. on the pretext that 
her result was to be declared on internet ð she returned at 1:30 - P.M. but did not disclose the 
reason for late arrival ð Subsequently, she told that accused had taken her to hotel during day 

time and h ad raped her ð the accused was tried and acquitted by the Trial Court - held in appeal 
that  prosecutrix did not support the prosecution version ð the testimonies of the parents were not 

satisfactory ð the prosecutrix was more than 16 years of age at the tim e of incident ð Trial Court 
had taken a reasonable view  while acquitting the accused - appeal dismissed.   

Title: Roma SharmaVs. Sameer Beg and another (D.B.)     Page-761  

 

Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section 376(2)(g) - Accused gang raped the prosecutrix ð the y were 
tried and acquitted by the trial Court - an appeal was filed and the order was set aside ð the case 
was remanded with a direction to alter the charge from Section 376 read with Section 34 to 
Section 376 (2)(g) - the accused were tried and acquitted by  the Trial Court - held in appeal that 
the prosecutrix was not proved to be minor ð different dates of birth were mentioned in the 
certificates brought on record by the prosecution - the radiological age of the prosecutrix was 
found to be 16 to 17 years and there can be a difference of three years ð thus, it was not proved 
that prosecutrix was minor ð she had voluntarily accompanied accused No. 5 ðhowever, she had 
not consented for sexual intercourse with the accused No. 5 - the other accused came and raped 
her ð the prosecutrix has supported the prosecution version ð minor improvements in her 
statement are not sufficient to discard the same - the prosecution version was proved beyond 
reasonable doubt - appeal allowed and accused convicted of the commission of of fence punishable 
under Section 376(2)(g) of I.P.C.  

Title: State of H.P. Vs. Raghubir Singh and others (D.B.)    Page-48  

 

Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section 379 read with Section 34 - C, A and K had gone to Neugal Café 
in their car - the car was parked outside  the café ð the accused also parked their van outside the 
Neugal Café - the accused consumed a bottle of beer and thereafter left the café - when C and his 
friends came out of the café, they found that their vehicles were missing ð the complainant 
suspected  the accused and reported the matter to police ð the car was stopped at Bhattu and was 
found to be driven by accused No.1 - O was also sitting in the Car ð a fictitious number plate was 
fixed to the Car ð the accused were tried and convicted by the Trial Co urt ð an appeal was 
preferred, which was dismissed - held in revision the accused were found in possession of the Car - 

the possession was not explained ð there was no error in appreciation of evidence - revisional 

court can exercise jurisdiction to correct m iscarriage of justice  and cannot re -appreciate the 
evidence ð judgments passed by Trial Court and upheld by the Appellate Court do not suffer from 
any infirmity ð revision dismissed.   

Title: Om Parkash Vs. State of Himachal Pradesh    Page-201  

 

Indian Pen al Code, 1860 - Section 451, 325, 504 and 506(1) - Accused came to the house of the 
complainant to make a telephonic call ð wife of the complainant handed over the apparatus to the 
accused through window ðthe accused could not connect the number so he asked the wife of the 
complainant to connect the number ð the wife of the complainant stated that she could not dial 
the number in darkness ð the accused got agitated on hearing this and started hurling filthy 
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abuses ð the complainant asked the accused not to do  so, on which the accused entered inside 
the room armed with stick and gave blows to the complainant ð the accused was tried and 
acquitted by the Trial Court ð held in appeal that no disclosure statement was made prior to the 
recovery ðhence, no probative value can be attached to the recovery - the Trial Court had correctly 
appreciated the evidence ð appeal dismissed.   

Title: State of H.P. Vs. Ramesh Chand , Cr. Appeal No. 221 of 2007    Page-243  

 

Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section 498 -A and 306 - Deceased was m arried to the son of the 
respondent ð respondent used to taunt the deceased for not delivering a male child and for not 
giving gifts - respondent used to quarrel with the deceased on insignificant issues - the deceased 
got burnt ð the accused was tried and a cquitted by the Trial Court ðaggrieved from the order, the 
present appeal has been filed ð held that witnesses except PW -16 turned hostile ð there are 

discrepancies in the testimony of PW -16 ð the deceased had also made contradictory statements 
in the dyin g declaration due to which the dying declaration cannot be relied upon ð an inference 

can be drawn that the deceased may have put herself on fire on account of daily quarrel but a 
suspicion cannot take the place  of proof ð the abetment or cruelty has not been established ð the 
prosecution had failed to prove its case beyond reasonable doubt and the Trial Court had taken a 
reasonable view while acquitting the accused - appeal dismissed.   

Title: State of Himachal Pradesh Vs. Bimla Devi (D.B.)    Page-508  

 

Ind ian Penal Code, 1860 - Section 498 -A and 306 - Deceased was married to the accused ð the 
accused started harassing the deceased for not delivering a child and for not bringing sufficient 
dowry - a son was born but the harassment continued ð the deceased commi tted suicide - the 
accused was tried and acquitted by the Trial Court - aggrieved from the order, present appeal has 
been filed -  held in appeal that prosecution has to establish instigation by the accused to commit 
suicide or conspiracy with others for the commission of the suicide - PW-2 and PW -3 did not 
support the prosecution version - testimonies of PW -1 and PW -8 are vague and there is no 
reference to the time, place and manner of harassment ð the statements are not sufficient to 
prove the prosecution vers ion - Trial Court had taken a reasonable view while acquitting the 
accused - appeal dismissed.   

Title: State of Himachal Pradesh Vs. Raj Kumar  (D.B.)    Page-825  

 

Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section 498 -A and 306 read with Section 34 - Deceased S was married 
to accused M ð the accused treated her with cruelty ð she consumed poison and committed 
suicide ð the accused was tried and acquitted by the Trial Court - held in appeal that parties were 
married for 9 years ð according to prosecution cruelty started after 5 -6 months of the marriage - 
the cause of cruelty was not given ð the deceased was asked to return to her matrimonial home, 
which shows that that the situation was not grave otherwise Panchayat would not have asked her 
to return to her matrimonial home ð the c hildren of the deceased were not associated to prove the 
cruelty ð the Trial Court had taken a reasonable view while acquitting the accused - appeal 
dismissed.   

Title: State of H.P. Vs. Madan Lal &ors.(D.B.)    Page-505   

 

Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section 49 8-A and 306 read with Section 34 - Deceased was married 
to accused M - the accused M was adopted son of co -accused R and D ð accused started treating 
the deceased with mental and physical cruelty ð father of the deceased requested the accused to 
behave with his daughter  properly ð the deceased informed  her mother that accused were 
fighting with the deceased and she had consumed some medicine -father of the deceased visited 
the house of the accused accompanied by his wife and both sons ð they found the decease d was 
lying unconscious ð she was taken to Hospital from where she was referred to a better institution 
having better facilities - she was taken to Jalandhar but she breathed her last ð the accused were 
tried and acquitted by the Trial Court - held, that the  deceased had committed suicide in her 
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matrimonial home ð however, the evidence  regarding the mal -treatment and torturing the 
deceased was not satisfactory as different witnesses had given different versions regarding the 
same ð mother of the deceased was  not examined and she was a material witness ð the comments 
stated to have been uttered by the accused were not of  such a nature as would drive any person 
to commit suicide ðthe call record was not produced and an adverse inference has to be drawn 
against  the prosecution ð the Trial Court had rightly acquitted the accused - appeal dismissed.   

Title: Varinder Singh Vs. State of Himachal Pradesh &ors. (D.B.)    Page-319  

 

Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section 498 -A- Complainant was married to the petitioner ð petit ioner 
and the other accused started maltreating the complainant - she was not provided with clothes 
and shoes and when she demanded them, petitioner and other accused misbehaved with her ð 
she was told that she had not brought any dowry ð she replied that h er parents were poor and 

unable to give anything ð petitioner and other accused started beating the complainant - the 
matter was reported to the police - petitioner and other accused were tried - petitioner was 

convicted by the Trial Court while other accus ed were acquitted - an appeal was preferred, which 
was dismissed ð aggrieved from the judgment, present petition has been filed ð held that the 
Court has very limited power to re -appreciate the evidence while exercising revisional jurisdiction - 
however, whe re there is failure of justice or misuse of judicial mechanism, it is the duty of the 
High Court to prevent miscarriage of justice ð no specific allegation of cruelty was made against 
the petitioner - no specific allegation of demand of dowry was made again st the petitioner ð there 
was delay in reporting the matter to the police for which no explanation was provided ð the 
allegations were made against all members of the family and once the members of the family were 
acquitted, there was no occasion for convi cting the petitioner  on the same set of evidence ð the 
Courts had wrongly convicted the accused ð revision allowed and accused acquitted.  

Title: Ramesh Chand Vs. State of Himachal Pradesh    Page-687  

 

Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section 498 -A read with Sect ion 34 - Prosecutrix was married to 
accused - she was being tortured for not bringing sufficient dowry - dressing table, sewing 
machine, refrigerator etc. were given to the accused by the father of the prosecutrix, who is a 
labourer ð the accused continued to  harass her and demanded Rs. 2 lacs for enabling the 
husband of the prosecutrix to start a business ðthe accused was tried and convicted by the Trial 
Court - an appeal was preferred, which was allowed and the accused was acquitted - held in 
appeal that there  was delay in recording of FIR, which was not properly explained ð no specific 
time of making the demand was given ð the evidence of the prosecutrix that accused attempted to 
assault her is not trustworthy - the Appellate Court had rightly acquitted the acc used - appeal 
dismissed.   

Title: State of Himachal Pradesh Vs. Sanjiv Kumar and others   Page-838  

 

Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Sections 498 -A and 306 read with Section 34 - Deceased was married 
to accused D ð S was the mother -in -law of the deceased - she used t o harass the deceased 
continuously by saying that she would solemnize second marriage of D - she did not send the 

deceased to attend the marriage of her cousin ð deceased was found hanging with the fan ð the 

accused were tried and acquitted by the Trial Cou rt - held in appeal that prosecution witnesses 
had improved upon their original version ð payment of Rs.40,000/ - was not proved ð it was not 
proved that accused S had threatened to get her son re -married ð vague allegations made by the 
prosecution witnesses  do not amount to cruelty ð Trial Court had taken a reasonable view while 
acquitting the accused - appeal dismissed.   

Title: State of Himachal Pradesh Vs. Mohar Singh and others    Page-422  

  

Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Sections 498 -A and 306 read with Section  34 - Deceased was married 
to the accused ð the accused used to doubt the character of deceased and beat her ð he also used 
to demand dowry ð the deceased committed suicide - the accused was tried and acquitted by the 
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Trial Court - held in appeal thatno compl aint of ill -treatment was ever made to Panchayat or police 
during the life time of deceased - no specific incident of demand of dowry was proved ð it was 
admitted that the deceased had given birth to a child after six months of the marriage ð the 
possibilit y of deceased being under stress due to this fact cannot be ruled out - it was not proved 
that accused had instigated/abetted the deceased to commit suicide - the Trial Court had taken a 
reasonable view while acquitting the accused - appeal dismissed.  

Title:   State of Himachal Pradesh Vs. Hem Raj (D.B.)    Page-336  

 

Indian Succession Act, 1925 - Section 63 - Plaintiff filed a civil suit pleading that B was owner in 
possession of the suit land ð the defendant No.1 set up a Will stated to have been executed by B 
and got the mutation attested ð B had not executed any Will and was not in sound disposing 
state of mind prior to his death ð the defendant No.1 had alienated some portion of the land and 

the alienation is not binding upon the plaintiff ð the suit was dism issed by the Trial Court - an 
appeal was preferred, which was allowed - the judgment and decree passed by the Trial Court 

were set aside - held in second appeal that propounder of the Will had taken an active role at the 
time of the execution of the Will - scribe of the Will was not examined ð the marginal witness 
stated that he had identified the executant and thus he cannot be called to be a marginal witness 
ð B was more than 95 years at the time of alleged execution of the Will ð the Will was shrouded in 
su spicious circumstances ð the sale deeds were executed when the defendant No.1 was recorded 
as the owner in the revenue record ð the sale deeds were also not challenged ð the plea of the 
purchasers that they were bona -fide purchasers for consideration appea rs to be probable ð appeal 
partly allowed.  

Title: Vikram Singh and others Vs. Tota Ram (since deceased) through L.Rs   

 Page-394  

 

Indian Succession Act, 1925 - Section 63 - Plaintiff pleaded that he is cultivating the land for 
more than 40 years on the paym ent of batai ð the entry in the revenue record was not corrected 
due to cordial relation between the plaintiff and the deceased - the deceased had executed a Will 
in his favour and in favour of the defendant - the defendant also produced the Will ð the reven ue 
authorities sanctioned the mutation on the basis of the Will of the defendant ð the defendant 
pleaded that the deceased had executed a valid Will in his favour and mutation was rightly 
sanctioned on the basis of the same - the suit was partly decreed by the Trial Court ð separate 

appealswere preferred, which were partly allowed - held that the Will propounded by the plaintiff 
was duly proved and Appellate Court had wrongly ignored the same ð the Will set up by the 
defendant was not proved satisfactorily an d Appellate Court had wrongly held the same to be 
proved ð the judgment of Appellate Court set aside and judgment passed by Trial Court restored.  

Title: Jeet Singh Vs. Tilak  Raj    Page-280  

 

Indian Succession Act, 1925 - Section 63 - Plaintiff pleaded that K had executed a Will in her 
favour ð defendant No.1 executed a sale deed in favour of defendant No.2 in order to deprive the 
plaintiff of her rightful property ð mutation was wrongly attested in favour of the defendant on the 
basis of the forged will ð defendant No.1 pleaded that K was his legally wedded wife and had 

executed a Will in her sound disposing state of mind ð suit was dismissed by the Trial Court - an 
appeal was filed which was dismissed ð held in second appeal that version of the plaintiff that K 
was unmarried was not proved ð the version of the defendant that K was married to defendant 
No.1 was duly proved ð the Will of the plaintiff was shrouded in suspicious circumstances while 
the Will of the defendant was duly proved - the Courts had dealt wi th the matter in a proper 
manner - appeal dismissed.   

Title: Loti Vs. Balak Ram &  Another    Page-648  

 

Indian Succession Act, 1925 - Section63 - Plaintiffs filed a civil suit pleading that plaintiffs and 
proforma defendants are owners in possession of the sui t land ð the Will set up by defendant No.1 
is a fake document - the suit was decreed by the Trial Court - an appeal was filed, which was 
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dismissed ð held in second appeal thatthe Will was executed on 3.2.1986 and was registered on 
5.2.1986 ð the witnesses ap peared before the Court in the year 2000 after more than 14 years ð 
human memory can fade with the passage of time and due allowance has to be given to this fact ð 
however, the Will was not produced at the time of attestation of mutation ð the reason for 
disinheriting natural heir was not given - beneficiary had taken an active participation in the 
execution of the Will ð scribe of the Will was not examined ð attesting witness has not stated that 
the testator had put his signatures in his presence - the Cour ts had rightly appreciated the 
evidence - appeal dismissed.   

Title: Gurbax Singh Vs. Kaushalya Devi &  Ors.    Page-806  

  

Indian Succession Act, 1925 - Section 63 - S was the owner in possession of the suit land ð he 
died intestate - the defendants forged a bog us Will stated to have been executed by S ðdefendants 

pleaded that the Will was executed by the deceased in his sound disposing state of mind and the 
plaintiff not being the son of the deceased has no locus standi to file the suit ð the suit was 

dismissed b y the Trial Court - an appeal was preferred, which was allowed - held, that the plaintiff 
is not proved to be son of the deceased and hence, he has no locus standi to file the present suit - 
the Will was shrouded in suspicious circumstances, which were not ex plained - the Appellate 
Court had wrongly allowed the appeal ð appeal allowed - judgment of Appellate Court set aside 
and that of the Trial Court restored.   

Title: Chet Ram (died through his LRs) and others Vs. Dola Ram and others  

 Page-129  

 

Industrial Disp utes Act, 1947 - Section 25 - Claimants pleaded that they were continuously 
working with the respondent from April, 1990 - their services were terminated on 1.7.2001 ð a 
reference was sought, which was answered in negative ð held, that the respondent had take n a 
plea that workmen had abandoned their job voluntarily - however, this plea was never accepted by 
the Court ð hence, writ petition allowed and the case remanded to the Labour Court for a fresh 
decision.   

Title: Pawan Kumar Vs. Himachal Pradesh State Elec tricity Board through its Secretary &  Anr.  

   Page-306  

 

Industrial Disputes Act, 1947 - Section 25 - K was engaged by Nagar Panchayat on 5.9.1999 - he 
was disengaged on 30.6.2004 ð he approached the authority under Industrial Disputes Act, 
which set aside the  disengagement and directed re -engagement with consequential benefits - 
aggrieved from the said order, present writ petitionhas been filed ð held that K was engaged for a 
work, which was continuously available ð however, the nomenclature was contract assign ment ð 
some other person was engaged after dis -engaging K - the benefit of the legislation cannot be 
denied by using clever phraseology ð no error was committed by the Labour Court by directing 
the re -engagement of K ð however, keeping in view the fact that  the work has been outsourced, 
direction issued to pay compensation of Rs.1 lac to K with interest @ 7.5% per annum from the 
date of award of Labour Court.  

Title: Nagar Panchayat Santokhgarh  Vs. Kamal Dev  Page-678  

 

Industrial Disputes Act, 1947 - Section 25 - The workman was employed as a helper on daily 
wage basis for a period of one month ð the employment continued and the workman completed 
240 days each year during the period of employment ð his services were terminated by an oral 
order without assigning  any reason - a reference was made and the Labour Court ordered the 
reinstatement of the workman with seniority and continuity of service ð however, he was not held 
entitled for the back wages ð aggrieved from the award, present writ petition has been filed - held 
that workman was employed on 12.12.1995 ð an office order regarding the appointment being co 

terminus with the tenure of chairman was issued on 5.2.1997 ðthe order issued in 1997 cannot 
govern the appointment made in the year 1995  - workman had comp leted more than 240 days in 
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a calendar year and a notice under Section 25 -F was required to be issued prior to the 
termination of his services ð no notice was issued ð the award was rightly passed ð High Court 
has limited jurisdiction to re -appreciate the facts while deciding writ petition -  no error of law 
was pointed out - writ petition dismissed.   

Title: HP State Civil Supplies Corporation Ltd. Vs. Presiding Judge and another  

 Page-642  

 

Industrial Disputes Act, 1947 - Section 25 - The workman was working  as un -skilled mazdoor ð 
his services were terminated without following the provisions of Industrial Disputes Act ð he 
sought reinstatement with consequential benefits ð the Tribunal allowed the claim of the 
petitioner and directed the employer to re -engage the petitioner forthwith along with continuity in 
service and seniority from the date of termination with back wages ð aggrieved from the award, 

present writ petition was filed ð held that the employer has  failed to prove that the workman had 
abandoned th e job ð workman had suffered accident during the course of employment and 
remained under treatment ð he was given light job on the recommendation of the Medical Board - 
no notice required under Section 25 -F was served upon the workman ð no notice was issued  
asking the workman to join the duties ð the Writ Court cannot act as Appellate Court and cannot 
re-appreciate the evi dence- Writ petition dismissed.   

Title: Punjab Laminate Private Limited Vs. Gurdas  Ram    Page-8 

 

Industrial Disputes Act, 1947 -Section 36  (4)- A reference was made by the Competent Authority 
on the demand raised by the petitioner - the reference was initially answered in favour of the 
petitioner ex -parte - however, the award was set aside on an application moved by the respondent - 
- an applic ation under Section 36(4) was filed, which was dismissed -held, that  the petitioner and 
respondent were initially represented by legal practitioners  - neither the petitioner nor the Labour 
Court had objected to the appearance by the Advocate ð the represen tation is not onlyat the state 
of appearance but during subsequent stages as well - the application was rightly dismissed by the 
Labour Court - writ petition dismissed.  

Title: Harbans Singh Vs. M/s Alembic Ltd.   Page-96  

 

 ôLõ 

Land Acquisition Act, 1894 - Section 18 - Land was acquired for the construction of  Railway 
Line ð collector determined the market value ð a reference was made and reference Court re -
determined the market value at the rate of Rs.75,000/ - per kanal irrespective of classification and 
category ð aggrieved from the award, present appeal has been filed - held, that exemplar award 
pertains to the same acquisition wherein the reference court had re -determined the market value 
@ Rs.75,000/ - per kanal irrespective of classification ð the acquired l and is similar to the land 
forming the subject matter of the exemplar award ð exemplar sale deeds also pertain to the sale of 
land in the same Village and can be taken into consideration for determining the market value - 
hence, the compensation enhanced fr om Rs.75,000/ - per kanal to Rs. 82,500/ - per kanal ð 
appeal allowed.  

Title: General Manager, Northern Railway Vs. Surinder Kumar & others   Page- 167  

 

Land Acquisition Act, 1894 - Section 30 - The land was acquired and a reference was made 
under Section 30 ð Reference Court declared respondent No.3 to be the person entitled for 
compensation on the basis of entries in the jamabandi and missal hakiat ð held in appeal that a 
reference was made under Section 28 -A of the Act ð petition under Section 30 was not for warded 
to the reference Court ð hence reference court had no jurisdiction to adjudicate the entitlement of 
respondent No.3 ð it was wrongly held that respondent No.3 was gair maurusi  over the acquired 
land ð appeal allowed and the award of the reference Co urt modified.  

Title: Umesh Chand Thakur & others Vs. Land Acquisition Collector and others  

 Page-496  
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 ôMõ 

Motor Vehicles Act, 1988 - Section 149 - Claimant had specifically pleaded and proved that 
deceased was working as labourer/cleaner in the offending v ehicle and was travelling in the said 
capacity in the vehicle at the time of accident - no evidence was led to prove that the deceased was 
travelling in the vehicle as a gratuitous passenger ð the driver had a valid licence at the time of 
accident ð the ins urer was rightly saddled with liability.  

Title: Oriental Insurance Company Limited Vs. Ramku and others   Page-188  

 

Motor Vehicles Act, 1988 - Section 149 - Claimant sustained injuries in an accident involving 
two cars - it was specifically pleaded that the  drivers of both the cars were driving the vehicles 
rashly and negligently, which caused the accident ð the Tribunal held both the drivers to be rash 
and negligent ð the insurer had not led any evidence to absolve itself of liability ð the injured had 

rema ined on leave for more than six months ð the Tribunal had awarded just compensation -
appeal dismissed.  

Title: Deputy Commissioner, Bilaspur  Vs. Mahender Kumar & others   Page-605  

 

Motor Vehicles Act, 1988 - Section 149 - Deceased died in a motor vehicle acci dent - claimants 
filed a claim petition, which was allowed - aggrieved from the award, present appeal has been filed 
contending that deceased was travelling as gratuitous passenger and Insurer is not liable ð held 
that  claimants had specifically pleaded tha t deceased had boarded the vehicle with his luggage 
and other household goods ð this fact was admitted by the owners ð thus, it was rightly held by 
the Tribunal that Insurer is liable ð appeal dismissed.  

Title: Oriental Insurance Company  Vs. Sunita Devi a nd others   Page-622  

  

Motor Vehicles Act, 1988 - Section149 - Insurance Act, 1938 - Section 64 -VB- Insurer 
contended that the premium was paid by means of cheque which was dishonoured  and, 
therefore, it is not liable - held, that there is no proof of the fact  that insured was informed of the 
dishonour of the cheque ð in these circumstances, insurer was rightly held liable to pay the 
amount.  

Title: The National Insurance Co. Ltd. Vs. Swarna Devi and another   Page-80  

 

Motor Vehicles Act, 1988 - Section 149 - It was contended by the Insurer that licence of the 
owner/insured -cum -driver had expired on 17.12.2007 ð accident took place on 6.1.2008 and the 
Tribunal wrongly held the Insurer to be liable ð held that as per proviso to Section 14 of Motor 
Vehicles Act, 198 8 licence continues to be effective for a period of 30 days from the date of its 
expiry ð the accident had taken place within 30 days from the date of expiry and the licence was 
valid ð there was no requirement of endorsement ð the insurer was rightly sadd led with liability - 
appeal dismissed.   

Title: Oriental Insurance Company Vs. Achari Devi and others   Page-614  

 

Motor Vehicles Act, 1988 - Section 149 - It was contended that driver did not possess a valid 
driving licence ð held that owner/insured ðcum - driv er had a valid and effective driving licence to 

drive the offending vehicle ð endorsement was not required and insurer was rightly saddled with 
liability - appeal dismissed.  

Title: Bajaj Allianz General Insurance Company Limited Vs. Shrimati  Reshma and oth ers   

  Page-603  

 

Motor Vehicles Act, 1988 - Section 149 - MACT saddled the insurer with liability with a right to 
recovery ð insurer filed an appeal ð held, that the vehicle was insured - the interest of third party 
cannot be defeated - even if, the insured had committed breach of the terms and conditions of the 
policy, the insurer is liable to pay the amount with a right of recovery ð appeal dismissed.  

Title: National Insurance Company Ltd. Vs. Prem Chand & others   Page-68  
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Motor Vehicles Act, 1988 - Section  149 - No evidence was led by the insurer to prove that the 
driver did not have a valid licence or he had committed breach of the terms and conditions of the 
policy ð the insurer was rightly saddled with liability - appeal dismissed.  

Title: Reliance General  Insurance Company Limited Vs. Bulo Devi and others  

 Page-74  

 

Motor Vehicles Act, 1988 - Section149 - The offending vehicle was a tractor ð the driver was 
competent to drive light motor vehicle - held, that there is no requirement of endorsement in the 
drivi ng licence - in these circumstances, the insurer was rightly held liable - appeal dismissed.  

Title:  National Insurance Company Limited  Vs. Kartar Singh and others  Page-64  

 

Motor Vehicles Act, 1988 - Section 166 - Appellant was registered owner of the vehicle  but had 

sold the same to R on 12.9.1996 ð the vehicle was purchased by J in the year 2003 by an 
agreement ð the vehicle was also released in favour of J ð held, that the person who is in actual 
possession and control of the vehicle at the time of accident  has to satisfy the liability ð since, J 
was in actual possession and control of the vehicle, therefore, he has to satisfy the entire liability 
ð appeal allowed and J directed to satisfy the entire liability.  

Title: Randip Singh Vs. Ikram Khan and another    Page-70  

 

Motor Vehicles Act, 1988 -Section 166 - Claimant/injured remained admitted in the Zonal 
Hospital w.e.f. 30 th  January, 2004 to 11 th  February, 2004 - he had sustained 20% permanent 
disability - Medical Officer stated that injured will not be able to do heavy manual work - salary 
certificate shows that the income of the claimant was Rs.6,395/ - per month - considering the 20% 
disability, it can be safely held that claimant had sustained loss of the income to the extent of 
Rs.500/ - per month - keeping in vi ew the age of the claimant, multiplier of 11 is just and 
appropriate - claimant is entitled to Rs.66,000/ - (500 x 12 x 11) - compensation of Rs.6,000/ - 
under the head cost of attendant and Rs.15,000/ - under the head cost of transportation is 
maintained - compensation of Rs.50,000/ - awarded under the head loss of amenities of life and 
Rs.50,000/ - awarded under the head pain and suffering - claimant is also entitled to Rs.20,000/ - 
under the head medical expenses already incurred and to be incurred in future - thu s, claimant is 
entitled to Rs.2,07,000/ - with interest @ 7.5% per annum from the date of the award till 
realization.  

Title: Karam Singh Vs. M/S The  Kangra Ex -Serviceman TPT  and others  

 Page-183  

 

Motor Vehicles Act, 1988 - Section 166 - Claimants have speci fically pleaded in the claim petition 
that the deceased was their brother - he was not having wife and was issueless - it was further 
pleaded that claimants were dependent upon the deceased ð the MACT had rightly held that the 
claim petition was maintainable  ð further, the deceased was working as beldar and his gross 
salary was Rs.10,180/ - per month ð 50% amount has to be deducted towards personal expenses 
and the loss of dependency will be Rs. 5,000/ - per month ð the age of the deceased was 55 years 
at the t ime of accident - multiplier of 9 was applied  by the Tribunal, which is not correct and 

multiplier of 8 is applicable - thus, the claimants are entitled to Rs.5,000 x 12 x 8 = Rs. 
4,80,000/ - under the heads loss of source of dependency - claimants are also h eld entitled to Rs. 
10,000/ -  each under the heads loss of love and affection and funeral expenses - thus, claimants 
are entitled to Rs. 4,80,000+ 20,000 = Rs. 5,00,000/ - along with interest.  

Title: Oriental Insurance Company Limited  Vs. Vijay Ram & others    Page-190  

 

Motor Vehicles Act, 1988 - Section 166 -Deceased was a driver by profession - he was earning 
Rs.6,000/ - per month ð claimants are three in numbers - 1/3 rd  is to be deducted towards 

personal expenses of the deceased - thus, the claimants have sustai ned loss of dependency of Rs. 
4,000/ - per month - the deceased was aged 29 years at the time of accident ð Tribunal had 
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wrongly applied multiplier of 17 and multiplier of 16 was applicable - thus, claimants are entitled 
to Rs. 4,000 x 12 x 16= Rs. 7,68,000/ - under the head loss of dependency ð the deceased was 
taken to CHC, Ratti, thereafter to Zonal Hosiptal, Mandi from where he was referred to PGI ð he 
succumbed to his injuries - the compensation awarded towards cost of attendant to the tune of 
Rs. 21,000/ -, cost of medicine and transportation to the tune of Rs. 40,000/ - is meager but is 
maintained ð claimants are also held entitled to Rs. 10,000/ - each under the heads loss of 
consortium, loss of estate, loss of love and affection and funeral expenses - thus, c laimants are 
entitled to Rs. 7,68,000 +21,000 + 40,000 + 10,000+ 10,000 + 10,000+ 10,000 = Rs. 8,69,000/ - 
along with interest.  

Title: Dila Ram Vs. Rekha Devi and others    Page-173  

 

Motor Vehicles Act, 1988 - Section 166 - Deceased was a government employee  drawing monthly 

salary of Rs.26,886/ - per month ð Tribunal had deducted the family pension payable after ten 
years, which is not correct as family pension cannot be deducted while awarding compensation to 

the claimants ð 1/3 rd  amount was deducted by tribu nal towards personal expenses of the 
deceased, whereas 1/4 th  amount was to be deducted keeping in view the fact that claimants are 
five in number -claimants have lost source of dependency of Rs.20,000/ - per month ð the 
deceased was aged 48 years at the tim e of accident - multiplier of 10 was applicable ð thus, the 
claimants have lost source of dependency of Rs.20,000 x 12 x 10= Rs. 24,00,000/ - - the 
claimants are also entitled to Rs.10,000/ - each under the heads loss of love and affection, loss of 
estate, fu neral expenses and loss of consortium - thus, claimants are entitled to Rs.24,40,000/ - 
along with interest @ 7.5% per annum from the date of award till realization.  

Title: Neem Kala and others Vs. Forest Department through Secretary Forest, to the Governme nt 
of HP and another   Page-186  

 

Motor Vehicles Act, 1988 - Section 166 - MACT held that the deceased being a daily wager was 
earning Rs. 300/ - per day for 25 days in a month and assessed his income as Rs. 7,500/ - per 
month - held, that the wages of a daily w ager are not more than Rs. 200/ - per day - therefore, the 
monthly income of the deceased would have been Rs. 6,000/ - per month ð 1/3 rd  was to be 
deducted towards personal expenses - the claimants have lost source of dependency of Rs. 
4,000/ - per month - the d eceased was aged 23 years at the time of accident ð multiplier of 18 was 
rightly applied by the Tribunal ð claimants are entitled to Rs. 4,000/ - x 12 x 18= Rs. 8,64,000/ - 
under the head loss of dependency - claimants are also entitled to Rs. 10,000/ - each u nder the 
heads loss of consortium, loss of estate, loss of love and affection and funeral expenses - thus, 
claimants are entitled to Rs. 9,04,000/ - with interest awarded by the Tribunal.  

Title: ICICI Lombard General Insurance Company Limited Vs. Preeti and  others  Page-62  

 

Motor Vehicles Act, 1988 - Section 166 - The Tribunal held that the deceased had contributed to 
the cause of accident as he was carrying two pillion riders in violation of Section 128(1) ð held 
that Section 128 clearly provides that the dri ver of two wheeled motorcycle shall not carry more 
than one person in addition to himself ð the deceased had violated this provision by carrying two 

pillion riders - the Tribunal had rightly saddled the insurer of the vehicle with liability to the 
extent of  70% - however, Tribunal fell in error in deducting 1/3 rd  towards personal expenses ð 

claimants were four in number and 1/4 th  was to be deducted towards personal expenses ð his 
salary was Rs.19,400/ - per month after deducting 1/4 th  amount towards personal expenses, 
claimants have suffered loss of dependency to the extent of Rs.14,550/ - per month ð age of the 
deceased was 42 years and multiplier of 14 is applicable ð thus, claimants are entitled to 
Rs.14,550 x 12 x 14= Rs. 24,44,400/ - under the head loss of income - claimants are also entitled 
to Rs.10,000/ - each under the heads loss of love and affection, loss of consortium, loss of estate 
and funeral expenses ð since the deceased had contributed towards the accident to the extent of 
30%, therefore, compensat ion of Rs.17,39,080/ - awarded in favour of the claimants with interest 
@ 7.5% per annum.  

Title: Sabita Sharma and others Vs. Amrit Pal Singh and others   Page-623  
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N.D.P.S. Act, 1985 - Section 20 - Accused was found in possession of 1.5 kg. charas ð the  accused 
was tried and acquitted by the Trial Court - held in appeal thatthere are cuttings and over writings 
in record, which have not been properly explained ð the witnesses had not given the detail of 
material particulars ð PW-5 supported the prosecution  version ð the defence version was 
probablized by defence witnesses - the prosecution evidence creates doubts about the fairness of 
investigation ð the Trial Court had taken a reasonable view while acquitting the accused - appeal 
dismissed.  

Title: State of Himachal Pradesh Vs. Mahesh Verma (D.B.)    Page-518  

 

N.D.P.S. Act, 1985 - Section 20 - Accused was found in possession of 450 grams charas ð the 
accused was tried and convicted by the Trial Court - held in appeal that the testimonies of 

prosecution witnesses  are credible and confidence inspiring ð independent witnesses have not 
supported the prosecution version - however, they admitted their signatures on the seizure memos 
and are estopped from denying the contents of the same ð samples were connected to the 
contraband recovered ð option was given to the accused to get his premises searched by 
Executive Magistrate or Gazetted Officer ð however, the accused consented for search by the 
police - the prosecution case was proved and the accused was rightly convicted - appeal dismissed.   

Title: Fanki Ram Vs. State of H.P.   Page-466  

 

N.D.P.S. Act, 1985 - Section 20 - Accused was found in possession of 3 kg 600 grams charas - the 
accused was tried and convicted by the Trial Court - held in appeal that testimonies of eye 
witn esses are corroborating each other ðthe prosecution version cannot be doubted due to the 

fact that witnesses have turned hostile ð the accused has to establish his innocence under 
Section 35 of N.D.P.S. Act, which he hasfailed to do - link evidence is compl ete- the prosecution 
has proved the guilt of the accused beyond reasonable doubt and the accused was rightly 
convicted - appeal dismissed.  

Title: Jog RajVs. State of Himachal Pradesh (D.B.)   Page-781  

 

N.D.P.S. Act, 1985 - Section 20 - Accused was found in p ossession of 1.460 kg. of charas - the 
accused was tried and convicted by the Trial Court - held in appeal that police officials supported 
the prosecution version ð the fact that independent witness had turned hostile is not sufficient to 
doubt the prosecuti on version - minor contradictions will also not make the prosecution case 
suspect ð the plea of alibi was not established ðlink evidence was proved ð the Trial Court had 
rightly appreciated the evidence ð appeal dismissed.  

Title: Umed Singh Vs. State of H. P. (D.B.)   Page-794  

 

N.D.P.S. Act, 1985 - Section20 - Accused was found in possession of 3 kgs. Ganja - he was tried 
and acquitted by the Trial Court - held in appeal that there is discrepancy in the description of the 
seal impressionson the sample parcels an alyzed in the laboratory and those prepared at the spot 
ð R.C. was not proved to explain this discrepancy ð bulk parcel produced in the Court was not 

connected to the parcel prepared at the spot ð independent witnesses had not supported the 
prosecution ver sion - trial Court had rightly acquitted the accused - appeal dismissed.   

Title: Nageshwar  Mehto  Vs. State of Himachal Pradesh   Page-141  

 

Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881 - Section 138 - Accused and his mother approached the 
complainant offering to sell their  land - an agreement was executed and an amount of Rs.1 lac 
was paid as earnest money ð it was found subsequently that there was some litigation pertaining 
to the land and the agreement was cancelled ð the accused subsequently obtained an amount of 
Rs.10,00 0/ - as loan and issued a cheque for Rs.1,10,000/ - - the cheque was dishonoured - the 

amount was not paid despite notice ð hence, the complaint was filed before the Magistrate who 
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convicted and sentenced the accused ð an appeal was preferred, which was allow ed on the 
ground that the accused was unrepresented on the date of examination and the proceedings were 
not proper ð the matter was remanded to the Trial Court for fresh adjudication - held in revision 
that no application was filed for deferring the cross e xamination of the complainant and his 
witnesses - no grievance was raised that accused was prejudiced by the absence of his counsel ð 
no prayer was made to appoint a counsel as amicus curiae, which means that accused was 
satisfied with the proceedings ð revi sion allowed and order of Appellate Court set aside.  

Title: Yangain Singh Vs. Vijay Kumar   Page-744  

 

Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881 - Section 138 - Accused approached the complainant for 
financial help for his personal and domestic needs - the accused bor rowed a sum of Rs. 2 lacs 
from the complainant and issued a cheque of Rs. 2 lacs towards the re -payment of the amount - 

the cheque  was dishonoured with the remarks insufficient amounts - the accused failed to repay 
the amount despite the receipt of valid not ice of demand - the accused was tried and acquitted by 

the Trial Court on the ground that the bank account against which the cheque was drawn was 
not owned, managed or controlled in his individual capacity by the accused - the accused was 
managing the accoun t in the capacity of the secretary and there was no privity of account - held 
in appeal that accused had not led any evidence to prove the books of account were maintained 
by him in his capacity as secretary of the society ð the evidence led by the complai nant proved the 
ingredients of offence punishable under Section 138 of N.I. Act - the accused was wrongly 
acquitted by the Trial Court - appeal allowed ð judgment passed by the Trial Court set aside and 
accused convicted of the commission of offence punishab le under Section 138 of N.I. Act.   

Title: Prabhu  Dayal Sharma Vs. Suraj Mani    Page-46  

 

Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881 - Section 138 - Accused had taken Rs.4 lacs for his personal 
requirement - he issued two cheques, which were dishonourd - a complaint was filed and the 
accused was convicted by the Trial Court - an appeal was filed, which was also dismissed - held, 
that complainant had supported his version - the dishonour was proved by the bank officials - 
accused admitted the issuance of cheques but stated th at these cheques were issued as security 
ð defence taken by the accused was not probablized ð the Court had rightly convicted the accused 
and the appeal was also rightly dismissed - revision dismissed.  

Title: Gulab Singh Shandil  Vs. Vidya  Sagar Sharma   Page-179  

  

Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881 - Section 138 - Accused was convicted by the Trial Court for 
the commission of offence punishable under Section 138 of N.I. Act - an appeal was filed, which 
was dismissed for non -appearance of the counsel ð held that the Court should not have 
dismissed the appeal for want of appearance and should have issued the warrants to procure the 
presence of the appellant ð revision allowed and order of the Appellate Court set aside.  

Title: Kishori  Lal  Vs. Gian Chand & another    Page-593  

 

Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881 - Section 138 - Complainant advanced a sum of Rs.60,000/ - 

to the accused - the accused issued a post  dated  cheque for Rs.60,000/ - the cheque was 
dishonoured for want of sufficient funds - the amount was not paid desp ite the receipt of the 
notice ð the accused was tried and convicted by the Trial Court - an appeal was filed, which was 
dismissed - held in revision that the complainant had categorically supported the prosecution 
version - the defence version was not proved ð the complainant had successfully proved the basic 
ingredients of the offence punishable under Section 138 of N.I. Act ð the accused had failed to 
rebut the presumption under N.I Act - he was rightly convicted by the Trial Court - revision 
dismissed.   

Title : Tula Ram  Vs. Prem Singh   Page-110  

 



 
 
 
 

- 37 - 
 

Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881 - Section 138 - Complainant handed over Rs.60,000/ - to the 
accused and accused issued a cheque for the return of the amount - cheque was dishonoured ð 
notice was issued but the amount was not paid ð accused was tried and convicted by the Trial 
Court - an appeal was filed, which was partly allowed and the sentence was modified ð held in 
revision that the power of revision can be exercised, when there is failure of justice or misuse of 
judicia l mechanism or where procedure, sentence or order is not correct - issuance of cheque and 
signature on the same were admitted ð advancing of money was also proved ð the defence taken 
by the accused that cheque was issued as a security was not established ð the accused was 
rightly convicted in these circumstances - revision dismissed.   

Title: Sunil Dutt Vs. Mohan Lal    Page-659  

 

 ôPõ 

Partition Act, 1893 - Section 4 - Plaintiff filed a civil suit for partition of the joint property ð the 
suit was decreed by the  Trial Court - an appeal was filed, which was dismissed ð held in second 
appeal that jamabandi shows that parties are recorded to be the joint owners ð oral evidence also 
proved the joint ownership ð prior partition was not proved ð the preliminary decree w as rightly 
passed - appeal dismissed.  

Title: Govind Ram (Deceased) through LRs. Vs. Beli Ram and others    Page-840  

 

Public Premises (Eviction of Unauthorized Occupants) Act, 1971 - Section 4 and 9 - Various 
eviction petitionswere filed by Union of India see king eviction and recovery of damages on account 
of unauthorized use and occupation of railway land situated in Shimla - the petitions were 
partially allowed and the appeals were dismissed - aggrieved from the order, writ petitions were 

filed - held that the respondents are in possession prior to the commencement of the Public 
Premises Act ðthe provision of the Act cannot be made applicable to them ð the eviction petition 
were not maintainable ð liberty granted to the petitioners to proceed against the respond ents in 
accordance with the law.   

Title: Union of India Vs. M/S  Krishna Coal Company   Page-740  

 

 ôRõ 

Right to Fair Compensation and Transparency in Land Acquisition, Rehabilitation and 
Resettlement Act, 2013 - Section 24 - The Land was acquired, compensatio n was deposited and 

possession was taken ð the acquisition was challenged by the petitioner pleading that the land 
was not utilized and amount of compensation was not paid to the claimant ð held that the Act 
was notified on 1.1.2004 before which date all a ctions were completed by the acquirer and 
beneficiaries - the actions taken under the earlier Act are saved by the saving clause ð writ 
petition dismissed.  

Title: Surjit Singh Vs. Land Acquisition Collector, H.P. Housing and Urban Development 
Authority, Sh imla   Page-601  

 

 ôSõ 

Scheduled Caste and Scheduled Tribes (Prevention of Atrocities) Act, 1989 - Section 3(x) - 
Complainant and others had attended the marriage of K -  they were asked by the accused to get 
up from the row in which other guests were sitting to take meals by saying that girls belonging to 
scheduled caste will not allowed to sit with him in the same row ð the accused was tried and 
acquitted by the Trial Court - held in appeal that there was a delay of more than one month in 
reporting the matter to the police, which was not explained ð a compromise was effected between 
the parties in which it was stated that there was some misunderstanding ð the defence version 
that there  was no mens rea was probable ð the Trial Court had properly appreciated the evidence 
ð appeal dismissed.   

Title: State of H.P. Vs. Ramesh Chand   Page-254  
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Specific Relief Act, 1963 - Section 20 - Plaintiff entered into an agreement with the defendant for 
the sale of land for a total consideration of Rs.44,000/ - - an amount of Rs.30,0 00/ - was paid as 
part payment - the defendant failed to execute the sale deed in favour of the plaintiff ð the suit was 
decreed by the Trial Court - an appeal was filed, which was dismissed ð held in second appeal that 
there was no requirement of obtaining p rior permission from TCP ð plaintiff had presented 
himself before sub -registrar and had issued a legal notice for the execution of the sale deed ð sub -
registrar had directed the parties to appear before him on the next day and the plaintiff failed to 
appea r before the sub -registrar - the Courts had wrongly held that plaintiff was ready and willing 
to perform his part of the agreement ð appeal allowed - judgments and decree passed by the Court 
set aside and suit of the plaintiff dismissed.  

Title: Tara Chand and others Vs. Madan Lal   Page-768  

 

Specific Relief Act, 1963 - Section 34 and 38 - Plaintiff filed a civil suit seeking declaration that 
order of ejectment passed by the Collector is wrong, illegal, null and void and he be declared 

owner in possession of t he suit land ð the suit was decreed by the Trial Court - an appeal was 
filed, which was allowed - held in appeal that the First Appeal is a valuable rights of the parties ð 
the First Appellate Court is required to address itself to all issues and decide the appeal by giving 
reasons ð no reasons were given for differing with the findings of the Trial Court ð documents 
relied upon by the defendants were not referred ð the judgment set aside - matter remanded to the 
Appellate Court for a fresh decision .  

Title: J oginder Singh & another Vs. State of H.P.  Page-606  

 

Specific Relief Act, 1963 - Section 34 - Plaintiff filed a civil suit pleading that suit land is 
ancestral and coparcenary property of the parties ð sale deeds executed in respect of the same are 
illegal, null and void and not binding on the rights of the parties ð the suit was decreed by the 
Trial Court - an appeal was filed, which was partly allowed - aggrieved from the judgment, present 
appeal has been filed ð held that the suit land was proved to be ances tral ð the land was alienated 
without any legal necessity ð the Courts had rightly appreciated the evidence - appeal dismissed.  

Title: Chandermani Vs. Mia Ditta  and  others    Page-750  

 

Specific Relief Act, 1963 - Section 34 - Plaintiff filed a civil suit pl eading that S was original 
owner of the suit land and he had mortgaged the same to A, father of the parties, with possession 
for a sum of Rs.2,600/ --  sons of A succeeded to him and after his death the mortgaged was not 
redeemed  within the prescribed perio d- mortgagee had become owner by efflux  of time - sons of S 
sold his interest in favour of defendant No.2 to the extent of 3/4 th  share and in favour of 
defendant No.1 to the extent of 1/4 th  share - defendants lost their title with the passage of time ð 
fake redemption entries of mortgage were got attested behind the back of plaintiffs ð suit was 
decreed by the Trial Court - an appeal was filed, which was also dismissed - held in second appeal 
that the period of limitation to redeem the mortgage is thirty years from the date of mortgage ð 
however, no limitation has been provided for redemption of usufructuary mortgages - the 
mortgagee is entitled to receive the rent and profits  and to appropriate the same in lieu of 

payment of the mortgage money ð the possession is to be delivered on the liquidation of mortgage 

money - there is no evidence in the present case that mortgagee was authorized to receive the 
interest towards the payment of interest - Court had rightly appreciated the evide nce and law - 
appeal dismissed.   

Title: Karam Singh Vs. Piara Singh and others   Page-406  

  

Specific Relief Act, 1963 - Section 34 - Plaintiff pleaded that half share of the suit land was 
owned by K and remaining half share was owned by D - plaintiff was recorded as tenant without 
the paym ent of rent with the consent of the owners ð original owner D died and his daughter ôCõ 
gifted her 1/4 th  share in favour of the plaintiff ð plaintiff remained in possession as tenant over 
the remaining share - defendant purchased half share and became co -owner - after the death of 
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the plaintiff, his legal heirs succeeded to him - defendant is threatening to interfere with the suit 
land on the basis of revenue entries - suit was dismissed by the Trial Court - an appeal was filed, 
which was also dismissed - held in  second appeal that the original owner was survived by four co -
sharers including the plaintiff - one co -sharer had gifted 1/4 th  share to the plaintiff - plaintiff 
became owner  of half share - entries were made during settlement after proper verification ð 
or iginal plaintiff was not recorded as a tenant after 1958 -59 and the name of the legal 
representatives to the extent of half share is wholly misconceived ð no bilateral agreement was 
proved - Courts had dealt with evidence in a proper manner - appeal dismisse d.  

Title: Girdhari Lal & Another Vs. Amin Chand   Page-441  

 

Specific Relief Act, 1963 - Section 34 - Plaintiffs filed a civil suit for declaration pleading that suit 
land was mortgaged by them to defendant No.2 and predecessor -in -interest of defendant No.3 to 

9 as security for the payment of debt of Rs.55/ - - the revenueauthorities recorded the name of the 
defendants as tenants at Will - the security amount wasre -paid in the month of Jaith, 1965 the 

names of the defendants as tenants at Will are wrong, illega l, null and void ð the mutations were 
wrongly attested on the basis of these entries in the name of defendant No.2 and P behind the 
back of the plaintiffs against the statutory provisions of H.P. Tenancy and Land Reforms Act - the 
suitwas decreed by the Tri al Court ð an appeal was preferred, which was dismissed ð held in 
second appeal that it was not proved that defendant No.2 and P were inducted as tenantsover the 
suit land -  the entries in the jamabandi are not sufficient to conclude that they were inducte d as 
tenants over the suit land - tenancy is bilateral agreement and tenant has to pay rent to the 
landlord - there is no evidence that any rent was paid by defendant No.2 and P to the landlord ð it 
was duly proved that the mortgage was redeemed by the plain tiffs on the payment of the 
mortgage money in the year 1965 ð mutations were correctly entered as the defendant No.2 and P 
were not in possession and could not have relinquished the suit land in favour of defendant No.1 - 
a procedure for relinquishment has to be followed - there is no evidence that the said procedure 
was followed - the Courts had rightly decreed the suit ð appeal dismissed.  

Title: State of H.P. Vs. Harbans and others    Page-204  

 

Specific Relief Act, 1963 - Section 34 - Plaintiffs pleaded that  they had purchased the suit land 
vide sale deed - defendant No.1 had also purchased adjacent plot and had constructed a four 
storeyed  house on the land purchased by him ð the stairs were constructed by defendant No.1 in 
the land purchased by the plaintiff s- plaintiffs requested the defendant No.1 to demolish the 
stairs but the defendant No.1 stated that the stairs could be used by both parties and did not 
remove the stairs ð hence, the suit was filed for permanent prohibitory and mandatory injunction - 
the suit was decreed by the Trial Court - an appeal was filed by defendant No.1, which was 
dismissed - held in second appeal that demarcation report shows that stairs were raised in the 
land of the plaintiffs - the demarcation was conducted in accordance with law - the Courts had 
rightly decreed the suit ð appeal dismissed.   

Title: Dr. V.P. Madhyak  Vs. Inder Pal & others   Page-312  

 

Specific Relief Act, 1963 - Section 38 - Plaintiff filed a civil suit pleading that he is owner in 

possession of the suit land and defen dant is interfering with the same without any right to do so - 
the suit was dismissed by the Trial Court - an appeal was filed, which was also dismissed - held in 
second appeal that Courts had relied upon the report of the Local Commissioner, who had found 
no encroachment on the suit land ð however, the demarcation was not conducted in accordance 
with law ð appeal allowed and suit of the plaintiff decreed.  

Title: Gian Chand (since deceased) through his legal heirs Vs. Janki Devi & others  

 Page-462  

 

Specific Relief Act, 1963 - Section 38 - Plaintiff filed a civil suit seeking permanent prohibitory 
injunction for restraining the defendant from interfering in the suit ð it was pleaded that plaintiff 
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had purchased 41/97 th  Share in the suit land ðhe had constructed a septic tank and two latrines 
over the land by spending Rs.30,000/ - - the defendant has no right over the suit land but is 
interfering with the same - he demolished the septic tank and two latrine sheets ð the defendant 
pleaded that construction was starte d without getting the suit land demarcated ð the latrine and 
septic tank were constructed over the passage - the suit was dismissed by the Trial Court - an 
appeal was preferred, which was also dismissed - held in second appeal that plaintiff and 
defendant had  purchased the share from the original vendor ð plaintiff had not purchased any 
specific portion of the suit land - the plaintiff was found to be encroacher in the demarcation ð 
plaintiff had purchased 4 biswas of land but was found in possession of 4.10 bi swa of the land ð 
plaintiff was not present at the time of the incident and the testimony of his witness is not 
satisfactory ð the Courts had dealt with the evidence properly - appeal dismissed.   

Title:  Salig Ram  Vs. Ved  Parkash   Page-455  

 

Specific Relief A ct, 1963 - Section 38 - Plaintiff filed a civil suit for permanent prohibitory 

injunction for restraining the defendant from taking away timber or any other part of the deodar 
tree felled from his land ð the suit was dismissed by the Trial Court - an appeal w as preferred, 
which was allowed and the suit was decreed ð held in second appeal that the trees were found to 
be standing on the land owned by the plaintiff in demarcation - plaintiff had filed an application 
for permission to fell the trees apprehending da nger to his life and property - trees were felled by 
the defendant - however, this would not give ownership to the defendants - a notification was 
issued for handing over the trees to the Forest Corporation - however, this notification will apply 
to the tree s owned by the defendant and not to the trees standing on the private land - the 
Appellate Court had rightly passed the judgment - appeal dismissed.   

Title: M.C. Shimla Vs. Mathu Ram and Another    Page-821  

 

Specific Relief Act, 1963 - Section 38 - Plaintiff f iled a civil suit pleading that he had purchased 
the suit land from N - defendants started fencing the suit land without any right to do so ð matter 
was reported to police and demarcation was conducted ð a boundary wall was put on the suit 
land but the defe ndants are interfering with the possession of the plaintiff by removing the 
retaining wall ð the suit was opposed by filing a written statement pleading that plaintiff was not 
in possession ð the suit was dismissed by the Trial Court after holding that the  plaintiff had failed 
to prove his possession - an appeal was filed, which was dismissed - held in second appeal that no 
demarcation report was placed on record - no application for appointment of Local Commissioner 
was filed and there was no necessity to con duct a fresh demarcation - additional evidence cannot 
be led as the documents were in the knowledge of the plaintiff  - the application was filed to fill up 
the lacuna ð appeal dismissed.  

Title: Moti Ram Vs. Ses Ram and others   Page-298  

 

Specific Relief A ct, 1963 - Section 38 - Plaintiff filed a civil suit for permanent prohibitory 
injunction pleading that K, his father had executed a Will in favour of the plaintiff and plaintiffsõ 
brother - sister of the plaintiff (defendant No.1) was disinherited by the Wi ll - defendants started 

interfering with the suit land without any right to do so - the defendants pleaded that they had 

become the owners by way of adverse possession - the execution of the Will was not disputed by 
them - the suit was decreed by the Trial Cou rt - an appeal was filed, which was partly allowed ð 
held in second appeal that plaintiff had proved that one and half storeyed  house exists on the suit 
land, which is owned and possessed by him ð the defendants had failed to prove the adverse 
possession ð the Appellate Court had wrongly appreciated the evidence ð the Appellate Court 
should give reasons for reversing the findings of the Trial Court and should show as to how the 
findings recorded by Trial Court were erroneous ð the Appellate Court had failed to assign 
reasons while reversing the decree ð appeal allowed ð judgment passed by Appellate Court set 
aside.  

Title: Bhag Singh Vs. Piar  Dassi and others    Page-341  
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Specific Relief Act, 1963 - Section 38 - Plaintiff filed a civil suit for injunction pleadin g that 
plaintiff and his family members reside in a house - the defendants are having their residential 
house in the same area located at a distance of 20 meters ð the defendants are 
cultivating/growing mushroom in their courtyard and are using mixture of w ater, wheat husk 
and chicken manure ð this mixture is emitting foul smell and it is difficult to reside in the house 
due to the foul smell ð the defendants pleaded that mushroom industry is not injurious to human 
health ð the suit was decreed by the Trial Court - an appeal was preferred, which was allowed - 
aggrieved from the judgment, present appeal has been filed - held in second appeal that local 
commissioner had found foul smell emitting from the mixture ð this was causing nuisance to the 
plaintiff and oth er inhabitants ð the Appellate Court had wrongly reversed the findings of the Trial 
Court ð appeal allowed - judgment of the Appellate Court set aside and that of the Trial Court 
restored.   

Title: Prem Singh Vs. Narotam Singh & others   Page-389  

 

Specific R elief Act, 1963 - Section 38 - Plaintiff filed a suit pleading that the defendants were 
interfering with his possession without any right to do so - the suit was partly decreed by the Trial 
Court - an appeal was preferred, which was dismissed - held in second a ppeal that the High Court 
cannot interfere with the concurrent finding of facts unless the findings are perverse - there was 
no boundary dispute between the parties ð plaintiff had filed his case on the basis of Tatima 
issued by Patwari who did not support the case of the plaintiff ð he filed an application for 
appointment of a Local Commissioner, which was dismissed by the Trial Court after holding that 
the plaintiff can apply for demarcation to the revenue authorities ð the Local Commissioner 
cannot be app ointed to delay the proceedings or to create some evidence ð the application was 
rightly rejected by the Trial Court ð appeal dismissed.   

Title: Nand Lal Vs. Sanjana  Sood and others   Page-192  

 

Specific Relief Act, 1963 - Section 38 - Plaintiff pleaded that he alongwith his brother is in settled 
possession of the suit land, which was given to them by S - defendant No.1 is stated to have 
purchased part of the suit land from S but the same is paper transaction ð possession was not 
delivered to the purchaser ð th e defendants started interfering in the suit land ð hence, the suit 
was filed ð the suit was dismissed by the Trial Court ð an appeal was filed, which was allowed - 
held in second appeal thatS had filed a civil suit against the plaintiff and his brother in which 
plaintiff and his brother were held to be in possession of the suit land  - the sale deed was 
executed before the final judgment was delivered in the suit ð S had no authority to execute the 
sale deed ð the Appellate Court had rightly held that the p laintiff was in possession and was 
entitled to protect his possession ð appeal dismissed.   

Title: Balia  & Others Vs. Ganga Ram    Page-470  

  

Specific Relief Act, 1963 -Section 38 - Plaintiffs claimed right of passage through the edges 
(mainds) by way of cust om ð they  further pleaded that the passage was blocked by the defendants 
without any right to do so - the defendants denied the existence of passage ð held that wazib -ul -

arj shows the existence of custom of using the passage through the edges ð oral evidenc e also 

proved the existence of the passage ð courts had rightly appreciated the evidence - appeal 
dismissed.  

Title: Brestua  &  ors.Vs. Rajinder Singh &  ors.    Page-637  

 

Specific Relief Act, 1963 - Section 38 - The original plaintiff filed a suit seeking inj unction 
pleading that the defendants were interfering with his possession without any right, title or 
interest - the defendants pleaded that plaintiff had agreed to sell the suit land and had handed 
over the possession to the defendants - they had raised an orchard over the same ð the Trial Court 
dismissed the suit - an appeal was filed, which was allowed ð held in second appeal that plaintiff 
is recorded to be the owner in possession of the suit land ð entry in jamabandi carries with it a 
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presumption of corre ctness ð the defendants had not led sufficient evidence to rebut the 
presumption ð the Appellate Court had rightly reversed the decree of the Trial Court - appeal 
dismissed.  

Title: Hari Ram & another Vs. Santi Devi &  others    Page-332  

 

Specific Relief Act , 1963 - Section 63 - Plaintiff filed a Civil Suit for seeking permanent 
prohibitory injunction pleading that the suit land is jointly owned by the parties ð the defendant 
had purchased the share of a co -sharer and wanted to occupy the best portion of the sui t land ð 
the defendant pleaded that he is in exclusive possession of the suit land ð the possession was 
handed over at the time of sale ð the suit was dismissed by the Trial Court - an appeal was filed, 
which was dismissed - held in second appeal that plaint iff had earlier filed a civil suit in the year 
1990, which was withdrawn without obtaining any liberty ð the present suit is barred under 

Order 23 of C.P.C. ð the defendant was found in possession of the suit land during demarcation ð 
the injunction was ri ghtly declined b y the Courts - appeal dismissed.   

Title: Gita Devi Vs. Subhash  Chand    Page-270  

 

Specific Relief Act, 1963 -Section 34 - Plaintiff filed a Civil suit seeking declaration with 
consequential relief of permanent prohibitory injunction ð the suit  was opposed by pleading that 
Civil Court had no jurisdiction as the proprietary rights were conferred regarding the suit land -  
Trial Court returned the plaint for presentation before Competent Forum as the Civil Court did 
not have jurisdiction to adjudi cate upon the dispute ð an appeal was preferred and the findings of 
Trial Court were reversed ð held in appeal that mutation conferring the proprietary rights was 
attested on 30.1.1977 ð Appellate Court held that the mutation was null and void ð there is n o 
proof of the payment of rent and mere entry of gairmaurusi is not sufficient to confer proprietary 
rights upon a person ð therefore the mutation  was illegal and the Civil Court will have 
jurisdiction - the Trial Court had wrongly returned the plaint - appeal dismissed.   

Title: Het Ram & others Vs. Partap Singh & others   Page-133  

 

 ôWõ 

Workmen Compensation Act, 1923 - Section 4 - H was employed by B ð he died as a result of 
accident during the course of employment - the Commissioner awarded compensation of 
Rs.4,50,000/ - along with interest @ 12 % per annum ð solatium was awarded @ 30% - held in 
appeal that Insurance Company is liable to pay the compensation even if the driving licence is not 
valid - the Act does not provide for the grant of solatium @ 30% but only provides for the payment 
of penalty and interest ð appeal allowed ð the award passed by Commissioner modified.   

Title: National Insurance Company Ltd. Vs. Vidya Devi & another   Page-499  
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BEFORE HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE SURESHWAR THAKUR, J. 

Diwan Chand            é..Petitioner.  

    Versus  

State of Himachal Pradesh      é.Respondent. 

 

      Cr. R No. 164 of 2011  

      Decided on : 22.12.2016  

 

Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section 279, 337, 338 and 304 - Accused was driving a truck - he took 
his truck towards the wrong side and hit the right side of a bus - one passengers fell down and 
suffered fatal injuries - other passe ngers suffered multiple injuries - accused was tried and 
convicted by the Trial Court - an appeal was filed, which was dismissed - held in revision that 

mechanical report makes the defence  version  probable that there was mechanical defect in the 
vehicle due t o which the truck went towards the wrong side of the road - the Courts had ignored 
this part of the evidence - judgments of the Courts set aside and the accused acquitted of the 
charged offences. (Para -9 to 20)  

 

For the Petitioner:    Mr. N.S Chandel, Advoc ate.  

For the Respondent -State:  Mr. Vivek Singh Attri, Deputy Advocate General.  

 

 The following judgment of the Court was delivered:  

 

Sureshwar Thakur, J (oral)  

  The instant revision petition stands directed against the judgment of 28.5.2011 
rendered by t he learned Sessions Judge, Shimla in Cr. Appeal No. 63 -S/10 of 2008, whereby he 
affirmed the findings of conviction recorded against the Revisionist (for short òthe accusedó) by 
the learned C.J.M Shimla on 30.9.2008 in criminal case No. 62/2 of 06/02.      

2.   The brief facts of the case are that PW -2 Nakshter Singh and PW -1 Tarsem Singh 
had been working as driver and conductor, respectively in Punjab Roadways Jalandhar Depot.  
On 31.7.2002, PWs aforesaid had been detailed on duty on bus bearing No. PB -12C-9620 
catering to Shimla -Jalandhar route.  There were 10 -15 passengers in the bus.   When the bus 
had crossed Tara Devi and had been at a distance of about 200 meters towards Shoghi at about 
6.45 a.m. truck bearing registration No. HP -11/1781 was noticed co ming from the opposite 
direction. The accused had been on the wheel of the truck. He had been driving rashly and 
negligently and had even crossed the mid line.  Finding the truck coming on wrong side from 
opposite direction, PW -2 had slowed down and had ta ken the bus to extreme left side. The 
accused had not been able to control the truck and had struck against front right side of the bus. 
As a result of the impact of the truck, one passenger Sh. Putani Lal Gupta  of the bus had fallen 
down and had suffered  fatal injuries.  Some other passengers had also suffered multiple injuries.   
The police stood informed about the accident. After completing all codal formalities and on 
conclusion of the investigation into the offence, allegedly committed by the accused,  the 
Investigating Officer prepared challan and filed the same in the Court.  

3.   The accused stood charged by the learned trial Court for his committing 
offence(s) punishable under Sections 279, 337, 304 -A and 338 of I.P.C, to which he pleaded not 
guilty a nd claimed trial.  

4.   In order to prove its case, the prosecution examined 13 witnesses.  On closure of 
prosecution evidence, the statement of the accused under Section 313 of the Code of Criminal 
Procedure was recorded in which he pleaded innocence and cl aimed false implication.  However, 
he did not choose to lead any evidence in his defence.  
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5.    On an appraisal of the evidence on record, the learned trial Court returned 
findings of conviction upon the accused.  The learned Appellate Court in affirmation to the 
judgment of the learned trial Court also convicted the accused.  

6.    The learned counsel for the accused/revisionist has concertedly and vigorously 
contended qua the findings of conviction recorded by the learned trial Court, findings whereof 
stood  affirmed by the learned Appellate Court, standing not based on a proper appreciation of 
evidence on record, rather, theirs standing sequelled by gross mis -appreciation of material on 
record.  Hence, he contends qua the findings of conviction being reverse d by this Court in the 
exercise of its revisional jurisdiction and theirs being replaced by findings of acquittal.  

7.   The learned Deputy Advocate General for the respondent -State has with 
considerable force and vigor contended qua the concurrent findings  of conviction recorded upon 
the accused by both the Courts below standing based on a mature and balanced appreciation of 
evidence on record and theirs not necessitating interference, rather theirs meriting vindication.  

8.   This Court with the able assist ance of the learned counsel on either side has with 
studied care and incision, evaluated the entire evidence on record.   

9.   In sequel to a collision which occurred inter -se the vehicle bearing Number HP -
11 -1781 driven by the accused vis -à-vis the bus bea ring No. PB -12C -9620, a passenger 
occupying the bus aforesaid suffered demise.  The apposite post mortem report borne on Ex. PW -
9/C unveils qua the demise of one Putani Lal Gupta ensuing from hemorrhagic shock in sequel to 
multiple injuries as stood entail ed upon his body. PW -9 in his deposition held in his examination -
in -chief underscores therein qua 4 -8 hours elapsing since the begetting of the fatal injury noticed 
by him on his subjecting the deceased aforesaid to post mortem examination wherefrom  the 
prosecution attains success qua its propagation qua the deceased suffering his demise in sequel 

to  injuries standing entailed upon his person at the relevant time whereat a collision occurred 
inter -se the vehicle driven by the accused vis -à-vis the bus occ upied by the deceased.  

10.   Also the prosecution in sustaining the charge against the accused had depended 
upon the testimonies of ocular witnesses to the occurrence who testified as PW -1 and PW -2 
before the learned Magistrate.  Since the testifications o f both the aforesaid PWs who therein 
unveil a credible ocular account qua the occurrence stand un -ingrained with any gross or stark 
contradictions occurring in their respective testifications held in their respective examinations -in -
chief vis -à-vis the com munications respectively made by them in their respective cross -
examinations, as also when their respective testifications qua the ill -fated occurrence are bereft of 

any taint of any fatal intra -se contradictions thereupon also the prosecution attains succ ess in 
proving the charge against the accused.  

11.   The learned Sessions Judge had discarded the efficacy of the apposite 
testification of PW -6 who in sequel to his holding the apposite  vehicle driven by the accused to a 
thorough mechanical examination p repared Ex. PW -6/A wherein he voiced qua there being a 
possibility of the offending vehicle prior to the occurrence begetting locking of its steering 
whereupon the defence had concerted to attribute the relevant collision inter -se the relevant 
vehicles to stand aroused from the aforesaid mechanical defect preceding the ill -fated occurrence 
erupting therein on the trite reason qua with the accused for obviating the relevant 

collision/accident holding the apposite capacity to apply the brakes of the apposite vehicle, 
whereas his not applying the brakes of the offending vehicle hence generating an inference qua 
with the accused evidently plying his vehicle on the inappropriate side of the road, his, thereupon 
evidently holding the necessary mens rea of deviatin g from the standards of due care and 
caution.  Also the learned Sessions Judge did not impute any apt gravity to the factum of the 
steering wheel of the vehicle driven by the accused standing pronounced in the testification of 
PW-6 to beget locking  nor he  imputed any gravity to the factum articulated by PW -6 qua even the 
brakes besides the clutches of the offending vehicle standing locked whereupon obviously the 
accused stood precluded to for thwarting the relevant collision apply the brakes of the offendi ng 
vehicle nor obviously the assignment of a reason by the learned Sessions Judge qua the relevant 
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collision being obviable by application of brakes of the offending vehicle by the accused whereas 
the accused not applying brakes of the offending vehicle ev idently thereupon his holding a penally 
inculpable mens rea of negligence, whereupon the verdict impugned hereat recorded by the 
learned Sessions Judge would for reasons ascribed hereinafter suffer reversal.   

12.   Visibly as consistently deposed by the oc ular witnesses besides as unraveled by 
the site plan, the truck driven by the accused wantonly wandered astray from the appropriate  
side of the road whereat a collision occurred inter -se the vehicle driven by the accused vis -à-vis 
the bus.  However PW -6 i n his testification borne in his examination -in -chief communicates 
therein qua on his examining the truck driven by the accused, his noticing qua its brake, clutch 
and steering all standing locked obviously  reiteratedly thereupon the reason assigned by th e 
learned Sessions Judge qua the accident which occurred inter -se the truck driven by the accused 
vis -à-vis the bus being obviable by application by the accused of the brakes of the offending 

vehicle falters. Despite  this Court dispelling the vigour afore said of the reason assigned by the 
learned Sessions Judge for disimputing credence to the espousal of the defence, would not beget 
any inference from this Court qua with the vehicle driven by the accused evidently wandering 
astray from the appropriate port ion of the road thereupon the aforestated evident factum yet also 
not constituting any firm evidence against the accused qua his holding the penally inculpable 
mens rea of negligently driving his vehicle.  Moreso when credible un -tainted ocular testificati ons 
of eye witnesses to the occurrence make open and candid communications therein qua the 
accused negligently driving his vehicle at the relevant site of occurrence.  

13.   Nowat, the factum of the accused intentionally negotiating his vehicle to the 
inapp ropriate site of the road or his standing disabled by eruption of a sudden mechanical defect 
in the offending vehicle to maneuver it to the appropriate portion of the road warrants 
pronouncement of a just adjudication, whereupon the efficacy of the testifi cation occurring in the 
examination -in -chief of PW -6 who therein proved his mechanical report borne on Ex.PW -6/A 
warrants allusion. PW -6 in his examination -in -chief has with lack of firmness besides with stark 
want of formidability echoed therein qua the l ocking of the steering of the vehicle occurring prior 
to the accident or in contemporanity vis -à-vis it or subsequent thereto. His aforesaid nebulous 
testification qua the aforesaid trite factum occurring in his examination -in -chief does groom a 
lingering doubt qua the relevant sudden mechanical defect(s) aforesaid noticed by him in the 
offending vehicle arising prior to the accident or in contemporanity therewith or subsequent 
thereto, whereupon an inference stands sustained  qua the inability of the accus ed to maneuver 

his vehicle to the appropriate side of the road standing spurred by prior to the ill -fated collision 
which occurred inter -se the vehicle driven by the accused vis -à-vis the bus aforesaid, the 
offending vehicle driven by the accused suddenly developing a mechanical defect qua its brakes, 
clutch and steering standing locked. The vagueness qua the aforesaid relevant factum 
probandum propounded by PW -6 in his testification occurring in his examination -in -chief does 
hold immense leverage to purvey  this Court strength to conclude qua PW -6 not firmly with an 
unshaken commitment  displaying nor negating qua the relevant defects noticed by him to occur 
in the relevant offending vehicle which stood inspected by him not occurring prior to the 
occurrence wherefrom the aforesaid factum probandum whereupon the accused rests his defence 
stands shrouded in deep doubt, benefit whereof ought to be meted to the accused.  

14.   In aftermath, the occupation of the inappropriate side of the road by the vehicle 
drive n by the accused stood generated by eruption therein of the aforesaid mechanical defect, 
eruption whereof thereon occurred prior to the ill -fated collision whereby his inability to 
maneuver his vehicle to the appropriate side of the road cannot engender an y inference qua the 
accused holding any penally  inculpable mens rea of negligence also thereupon it is befitting to 
conclude qua the defence succeeding in infecting the prosecution story with a pervasive aura of 
doubt also thereupon the prosecution has un veiled its inability to firmly negate the efficacy of the 
aforesaid defence reared in exculpation of the guilt of the accused.   

15.   The learned Deputy Advocate General has with utmost vigour and vehemence 
contended before this Court qua the aforesaid lin gering doubt generated by PW -6 echoing in his 
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examination -in -chief qua the relevant defects erupting in the vehicle prior to the accident 
standing evaporated by the factum of photographs existing on record  with a disclosure therein 
qua the tyres of the ve hicle standing tilted  towards the appropriate side of the road whereupon 
the occurrence of mechanical defects thereon as noticed by PW -6 on his examining the offending 
vehicle driven by the accused being ascribable to their eruption therein occurring subs equent to 
the mishap whereupon he contends qua the prosecution succeeding in proving the charge against 
the accused. He contends with force qua the aforesaid espousal holding absolute tandem  with 
the credible depositions of the ocular witnesses, thereupon  any leverage as concerted to be 
derived by the learned counsel for the accused upon the apposite doubt un -raveled in the 
examination -in -chief of PW -6 standing stripped of its merit besides legal worth.  

16.   The learned Deputy Advocate General while makin g the aforesaid submission 
before this Court, has not borne in mind the trite tenet of criminal jurisprudence qua the 

prosecution standing enjoined with a solemn obligation to prove the charge against the accused. 
In discharge of the aforesaid onus, though  the prosecution led PW -6 into the witness box, yet the 
learned A.P.P. while holding him to examination -in -chief though therein had unearthed from him 
echoings displaying a lingering doubt qua the locking of the steering of the vehicle driven by the 
accuse d occurring prior to the accident whereupon this Court stands prodded to conclude qua 
hence it precluding the accused to even when the bus driven by the PW -2 occupied the apposite 
site of occurrence, to maneuver the offending vehicle to the appropriate sid e of the road, yet the 
learned A.P.P. concerned while eliciting the aforesaid echoings from PW -6 while holding him to 
examination -in -chief has hence throttled the prosecution case, rather he has given immense 
sinew to the espousal of the defence qua the ac cident which occurred at the relevant side of 
occurrence being unavoidable significantly with the steering of the vehicle standing prior to the 

mishap entailed with a sudden defect of its standing locked.  Moreover, when the benefit of the 
aforesaid linger ing doubt qua the relevant eruption in the offending vehicle of defects, defects 
whereof stand articulated by PW -6 to may be arise therein prior to the collision  has to be 
accorded to the accused. Conspicuously the learned P.P. concerned while eliciting t he aforesaid 
relevant doubt from PW -6 qua the factum probandum while holding him to examination -in -chief 
did not proceed to seek any clarification from PW -6 qua the locking of the steering of the vehicle 
besides the locking of its brake besides clutch erup ting subsequent to the occurrence or in 
contemporanity vis -à-vis it whereupon his omission in the aforesaid regard gives redoubled fervor 
to the doubt qua the relevant facet echoed by PW -6 in his examination -in -chief thereupon the 
benefit of the relevant d oubt has to stand afforded to the accused.  

17.   The existence of any display in photographs qua the wheel of the truck tilting 
towards the appropriate side of the road whereupon the learned Deputy Advocate General 
contends qua with prior to the accident n o mechanical defect standing spelt out in PW -6/A to 
occur in the offending vehicle also does not impute any tenacity to the relevant testifications 
embodied in the examination -in -chief of PW -6 rather hence relieves the lingering doubt qua the 
factum proban dum grooved in the examination -in -chief of PW -6 nor also the testification 
occurring in the examination -in -chief of PW -6 qua the eruption of mechanical defect(s) 
pronounced in PW -6/A  to stand on the inspection of the relevant vehicle noticed thereon by hi m  
to may be arise thereon prior to the accident taking place inter se the vehicle driven by the 
accused vis -à-vis the bus occupied by the deceased  holds any tenacity.  However when the 

photographs of the truck making the aforesaid disclosure for hence th ereupon theirs succoring 
the propagation of the prosecution stood not shown to PW -6 by the APP concerned during the 
course of his holding him to examination -in -chief nor they stood shown to him subsequently on 
his standing granted the apposite permission b y the learned trial Court whereas only when the 
learned A.P.P confronted PW -6 with the relevant photographs holding the aforesaid display, he 
would hence  have evinced a firm opinion from PW -6, an expert, qua the display in the 
photographs of the tyres of the relevant vehicle tilting towards the appropriate side of the road 
facilitating hence an inference of the relevant mechanical defect(s) occurring subsequent to the 
occurrence not prior thereto, whereas with PW -6 evidently remaining unconfronted with the  
relevant photographs wherewithin the aforesaid display occurs, does constrain this Court to 
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discountenance the submission of the learned Deputy Advocate General also his submission qua 
this Court in the manner espoused by him read the photographs of the t ruck holds no legal 
worth, significantly when there is no provision in the Evidence Act for this Court excepting the 
one engrafted in Section 73 of the Indian Evidence Act to analyse the testimony of PW -6 an expert 
vis -à-vis photographs  whereupon no opini on stood elicited from him also when the realm of or 
the domain of the aforesaid relevant analysis falls squarely within the ambit of the apposite skills 
besides the expertise possessed solitarily by the expert(s) concerned, expertise  whereof standing 
not  possessed either by the learned Deputy Advocate General or by this Court  reiteratedly 
renders both incapacitated to pronounce any opinion thereon.    

18.   The summom bonum of the above discussion is that the credible testification(s) 
of the ocular witnes ses to the occurrence for the reasons aforestated suffering erosion also when 
with this Court erecting an inference for reasons aforestated qua the relevant defects in the 

vehicle driven by the accused occurring therein prior to the accident, thereupon a f irm conclusion 
stands generated from this Court  qua the occupation of the appropriate site of the road by the 
vehicle driven by the accused standing reared by the aforesaid sudden eruption of defects in the 
apposite vehicle  also when PW -1 in his cross -examination acquiesces to the suggestion qua the 
accident being obviable if the driver applying the brakes of the bus does  also hence exculpate the 
guilt of the accused.  

19.   A wholesome analysis of the evidence on record portrays that the appreciation of 
evidence as done by the learned Court below suffers from perversity and absurdity or it can be 
said that the learned Court below in recording findings of conviction have committed a grave legal 
misdemeanor, in as much, as, theirs mis -appreciating the evide nce on record or theirs omitting to 
appreciate the relevant and admissible evidence.  In aftermath this Court deems it fit and 
appropriate that the findings of conviction recorded by the learned Courts below merit 
interference.   

20.   In view of above, the  present petition is accepted.  The impugned judgment(s) are 
quashed and set aside. The accused is acquitted of the offences charged.  Fine amount, if any, 
deposited by the accused be refunded to him. Pending applications stand disposed of accordingly. 
Personal and surety bonds if furnished by the accused be cancelled.  Records be sent back.   

**************************************************************************************************  

BEFORE HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE SANDEEP SHARMA, J.  

Nishi Sharma  éééPetitioner  

    Versus  

Secretary, Department of Labaour & Employment and others      ééé.Respondents 

 

 CWP No. 7580 of 2011  

 Decided on January 3, 2017  

 

Constitution of India, 1950 - Article 226 - Petitioner was appointed as Chowkidar on Contract 
basis ð he was transferred as security guard - subsequently, his services were terminated in the 

year 2003 ð a reference was sought but the same was declined by Labour Commissioner on the 
ground of delay - aggrieved from the order, present writ petition has been filed - hel d that  no 
reason for delay was given by the petitioner ð stale claims should not be allowed unless there is 
specific explanation for the delay ðthere is no illegality in the order passed by the Commissioner ð 
writ petition dismissed.(Para -5 to 7)  

 

Case re ferred:  

Prabhakar versus Joint Director Sericulture Department and another, AIR 2016 SC 2984  

 

For the petitioner      :  Mr. H.C. Sharma, Advocate.  
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For the respondents :  Mr. P.M. Negi, Additional Advocate General with Mr. Ramesh 
Thakur, Deputy Advocate Ge neral, for respondents No. 1 and 2.  

 Mr. Bhuvnesh Sharma, Advocate, for respondent No.3.  

 

 The following judgment of the Court was delivered:  

 

Sandeep Sharma, Judge  (Oral):  

Instant petition has been filed by the petitioner under Articles 226/227 of the 
Constitution of India, seeking following main reliefs: - 

òI. To direct the respondent No.2, appoint the petitioner as Chowkidar over 

and above the juniors stated above.   

II.  To quash and set aside the annexure P -3 dated 25 -4-2011 and direct the 
respondent no. 2 to send the reference to the Labour Court for decision 
in accordance with law.ó  

2.  Petitioner being aggrieved and dissatisfied with the action of respondent No.2 i.e. 
Labour Commissioner, Department of Labour & Employment, HP, Shimla, whereby he de clined to 
refer the dispute raised by the petitioner to the Labour Court for adjudication, approached this 
Court seeking reliefs, as have been reproduced herein above. Petitioner was appointed as 

Chowkidar, purely on contract basis on the fixed salary of ` 2600 per month by respondent No.3 
on 15.3.2001 initially for 180 days. He continued to work till 10.9.2001. It also emerges from the 
record that contract was extended upto 31.1.2002 and petitioner worked as such upto 19.1.2002, 
whereafter, petitioner was t ransferred as Security Guard in BSNL Telephone Exchange, 
Ghumarwin. Thereafter, petitioner worked upto 31.8.2003, on which date, his services were 
terminated and thereafter, he was not allowed to join work. Petitioner being aggrieved and 
dissatisfied with the aforesaid termination, filed claim before Labour Officer, Bilaspur. However, 
Labour Commissioner, vide communication dated 25.4.2011, (Annexure P -4), declined to refer the 
dispute to the Labour Court on the ground of inordinate delay. It would be appro priate to 
reproduce contents of annexure P -4 as under:  

òThis is with reference to your demand notice and report under Section 12 (4) of 
the Industrial Disputes Act, 1947 received from the Labour Officer -cum -
Conciliation Officer, Bilaspur, District Bilaspur , H.P. in respect of your dispute 
with the Chairman -cum -Managing Director, H.P. Ex -Serviceman Corporation, 
Hamirpur, District Hamirpur, H.P. After careful examination of the above report 
and reply filed by the employer, it is found that you had worked up t o 31 -08 -
2003. You have raised the present demand notice dated 22 -03 -2010 i.e. after 
more than 6 years meaning thereby that there was no dispute w.e.f. 31 -08 -2003 
to 22 -03 -2010. If there was no dispute for more than 6 years then there can not 
be any dispute  after this period and there is no fresh cause of action which was 
not there in the present case. Therefore, in view of the Judgment of Division 
Bench of Honõble High Court of H.P. in C.W.P. No. 398/2001- titled M.C. Paonta 
Sahib V/S State of H.P. Nisar Al i etc., your dispute had faded away and not in 

existence and now there is no justification of making reference to Ld. Labour 
Court. Therefore, your demand notice is prima -facie, vexatious and frivolous.  

Accordingly, you are informed as per provisions of Se ction 12(5) of the Industrial 
Disputes Act, 1947 that your dispute under reference in view of above mentioned 

reasons is not being referred to the Ld. Labour Court of Himachal Pradesh for 
legal adjudication.ó 

3.  In the aforesaid background, petitioner app roached this Court.  

4.  I have heard the learned counsel representing the parties and also gone through 
the record.  
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5.  Perusal of impugned order dated 12.4.2011 (Annexure P -4) clearly suggests that 
the petitioner worked with respondent No.3 upto 31.8.20 03 and thereafter remained out of job 
and raised demand notice dated 22.3.2010 after a delay of more than six years. Labour 
Commissioner, while passing impugned order dated 12.4.2011, ha specifically concluded that 
since no demand was raised for more than six years, there was no dispute with effect from 
31.8.2003 to 22.3.210 and as such there is no justification for referring dispute to the Labour 
Court for adjudication. Bare perusal of present petition, whereby impugned order has been 
challenged, nowhere s tipulated reasons, if any, for delay on the part of the petitioner in raising 
demand after a considerable delay of more than six years. There is no whisper, if any, in the 
averments contained in the present petition, suggestive of the fact that for the rea sons, which 
were completely beyond the control of  the present petitioner, petitioner was unable to raise 
demand within reasonable period. Similarly, perusal of impugned order, as reproduced 
hereinabove, also suggests that no explanations worth the name wa s rendered in the demand 

notice raised by the petitioner qua the  inordinate delay in raising dispute and as such this Court 

sees no illegality or infirmity in the impugned order having  been passed by Labour 
Commissioner, which is certainly in conformity with the recent law laid down by Apex Court in 
Prabhakar versus Joint Director Sericulture Department and another reported in AIR 2016 
SC 2984, whereby Apex Court has held that if a dispute survives, reference is to be made and if 
dispute does not survive,  reference is not to be made. In the case in hand, it stands duly proved 
on record that there was no dispute, if any, with effect from 31.8.2003 to 22.3.2010, because, 
admittedly, during this period, no steps were taken by the petitioner to raise demand fo r referring 
the matter to Labour Court for adjudication. It would be appropriate to reproduce paras 42 and 
43 of the said judgment as under:  

ò42.   To summarise, although there is no limitation prescribed under the Act 
for making a reference Under Section 10(1) of the Act, yet it is for the 'appropriate 
Government' to consider whether it is expedient or not to make the reference. The 
words 'at any time' used in Section 10(1) do not admit of any limitation in making 
an order of reference and laws of limitati on are not applicable to proceedings 
under the Act. However, the policy of industrial adjudication is that very stale 
claims should not be generally encouraged or allowed inasmuch as unless there 
is satisfactory explanation for delay as, apart from the obv ious risk to industrial 
peace from the entertainment of claims after long lapse of time, it is necessary 
also to take into account the unsettling effect which it is likely to have on the 
employers' financial arrangement and to avoid dislocation of an indus try.  

43.  On the application of the aforesaid principle to the facts of the present 
case, we are of the view that High Court correctly decided the issue holding that 
the reference at such a belated stage i.e. after fourteen years of termination 
without an y justifiable explanation for delay, the appropriate Government had 
not jurisdiction or power to make reference of a non -existing dispute.ó  

6.   In the aforesaid judgment having been passed by the Hon'ble Apex Court, it has 
been specifically held that sta le claim should not be encouraged/ allowed, unless there is specific 
explanation for delay. In the instant case, as has been observed above, there is no explanation 
worth the name for delay, if any, caused in raising demand notice by the petitioner, as suc h, this 

Court sees no illegality or infirmity in the impugned order dated 12.4.2011 passed by Labour 
Commissioner. Since no demand was raised by the petitioner immediately after his termination 
on 31.8.2003, and even thereafter for more than six years, it can be safely presumed that the 
petitioner virtually accepted his termination order, thus, he is caught by delay, act and conduct, 
acquiescence and waiver. Apart from above, Division Bench of this Court, while taking cognizance 
of aforesaid law passed by A pex Court also decided CWP No. 1912/2016 titled Bego Devi versus 
State of HP and others on 26.10.2016 and held that a person, who does not seek relief within 

time, his case/petition deserves to be dismissed only on the ground of delay and laches, 
otherwise  it would amount to gross misuse of jurisdiction and disturbing settled position.  
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7.  Consequently, in view of aforesaid discussion as well as law referred to herein 
above, this Court sees no illegality or infirmity in the impugned order passed by the Labo ur 
Commissioner.  

8.  Accordingly, the present petition is dismissed. Pending applications, if any, are 
disposed of.  

*************************************************************************************************  

 

BEFORE HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE SANDEEP SHARMA, J  

Punjab Laminate Private Limited   ééé.Petitioner  

     Versus  

Sh. Gurdas Ram     ééé.Respondent 

 

 CWP No. 5958 of 2010  

 Reserved on: January 6, 2017  

 Decided on :  January 10, 2017  

 

Industrial Disputes Act, 1947 - Section 25 - The workman was working as un -skilled mazdoor ð 
his services were terminated without following the provisions of Industrial Disputes Act ð he 
sought reinstatement with consequential benefits ð the Tribunal allowed the claim of the 
petitioner and directed the employer to re -engage the petitioner forthwith along with continuity in 
service and seniority from the date of termination with back wages ð aggrieved from the award, 
present writ petition was filed ð held that the employer has  failed to prove that the workman had 
abandoned the  job ð workman had suffered accident during the course of employment and 
remained under treatment ð he was given light job on the recommendation of the Medical Board - 
no notice required under Section 25 -F was served upon the workman ð no notice was issued 
asking the workman to join the duties ð the Writ Court cannot act as Appellate Court and cannot 
re-appreciate the evidence - Writ petition dismissed.(Para -10 to 16)  

 

Cases referred:  

Ocean Creations Vs. Manohar Gangaram Kamble 2013 SCC Online Bom 1537:2014 )140 FLR 725  
Raghubir Singh vs. General Manager, Haryana Roadways, Hissar, 2014(6) SLR 6 (S.C.)  
Bhuvnesh Kumar Dwivedi vs. M/s Hindalco Industries Ltd. 2014 AIR SCW 3157  
 

For the petitioner     :  Mr. Divya Raj Singh, Advocate.   

For the respondent :  Mr. Ku lbhushan Khajuria, Advocate.  

 

 The following judgment of the Court was delivered:  

 

Sandeep Sharma, Judge : 

Instant petition under Article 226/227 of the Constitution of India, is directed 
against Award dated 3.6.2010 passed by the learned Presiding Judge,  Industrial Tribunal -cum -
Labour Court, Dharamshala (HP) in Ref. No. 92/2016, whereby  learned Tribunal below while 
allowing reference made by appropriate Government in favour of the respondent -workman (here 
in after, ôworkmanõ) held termination of the workman bad and accordingly, ordered his 
reengagement with full back wages, continuity in service and seniority from the date of his 

termination. Present petitioner -employer (herein after, ôemployerõ) being aggrieved and dissatisfied 
with the aforesaid award h as filed instant petition  praying therein for quashing and  setting aside 
the award dated 3.6.2010.   
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2.  òKey factsó as emerge from the record are that appropriate Government made 
following terms of reference under Section 10(1) of the Industrial Dispute s Act to the learned 
Industrial Tribunal -cum -Labour Court for adjudication:  

òWhether the termination of services of Sh. Gurdas Ram S/o Sh. Lakhu Ram 
workman by the Management of M/s. Punjab Laminates (Pvt.) Ltd., 9 -10, 
Industrial Area, Mehatpur, District Una, H.P. w.e.f. 4.6.97 without complying the 
provisions of the Industrial Disputes Act, 1947 is proper and justified? If not, 
what relief of service benefits and amount of compensation the above aggrieved 
workman is entitled to?ó 

3.  Workman, by way of st atement of claim, filed before learned Tribunal below 
claimed that he was working as Unskilled Mazdoor with the employer since 27.7.1997, 
uninterruptedly. He further stated that on 16.6.1996, while discharging his duties, he met with 

an accident, as a resu lt of which, he suffered multiple injuries on his legs as well as head and as 
such remained under treatment in ESI Dispensary, Government Hospital, Bharatgarh, Una and 
also at PGI. As per workman, after the accident, he worked for two months but again due to pain 
and disability remained under treatment. However, the fact remains that the employer treated 
him to have abandoned the job and terminated his service vide order dated 29.9.1997 with effect 
from 4.6.1997, without resorting to the provisions of the  Industrial Disputes Act. Workman 
further claimed that since his termination was in violation of the provisions contained in the 
Industrial Disputes Act, as well as principles of natural justice, he may be ordered to be 
reinstated with consequential benefit s.  

4.  On the other hand, employer by way of reply to the aforesaid statement of claim, 
opposed the claim as set up by the workman, by raising preliminary objections of cause of action, 
locus standi and estoppel etc. Further, on merits also, employer deni ed the claim by stating that 
at no point of time, services of  workman were terminated, rather workman, himself, sent a letter 
stating therein that he is unable to do his job and his dues may be cleared. Employer specifically 
denied that the services of th e workman were ever terminated/ retrenched and claimed that in 
fact, workman had abandoned the job. Workman also filed rejoinder to reply reaffirming his claim 
as set up in the petition and controverted the contents of reply. Record suggests that the 
workm an tendered his evidence by way of filing affidavit reiterating averments made in the 
statement of claim.  

5.  Workman tendered his evidence by filing affidavit reiterating averments made in 
the statement of claim. Rejoinder to reply was also filed by the workman. Employer produced one 
witness on its behalf. Learned Tribunal below, on the basis of pleadings of the parties, framed 
following issues:  

ò1. Whether the disengagement from service of the petitioner is proper and 
justified? OPP  

2.  If the above issu e No.1 is proved in affirmative to what relief the 
petitioner is entitled from the respondent? OPP  

3.  Whether the claim petition is maintainable before this Court? OPR  

4.  Relief.ó 

6.  Subsequently, the learned Tribunal below, vide Award dated 3.6.2010, all owed 
the reference and held the termination of the workman to be bad and accordingly, quashed the 
same. Learned Tribunal below while allowing claim of the petitioner, directed the employer to 
reengage him forthwith alongwith continuity in service and senio rity from the date of termination 
with back wages. In the aforesaid background, employer has assailed the award by way of present 
petition.   

7.  Mr. Divya Raj Singh, learned counsel representing the employer, vehemently 
argued that the impugned award pass ed by the learned Tribunal below is not sustainable in the 
eyes of law as the same is not based upon correct appreciation of evidence adduced on record by 
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the respective parties. As per Mr. Singh, it is ample clear from the document Ext. RW -1/A that 
the wo rkman himself abandoned the job and at no point of time, his services were either 
retrenched or terminated by the employer. Mr. Singh further contended that pursuant to 
aforesaid request of workman to clear his dues, employer paid entire payment in full an d as such 
there is no merit in the claim of the workman and same is required to be rejected. Mr. Singh 
further pointed out that the learned Tribunal below fell in grave error while entertaining reference 
having been made at the behest of the workman, becau se, admittedly, same was belated as the 
alleged termination, if any, was made on 4.6.1997, whereas reference was made on 17.11.2003, 
and, as such, on this sole ground, impugned award passed by learned Tribunal below deserves to 
be set aside.  

8.  Mr. Kulbh ushan Khajuria, learned counsel representing the workman, supported 
the award passed by learned Tribunal below. Mr. Khajuria, while referring to the impugned award 

passed by the learned Tribunal below, vehemently argued that there is no illegality or infir mity in 
the impugned award, rather same is based upon correct appreciation of evidence adduced on 
record by the respective parties as well as law and there is no scope of interference, whatsoever, 
by this Court, especially  when learned Tribunal below has dealt with each and every aspect of 
the matter meticulously. While refuting contentions having been put forth by the learned counsel 
representing the employer, Mr. Khajuria contended that Ext. RW -1/A  as being relied upon by the 
employer, is of no help to the employer since the same was written on 29.5.1999. He further 
stated that the same can not be termed as resignation from service  because  bare reading of 
same suggests that  vide this letter, workman had simply asked for clearing his dues. Mr. 
Khajuria  further contended that more over, as per own case of the employer, services of the 
workman were terminated with effect from 4.6.1997 and as such no reliance could be placed on 

letter Ext. RW -1/A, which is dated 29.5.1999. While concluding his arguments, M r. Khajuria 
strenuously argued that there is no document available on record suggestive of the fact that 
employer paid all the dues to the workman and as such there is no illegality or infirmity in the 
impugned award passed by the learned Tribunal below, w hereby employer has been directed to 
reengage the workman with all consequential benefits.   

9.  I have heard the learned counsel representing the parties and also gone through 
the Award and records.  

10.  During proceedings of the case, this Court had an occasion to peruse pleadings 
of the parties as well as documents available on record, perusal whereof clearly shows that there 
is no illegality or infirmity in the findings returned by the learned Tribunal below, whereby it 
concluded that employer has fail ed to prove that the workman had abandoned the job. It emerges 
from the record that there is no dispute with regard to the fact that workman was working with 
the employer since 27.7.1992. Similarly, there appears to be no dispute with regard to the alleged  
accident of workman on 16.9.1996, during the course of his employment, wherein he suffered 
multiple injuries. Similarly, there is no dispute with regard to the fact that workman remained 
under treatment because it is admitted case of the employer that aft er recommendation of the 
medical board, it had offered light job to the workman. As per the case set up by the workman, 
his services came to be terminated by the employer with effect from 4.6.1997 in violation of 

provisions of Industrial Disputes Act, wher eas, employer, while refuting stand taken by the 

workman, stated that due to ill health, workman himself, abandoned the job. Employer further 
claimed that though it offered opportunity to the workman to join light duties, but he failed to 
report for duty a nd consequently, his services came to be terminated. Employer, by way of placing 
on record certain documents i.e. RW -1/B dated 10.7.1997, Ext. RW -1/D dated  13.8.1997 and 
Ext. RW -1/E dated 22.12.1997, made an attempt to demonstrate that it had sent 
communi cations to the workman advising him to perform duties. Employer, with a view to prove 
that the workman, himself, abandoned the job, heavily relied upon document Ext. RW -1/A i.e. 
letter dated 29.5.1999, written by workman. Perusal of Ext. RW -1/A suggests th at there is 
overwriting of date. It appears that letter was dated 24.12.1997 but the fact remains that 
employer claimed it to be dated 29.5.1999. If version put forth by the employer is taken to be 
correct, that workman had expressed his desire to abandon the job on 29.5.1999, it is not 
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understood that how his services were dispensed with by employer with effect from 4.6.1997 that 
too, without resorting to provisions of Industrial Disputes Act. Rather, this Court, after examining 
stand having been taken by the employer in the reply to the claim, has no hesitation to conclude 
that workman was on the rolls of the employer till 29.5.1999, when, for the first time, he 
expressed his desire to abandon the job. Hence, termination /disengagement of the workman 
with effect from 4.6.1997, can not be termed to be in accordance with law because, admittedly, 
there is nothing on record suggestive of the fact that at the time of disengaging services of 
workman on 4.6.1997, notice, if any, under Section 25 F of the Act was e ver issued to the 
workman. If, for the sake of arguments, stand taken by the employer is taken to be correct that 
vide communication dated 29.5.1999, workman, himself abandoned the job, even in that 
eventuality, termination order with effect from 4.6.1997 can not be allowed to sustain because, 
admittedly, no  evidence worth the name has been led on record by the employer to demonstrate 
that while disengaging /terminating workman on 4.6.1997, it had taken recourse to the 
provisions  of Industrial Disputes Ac t.  

11.  In view of the aforesaid, this Court sees no illegality in the order passed by the 
learned Tribunal below whereby it has held termination of workman bad. Though, perusal of Ext. 
RW-1/A  suggests that workman Gurdas Ram informed the employer that h e has been declared 
40% disabled by medical board, and he is incapacitated to do job, as such, made request for 
clearing his dues but certainly there is nothing in this letter which could suggest that by way of 
aforesaid communication, workman tendered his  resignation. Moreover, employer has not led on 
record any evidence, be it ocular or documentary, suggestive of the fact that pursuant to 
aforesaid alleged request having been made by workman vide letter dated 29.5.1999, action, if 
any, was taken by it and  admissible dues were paid to the workman. Learned Tribunal below has 

specifically recorded that there is no evidence on record that what amount was paid and to whom 
such amount was paid and there is no receipt qua the same. Learned Tribunal below has furt her 
observed that there is no explanation that why compensation was granted and what were the 
dues paid to the workman. Hence, this Court sees no illegality or infirmity in the findings 
recorded by learned Tribunal, whereby it has specifically concluded th at document dated 
29.5.1999 Ext. RW -1/A is doubtful. As has been noticed above, this letter was originally dated 
24.12.1997 and after cutting date has been changed to 29.5.1999. But otherwise also, aforesaid 
letter dated 29.5.1999 Ext. RW -1/A is of no help  to the employer, especially when employer has 
specifically claimed that the workman abandoned job with effect from 4.6.1997. Had the 
workman abandoned job with effect from 4.6.1997, where was the occasion for him to write 
communication on 29.5.1999, rathe r, this Court is of the view that after acknowledging  letter 
dated 29.5.1999, purportedly written by workman, employer has acknowledged that workman 
was on its rolls till 29.5.1999 and as such termination order with effect from 4.6.1997 can not be 
allowed  to sustain. Manager of the Company, Naseeb Kumar, while deposing as RW -1, admitted 
that the workman was employed with the company on 27.7.1992. He also admitted that the 
workman met with an accident. Though aforesaid witness by placing reliance upon 
commu nications dated 10.7.1997, (Ext. RW -1/B), dated 13.8.1997 (Ext. RW -1/D) and dated 
22.12.1997 (Ext. RW -1/E) made an attempt to demonstrate that, after receipt of the opinion of 
the medical board, employer had offered light duties to the workman and in this regard, had sent 
communication to the workman to join duty but, interestingly, aforesaid communications have 

been sent after 4.6.1997, when allegedly workman had abandoned the job. Once, as per 
employer, workman had abandoned the job on 4.6.1997, it is not  understood where was the 
occasion for the employer to send communications as mentioned above, calling upon the 
workman to join duties, which action on the part of employer, clearly belies its stand taken in 
written statement, which compels this Court to d raw adverse inference that alleged documents 
were manufactured to defeat the genuine claim of the workman. Hence, this Court, after carefully 
examining entire evidence on record, has no hesitation to conclude that plea of abandonment, 

that too on the basis  of Ext. RW -1/A dated 29.5.1999, is not sustainable at all and was rightly 
rejected by the learned Tribunal below.  
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12.  It is settled law that plea of abandonment taken by employer may not be 
sufficient to prove abandonment, rather it is necessary for the  employer to place on record that 
specific  notice was issued to the workman before alleged abandonment asking the workman to 
join duty within a stipulated period. In this regard, reliance is placed upon the judgment passed 
by Bombay High Court  in case tit led  Ocean Creations Vs. Manohar Gangaram Kamble  2013 
SCC Online Bom 1537:2014)140 FLR 725. It is profitable to reproduce paras No.8,9 and 10 of the 
judgment herein: - 

ò8. The legal position is also settled that ôabandonment or relinquishment of 
serviceõ is always a question of intention and normally such intention cannot be 
attributed to an employee without adequate evidence in that behalf. This is a 
question of fact which is to be determined in the light of surrounding 
circumstances of each case. It is wel l settled  that even in case of abandonment 

of service, unless the service conditions make special provisions to the contrary, 
employer has to give notice to the workman calling upon him to resume duties 

and where he fails to resume duties, to hold an enqu iry before terminating 
services on such ground.  

9.  In somewhat similar circumstances a Division Bench of this court 
comprising P.B.Sawant, J.(as he then was) and V.V.Vaze, J. in the case of 
Gaurishanker Vishwakarma v. Engle Spring Industries Pvt. Lted. Obs erved thus:  

òé..it is now well settled that even in the case of the abandonment of 
service, the employer has to give a notice to the workman calling upon 
him to resume his duty and also to hold an enquiry before terminating 
his service on that ground. In t he present case the employer has done 
neither. It was for the employer to prove that the workman had 
abandoned the serviceé.. It is therefore difficult to believe that the 
workman who had worked continuously for six to seven years, would 
abandon his servic e for no rhyme or reason. It has also to be 
remembered that it was the workman who had approached the 
Government Labour Officer with a specific grievance that he was not 
allowed to join his duty. It was also his grievance that although he had 
approached th e company for work from time to time, and the companyõs 
partner  Anand had kept on promising him  that he would be taken in 
service, he was not given work and hence he was forced to approach the 
Government Labour Officer. In the circumstances, it is diffic ult to believe 
that he would refuse the offer of work when it was given to him before 
the Labour Officeré.ó 

10.  Again a learned Single Judge of this court R.M.Lodha, J( as he then was) 
in the case of Mahamadsha Ganishah Patel v. Mastanbaug Consumersõ Co-op. 
Wholesale  & Retail Stores Ltd. Observed thus: - 

òé.The legal position is almost settled that even in the case of 
abandonment of service, the employer has to give notice to the employee 

calling upon him to resume his duty. If the employee does not turn up  

despite such notice, the employer should hold inquiry on that ground 
and then passs appropriate order of termination. At the time when 
employment is scarce, ordinarily abandonment of service by employee 
cannot be presumed. Moreover, abandonment of service  is always a 
matter of intention and such intention in the absence of supportable 
evidence cannot be attributed to the employee. It goes without saying 
that whether the employee has abandoned the service or not is always a 
question of fact which has to be adjudicated on the basis of evidence and 
attending circumstances. In the present case employer has miserably 
failed to discharge the burden by leading evidence that employee 
abandoned service. The Labour Court has considered this aspect, and, in 
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my view ri ghtly reached the conclusion that the employer has failed to 
establish any abandonment of service and it was a clear case of 
termination. The termination being illegal, the Labour Court did not 
commit any error in holding the act of employer as unfair labo ur practice 
under Item -I, Schedule IV of the MRTU & PULP Acté..ó 

13.  It is admitted case of the parties that workman sustained injuries during the 
course of his employment and as such there is no illegality in the  findings returned by the 
learned Tribuna l below that the absence of workman was because of accident arising out of and  
in the course of employment and this period was required to be counted as continuous service as 
per requirement of provisions contained in Section 25B of the Act. In the instan t case, employer 
before terminating services of the  workman, has failed to resort to the provisions of Section 25 F 
of the Act because no notice has been issued and as such termination of workman can not be 

held to be valid. Otherwise also, if it is presu med that workman after suffering injuries in the 
accident failed to resume duties, despite there being notices, at best, it could be a case of 
misconduct and services of employees on the ground of misconduct can not be terminated 
without resorting to the p rovisions as contained in the Act and after holding an inquiry. As such, 
learned Tribunal below rightly concluded that termination of the workman on the ground of 
absence from duty is bad. Since, termination of the workman was held to be bad, there is no 
illegality in granting benefit of continuity in service with back wages, especially when on the basis 
of the evidence adduced on record learned Tribunal came to the conclusion that the termination 
is bad being in violation of various provision of the Act. L earned Tribunal could not deny the 
benefit of back wages, especially when the petitioner was granted the benefits of continuity in 
service and seniority. The benefit of continuity in service and seniority could only be granted by 

the Court if it was satisf ied that workman/petitioner was not allowed to work during the 
retrenchment period despite there being sufficient work available with the management.  

14.   In this regard r eliance is placed on the judgment of the Honõble Apex Court in 

Raghubir Singh vs. Ge neral Manager, Haryana Roadways, Hissar, 2014(6) SLR 6 (S.C.), 
wherein the Court held:  

ò39. Now, it is necessary for this Court to examine another aspect of the case on hand, 
whether the appellant is entitled for reinstatement, back wages and the other 
consequential benefits. In the case of Deepali Gundu Surwase V. Kranti Junior 

Adhyapak  Mahavidyalaya (D. Ed) and Ors.,(2013)10 SCC 324: [2013(6) SLR 642 
(SC), this Court opined as under: - 

 ò22. The very idea of restoring an employee to the position which he held 
before dismissal or removal  or termination of service implies that the employee 
will be put in the same position in which he would have been but for the illegal 
action taken by the employer. The injury suffered by a person, who is dismissed 
or remove d or is otherwise terminated from service cannot easily be measured in 
terms of money. With the passing of an order which has the effect of severing the 
employer employee relationship, the latter's source of income gets dried up. Not 
only the concerned emp loyee, but his entire family suffers grave adversities. They 
are deprived of the source of sustenance. The children are deprived of nutritious 

food and all opportunities of education and advancement in life. At times, the 
family has to borrow from the rela tives and other acquaintance to avoid 
starvation. These sufferings continue till the competent adjudicatory forum 
decides on the legality of the action taken by the employer. The reinstatement of 
such an employee, which is preceded by a finding of the comp etent judicial/quasi 
judicial body or Court that the action taken by the employer is ultra vires the 
relevant statutory provisions or the principles of natural justice, entitles the 
employee to claim full back wages. If the employer wants to deny back wage s to 
the employee or contest his entitlement to get consequential benefits, then it is 
for him/her to specifically plead and prove that during the intervening period the 
employee was gainfully employed and was getting the same emoluments. Denial 
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of back wa ges to an employee, who has suffered due to an illegal act of the 
employer would amount to indirectly punishing the concerned employee and 
rewarding the employer by relieving him of the obligation to pay back wages 
including the emoluments.   

23. A somewha t similar issue was considered by a three Judge Bench in 
Hindustan Tin Works Pvt. Ltd. v. Employees of Hindustan Tin Works Pvt. Ltd. 
(supra)......The relief of reinstatement with continuity of service can be granted 
where termination of service is found to  be invalid. It would mean that the 
employer has taken away illegally the right to work of the workman contrary to 
the relevant law or in breach of contract and simultaneously deprived the 
workman of his earnings. If thus the employer is found to be in the  wrong as a 
result of which the workman is directed to be reinstated, the employer could not 

shirk his responsibility of paying the wages which the workman has been 
deprived of by the illegal or invalid action of the employer. Speaking realistically, 

where  termination of service is questioned as invalid or illegal and the workman 
has to go through the gamut of litigation, his capacity to sustain himself 
throughout the protracted litigation is itself such an awesome factor that he may 
not survive to see the day when relief is granted. More so in our system where the 
law's proverbial delay has become stupefying. If after such a protracted time and 
energy consuming litigation during which period the workman just sustains 
himself, ultimately he is to be told tha t though he will be reinstated, he will be 
denied the back wages which would be due to him, the workman would be 
subjected to a sort of penalty for no fault of his and it is wholly undeserved. 
Ordinarily, therefore, a workman whose service has been illegal ly terminated 
would be entitled to full back wages except to the extent he was gainfully 
employed during the enforced idleness. That is the normal rule. Any other view 
would be a premium on the unwarranted litigative activity of the employer. If the 
employ er terminates the service illegally and the termination is motivated as in 
this case viz. to resist the workmen's demand for revision of wages, the 
termination may well amount to unfair labour practice. In such circumstances 
reinstatement being the normal rule, it should be followed with full back 
wages..... In the very nature of things there cannot be a strait -jacket formula for 
awarding relief of back wages. All relevant considerations will enter the verdict. 
More or less, it would be a motion addressed t o the discretion of the Tribunal. 
Full back wages would be the normal rule and the party objecting to it must 
establish the circumstances necessitating departure. At that stage the Tribunal 
will exercise its discretion keeping in view all the relevant circ umstances. But the 
discretion must be exercised in a judicial and judicious manner. The reason for 
exercising discretion must be cogent and convincing and must appear on the face 
of the record. When it is said that something is to be done within the discre tion of 
the authority,  that something is to be done according to the Rules of reason and 

justice, according to law and not humour. It is not to be arbitrary, vague and 
fanciful but legal and regular.....  

24. Another three Judge Bench considered the same i ssue in Surendra Kumar 

Verma v. Central Government Industrial Tribunal -cum -Labour Court, New 
Delhi (supra) and observed: Plain common sense dictates that the removal of an 
order terminating the services of workmen must ordinarily lead to the 
reinstatement of the services of the workmen. It is as if the order has never been, 
and so it must ordinarily lead to back wages too......In such and other 
exceptional cases the court may mould the relief, but, ordinarily the relief to be 
awarded must be reinstatement w ith full back wages. That relief must be 
awarded where no special impediment in the way of awarding the relief is clearly 
shown. True, occasional hardship may be caused to an employer but we must 
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remember that, more often than not, comparatively far greate r hardship is 
certain to be caused to the workmen if the relief is denied than to the employer if 
the relief is granted.ó (Emphasis supplied by this Court)ó(pp.23-25)  

15.   Hence, this Court, after carefully examining the Award passed by the Tribunal 
below , sees no reason to interfere in the findings recorded by the Tribunal, which are otherwise 
also based upon correct appreciation of evidence led on record by the parties, as such, impugned 
award deserves to be upheld. It is well settled law that the Courts  while examining correctness  
and genuineness of award passed by Tribunal have very limited powers to re -appreciate the 
evidence led before the Tribunal below, especially the findings of fact recorded by the Tribunal 
below. Apart from above, findings of fac t recorded by learned Tribunal below on the basis of 
appreciation of evidence cannot be questioned in writ proceedings and writ court cannot act as an 
appellate court. In this regard, reliance is placed upon the judgment passed by Honõble Apex 

Court in cas e titled Bhuvnesh Kumar Dwivedi vs. M/s Hindalco Industries Ltd. 2014 AIR 
SCW 3157 . It is profitable to reproduce paras 16, 17 and 18 of the judgment herein:   

ò16. éééThe question about the limits of the jurisdiction of High Courts in 
issuing a writ of cer tiorari under Article 226 has been frequently considered by 
this Court and the true legal position in that behalf is no longer in doubt. A writ 
of certiorari can be issued for correcting errors of jurisdiction committed by 
inferior Courts or tribunals: the se are cases where orders are passed by inferior 
Courts or Tribunals without jurisdiction, or is in excess of it, or as a result of 
failure to exercise jurisdiction. A writ can similarly be issued where in exercise of 

jurisdiction conferred on it, the Cour t or Tribunal acts illegally or improperly, as 
for instance, it decides a question without giving an opportunity to be heard to 
the party affected by the order, or where the procedure adopted in dealing with 
the dispute is opposed to principles of natural justice. There is, however, no 
doubt that the jurisdiction to issue a writ of certiorari is a supervisory 
jurisdiction and the Court exercising it is no entitled to act as an Appellate Court. 
This limitation necessarily means that findings of fact reached by the inferior 
court or Tribunal as result of the appreciation of evidence cannot be reopened for 
questioned in writ proceedings. An error of law which is apparent on the face of 
the record can be corrected by a writ, but not an error of fact, however gra ve it 
may appear to be. In regard to a finding of fact recorded by the Tribunal, a writ of 
certiorari can be issued if it is shown that in recording the said finding, the 
Tribunal had erroneously refused to admit admissible and material evidence, or 
had er roneously admitted inadmissible evidence which has influenced the 
impugned finding. Similarly, if a finding of fact is based on no evidence, that 
would be regarded as an error of law which can be corrected by a writ of 
certiorari. In dealing with this cate gory of cases, however, we must always bear in 
mind that a finding of fact recorded by the Tribunal cannot be challenged in 
proceedings for a writ of certiorari on the ground that the relevant and material 
evidence adduced before the Tribunal was insuffici ent or inadequate to sustain 
the impugned finding. The adequacy or sufficiency of evidence led on a point and 
the interference of fact to be drawn from the said finding are within the exclusive 

jurisdiction of the Tribunal, and the said points cannot  be a gitated before a writ 
Court. It is within these limits that the jurisdiction conferred on the High Courts 
under Article 226 to issue a writ of certiorari can be legitimately exercised.  

16.   In view of above, the present petition lacks merit, deserves dis missal and is 
accordingly dismissed. The award passed by the learned Tribunal below is upheld.  

17.  Pending applications, if any, are disposed of.  

*******************************************************************************************  
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BEFORE HON'BLE MR. JUSTICE MANSOOR AHMAD MIR, C.J. AND HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE 
SANDEEP SHARMA, J.  

Narender Kumar     é..Petitioner  

    Versus  

Union of India and others        é.Respondents  

 

CWP No. 4481 of 2015 with  

CWP No. 4482 of 2015  

Reserved on:  December 29, 2016  

Decided on:  January 11, 2017  

 

Constitution of India, 1950 - Article 226 - Petitioners were appointed as Safaiwalas in Rashtriya 

Military School, Chail ð they were on probation of two years ð they were issued warnings for 
unauthorized absence ðtheir  services w ere terminated on 1.6.2015 ð petitioners filed original 

applications before Central Administrative Tribunal -  respondent pleaded that the performance of 
both the petitioners was not satisfactory during the probation period and they were issued 
various war nings ð the Tribunal dismissed the original application - aggrieved from the order, 
present writ petitions have been filed - held that lots of complaints were filed against the 
petitioners - repeated warnings were issued to the petitioners - the performance of  the petitioners 
was not found satisfactory and authorities took a conscious decisions not to extend the probation 
period ð no inquiry was required to be conducted as the termination was not stigmatic ð the 
applications were rightly dismissed by the Tribun al- petition dismissed.(Para -15 to 27)  

 

Cases referred:   

Rajesh Kohli v. High Court of J & K , (2010) 12 SCC 783  
Ratnesh Kumar Choudhary v. Indira Gandhi Institute of Medical Sciences,  (2015) 15 SCC 151  

 

For the petitioner(s)  Mr. Adarsh K. Vashishta, Adv ocate, in both the petitions.  

For the respondents:  Mr. Ashok Sharma, Assistant Solicitor General of India with Mr. 
Nipun Sharma, Advocate, in both the petitions.  

 

 The following judgment of the Court was delivered:  

 

Per Sandeep Sharma, Judge:  

These two petitions were clubbed vide order dated 29.12.2016, for the reason 
that these are outcome of a common order dated 19.11.2015 made by the Central Administrative 

Tribunal (for short, ôimpugned orderõ), are being disposed of by this common judgment. However, 
for the sake of clarity, facts from CWP No. 4481 of 2015 are being discussed herein.   

2.  Petitioner Narender Kumar, who was appointed as a ôSafaiwalaõ in the Rashtriya 
Military School, Chail, District Solan, H.P., on 5.11.2012 on probation for two years and joined on 
20.11.2012. He had taken 55 daysõ Extra Ordinary Leave for appearing in selection process for 

the post of Clerk with Assam Riffles in Nagaland. He was issued warning vide letter dated 
03.09.2013, which was replied by him on 7.9.2013. Another disciplinary warning against him 
was issued on 11.7.2014 stating that he was  sanctioned leave from 26.6.2014 to 28.6.2014 but 
he left the station on 25.6.2014 and reported back for duty on 30.6.2014. He was also directed to  

re-apply for leave from 25.6.2 014 to 30.6.2014, which he did. Another disciplinary warning was 
issued on 5.8.2014 for remaining absent for seven days from 28.7.2014. It was also replied by the 
petitioner. One more disciplinary warning was issued on 18.9.2014 which was also replied by t he 
petitioner. Probation period of the petitioner was extended from 23.3.2015 for another six months 
from 13.1.2015.  
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3.    In terms of order dated 1.6.2015, services of petitioner were terminated. 
Petitioner questioned the same by the medium of OA No. 063 /00092/2015 -HP/2015 before the 
Central Administrative Tribunal, Chandigarh, and sought following reliefs:  

òi The impugned order dated 01.06.2015 (Annexure A -1) may kindly be 
quashed.  

ii.   The respondents be further directed to reinstate the applicant in service 
with all consequential benefits.ó  

4  Similar are the facts of another case, wherein, petitioner Anil Kumar was also 
appointed and working as a ôSafaiwalaõ in the Rashtriya Military School, Chail, District Solan, 
H.P., and  two disciplinary warning s were issued on 7.7.2014 and 1.4.2015. In this case also, 
probation period was extended vide letter date 27.3.2015 for one year and six months from 
25.5.2014. His services were terminated vide order dated 1.6.2015, which reads as under:  

òNOTICE OF TERMINATION OF SERVICEó 

1. Refer following: - 

(a) Appointment letter No. AO104/RTG/Rul/VI/ dt. 22 May 2012  

(b) This office letter No.AO103/Est/IV dt.27 Mar 2015  

 

2.  It is intimated that your services shall stand terminated with effect from the date 
of expiry of pe riod of one month from the date on which the notice is served on, or, as the 
case be, tendered to you, since your performance is not satisfactory. You are, hereby, 
instructed to get your clearance done and handover charge, keys and any other 
government pro perty held with you at the earliest.  

3.  Please acknowledge.  

Sd/ - 

(Vineet Ohri)  

Lt. Col  

Principaló 

5.  Petitioner Anil Kumar also sought similar reliefs in OA No. 063/00091/2015 as 
sought in aforesaid Original Application of Narender Kumar.  

6.  The respon dents in their written statement/ reply to the Original Applications, 
pleaded that performance of both the petitioners during probation period was not satisfactory and 
they were issued various warnings.  

7.  Petitioner Anil Kumar had even stolen shoes of a  school cadet. Cadets of Taxila 
House made complaint on 28.5.2015 against both the petitioners and Matron of Taxila House 
also made another complaint on 30.5.2015 against both the petitioners.  

8.  Petitioners filed replications to the written statement an d while reiterating their 
stand in Original Applications, pleaded that they had made complaints to the Police regarding  
appointment of one Ms. Neelam Rani, Matron of Taxila House, which, as per them, was against 
Rules being ineligible and unqualified for the post, in repercussion whereof, complaints were filed 
against them.  

9.  The learned Tribunal below while clubbing both the Original Applications, has 
taken note of various incidents against both the petitioners. The plea taken on behalf of the 
petition ers that probation period was not extended within stipulated period and was not conveyed 
to them, was turned down by the learned Tribunal below observing that same was done within 
time and also communicated to the petitioners. Regarding complaints filed ag ainst Ms. Neelam 
Rani by the petitioners, the learned Tribunal below noted that same were made on 24.6.2015 and 
not prior to the complaint dated 30.5.2015 made by Neelam Rani against the petitioners. The 
learned Tribunal below dismissed both the Original A pplications vide order dated 19.11.2015.  
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10.    The petitioners assailed the common order of the learned Tribunal below by filing 
two separate writ petitions. Since reliefs are similar in both the petitions,  main reliefs of CWP No. 
4481 of 2015 are repro duced below:  

òi) That a writ in the nature of certiorari may kindly be issued for quashing 
the impugned notice of termination dated 1.06.2015, Annexure P -7 issued by the 
Respondent No. 3 and the order passed Annexure P -10, by Ld. Central 
Administrative Tr ibunal Bench at Chandigarh in OA No. 063/9991/305, titled 
ôNarender Kumar Vs Union of India & Others ô decided on 19.11.2015.  

ii)  That a writ of mandamus may kindly be issued directing the respondents 
to allow the petitioner to work on ôas is-where is bas isó  

11.    The respondents filed separate replies in both the petitions, taking preliminary 
objections and preliminary submissions, refuting the claim stated that their action in terminating 

the services of petitioners is well within the Rules. Respondent s have alleged suppression of facts 
on the part of the petitioners and further denied the averments made in the petitions that the 
work and conduct of the petitioners was satisfactory and there was no complaint against them 
during probation period.  

12.    Mr. Adarsh K. Vashishta, Advocate, appearing for the petitioners, in both the 
petitions has strenuously argued that the order passed by the Central Administrative Tribunal is 
illegal, arbitrary and against the settled position of law. His clients were  ap pointed as ôSafaiwalaõ 
and were on probation for a period of two years. His clients had been working diligently and to 
the best of their abilities. He further averred that there was no complaint against his clients 
during the period of probation. He has ad mitted the fact that disciplinary warnings were issued to 
his clients at different times, which were duly replied to. Mr. Vashishta, Advocate also admitted 
that the probation periods of his clients were extended. But unfortunately, the services of his 
clients were terminated unceremoniously after serving one monthõs notice. He further argued that 
principles of natural justice have been violated while serving notice of termination upon his 
clients and no opportunity of hearing was granted to them. Mr. Vashis hta pleaded that the order 
of termination was not merely an order terminating services of his clients but same was a penalty 
under the garb of termination.  

13.    Mr. Ashok Sharma, learned Assistant Solicitor General of India duly assisted by 
Mr. Nipun Sh arma, Advocate, has supported the order passed by the learned Tribunal below. He 
pleaded that the petitioners have suppressed material facts. Mr. Sharma, further controverted the 
argument of the learned counsel representing the petitioners that there were no complaints 
against petitioners.  Mr. Sharma further cited Rule 5 of the Central Civil Services (Temporary 
Service) Rules, 1965 to support the action of the respondents in terminating services of the 
petitioners, who were on probation and were temporary employees. While referring to the 
pleadings, Mr. Sharma cited many instances, when complaints were made against the petitioners, 
by the staff of the Rashtriya Military School. He also stated that general assessment of the 
petitioners was not satisfactory a nd as such their names were not included in the DPC for 
confirmation of probationers and accordingly, their probation period was extended. Thereafter, 
their performance was not found satisfactory. In the aforesaid background, he prayed for 
dismissal of the  petitions.  

14.    We have heard the learned counsel for the parties and gone through the record.  

15.    Both the petitioners namely Narender Kumar and Anil Kumar, were appointed as 
ôSafaiwalasõ, in respondent No.3 School, after going through due selection process and they were 
appointed vide appointment letters dated 5.11.2012 and 22.5.2012, respectively on probation for 
two years. Documents available on record further suggest that pursuant to aforesaid 
appointment, both the petitioners joined as Safaiwa las on 20.11.2012 and 26.5.2012, 
respectively. Since during probation period, their performance was found to be unsatisfactory, 
they were not confirmed and perusal of documents placed on record alongwith petitions as well 
as sequence of events as stands me ntioned in the impugned order having been passed by the 
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learned Tribunal below clearly suggests that both the petitioners were issued repeated warnings 
qua their performance during probation. It clearly emerges from the various notices/ reminders 
issued th at despite of that their performance was not satisfactory.  

16.    It also emerges from the record that repeated complaints were made by the 
students regarding their behaviour and conduct. Record further reveals that petitioner namely 
Narender Kumar oversta yed his leave and he left the station without there being sanctioned leave 
in his favour. Despite above, authorities taking a lenient view, advised petitioner Narender Kumar 
to re -apply for leave for the period of absence. As per petitioners, since their w ork and conduct 
was found satisfactory, their probation period was extended for one year and six months and as 
such there is no force in the allegations having been made by the authorities that petitioners were 
found wanting in their service.  

17.    This Court, solely with a view to ascertain the genuineness and correctness of the 

aforesaid arguments having been made by the learned counsel representing the parties, carefully 
perused the documents available on record, perusal whereof clearly suggests that t here were lot 
of complaints against the petitioners, who were appointed as, ôSafaiwalasõ but despite there being 
numerous complaints by the students and staff of the School, authorities instead of taking 
drastic step of terminating services of the petition ers, issued repeated warnings. It also emerges 
from the record that documents were called from Narender Kumar, by the authorities enabling  
them to take decision with regard to his confirmation after completion of probation period but 
before, decision if a ny, could be taken with regard to confirmation of petitioners, numerous 
complaints were received by the authorities from students as well as other staff with regard to 
their performance and as such their case could not be considered for confirmation. This Court, 
after carefully perusing impugned order of learned Tribunal below, wherein various incidents with 
regard to performance of both the petitioners have been noticed, has no hesitation to conclude 
that there was ample material on record before the learn ed Tribunal below suggestive of the fact 
that the performance of both the petitioners was not satisfactory.  

18.    Learned Tribunal below while agreeing with the decision of the authorities in 
terminating services of the petitioners has taken note of the facts discussed herein above.  

19.    This Court also finds no force in the contentions of the learned counsel 
representing the petitioners that, as per clause 10 of the Consolidated Instruction of Probation 
dated 21.7.2014, issued with regard to extension  of probation period was to be decided within 6 -8 
weeks prior to expiry of initial probation period and same was required to be communicated to 
the petitioners, because it emerges from the record that in case of Narender Kumar, decision was 
taken and commu nicated within ten weeks of expiry of  probation period, whereas in the case of 
Anil Kumar, though it was belated but instructions as contained in clause 10 were further  
modified vide OM dated 19.5.1983 as mentioned in clause 24 of the Consolidated instru ctions, 
wherein it was provided that confirmation of probationer after completion of probation is not 
automatic but it is to be followed by formal orders and as long as no specific order of successful 
completion of probation is not issued, such probationer  would be deemed to have been on 
continued probation. In the instant case, as clearly emerges from documents on record, since no 
specific order of confirmation on satisfactory completion of probation was issued, both the 
petitioners were deemed to be on pr obation till the termination orders were made.   

20.   Leaving everything aside, bare perusal of impugned termination orders nowhere 
suggests that same have been passed on the basis of misconduct by way of penalty as claimed by 
the learned counsel represen ting the petitioners. Perusal of impugned termination order clearly 
suggests that the performance of petitioners during probation was not found satisfactory, notices 
were issued to them intimating therein that their services shall stand terminated after ex piry of 
one month of the date, on which notices were served, as such, by no stretch of imagination, it can 
be concluded that termination orders are violative of Article 311(2) of Constitution of India and as 
such they are null and void.  True it is that as  per settled law, if order of discharge or termination 
is based on misconduct, they become unsustainable, if same are passed without holding any 
inquiry. But, in the instant case, as has been noticed above, termination orders are not by way of 
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punishment a nd are not stigmatic in any manner, as such, there was no occasion, if any, for 
authorities to hold inquiry before passing termination orders. Rather, in the present case, as 
clearly emerges from the record, performance of the petitioners was not found sat isfactory during 
probation period and as such authorities took a conscious decision not to extend their probation 
beyond stipulated period and as such this Court sees no illegality or infirmity in the decision 
having been taken by the authorities, which ot herwise appears to be based upon correct 
appreciation of material available on record.  

21.  Mere reference of unsatisfactory service of a person in termination order can not 
be said to be ôstigmaticõ. It is well within the domain  of the authorities to examine service record 
of the incumbents before deciding extension, if any, of the probation period. It is always open for 
the authorities to record such satisfaction regarding unsatisfactory service and mere mention of 
same in the order, in no manner, would  amount to casting any aspersions on the incumbent. In 

this regard, reliance is placed upon judgment of Apex Court in Rajesh Kohli v. High Court of J & 
K reported in (2010) 12 SCC 783, wherein it is held as under:  

ò21. In the present case, two orders are challenged, one, which was the order 
of the High Court based on the basis of the resolution of the full court and the 
other one issued by the Government of Jammu & Kashmir on the ground that 
they were stigmatic orders.  

22.  In our considered opinion, none of the aforesaid two orders could be said 
to be a stigmatic order as no stigma is attached. Of course, aforesaid letters were 
issued in view of the resolution of the full court meeting where the full court of 
the High Court held that the service of the pet itioner is unsatisfactory. Whether 
or not the probation period could be or should be extended or his service should 

be confirmed is required to be considered by the full court of the High Court and 
while doing so necessarily the service records of the peti tioner are required to be 
considered and if from the service records it is disclosed that the service of the 
petitioner is not satisfactory it is  open for the respondents to record such 
satisfaction regarding his unsatisfactory service and even mentioning  the same in 
the order would not amount to casting any aspersion on the petitioner nor it 
could be said that stating in the order that his service is unsatisfactory amounts 
to a stigmatic order.  

23.  This position is no longer res integra and it is well - settled that even if an 
order of termination refers to unsatisfactory service of the person concerned, the 
same cannot be said to be stigmatic. In Pavanendra Narayan Verma v. Sanjay 
Gandhi PGI Of Medical Sci ences reported in (2002) 1 SCC 520, this Court has 
explained at length the tests that would apply to determine if an order 
terminating the services of a probationer is stigmatic. On the facts of that case it 
was held that the opinion expressed in the term ination order that the 
probationer's "work and conduct has not been found satisfactory" was not ex 
facie stigmatic and  in such circumstances the question of having to comply with 
the principles of natural justice do not arise.  

29.  One of the issues that w ere raised by the petitioner was that he was 

granted two increments during the period of two and a half years of his service. 
Therefore the stand taken by the respondents that his service was unsatisfactory 
is belied according to the petitioner because of the aforesaid action even on the 
part of the respondents impliedly accepting the position that his service was 
satisfactory.  

30.  The aforesaid submission of the petitioner is devoid of any merit in view 
of the fact that since the petitioner was continuing in service, therefore, the case 
for granting increment was required to be considered which was so granted. The 

mere granting of yearly increments would not in any manner indicate that after 
completion of the probation period the full court of the High Cour t was not 

https://indiankanoon.org/doc/994313/
https://indiankanoon.org/doc/994313/
https://indiankanoon.org/doc/994313/
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competent to scrutinize his records and on the basis thereof take a decision as to 
whether or not his service should be confirmed or dispensed with or whether his 
probation period should be extended.ó 

22.  Apex Court, in a catena of cases, has he ld that, if a probationer is discharged on 
the ground of unsatisfactory service or  inefficiency or for similar reason without proper inquiry 
and without giving a reasonable opportunity of showing case against his discharge, it may, in the 
given facts, amo unt to removal from service within the meaning of Article 311 (2) of the 
Constitution of India and, in such a case, the simplicity of the form of the order will not give any 
sanctity. Apex Court in recent judgment in Ratnesh Kumar Choudhary v. Indira Gandh i 
Institute of Medical Sciences  reported in (2015) 15 SCC 151, held that if ex -parte enquiry or 
report is the motive for the termination order, then the termination is not to be called punitive 
merely because the principles of natural justice have not been  followed. Apex Court further held 

that if the facts revealed in the enquiry are not the motive but the foundation for the termination 
of the services of the temporary servant or probationer, it would be punitive and principles of 
natural justice are bound  to be followed and failure to do so would make the order legally 
unsound.  

23.  In the aforesaid judgment, Apex Court, while dealing with the case of a person, 
who was offered appointment for a period of two years on probation, has specifically dealt the 
issues; (i) Whether the order of termination passed by the authority is stigmatic or not; and, (ii) 
whether there had been violation of principles of natural justice, since no regular enquiry was 
conducted. In the aforesaid judgment, Apex Court took note o f various judgment passed by it 
while dealing with the issue of termination of services of probationer holding as under:  

ò14. The aforesaid submissions have been controverted by the learned 
counsel for the respondents.  

15.   To appreciate the controversy, we may refer to certain authorities which 
are pertinent to appreciate the controversy. In Samsher Singh v. State of 
Punjab [1], a seven -Judge Bench was considering the legal propriety of the 
discharge of  two judicial officers of the Punjab Judicial Service who were serving 
as probationers. The majority laying down the law stated that: -  

òNo abstract proposition can be laid down that where the services of a 
probationer are terminated without saying anythin g more in the order of 
termination than that the services are terminated it can never amount to 

a punishment in the facts and circumstances of the case. If a probationer 
is discharged on the ground of misconduct, or inefficiency or for similar 
reason witho ut a proper enquiry and without his getting a reasonable 
opportunity of showing cause against his discharge it may in a given case 
amount to removal from service within the meaning of Article 311(2)  of 
the Constitution.ó And again:-  

òThe form of the order is not decisive as to whether the order is by way of 
punishment. Even an innocuously worded order terminating the service 
may in the facts and circumstances of the case establish that an enquiry 
into all egations of serious and grave character of misconduct involving 

stigma has been made in infraction of the provision of Article 311.  In 
such a case the simplicity of the form of the order will not give any 
sanctity. That is exactly what has happened in the case of Ishwar Chand 
Agarwal. The order of termination is illegal and must be set aside.ó  

16.  In Radhey Shyam Gupta vs. U.P. State Agro Industries Corp oration Ltd. 
and Another [2], the services of the appellant were terminated as he was a 
probationer. He challenged the order of termination before the Administrative 
Tribunal, Lucknow, U.P., alleging that though the termination order appeared to 
be innocuo us, it was really punitive in nature, inasmuch as it was based on an 
ex-parte report of enquiry which indicated that he had accepted the bribe and, 

https://indiankanoon.org/doc/167993993/
https://indiankanoon.org/doc/167993993/
https://indiankanoon.org/doc/167993993/
https://indiankanoon.org/doc/1674593/
https://indiankanoon.org/doc/47623/
https://indiankanoon.org/doc/190973290/
https://indiankanoon.org/doc/190973290/
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therefore, it was not merely the motive, but the very foundation of the order of 
termination. The tribunal a llowed the application of the appellant and quashed 
the order of termination. The High Court in the writ petition, placing reliance on 
the decisions rendered in State of U.P. vs. Kaushal Kishore Shukla [3] , Triveni 
Shankar Saxena vs. State of U.P .[4] and State of U.P. vs. Prem Lata Misra [5], 
came to hold that the order of termination had not been founded  on any 
misconduct, but on the other hand, the competent authority had found that the 
employee was not fit to be continued in service on account of unsatisfactory work 
and conduct. The High Court also observed that even if some ex -parte 
preliminary enquiry  had been conducted or a disciplinary enquiry was initiated to 
inquire into some misconduct, it was the option of the competent authority to 
withdraw the disciplinary proceedings and take the action of termination of 
service under the terms of appointment and the same would not be by way of 

punishment. This Court after taking note of the submissions of the learned 

counsel for the parties posed the following question: -  

òWhether the report of Shri Ram Pal Singh was a preliminary report and 
whether it was the  motive or the foundation for the termination order 
and whether it was permissible to go behind the order?ó  

17.  This Court noticed that there are two lines of authorities. In certain cases 
of temporary servants and probationers, it had taken the view tha t if the ex -parte 
enquiry or report is the motive for the termination order, then the termination is 
not to be called punitive merely because the principles of natural justice have not 
been followed; and in the other line of decisions, this Court has ruled  that if the 
facts revealed in the enquiry are not the motive but the foundation for the 
termination of the services of the temporary servant or probationer, it would be 
punitive and principles of natural justice are bound to be followed and failure to 
do so would make the order legally unsound. The Court referred to the 
judgments rendered in Samsher Singh (supra), Parshotam Lal Dhingra vs. Union 
of India [6], State of Bihar vs. Gopi Kishore Prasad [7] and State of Orissa vs. Ram 
Narayan Das [8] and, eventually, opined that if there was any difficulty as to what 
was òmotiveó or òfoundationó even after the Samsher Singhõs case the said doubts 
were removed in Gujarat Steel Tubes Ltd. vs. Gujarat Steel Tubes Mazdoor 
Sabha [9]. The clarification given by the Constitution Bench in the said case, 
being instructive, the  two -Judge Bench reproduced the same, which we think we 
should do: -  

ò53. Masters and servants cannot be permitted to play hide and seek 
with the law of dismissals and the plain and proper criteria are not to be 
misdirected by terminological cover -ups or b y appeal to psychic 
processes but must be grounded on the substantive reason for the order, 
whether disclosed or undisclosed. The Court will find out from other 
proceedings or documents connected with the formal order of 

termination what the true ground fo r the termination is. If, thus 
scrutinised, the order has a punitive flavour in cause or consequence, it 

is dismissal. If it falls short of this test, it cannot be called a punishment. 
To put it slightly differently, a termination effected because the mast er is 
satisfied of the misconduct and of the consequent desirability of 
terminating the service of the delinquent servant, is a dismissal, even if 
he had the right in law to terminate with an innocent order under the 
standing order or otherwise. Whether, i n such a case the grounds are 
recorded in a different proceeding from the formal order does not detract 
from its nature. Nor the fact that, after being satisfied of the guilt, the 
master abandons the enquiry and proceeds to terminate. Given an 
alleged misc onduct and a live nexus between it and the termination of 

https://indiankanoon.org/doc/1489350/
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service the conclusion is dismissal, even if full benefits as on simple 
termination, are given and non -injurious terminology is used.  

54. On the contrary, even if there is suspicion of misconduct t he master 
may say that he does not wish to bother about it and may not go into his 
guilt but may feel like not keeping a man he is not happy with. He may 
not like to investigate nor take the risk of continuing a dubious servant. 
Then it is not dismissal bu t termination simpliciter, if no injurious record 
of reasons or punitive pecuniary cut -back on his full terminal benefits is 
found. For, in fact, misconduct is not then the moving factor in the 
discharge. We need not chase other hypothetical situations her e.ó  

18.  On that basis, the Court proceeded to opine thus: -  

òIn other words, it will be a case of motive if the master, after gathering 

some prima facie facts, does not really wish to go into their truth but 
decides merely not to continue a dubious emplo yee. The master does not 

want to decide or direct a decision about the truth of the allegations. But 
if he conducts an enquiry only for the purpose of proving the misconduct 
and the employee is not heard, it is a case where the enquiry is the 
foundation an d the termination will be bad.ó  

19.  After stating the said principle, the Court traced the history and referred 
to Anoop Jaiswal vs. Govt. of India [10], Nepal Singh vs. State of U.P .[11] and 
Commissioner, Food & Civil Supplies vs. Prakash Chandra Saxena [12] and 
opined as follows: -  

ò33. It will be noticed from the above decisions that the termination of 
the services of a temporary servant or one on probation, on the basis of 
adverse entries or on the basis of an assessment that his work is not 
satisfactory will not be punitive inasmuch as the above facts are merely 
the motive and not the foundation. The r eason why they are the motive is 
that the assessment is not done with the object of finding out any 
misconduct on the part of the officer, as stated by Shah, J. (as he then 
was) in Ram Narayan Das case. It is done only with a view to decide 
whether he is t o be retained or continued in service. The position is not 
different even if a preliminary enquiry is held because the purpose of a 
preliminary enquiry is to find out if there is prima facie evidence or 
material to initiate a regular departmental enquiry. It has been so 
decided in Champaklal case. The purpose of the preliminary enquiry is 
not to find out misconduct on the part of the officer and if a termination 
follows without giving an opportunity, it will not be bad. Even in a case 
where a regular depart mental enquiry is started, a charge -memo issued, 
reply obtained, and an enquiry officer is appointed ñ if at that point of 
time, the enquiry is dropped and a simple notice of termination is 
passed, the same will not be punitive because the enquiry officer has not 

recorded evidence nor given any findings on the charges. That is what is 

held in Sukh Raj Bahadur case and in Benjamin case. In the latter case, 
the departmental enquiry was stopped because the employer was not 
sure of establishing the guilt of the  employee. In all these cases, the 
allegations against the employee merely raised a cloud on his conduct 
and as pointed by Krishna Iyer, J. in Gujarat Steel Tubes case the 
employer was entitled to say that he would not continue an employee 
against whom all egations were made the truth of which the employer was 
not interested to ascertain. In fact, the employer by opting to pass a 
simple order of termination as permitted by the terms of appointment or 
as permitted by the rules was conferring a benefit on the employee by 
passing a simple order of termination so that the employee would not 
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suffer from any stigma which would attach to the rest of his career if a 
dismissal or other punitive order was passed. The above are all examples 
where the allegations whose t ruth has not been found, and were merely 
the motive.  

34. But in cases where the termination is preceded by an enquiry and 
evidence is received and findings as to misconduct of a definitive nature 
are arrived at behind the back of the officer and where on the basis of 
such a report, the termination order is issued, such an order will be 
violative of the principles of natural justice inasmuch as the purpose of 
the enquiry is to find out the truth of the allegations with a view to 
punish him and not merely to  gather evidence for a future regular 
departmental enquiry. In such cases, the termination is to be treated as 

based or founded upon misconduct and will be punitive. These are 
obviously not cases where the employer feels that there is a mere cloud 

against the employeeõs conduct but are cases where the employer has 
virtually accepted the definitive and clear findings of the enquiry officer, 
which are all arrived at behind the back of the employee ñ even though 
such acceptance of findings is not recorded in t he order of termination. 
That is why the misconduct is the foundation and not merely the motive 
in such cases.ó  

20.  Appreciating the facts of the said case, the Court set aside the judgment 
of the High Court and restored that of the tribunal by holding th at the order was 
punitive in nature.  

21.  In Chandra Prakash Shahi vs. State of U.P. and Others [13] after 
addressing the history pertaining to òmotiveó and òfoundationó and referring to 
series of decis ions, a two -Judge Bench had held that: -  

ò28. The important principles which are deducible on the concept of 
òmotiveó and òfoundationó, concerning a probationer, are that a 
probationer has no right to hold the post and his services can be 
terminated at any  time during or at the end of the period of probation on 
account of general unsuitability for the post in question. If for the 
determination of suitability of the probationer for the post in question or 
for his further retention in service or for confirmat ion, an inquiry is held 
and it is on the basis of that inquiry that a decision is taken to terminate 
his service, the order will not be punitive in nature. But, if there are 
allegations of misconduct and an inquiry is held to find out the truth of 
that mis conduct and an order terminating the service is passed on the 
basis of that inquiry, the order would be punitive in nature as the inquiry 
was held not for assessing the general suitability of the employee for the 
post in question, but to find out the truth  of allegations of misconduct 
against that employee. In this situation, the order would be founded on 

misconduct and it will not be a mere matter of òmotiveó.  

29. òMotiveó is the moving power which impels action for a definite 
result, or to put it differe ntly, òmotiveó is that which incites or stimulates 
a person to do an act. An order terminating the services of an employee 
is an act done by the employer. What is that factor which impelled the 
employer to take this action? If it was the factor of general unsuitability 
of the employee for the post held by him, the action would be upheld in 
law. If, however, there were allegations of serious misconduct against the 
employee and a preliminary inquiry is held behind his back to ascertain 
the truth of those alle gations and a termination order is passed 
thereafter, the order, having regard to other circumstances, would be 
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founded on the allegations of misconduct which were found to be true in 
the preliminary inquiry.ó  

22.  A three -Judge Bench in Union of India and Others vs. Mahaveer C. 
Singhvi [14], dwelled upon the issue whether the order of discharge of a 
probationer was simpliciter or punitive, referred to the authority in Dipti Prakash 
Banerjee vs. Satyendra Nath Bose National Centre  for Basic Sciences[15] and 
came to hold thus: -  

òIt was held by this Court in Dipti Prakash Banerjee case that whether 
an order of termination of a probationer can be said to be  punitive or not 
depends on whether the allegations which are the cause of the 
termination are the motive or foundation. It was observed that if findings 
were arrived at in inquiry as to misconduct, behind the back of the 

officer or without a regular depar tmental enquiry, a simple order of 
termination is to be treated as founded on the allegations and would be 

bad, but if the enquiry was not held, and no findings were arrived at and 
the employer was not inclined to conduct an enquiry, but, at the same 
time,  he did not want to continue the employeeõs services, it would only 
be a case of motive and the order of termination of the employee would 
not be bad.ó  

23.  At this juncture, we must refer to the decision rendered in Pavanendra 
Narayan Verma vs. Sanjay Gandhi P.G.I. of Medical Sciences and Another [16], 
wherein a two -Judge Bench struck a discordant note by stating that: -  

òBefore considering the facts of the case before us one further, seemingly 
intractable , area relating to the first test needs to be cleared viz. what 
language in a termination order would amount to a stigma? Generally 
speaking when a probationerõs appointment is terminated it means that 
the probationer is unfit for the job, whether by reaso n of misconduct or 
ineptitude, whatever the language used in the termination order may be. 
Although strictly speaking, the stigma is implicit in the termination, a 
simple termination is not stigmatic. A termination order which explicitly 
states what is imp licit in every order of termination of a probationerõs 
appointment, is also not stigmatic. The decisions cited by the parties and 
noted by us earlier, also do not hold so. In order to amount to a stigma, 
the order must be in a language which imputes someth ing over and 
above mere unsuitability for the job.ó  

24.  The said decision has been discussed at length in State Bank of India 
and Others vs. Palak Modi and Another[17] and, eventually, commenting on the 
same, the Court ruled thus: -  

òThe proposition laid down in none of the five judgments relied upon by 
the learned counsel for the appellants is of any assistance to their cause, 
which were decided on their own facts. We may also add that the 

abstract proposition laid down in para 29 in Pavanendra Narayan Verma 

v. Sanjay Gandhi PGI of Medical Sciences  is not only contrary to the 
Constitution Bench judgment in Samsher Singh v. State of Punjab , but a 
large number of other judgments ñState of Bihar v. Shiva Bhikshuk 
Mishra , Gujarat Steel Tubes Ltd. v. Mazdoor Sabha  and Anoop Jaiswal v. 
Govt. of India  to which reference has been made by us and to which 
attention of the two -Judge Bench does not appear to have been drawn. 
Therefore, the said proposition must be read as confined to the facts of 
that case and canno t be relied upon for taking the view that a simple 
order of termination of service can never be declared as punitive even 
though it may be founded on serious allegation of misconduct or 
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misdemeanour on the part of the employee.ó We respectfully agree with 
the view expressed herein -above.  

25.  In Palak Modiõs case, the ratio that has been laid down by the two- Judge 
Bench is to the following effect: -  

òThe ratio of the abovenoted judgments is that a probationer has no right 
to hold the post and his service can be terminated at any time during or 
at the end of the period of probation on account of general unsuitability 
for the post held by him. If the competent authority holds an inquiry for 
judging the suitability of the probationer or for his further contin uance in 
service or for confirmation and such inquiry is the basis for taking 
decision to terminate his service, then the action of the competent 
authority cannot be castigated as punitive. However, if the allegation of 

misconduct constitutes the foundatio n of the action taken, the ultimate 
decision taken by the competent authority can be nullified on the ground 

of violation of the rules of natural justice.  

26.  In the facts of the case, the Court proceeded to state that there is a 
marked distinction betwee n the concepts of satisfactory completion of probation 
and successful passing of the training/test held during or at the end of the 
period of probation, which are sine qua non for confirmation of a probationer and 
the Bankõs right to punish a probationer for any defined misconduct, 
misbehaviour or misdemeanour. In a given case, the competent authority may, 
while deciding the issue of suitability of the probationer to be confirmed, ignore 
the act(s) of misconduct and terminate his service without casting any  aspersion 
or stigma which may adversely affect his future prospects but, if the 
misconduct/misdemeanour constitutes the basis of the final decision taken by 
the competent authority to dispense with the service of the probationer albeit by 
a non -stigmatic order, the Court can lift the veil and declare that in the garb of 
termination simpliciter, the employer has punished the employee for an act of 
misconduct.ó 

24.  Similarly, Apex Court in State of Punjab and others v. Sukhwinder Singh  
decided on 14.7.2005,  has held that period of probation gives time and opportunity to the 
employer to watch the work ability, efficiency, sincerity and competent of the servant and if he is 
found not suitable for the post, the master reserves a right to dispense with his servi ce without 
anything more during or at the end of the prescribed period, which is styled as period of 
probation. The Apex Court has held as under:  

ò18. It must be borne in mind that no employee whether a probationer or 
temporary will be discharged or rever ted, arbitrarily, without any rhyme or 
reason. Where a superior officer, in order to satisfy himself whether the employee 
concerned should be continued in service or not makes inquiries for this 
purpose, it would be wrong to hold that the inquiry which was  held, was really 
intended for the purpose of imposing punishment. If in every case where some 
kind of fact finding inquiry is made, wherein the employee is either given an 

opportunity to explain or the inquiry is held behind his back, it is held that the 
order of discharge or termination from service is punitive in nature, even a bona 
fide attempt by the superior officer to decide whether the employee concerned 
should be retained in service or not would run the risk of being dubbed as an 
order of punishmen t. The decision to discharge a probationer during the period of 
probation or the order to terminate the service of a temporary employee is taken 
by the appointing authority or administrative heads of various departments, who 
are not judicially trained peop le. The superior authorities of the departments 

have to take work from an employee and they are the best people to judge 
whether an employee should be continued in service and made a permanent 
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employee or not having regard to his performance, conduct and o verall suitability 
for the job. As mentioned earlier a probationer is on test and a temporary 
employee has no right to the post. If mere holding of an inquiry to ascertain the 
relevant facts for arriving at a decision on objective considerations whether to  
continue the employee in service or to make him permanent is treated as an 
inquiry "for the purpose of imposing punishment" and an order of discharge or 
termination of service as a result thereof "punitive in character", the fundamental 
difference between  a probationer or a temporary employee and a permanent 
employee would be completely obliterated, which would be wholly wrong.  

19. In the present case neither any formal departmental inquiry nor any 
preliminary fact finding inquiry had been held and a simp le order of discharge 
had been passed. The High Court has built an edifice on the basis of a statement 

made in the written statement that the respondent was habitual absentee during 
his short period of service and has concluded therefrom that it was his ab sence 

from duty that weighed in the mind of Senior Superintendent of Police as absence 
from duty is a misconduct. The High Court has further gone on to hold that there 
is direct nexus between the order of discharge of the respondent from service and 
his ab sence from duty and, therefore, the order discharging him from service will 
be viewed as punitive in nature calling for a regular inquiry under Rule 16.24 of 
the Rules. We are of the opinion that the High Court has gone completely wrong 
in drawing the infe rence that the order of discharge dated 16.3.1990 was, in fact, 
based upon the misconduct and was, therefore, punitive in nature, which should 
have been preceded by a regular departmental inquiry. There cannot be any 
doubt that the respondent was on probat ion having been appointed about eight 
months back. As observed in Ajit Singh and others etc. vs. State of Punjab and 
another (supra) the period of probation gives time and opportunity to the 
employer to watch the work ability, efficiency, sincerity and com petence of the 
servant and if he is found not suitable for the post, the master reserves a right to 
dispense with his service without anything more during or at the end of the 
prescribed period, which is styled as period of probation. The mere holding of 
preliminary inquiry where explanation is called from an employee would not 
make an otherwise innocuous order of discharge or termination of service 
punitive in nature. Therefore, the High Court was clearly in error in holding that 
the respondent's absence f rom duty was the foundation of the order, which 
necessitated an inquiry as envisaged under Rule 16.24(ix) of the Rules.ó   

25.  Careful perusal of aforesaid judgments  having been rendered by the Apex Court, 
clearly suggests that satisfactory completion of  probation and successful passing of training/test 
held during or at the end of period of probation are sine qua non  for confirmation of a probationer 
and authorities, while deciding issue of suitability of the probationer can take note of  conduct of 
prob ationer during period of his probation. Order, if any, of termination if is based upon inquiry, 
then principles of natural justice are required to be adhered to by affording due opportunity of 
hearing to the person concerned.  

26.  In the instant case, as clearly emerges from the termination orders, same have 
been passed because of unsatisfactory performance of the petitioners during probation period and 
in no terms, same can be said to be stigmatic or by way of penalty and on the face of documents 
made ava ilable on record by the authorities, no inquiry was required to be held against the 
petitioners, rather the work, conduct and performance of the petitioners was sufficient to pass the 
termination orders.  

27.  In view of the law laid down by the Hon'ble Ap ex Court, petitions at hand lack 
merit and are dismissed accordingly. Impugned order is upheld. Pending applications are also 
disposed of.  

***********************************************************************************************  



 

28 

BEFORE  HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE SANDEEP SHARMA, J.  

Bhisham Lal Garg               éé...Appellant. 

  Versus  

Hardei and Ors.                 .........Respondents.  

        
  RSA No. 449 of 2009.  

 Date of Decision: 27.2.2017.  

 

Code of Civil Procedure, 1908 - Order 41 Rule 27 - An applica tion for leading additional evidence 
was filed ð the appeal was dismissed, without  taking note of the application ð held, that 
application under Order 41 Rule 27 is required to be decided  alongwith the main appeal - it was 
incumbent  upon the Appellate Co urt to decide the application before disposing of the appeal ð 

disposal of the appeal without deciding the application was not proper ð appeal allowed - the 
judgment of the Appellate Court set aside - case remanded to the Appellate Court with a direction 

to decide the application and the appeal in accordance with law within a period of 6 months.  

 (Para-2 to  9) 

Cases referred:  

Jatinder Singh & Anr. (Minor through mother) v. Mehar singh and Ors. with Balbir Singh & Anr. 
V. Jatinder Singh and Anró, AIR 2009 (Vol. 96) Supreme Court 354  
Union of India v. Ibrahim Uddin and Anró, (2012) 8 Supreme Court Cases 148  
 

For the appellant:  Mr. J.R. Poswal, Advocate.  

For the respondents:  Mr. Nitin Thakur, Advocate for respondent No.1 and LRs No. 2(a) to 2(e).  

 

 The followi ng judgment of the Court was delivered:  

 

Sandeep Sharma, J.  (Oral)  

  Having regard to the nature of order, this Court proposes to pass, it may not be 
necessary to take note of the facts of the case, save and except that the plaintiff -appellant, who 
had l ost in both the learned courts below, had preferred an application under Order 41 Rule 27 
during the pendency of appeal before learned first Appellate Court, wherein he sought to produce 
certain documents.  Careful perusal of record, as perused by this Cou rt, suggests that the 
aforesaid application having been preferred by the plaintiff appellant was entertained and time 
was granted to the opposite party to file reply.  Similarly, perusal of order sheet suggests that 

matter was repeatedly adjourned on the r equest of respective parties to enable them to complete 
pleadings in the proceedings arising out of application under Order 41 Rule 27.  However, as a 
matter of fact, matter was ordered to be heard finally on 15.5.2009 and thereafter, vide judgment 
dated 2 2.5.2009, appeal having been preferred by the plaintiff was dismissed without taking note 
of application under Order 41 Rule 27.  

2.  Close scrutiny of record made available to this Court clearly suggests that while 
deciding the main appeal, learned lower ap pellate Court failed to take note of the application filed 

under Order 41 Rule 27 as well as documents accompanying the same.  This court was unable to 
find any mention with regard to the pendency of aforesaid application in the impugned judgment.  

Learned  first appellate Court without caring to look into the merits of the aforesaid application, 
proceeded to decide the appeal in slipshod manner.   

3.  By now, it is well settled that application filed under Order 41 Rule 27 is required 
to be decided along wit h the main appeal but as has been observed above, there is no 
consideration of the application for leading additional evidence by the learned trial Court while 
passing the final judgment in the appeal having been preferred by the appellant plaintiff.  Once  
an application under Order 41 Rule 27 CPC was filed and thereafter entertained by the first 
appellate Court, it was incumbent upon the first appellate Court to consider/deal with the same 
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on merits but impugned judgment having been passed by the learned f irst appellate Court 
nowhere suggests that above referred application was ever considered by the Court while deciding 
the main appeal.   

4.  It has been repeatedly held by the Honõble Apex Court that dismissal of appeal 
without deciding the application of a dditional evidence is improper and in all eventualities, 
application for additional evidence under Order 41 Rule 27 CPC should be dealt with on merits at 
the first instance.  In this regard, reliance is placed on judgment passed by the Honõble Supreme 
Cour t in case titled òJatinder Singh & Anr. (Minor through mother) v. Mehar singh and Ors. 

with Balbir Singh & Anr. V. Jatinder Singh and Anró, AIR 2009 (Vol. 96) Supreme Court 
354 , the relevant paragraphs are being reproduced herein below: - 

ò3. In our view, this appeal can be decided on a very short question. The trial court 
as well as the appellate court and finally the High Court in the second appeal 
dismissed the suit filed by the plaintiffs/appellants for declaration challenging the 
sale deed dated 29th of  May, 1989, executed by the respondent Nos. 1 to 3 in 
favour of respondent Nos. 9 and 10 as well as the compromise (Exhibit No. C1) 
dated 7th of April, 1986 in a suit title Ujagar Singh vs. Puran Singh, But it is an 
admitted position that before the High C ourt, the appellants filed an application 
under Order 41 Rule 27 of the Code of Civil Procedure for acceptance of additional 
evidence, namely, documents such as certificate of Military service, voter list of 
concerned assembly segment for the year 1982, re ceipt of house tax 1988 -89, 
payment of chaowkdra of khariff 1986, rabi 1990, rabi 1991, khariff 1992, identity 
card issued by Election Commission of India, Ration Card etc.  

4. While deciding the second appeal, however, the High Court had failed to take 

notice of the application under Order 41 Rule 27 of the Code of Civil Procedure and 
decide whether additional evidence could be permitted to be admitted into 
evidence. In our view, when an application for acceptance of additional evidence 
under Order 41 Rule  27 of the Code of Civil Procedure was filed by the appellants, 
it was the duty of the High Court to deal with the same on merits. That being the 
admitted position, we have no other alternative but to set aside the judgment of the 
High Court and remit the appeal back to it for a decision afresh in the second 
appeal along with the application for acceptance of additional evidence in 
accordance with law.  

5. For the reasons aforesaid, the impugned Judgment is set aside. The appeal is 
thus allowed to the exten t indicated above. There will be no order as to costs.ó  

5.  As a court of first appeal, it is bounden duty of the court below to deal with all 
issues and evidence led by the parties before recording its finding, particularly by discussing 
additional eviden ce.   

6.  True it is, it is the pure discretion of the appellate court to allow/disallow the 
additional evidence proposed to be led on record and such discretion is required to be used 
sparingly.  Under Order 41 Rule 27 CPC, appellate court has power to all ow the document to be 
produced and witness to be examined but the requirement of Court must be limited to those 

cases where it found necessary to obtain such evidence for enabling it to pronounce judgment.  
But before exercising the discretion as referred above, Court is expected to assign reasons for 
accepting or rejecting the additional evidence sought to be adduced on record during the 
pendency of the first appeal.   In this regard, reliance is placed on judgment passed by the 
Honõble Apex Court in case titled òUnion of India v. Ibrahim Uddin and Anró, (2012) 8 
Supreme Court Cases 148 , the relevant paras whereof are reproduced herein below: -  

ò36. The general principle is that the Appellate Court should not travel outside the 

record of the lower court and  cannot take any evidence in appeal. However, as an 
exception, Order XLI Rule 27 CPC enables the Appellate Court to take additional 
evidence in exceptional circumstances. The Appellate Court may permit additional 
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evidence only and only if the conditions la id down in this rule are found to exist. 
The parties are not entitled, as of right, to the admission of such evidence. Thus, 
provision does not apply, when on the basis of evidence on record, the Appellate 
Court can pronounce a satisfactory judgment. The m atter is entirely within the 
discretion of the court and is to be used sparingly. Such a discretion is only a 
judicial discretion circumscribed by the limitation specified in the rule itself. (Vide: 
K. Venk ataramiah v. A. Seetharama Reddy & Ors ., AIR 1963 SC 1526; The 
Municipal Corporation of Greater Bombay v. Lala Pancham & Ors ., AIR 1965 SC 
1008; Soonda Ra m & Anr. v. Rameshwaralal & Anr ., AIR 1975 SC 479; and Syed 
Abdul Khader v. Rami Reddy & Ors ., AIR 1979 SC 553).  

37. The Appellate Court should not, ordinarily allow new evidence to be adduced in 
order to enable a party to raise a new point in appeal. Similarly, where a party on 
whom the onus of proving a certain point lies fails to discharge the onus, he is not 
entitled to a fresh opportunity to produce evidence, as the Court can, in such a 

case, pron ounce judgment against him and does not require any additional 
evidence to enable it to pronounce judgment. (Vide: Haji Mohammed Ishaq Wd. S. 
K. Mohammed & Ors. v. Mohamed Iqbal and Mohamed Ali and Co ., A IR 1978 SC 
798).  

38. Under Order XLI , Rule 27 CPC, the appellate Court has the power to allow a 
document to be produced and a witness to be examined. But the requirement of the 
said Court must be limited to those cases where it found it necessary to obta in 
such evidence for enabling it to pronounce judgment. This provision does not entitle 
the appellate Court to let in fresh evidence at the appellate stage where even 
without such evidence it can pronounce judgment in a case. It does not entitle the 
appell ate Court to let in fresh evidence only for the purpose of pronouncing 
judgment in a particular way. In other words, it is only for removing a lacuna in the 
evidence that the appellate Court is empowered to admit additional evidence. 
(Vide: Lala Pancham & Ors.) 

39. It is not the business of the Appellate Court to supplement the evidence 
adduced by one party or the other in the lower Court. Hence, in the absence of 
satisfactory reasons for the non - production of the evidence in the trial court, 
additional ev idence should not be admitted in appeal as a party guilty of 
remissness in the lower court is not entitled to the indulgence of being allowed to 
give further evidence under this rule. So a party who had ample opportunity to 
produce certain evidence in the lower court but failed to do so or elected not to do 
so, cannot have it admitted in appeal. (Vide: State of U.P. v. Manbodhan Lal 
Srivastava , AIR 1957 SC 912; and S. Rajagopal v. C.M. Armugam & Ors ., AIR 1969 
SC 101).  

40. The inadvertence of the party or his inability to understand the legal issues 
involved or the wrong advice of a pleader or the negligence of a pleader or that the 
party did not realis e the importance of a document does not constitute a 

"substantial cause" within the meaning of this rule. The mere fact that certain 
evidence is important, is not in itself a sufficient ground for admitting that evidence 
in appeal.  

41. The words "for any other substantial cause" must be read with the word 
"requires" in the beginning of sentence, so that it is only where, for any other 
substantial cause, the Appellate Court requires additional evidence, that this rule 
will apply, e.g., when evidence has bee n taken by the lower Court so imperfectly 
that the Appellate Court cannot pass a satisfactory judgment.  

42. Whenever the appellate Court admits additional evidence it should record its 
reasons for doing so. (Sub -rule 2). It is a salutary provision which o perates as a 
check against a too easy reception of evidence at a late stage of litigation and the 

https://indiankanoon.org/doc/647017/
https://indiankanoon.org/doc/358754/
https://indiankanoon.org/doc/358754/
https://indiankanoon.org/doc/358754/
https://indiankanoon.org/doc/180219/
https://indiankanoon.org/doc/143636306/
https://indiankanoon.org/doc/143636306/
https://indiankanoon.org/doc/143636306/
https://indiankanoon.org/doc/1891159/
https://indiankanoon.org/doc/1891159/
https://indiankanoon.org/doc/1891159/
https://indiankanoon.org/doc/138715291/
https://indiankanoon.org/doc/138715291/
https://indiankanoon.org/doc/138715291/
https://indiankanoon.org/doc/1580137/


 

31 

statement of reasons may inspire confidence and disarm objection. Another reason 
of this requirement is that, where a further appeal lies from the decision, t he record 
of reasons will be useful and necessary for the Court of further appeal to see, if the 
discretion under this rule has been properly exercised by the Court below. The 
omission to record the reasons must, therefore, be treated as a serious defect. But 
this provision is only directory and not mandatory, if the reception of such evidence 
can be justified under the rule.  

43. The reasons need not be recorded in a separate order provided they are 
embodied in the judgment of the appellate Court. A mere r eference to the peculiar 
circumstances of the case, or mere statement that the evidence is necessary to 
pronounce judgment, or that the additional evidence is required to be admitted in 
the interests of justice, or that there is no reason to reject the pra yer for the 
admission of the additional evidence, is not enough comp1iance with the 
requirement as to recording of reasons.  

44. It is a settled legal proposition that not only administrative order, but also 
judicial order must be supported by reasons, rec orded in it. Thus, while deciding 
an issue, the Court is bound to give reasons for its conclusion. It is the duty and 
obligation on the part of the Court to record reasons while disposing of the case.  
The hallmark of order and exercise of judicial power by  a judicial forum is for the 
forum to disclose its reasons by itself and giving of reasons has always been 
insisted upon as one of the fundamentals of sound administration of the justice ð 
delivery system, to make it known that there had been proper and du e application 
of mind to the issue before the Court and also as an essential requisite of the 
principles of natural justice. The reason is the heartbeat of every conclusion. It 
introduces clarity in an order and without the same, the order becomes lifeless . 
Reasons substitute subjectivity with objectivity. The absence of reasons renders an 
order indefensible/unsustainable particularly when the order is subject to further 
challenge before a higher forum. Recording of reasons is principle of natural justice 
and every judicial order must be supported by reasons recorded in writing. It 
ensures transparency and fairness in decision making. The person who is 
adversely affected must know why his application has been rejected. (Vide: State 
of Orissa v. Dhaniram Luhar , AIR 2004 SC 1794; State of Uttaranchal & Anr. v. 
Sunil Kumar Singh Negi , AIR 2008 SC 2026; The Secretary & Curator, Victoria 
Memorial Hall v. Howrah Ganatantrik Nagrik Samity & Ors ., AIR 2010 SC 1285; 
and Sant Lal Gupta & Ors. v. Modern Cooperative Group Housing Society Limited & 
Ors., (2010) 13 SCC 33 6): (2010) 4 SCC (Civ)904).. ó [Emphasis supplied] 

[See òEastern Equipment & Sales Limited vs. Ing. Yash Kumar Khannaó, (2008) 12 
Supreme Court Cases 739 and Rajender Singh and others v. Mani Ram, Latest HLJ 
2014 (HP) Suppl. 127)]  

7.  In the instant case, a s has been observed above, learned lower appellate Court 
has failed to discharge the obligation placed on it and judgment under appeal is absolutely 
cryptic and no reasons, whatsoever, have been assigned by the first appellate Court while 

rejecting/accepti ng the application having been moved by the appellant -plaintiff under Order 41 
Rule 27.  

8.  In view of the above position, this Court sees substantial force in the argument 
made by Mr. Poswal, learned counsel appearing for the petitioner that great prejudic e has been 
caused to the appellant plaintiff in as much as there is no decision on the application under 
Order 41 Rule 27 preferred by him.  It has been repeatedly held by this court that first appeal is a 
valuable right and the parties have  right to be h eard on both the questions of law and facts and 
the judgment in first appeal must address itself to all the issues of law and fact and decide it by 
giving reasons in support of such findings.  

https://indiankanoon.org/doc/908828/
https://indiankanoon.org/doc/908828/
https://indiankanoon.org/doc/908828/
https://indiankanoon.org/doc/1286395/
https://indiankanoon.org/doc/1286395/
https://indiankanoon.org/doc/1286395/
https://indiankanoon.org/doc/1467829/
https://indiankanoon.org/doc/1467829/
https://indiankanoon.org/doc/510213/
https://indiankanoon.org/doc/510213/
https://indiankanoon.org/doc/510213/
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9.  Consequently, in view of the above, impugned judgment passed by the learned 
appellate Court is set -aside and the learned District Judge, Bilaspur, is directed to decide the 
appeal afresh in accordance with law.  Considering the facts and circumstances of the case, 
Learned first appellate court, in view of the observ ations made herein above, is expected to 
dispose of the present appeal at an early date preferably within a period of six months, from the 
receipt of the copy of the judgment passed by this Court.   

10.  The parties through their counsel are directed to app ear before the learned lower 
appellate Court on 14.3.2017 .  The records be sent back immediately so as to reach before the 
date fixed.  

*******************************************************************************************  

 

BEFORE HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE SURESHWAR THAKUR, J.  

 State of H.P.      é..Appellant. 

     Versus  

Akhilesh Kumar      é..Respondent. 

 

  Cr. Appeal No. 140 of 2009  

       Decided on :   1/3/2017  

 

Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section 279 and 337 - Accused was riding a motorcycle with high 
speed and hit the cycle due to which cyclist sustained injuries - the accused was tried and 
convicted by the Trial Court - an appeal was filed, which was allowed and the accused was 
acquitted ð held, that independent witnesses had not supported the prosecution vers ion - sole 
testimony of the victim does not inspire confidence ð the Appellate Court had rightly appreciated 
the evidence to hold that prosecution version was not proved - appeal dismissed. (Para-9 to 11)  

 

For the Appellant:  Mr.  M.L.Chauhan, Addl. Advocate  General with Mr. Neeraj 
Kumar Sharma, Dy. A.G.  

For the Respondent:   Mr.  Gaurav Gautam, Advocate.  

 

 The following judgment of the Court was delivered:  

 

Sureshwar Thakur, Judge (Oral)  

  The instant appeal stands directed by the State of Himachal Pradesh  against the 
impugned judgment recorded by the learned Appellate Court whereby it reversed the findings of 
conviction recorded upon the accused by the learned trial Court.   

2.   The brief facts of the case are that PW -6 Balwant Singh was returning from 
Bur awala on his cycle and on 5.5.2002 at about 9.30 a.m. motor cycle bearing no. HP -12A -2050 
driven by Akhilesh Kumar came in a high speed from opposite side and struck against the cycle 

as a result of which cycle fell down and he sustained injuries.  FIR was  lodged by PW -1 Amar 
Chand upon which a case under Sections 279 and 337 IPC came to be registered at Police Station 
Barotiwala.  Injured was removed to PSI dispensary Barotiwala.  Motor cycle was got examined 
from PW -3 Pritam Singh and he found it in order .  After recording the statements of the witnesses 
and on completion of the investigation, the accused  was challaned under Sections 279 and 337 
of the Indian Penal Code.  After completing all codal formalities and on conclusion of the 

investigation into t he offence, allegedly committed by the accused challan was prepared and filed 
in the Court.  
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3.   Notice of accusation stood put to the accused by the learned trial Court for his 
committing offences punishable under Sections 279 and 337 of the Indian Penal C ode to which 
he pleaded not guilty and claimed trial.  

4.   In order to prove its case, the prosecution examined 7 witnesses.  On closure of 
prosecution evidence, the statement of the accused under Section 313 of the Code of Criminal 
Procedure, was recorded in which he pleaded innocence and claimed false implication.  He did 
not choose to lead any evidence in defence.  

5.  On an appraisal of the evidence on record, the learned trial Court returned 
findings of conviction against the accused whereas the learned Add l. Sessions Judge, Fast Track 
Court returned findings of acquittal qua the accused.   

6.   The learned Additional Advocate General has concertedly and vigorously 

contended qua the findings of acquittal recorded by the learned Appellate Court standing not 
based on a proper appreciation of evidence on record, rather theirs standing sequelled by gross 
mis -appreciation by it of the relevant material on record.  Hence, he contends qua the findings of 

acquittal being reversed by this Court in the exercise of its a ppellate jurisdiction and theirs being 
replaced by findings of conviction.  

7.    The learned counsel appearing for the respondent has with considerable force 
and vigour contended qua the findings of acquittal recorded by the Appellate Court standing 
based on a mature and balanced appreciation of evidence on record by the learned Appellate 
Court and theirs not necessitating any interference, rather theirs meriting vindication.  

8.    This Court with the able assistance of the learned counsel on either side ha s with 
studied care and incision, evaluated the entire evidence on record.   

9.     The genesis of the ill -fated incident rest upon the testimonies of two purported 
independent witnesses to the incident, who testified before the learned trial Court as PW -1 and 
PW-2.  However, both the purported independent witnesses to the ill -fated incident omitted to 
lend succor to the charge to which the accused respondent stood subjected to.  With the 
purported independent witnesses to the ill -fated occurrence not lendin g succor to the charge to 
which the accused respondent stood subjected to thereupon the anvil of the prosecution case gets 
unhinged.   

10.   However, the solitary testimony of an injured victim does not ipso facto lose its 
vigour unless an incisive scannin g of his testimony unveils qua his contradicting the apposite 
reflections occurring in the site plan comprised in Ext.PW -7/B.  PW -6 sustained on his person 
simple injuries embodied in Ext.PW -5/A, in pursuance to the cycle whereupon he was atop 
standing str uck by the motorcycle whereupon the accused was astride at the relevant time.  PW -6 
identified the accused respondent in Court thereupon the omission if any in the testification of 
PW-6 to recall the number of the motorcycle whereupon the accused responden t was astride, 
cannot, give any capitalization to the defence to thereupon canvass qua the prosecution failing to 
prove the factum of the motorcycle whereupon the accused respondent was astride striking the 
cycle whereupon the victim was atop hence sequell ing befalment of simple injuries on his person.  
The trite factum warranting adjudication by adduction of clinching evidence is qua dehors the 

speed at which the accused respondent was plying his motorcycle qua thereupon the apposite 
collision, which occur red at the relevant time inter se the respective vehicles, standing sequelled 
by the relevant motorcycle or the cycle respectively occupying the inappropriate side of the road.  
PW-6 in his testimony has made an empathetic proclamation qua his plying his c ycle on the 
appropriate side of the road also he pronounces therein qua the accused/respondent driving his 
motorcycle on the inappropriate side of the road.  However, the truth of the aforesaid version 
stands contradicted by site plan comprised in Ext.PW -7/B, a perusal whereof discloses qua the 
cycle as stood plied at the relevant time by the injured its arriving from a Galli at the site of 
occurrence also it marks the factum of the cycle plied by the victim injured moving towards Baddi 
whereupon obviously a conclusion emanates qua the accused respondent plying his motorcycle 

on the appropriate side of the road also thereupon it is apt to conclude qua dehors the speed at 
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which the accused respondent was driving the relevant motorcycle, his not being negligen t  in 
driving it rather contrarily the victim/injured conspicuously given his plying the cycle on the 
inappropriate side of the road, his hence not adhering to the standards of due care and caution 
also concomitantly his being negligent in navigating it wh ereupon the inculpation of the accused 
respondent is both specious besides not amenable to imputation of credence.  

11.  For the reasons which have been recorded hereinabove, this Court holds that the 
learned Addl. Sessions Judge has appraised the entire e vidence on record in a wholesome and 
harmonious manner apart therefrom the analysis of the material on record by the learned Addl. 
Sessions Judge does not suffer from any perversity or absurdity of mis -appreciation and non 
appreciation of evidence on recor d, rather it has aptly appreciated the material available on 
record.  

12.    In view of the above, I find no merit in this appeal, which is accordingly 

dismissed.  In sequel, the impugned judgement is affirmed and maintained.  Record of the 
learned trial C ourt be sent back forthwith.  

*************** ***************** ********************************************************  

BEFORE HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE DHARAM CHAND CHAUDHARY, J. AND HONõBLE MR. 
JUSTICE AJAY MOHAN GOEL, J.  

State of H.P.                            .......Appellant  

   Versus  

Dalip Kumar       .é...Respondent  

 

      Cr. Appeal No. 175 of 2013  

  Reserved on : 08.12.2016     

  Decided on: 1.3.2017  

 

Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section 302 - Accused, deceased and A were engaged as labourers by 
PW-1 and PW -8 for  laying marble in their house ð the deceased abused  the accusedunder the 
influence of liquor -  the accused inflicted a blow of  pick -axe on the person of the deceased due 
to which he died - the accused was tried and acquitted by the Trial Court - held in a ppeal that  A 
was not examined by the prosecution and no reasonable cause was assigned for his non -
examination ð extra judicial confession and recovery were not established ð the Tria l Court had 
taken a reasonable view while acquitting the accused - appeal dismissed.   (Para -10 to 19)  

 

Case referred:  

Jagriti Devi vs. State of Himachal Pradesh, AIR 2009 SC 2869  

 

For the appellant:   Mr. D.S. Nainta and Mr. Virender Verma, Addl. A.Gs  

For the respondent:   Mr. Bhuvnesh Sharma and Mr. Surender Mohan Sharma, Ad vocates.  

 

 The following judgment of the Court was delivered:  

 

Dharam Chand Chaudhary, Judge.  

  State of Himachal Pradesh is aggrieved by the judgment dated 27.11.2012 
passed by learned Additional Sessions Judge, Fast Track Court, Kangra at Dharamshala in  
Sessions Trial No. 6 -P/VII/2011, whereby the respondent Dalip Kumar(hereinafter referred as to 
the ôaccusedõ) has been acquitted of the charge under Section 302 of the Indian Penal Code 
framed against him with the allegations that on 26/27.10.2010 he caus ed death of Arvind 
Goswami by inflicting blow of pickaxe (Gainti) and thereby committed the offence punishable 
under Section 302 of the Indian Penal Code.  
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2.  The legality and validity of the impugned judgment has been questioned on the 
grounds inter -alia t hat cogent and reliable evidence produced by the prosecution has erroneously 
been discarded without assigning any reasons.  Therefore, the acquittal of the accused is stated 
to be in utter disregard of material evidence available on record.  The testimony of PW-1 Ankush 
Kumar and his father Chandersheel that accused confessed his guilt before them on 26.10.2010 
and thereafter fled away from the spot is not appreciated at all.  The extra judicial confession so 
made by the accused and duly proved on record in  accordance with law has also not been 
appreciated at all.  The findings that PW -1 was neither Panch or Pradhan of Gram Panchayat nor 
had any acquaintance with the accused, there was no occasion to the latter to have confessed his 
guilt before him nor he h ad expected from the said witness to save him from his prosecution, are 
erroneously recorded.  The trial Court has allegedly failed to appreciate that irrespective of the 
accused an outsider was working as labourer in the house under construction of PW -1 and his 
father PW -8 at village Gandhar, District Kangra, hence was known to them is also ignored.  Both 

PW-1 and PW -8 rather were the best persons before whom the accused could have confessed his 

guilt with the expectation that they may save him from his pr osecution.  The testimony of PW -9 
Jugal Kishore and PW -10 Purshotam Chand qua the disclosure statement Ext. PW -9/A and the 
recovery of pickaxe Ext. P -1, pursuant to the same has also been misconstrued.  Learned trial 
Court has also failed to appreciate the  evidence as has come on record by way of their testimony 
that the pickaxe, weapon of offence was recovered at the instance of accused.  The medical 
evidence as has come on record by way of testimony of PW -2 Dr. Vinay Mahajan that the blow as 
was on the he ad of deceased could have been caused with pickaxe, Ext. P -1 has also been ignored 
erroneously.  The findings that the pickaxe when produced before the doctor PW -2 to obtain his 
opinion was not stained with blood, are contradictory to the evidence availabl e on record as 
according to the appellate -State the Court below has failed to appreciate that non -mentioning of 
such facts by the doctor in the post -mortem report is not fatal to the prosecution case.  The 
factum of PW -1 and PW -8 have corroborated the vers ion of each other and they had no enmity to 
implicate the accused falsely in this case is also not taken into consideration.  

3.  The occurrence allegedly has taken place on 26.10.2010 during the night time at 
village Gandhar in the under construction house of PW-8 Chandersheel and took away the life of 
Arvind Goswami, the deceased, resident of village Lakhanpur, Post Office Navinpur, Police Station 
and District Jamuhi (Bihar). The allegations against the accused again a fellow villager and co -
labourer of dec eased are that, it is he who killed him by way of inflicting the blow of pickaxe, Ext. 
P-1 when the deceased was under the influence of liquor and allegedly quarreled with the 
accused.  As per further case of the prosecution, the accused along with decease d and one 
Avdesh was engaged as labourers by PW -1 and PW -8 to execute work of laying marvel in their 
house under construction at village Gandhar.  On the fateful day, Avdesh came to the old house 
of PW-1 and PW -8 to have curd from them at 9.00 p.m.  Behind  him accused also came there.  
They both watched programme on television for a while.  After sometime, the complainant went to 
the under construction house in the village along with accused Dalip Kumar and his fellow 
labourer Avdesh.  On the way, when they  were near Radha Krishan temple, accused told PW -1 
that deceased under the influence of liquor started hurling abuses to him and also quarreled and 
as he did not stop hurling abuses and quarreling with him despite request made, he killed him.  
On this, PW -1 returned to the old house along with accused and Avdesh.  There he apprised his 

father PW -8 Chandersheel about the disclosure so made by accused Dalip Kumar.  On this, he 
(PW-1) his father Chandersheel and his cousin Sanjeev Kumar accompanied by the accu sed and 
Avdesh went to the house under construction. PW -8 asked the accused to open the door. The 
accused told him that door is open.  They all entered inside the house to see deceased Arvind 
Goswami.  The accused who was standing outside, however, fled aw ay towards nearby fields.  In 
the room, they noticed the dead body of Arvind Goswami covered with white coloured printed 
Chaddar and blood oozing out of the wound on his head.  On seeing Arvind Goswami, he was 

found to have already expired.  They tried to search the accused, however, he was not available.  
On this PW -8 had informed Purshotam Chand (PW -10), Pradhan Gram Panchayat and also PW -9 
Jugal Kishore, Ward Panch.  They also arrived on the spot.  PW -10 informed the police of Police 
Station, Lambagaon, District Kangra over telephone.  In the police station, the information so 
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received was entered in the daily diary vide rapat Ext. PW -14/A at 23.45 hours (11.45 p.m mid 
night).  Consequently, the I.O. SI/SHO Tilak Chand accompanied by SI Gambhir Chand and 
other police officials rushed to the spot in official vehicle.  After recording the statement Ext. PW -
1/A, the same was sent to police station for registration of case through HHC Vinod Kumar.  On 
the basis thereof FIR Ext. PW -11/A was registered.  

4.   PW-14 received the case file and called PW -13 Sinodh Kumar, a photographer 
and got the dead body photraphed vide photographs Ext. PW -13/A to Ext. PW -13/D. On spot 
inspection, map Ext. PW -14/C was prepared on the next day, blood stained mattress (talai) Ext. 
P-3 was taken in possession vide memo Ext. PW -9/A in the presence of PW -9 and PW -10.  The 
sample of blood lying scattered on the floor near the dead body was lifted with cotton cloth, Ext. 
P-5 and put in a plastic vial, Ext. P -4.  The same was taken in poss ession vide memo Ext. PW -
9/B in presence of PW -9 and PW -10.  The inquest papers Ext. PW -2/B were prepared.  The 

application Ext. PW -2/A was made to the Medical Officer, CHC, Palampur and the dead body was 
sent through HC Chaman Singh for conducting the pos t-mortem.  The accused was apprehended 
on 27.10.2010 at Sujanpur. He was brought to the police station and during his interrogation 
conducted on 28.10.2010, he made disclosure statement Ext. PW -9/E to the effect that he had 
concealed the pickaxe under the bushes near the house under construction of PW -8 
Chandersheel and that it is he who could get the same recovered.  He led the police party to the 
place near the house under construction and took out the pickaxe from the bushes which was 
photographed vide p hotograph Ext. PW -13/E and taken in possession vide memo Ext. PW -9/E 
duly sealed.  The map Ext. PW -14/C of the place of recovery was also prepared separately.  The 
statements of witnesses were recorded.  In order to seek the opinion of the Medical Officer that 
injury caused with Ext. P -1 could have possibly caused the death of deceased, the application 

Ext. PW -2/D was moved.  In the opinion of doctor, the fatal injury resulting the death of deceased 
could have been implicated therewith.  The post mortem rep ort Ext. PW -2/C was collected from 
the hospital.  On the application, Ext. PW7/A moved to the Assistant Engineer, H.P.P.W.D, site 
plan Ext. PW -7/B was got prepared and added in the police file.  On receipt of the report of 
chemical examiner Ext. P -A and Ex t. P -B and on completion of the investigation, challan was filed 
against the accused in the Court.  

5.  Learned trial Judge after recording its satisfaction qua the existence of prima -
facie case against the accused had framed the charge under Section 302 of the Indian Penal Code 
against him.  He, however, pleaded not guilty to the charge and claimed trial.  Therefore, the 

prosecution in order to sustain the charge against him has examined 14 witnesses in all.  The 
material prosecution witnesses are, however, PW-1 Ankush Kumar, PW -8 Chandersheel, PW -9 
Jugal Kishore and PW -10 Purshotam Chand.  The remaining prosecution witnesses are formal as 
PW-2 Dr. Vinay Mahajan has been associated to prove the post -mortem report Ext. PW -2/C and 
his opinion qua cause of death  of deceased as well as the blow inflicted with pickaxe Ext. P -1 
could have caused his death or not.  PW -3 HHG Ravinder Kumar had obtained the opinion of 
Medical Officer as to whether the death of deceased could have been caused with the blow of 
pickaxe Ex t. P -1. PW-4 Prem Chand had deposited the sealed parcels six in number containing 
the case property of this case in FSL., Junga.  PW -5 HC Khem Chand was officiating as MHC in 
the police station at the relevant time to whom the custody of case property of t his case was 
entrusted by the I.O. PW -14.  He entered the same in the malkhana and retained in his safe 

custody.  PW -6 Kuldeep Chand was posted as regular MHC and as he was on leave and in his 
absence PW -5 was officiating as MHC, on his arrival to the poli ce station after availing leave, the 
custody of case property of this case was entrusted to him by PW -5.  Later on, it was sent by him 
to FSL vide RC No. 107/10, Ext. PW -6/A through HHC Prem Chand.  PW -7 is the Surveyor who 
was working as such in H.P.P.W.D  Sub -division, Thural.  On the application Ext. PW -7/A, moved 
by the police, he had prepared the site plan Ext. PW -7/B.  PW -11 ASI Suresh Kumar had 
registered the FIR Ext. PW -11/A on the receipt of rukka Ext. PW -1/A.  PW -12 Gambhir Chand 
had conducted the investigation of this case partly as the statement of Arun Kumar, PW -7 was 
recorded by him.  PW -13 is the photographer, who had taken the photographs Ext. PW -13/A to 
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Ext. PW -13/D with his digital camera.  The I.O. of this case is PW -14 Inspector Tilak Raj,  who 
had conducted the investigation of this case.  

6.  Learned trial Court on appreciation of the evidence available on record and 
hearing learned Public Prosecutor as well as learned defence counsel has concluded that the 
prosecution has failed to prove th e disclosure statement Ext. PW -9/E.  The testimony of PW -1 
and PW -8 is also stated to be hearsay as the occurrence had not taken place in their presence.  In 
the opinion of learned trial Judge, their testimony should have not been taken to fasten any 
crimi nal liability upon the accused.  It was further observed that only important witness could 
have been Avdesh, who was living in the same room and working as labourer with the accused, 
however, the prosecution to the reasons best known to it has not opted fo r being associated him 
nor he has been examined.  The prosecution in the opinion of learned trial Judge had failed to 
prove its case against the accused beyond all reasonable doubt.  He, as such, was acquitted of 
the charge.  

7.  Mr. D.S. Nainta, learned Add itional Advocate General has argued with all 
vehemence that the testimony of PW -1 and PW -8 supported by the disclosure statement Ext. PW -
9/E and the recovery of pickaxe Ext. P -1, consequent upon the same is suggestive of that the 
prosecution had proved its  case against the accused beyond all reasonable doubt.  However, 
cogent and reliable evidence produced by the prosecution has not been considered and 
erroneously brushed aside.  

8.  On the other hand, Mr. Bhuvnesh Sharma, Advocate assisted by Mr. Surender 
Mohan Sharma, Advocate representing the accused has urged that direct evidence has not been 
produced by the investigating agency to the reasons best known to it.  The testimony of PW -1 and 
PW-8 being highly undependable and unreliable, has rightly been igno red by learned trial Judge. 
Also that, the recovery of pickaxe Ext. P -1, consequent upon the disclosure statement Ext. PW -
9/E is not at all proved, as according to learned counsel the witnesses PW -9 and PW -10 have not 
supported the prosecution case in this  regard at all nor proved that the disclosure statement 
allegedly made by the accused while in the custody was recorded in the police station. Therefore, 
the accused, according to learned counsel, has rightly been acquitted of the charge by learned 
trial J udge.  

9.  On reappraisal of the facts and circumstances of this case and also the evidence 
available on record as well as taking into consideration the rival submissions, the only question 
arises for our consideration is that though the prosecution had prov ed its case against the 
accused beyond all reasonable doubt, however, it is the learned trial Court, which has failed to 
appreciate the same and erroneously recorded the findings of acquittal.  However, before coming 
to answer the poser so arises for our c onsideration, it is desirable to take note as to what 
constitutes an offence punishable under Section 302 of the Indian Penal Code.  

10.  As per Section 300 IPC, culpable homicide is murder firstly if the offender is 
found to have acted with an intention to cause death or secondly with an intention of causing 
such bodily injury knowing fully well that the same is likely to cause death of someone or thirdly 
intention causing bodily injury to any person and such injury intended to be inflicted is sufficient 
in the ordinary course of nature to cause death or if it is known to such person that the act done 

is imminently dangerous that the same in all probability shall cause death or such bodily injury 
as is likely to cause death.  

11.  Culpable homicide has been de fined under Section 299 IPC. Whoever causes 
death by way of an act with the intention of causing death or with the intention of causing such 
bodily injury as is likely to cause death or with the knowledge that he is likely by such act to 
cause death can be  said to have committed the offence of culpable homicide.  Culpable homicide 
is murder if the act by which death is caused is done with the intention of causing death.  
Expression òintentó and òknowledgeó postulate the existence of a positive mental attitude which is 
of different degree.  We are drawing support in this regard from the judgment of Apex Court in 
Jagriti Devi vs. State of Himachal Pradesh, AIR 2009 SC 2869.  
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12.  The ingredients of culpable homicide amounting to murder therefore are; (i) 
causing  death intentionally and (ii) causing bodily injury which is likely to cause death.  Whether 
the present is a case where the evidence available on record is suggestive of that it is the accused 
who had inflicted the blow of pickaxe, Ext. P -1 when the decea sed was under the influence of 
liquor and allegedly quarreled with him, intentionally to cause his death and such an act on his 
part amounts to culpable homicide amounting to murder or not, needs re -appraisal of the 
evidence available on record.  However, before that it is deemed appropriate to point out that if 
the accused had motive to cause the death of the deceased, the eye witness count of the 
occurrence may not be required, however, where the motive is missing, the prosecution is 
required to prove its  case with the help of testimony of eye witnesses.   

13.   Now if coming to the question hereinabove, which has engaged our attention in 
this case.  The answer thereto in all fairness and in the ends of justice would be in negative for 

the reason that the p resent is a case where cogent and reliable evidence to show that it is the 
accused alone who inflicted fatal blow on the head of deceased with pickaxe, Ext. P -1 at such a 
stage when latter was quarreling with the former under the influence of liquor and th ereby 
caused his death, could have come on record by way of the testimony of Avdesh, a fellow labourer 
of the accused and deceased who was residing with them in the same room.  However, such 
evidence which could have thrown some light qua the manner in whi ch the occurrence and death 
of Arvind Goswami had taken place has been withheld by the prosecution to the reasons best 
known to it.   

14.  The star prosecution witnesses PW -1 and PW -8 are son and father respectively, 
in relation.  Their house was under cons truction at village Gandhar.  The accused, deceased and 
Avdesh were engaged by them to execute the work of laying marvel in the said house.  Admittedly, 
they had not seen the deceased and accused quarreling with each other.  They had also not seen 
the accu sed inflicting the blow on the head of deceased with pickaxe, Ext. P -1.  Their testimony 
that the accused had caused fatal blow with pickaxe on the head of deceased even if believed to 
be true is hearsay because it is the accused himself who allegedly reve aled so to PW -1 at such a 
stage when he along with Avdesh was going to the under construction house.  On hearing the 
disclosure so made by the accused, PW -1 allegedly returned to the house in the same village 
along with him and Avdesh and there he apprised  his father PW -8 about the disclosure so made 
by the accused.  The only direct evidence, qua the manner in which the incident sparked off and 
the occurrence took place could have come on record by way of associating Avdesh during the 

course of investigatio n and also examining him as a witness during the course of trial.  Since he 
has not been examined, therefore, the plea of the accused that he was in the house of PW -1 and 
PW-8, they had implicated him falsely. On being asked by the I.O., PW -14 to implicate  someone 
in this case, failing which, it is they who will be booked for the murder of deceased.  Arvind 
Goswami whose dead body was lying in their house under construction, appears to be nearer to 
the factual position.  The testimony of PW -1 and PW -8 that it is the accused who had murdered 
the deceased, therefore, being hearsay has rightly been discarded by learned trial Judge.  The 
remaining part of the testimony of PW -8 pertains to the proceedings conducted by the I.O. 
including inspection of the dead bod y, getting the same photographed, preparation of inquest 
papers and sending the dead body for post -mortem etc. etc. is formal in nature, hence need not to 
be elaborated.  

15.  It is well settled that the extra judicial confession by an accused is made only to a 
person close to him and from whom he expect that he/she will save him from his prosecution.  
The law laid down by the apex Court by way of various judicial pronouncements qua this aspect 
of the matter has been discussed in detail by learned trial Judg e.  We are drawing support in this 
regard from the judgment of this Court also in Cr. Appeal No. 43 of 2006 and its connected 
matter titled Sudesh Sharma alias Shuppa Vs. State of Himachal Pradesh decided on 02.06.2014. 
The acquaintance of PW -1 with the ac cused was only to the extent that the latter was working as 
labourer in their house under  construction at village Gandhar.  The accused and deceased both 
were resident of Bihar.  PW -1 as such, was not a person either closely related to the accused or in 
h is friend circle. The said witness was also neither Panch or Pradhan so as to infer that he could 



 

39 

have influenced the local police or a person of the high status who could have protected the 
accused from his harassment by the police in this case.  Therefor e, there is no question of making 
the so called extra judicial confession by the accused before PW -1.  Testimony of PW -9 and PW -10 
qua this aspect of the matter is also of no help to the prosecution case for the reason that they 
were apprised by PW -8 qua t he death of deceased caused by the accused by inflicting the blow 
with pickaxe, Ext. P -1. 

16.  The recovery of pickaxe, Ext. P -1 consequent upon the alleged disclosure 
statement is highly doubtful for the reason that as per the testimony of PW -14 the Invest igating 
Officer, disclosure statement Ext. PW -9/E was made by the accused in the police station while in 
custody in the presence of PW -9 Jugal Kishore, the Ward Panch and PW -10 Purshotam Chand, 
Pradhan Gram Panchayat.  True it is that both Jugal Kishore an d Purshotam Chand have 
supported the prosecution case qua the statement so made by the accused, however, accused to 

them on the spot i.e. at village Gandhar where the house of PW -1 and PW -8 was under 
construction and not in the police station.  Being so, t here emerge two possible views i.e. as per 
testimony of   the I.O. PW -14, such statement was recorded in the police station in the presence 
of PW-9 and PW -10, whereas, as per the testimony of these witnesses, the same was recorded on 
the spot.  No doubt, P W-10 was recalled and re -examined and in his statement recorded on 
27.06.2012, he had clarified that the accused was interrogated in the police station and his 
statement Ext. PW -9/E was recorded there in his presence and also in the presence of Ward 
Panch (PW-9).  Also that portion ôAõ to Aõ and ôBõ to ôBõ of his statement recorded on 14.10.2011 is 
due to the reason that he had forgotten the facts.  When cross -examined, it is stated that he 
reached in the police station at 5.00 a.m. on that day.  It is Chan dersheel PW -9 who had called 
him there.  The clarification so come on record is also of any help to the prosecution case for the 

reason that the testimony of PW -9 Jugal Kishore that the so called disclosure statement was 
recorded at the spot remained unsha ttered.  Not only this but Chandersheel while in the witness 
box as PW -8 has not said anything about the recording of statement Ext. PW -9/E.  Had in term of 
the clarification given by PW -10 the said witness was called to the police station by PW -8, 
Chandes heel, this witness would have also present there.  Therefore, he should have also been 
examined qua this aspect of the matter.  The failure to do so amply demonstrates that nothing of 
the sort did take place on the spot nor the accused made any disclosure statement to the police 
while in custody and as such the statement seems to have been engineered and fabricated to 
implicate the accused falsely in this case.  The possibility that he was subjected to 3 rd  degree 
method while in custody during the night int ervening 27/28.10.2010 and made to sign this 
document, cannot be ruled -out.  

17.  When recording of disclosure statement in the manner as claimed by the 
prosecution is not at all proved, there is no question of recovery of pickaxe, Ext. P -1 on the basis 
ther eof.  Otherwise also, the so called motive that accused under the influence of liquor started 
hurling abuses to the accused and it is for this reason, the latter assaulted him with pickaxe is 
not at all established because no -one has been associated to sub stantiate this part of the 
prosecution case.  Had it been so, atleast Avdesh, their fellow labourer would have witnessed the 
quarrel, if any, taken place between the two. Had the deceased been killed by the accused, it is 
not understandable as to why he wo uld have not fled away after the commission of crime.  There 
was no occasion for him to have gone to the house of PW -1 and PW -8.  He would have not 

accompanied PW -1 and PW -8 to the house under construction and the story that when they 
entered inside the un der construction house, he stayed outside and fled away also seems to be 
engineered and fabricated and may be at the behest of PW -1 and PW -8 who were owners of the 
house under construction to save themselves from any possible imputation at a later stage ma de 
to them in connection with the death of Arvind Goswami.  Therefore, for want of any direct 
evidence and the evidence as has come on record by way of testimony of PW -1 and PW -8 and for 
that matter of PW -9 and PW -10 which is neither cogent nor reliable, n o criminal liability could 
have been fastened upon the accused.  Learned trial Judge has, therefore, not committed any 
illegality or irregularity while acquitting the accused of the charge framed against him.   
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18.  The remaining evidence as already pointed  out is formal in nature and would 
have of some relevance had the prosecution been otherwise able to prove that deceased Arvind 
Goswami has been murdered by the accused.  The same, therefore, need not to be elaborated any 
further.  

19.  In view of re -apprai sal of the oral as well as documentary evidence on record, in 
our considered opinion, the trial Court has not committed any illegality or irregularity while 
passing the judgment under challenge in this appeal.  The same, as such, is affirmed and the 
appeal  is dismissed.  Personal bonds furnished by the accused persons shall stand cancelled and 
sureties discharged.  

*****************************************************************************************  

BEFORE HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE SURESHWAR THAKUR, J. 

State o f H.P.      é..Appellant. 

    Versus  

Suresh Kumar and others    é..Respondents. 

 

Cr. Appeal No. 469 of 2007     

      Decided on :   01/03/2017  

 

Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section 325 read with Section 34 - Accused assaulted the complainant 
by giving him kicks a nd fist blows - he fell down and lost his two teeth - one A tried to rescue the 
complainant but he was also assaulted by the accused - the accused was tried and acquitted by 
the Trial Court - held in appeal that there are contradictions in the ocular and medic al versions - 
no independent witness was examined - delay in lodging the report was not explained - Trial Court 
had properly appreciated the evidence - appeal dismissed.(Para -9 to 11)  

 

For the Appellant:     Mr.  M.L.Chauhan, Addl. Advocate  General.  

For the R espondents:    Mr. Vinod Thakur, Advocate.    

 

 The following judgment of the Court was delivered:  

 

Sureshwar Thakur, Judge (Oral)  

  The instant appeal stands directed by the State of Himachal Pradesh against the 
impugned judgment rendered on 30.4.2007 by  the learned Judicial Magistrate 1 st Class, 
Jogindernagar, District Mandi, Himachal Pradesh, whereby he acquitted the respondents (for 
short ôaccusedõ) for the offences charged.  

2.  The brief facts of the case are that on dated 22.11.2000 at about 3.30 p. m. when 
the complainant was coming at place Chauntra, the accused persons met him and assaulted him 
by giving him kick and the fist blows, as a result of which, he fell down and lost his two teeth.  
The further case of the prosecution is to the effect that  the complainant was rescued by one Anil 
Kumar from the clutches of the accused, who too was assaulted by the accused persons.  On the 

next day, the complainant approached the Police Post Ghatta and narrated the matter to the 
police upon which a rapat was entered.  The complainant was got medically examined and on 
confirmation of the fact that the grievous injuries were suffered by the complainant, the matter 
was referred to P.S. Joginder Nagar where, an FIR under Section 325 read with Section 34 IPC 
was lo dged against the accused persons. After completing all codal formalities and on conclusion 

of the investigation into the offence, allegedly committed by the accused challan was prepared 
and filed in the Court.  

3.    A charge stood put to the accused by the learned trial Court for theirs 
committing offences punishable under Sections 325 read with Section 34 of the Indian Penal 
Code to which they pleaded not guilty and claimed trial.  
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4.   In order to prove its case, the prosecution examined 11 witnesses.  On cl osure of 
prosecution evidence, the statements of the accused under Section 313 of the Code of Criminal 
Procedure, were recorded in which they pleaded innocence and claimed false implication.  They 
did not choose to lead any evidence in defence.  

5.  On an ap praisal of the evidence on record, the learned trial Court returned 
findings of acquittal in favour of the accused.  

6.   The learned Additional Advocate General has concertedly and vigorously 
contended qua the findings of acquittal recorded by the learned trial Court standing not based on 
a proper appreciation of evidence on record, rather theirs standing sequelled by gross mis -
appreciation by it of the relevant material on record.  Hence, he contends qua the findings of 
acquittal being reversed by this Cou rt in the exercise of its appellate jurisdiction and theirs being 
replaced by findings of conviction.  

7.    The learned counsel appearing for the respondents has with considerable force 
and vigour contended qua the findings of acquittal recorded by the Cou rt below standing based 

on a mature and balanced appreciation of evidence on record and theirs not necessitating any 
interference, rather theirs meriting vindication.  

8.    This Court with the able assistance of the learned counsel on either side has with 
studied care and incision, evaluated the entire evidence on record.   

9.      With Ext.PW -5/B prepared by PW -5 marking underscorings therein qua injury 
No.2 enunciated therein being grievous besides with both the victims/injured in the ill -fated 
occurrence deposing with want of any intra se contradictions in their respective examinations in 
chief vis.a.vis their respective cross -examinations also theirs deposing with intra se harmony, 
hence constrain the learned Additional Advocate General to make a submissi on qua the 
prosecution succeeding in proving its case whereupon he contends qua the findings of acquittal 
recorded by the learned Judicial Magistrate 1 st Class, Jogindernagar, warranting reversal.  
However, for the reasons to be ascribed hereinafter, the s ubmission addressed herebefore by the 
learned Additional Advocate General suffers emasculation (a) PW -5 in his deposition contradicting 
the victim/complainant qua in sequel to the victim complainant standing belaboured on his face 
with fist blows delivered  thereon by the accused thereupon one tooth of his upper jaw standing 
both dislodged besides it falling onto the ground, contradiction whereof emanates from PW -5 
voicing qua contrarily the relevant tooth in the upper jaw of the victim rather remaining inta ct 
thereat though it standing cracked.    

10 .   The contradiction aforesaid as stands brought to the fore by PW -5 comprised in 
his disclosing in his testimony qua at the time whereat he conducted the medical examination of 
the relevant portion of the perso n of the victim/complainant, his analyzing qua the right upper 
tooth standing broken besides the second incisor holding cracks, whereupon apparently hence 
when he omits to pronounce with intra se harmony with the complainant/injured qua its 
standing both d isjoined besides its falling onto the ground fillips an inference qua the graphic 
contradiction aforesaid negating the version propounded by the complainant qua in sequel to the 
ill -fated incident, his right upper tooth also his second incisor getting loos ed besides falling onto 
the ground, an ensuable apt sequel whereof is qua the genesis of the prosecution case suffering a 

jolt also recovery, if any, of the purported fallen right upper tooth and of the second incisor under 
memo Ext.PW -1/C, both losing vig our. An inference qua the aforesaid factum standing contrived 
under Ext.PW -1/C gets enhanced by the factum of the complainant/injured not collecting the 
purportedly disjoined right upper incisor immediately on its purportedly falling onto the ground 
nor hi s handing it in quick promptitude thereto, to the Investigating Officer concerned rather his 
delaying its collection from the site of occurrence upto two days since the incident.  (b) The 
incident stood witnessed by Anil Kumar  s/o Kushal besides other inde pendent witnesses, none of 
whom stood examined by the prosecution whereas the version qua the incident testified by them 
would have purveyed an impartisan/uninterested version thereto also would have dispelled the 
aura of doubt arising from the aforesaid f actum, engulfing the prosecution version.  
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Consequently, the omission of the prosecution to examine the relevant independent witnesses to 
the illfated occurrence garners an inference qua the prosecution smothering the truth qua the 
genesis of the prosecuti on case.  (c) Apparently a delay in the lodging of the F.I.R qua the incident 
has visibly occurred.  The complainant in purported explication of the delay has propounded a 
false reason qua his not promptly visiting the Police Station concerned for lodging the apposite 
information thereat despite it standing evidently located in immediate vicinity to the relevant site 
of incident, falsity whereof stands embodied in the factum qua his feeling unwell whereas in his 
cross -examination he narrates qua on the day of the incident his visiting the police station as well 
as the hospital whereupon his omission to report the incident to the police on the day when he 
visited the police Station concerned when stands construed in conjunction with the factum of his 
ascribin g a false reason for the delay, galvanizes a deduction qua the story propounded by the 
complainant holding no scintilla of truth.   

11 .   For the reasons which stand recorded hereinabove, this Court holds that the 
learned trial Court has appraised the enti re evidence on record in a wholesome and harmonious 
manner apart therefrom the analysis of material on record by the learned trial Court does not 
suffer from any perversity or absurdity of mis -appreciation and non appreciation of evidence on 
record, rather  it has aptly appreciated the material available on record whereupon its judgement 
warrants no interference.    

12 .    In view of the above, I find no merit in this appeal, which is accordingly 
dismissed.  In sequel, the impugned judgement is affirmed and maintained.  Record of the 
learned trial Court be sent back forthwith.  

***********************************************************************************************  

BEFORE HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE AJAY MOHAN GOEL, VACATION J. 

Anil Sharma      é..Petitioner. 

       Vs. 

Alka Sharma and others     é..Respondents. 

 

Cr. Rev. No.:  16 of 2016  

Reserved on: 01.03.2017  

Date of Decision: 02.03.2017  

 

Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973 - Section 125 - The marriage between parties was solemnized 

as per Hindu Rites and Customs ð two children were born ð husband and his family members 
started  harassing the wife for dowry ð she started residing in the house of her parents - wife had 
no independent source of income while the husband was earning Rs. 40,000/ - per month ð an 
application  for interim maintenance was filed, which was allowed and maintenance of Rs. 1,000/ - 
per month was awarded in favour of the wife and children - aggrieved from the order, the present 
revision was filed - held, that the merits of the claim are not to be seen w hile deciding the 
application for ad -interim maintenance ð wife and the children cannot be left without  means 
during the pendency of the petition ð the revisional jurisdiction can be exercised to correct 
miscarriage of justice, irregularity of the procedu re, neglect of proper  procedure  or apparent 

harshness of the treatment - no such fact has been proved ð revision petition dismissed.  

 (Para-10 to 16)  

Cases referred:  

Savitri W/o Govind Singh Rawat Vs. Govind Singh Rawat (1985) 4 Supreme Court Cases 337  
Dwarika Prasad Satpathy  Vs. Bidyut Prava Dixit, (1999) 7 SCC 675  
Badshah Vs. Urmila Badshah Godse and another (2014) 1 Supreme Court Cases 188  
 

For the petitioner:               Mr. Mohan Singh, Advocate.  

For the respondents :                         Mr. Ka ran Singh Kanwar, Advocate.   
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  The following judgment of the Court was delivered:  

 

Ajay Mohan Goel, Judge : 

  By way of this revision petition, the petitioner has challenged the order passed by 
the Court of learned Judicial Magistrate, 1 st Class, Nahan, D istrict Sirmaur in petition No. 86/4 
of 2014, dated 13.10.2015, vide which the learned Court below has partly allowed the ad -interim 
maintenance application filed by the present respondents under Section 125 of the Code of 
Criminal Procedure for grant of m aintenance in their favour and has directed the present 
petitioner to pay an amount of Rs. 1,000/ - each to the present respondents per month from the 
date of order till the disposal of the petition filed under Section 125 of the Code of Criminal 
Procedure.   

2.   Brief facts necessary for the adjudication of the case are that the present 

respondents/applicants (hereinafter referred to as ôthe applicantsõ) filed a petition under Section 
125 of the Code of Criminal Procedure in the Court of learned Chief Judici al Magistrate, Nahan, 
District Sirmaur, in which it was averred that applicant No. 1 Alka Sharma was the legally 
wedded wife of the present petitioner/respondent (hereinafter referred to as ôthe respondentõ). 
Marriage between applicant No. 1 and the respon dent took place on 14.02.2000 as per Hindu 
rites and ceremonies and two children were born out of the said wedlock and the respondent and 
his family members kept applicant No. 1 properly for some time, but thereafter they started 
torturing her both physica lly and mentally on the demand of dowry. Further, as per the 
averments made in the petition, despite efforts made by the family of applicant No. 1, respondent 
and his family members kept on harassing applicant No. 1 and respondent also neglected and 
refuse d to maintain the applicants. It was further averred in the petition that applicant No. 1 was 
having no independent source of income and she was residing in the house of her parents at the 
mercy of her brother and respondent was having transport business a nd was owner of number of 

vehicles and was also having agricultural land as well as rental income from the shops let out by 
him was earning more than Rs. 40,000/ - per month. It was further averred in the petition that 
respondent be directed to pay to the a pplicants an amount of Rs. 15,000/ - per month for the 
maintenance of applicant No. 1, his wife and an amount of Rs. 5,000/ - each for the maintenance 
of his two children, i.e. applicants No. 2 and 3 as well as litigation expenses.  

3.   The said petition was  opposed by the respondent inter alia  on the ground that 
applicant No. 1 is not legally wedded wife of the respondent and there has never been any 

cohabitation between the parties at any time. It was further mentioned in the reply filed by the 
respondent t hat his family as well as the family of applicant No. 1 were known to each other and 
that on account of the said intimacy between the families, applicant No. 1 pressurized the 
respondent to marry her, but he as well as his family members refused to do so. As per the 
respondent, the petition was filed by the applicants on false and frivolous grounds to harass and 
humiliate him. He also denied that he was owner of number of vehicles or was having agricultural 
land or any rental income or was earning an amount  of Rs. 40,000/ - per month.  

4.   In the said proceedings, applicants also filed an application for grant of ad -
interim maintenance during the pendency of the petition.  

5.   By way of impugned order, learned Court below has directed the respondent to 
pay an  amount of Rs. 1,000/ -  each to the applicants by partially allowing the ad -interim 
maintenance application filed by the applicants.  

6.   While passing the said order, it has been observed by the learned Court below 
that it is apparent from the assertions of the respondent that he has denied relationship of 
husband and wife between him and applicant No. 1 or that he was father of applicants No. 2 and 
3, but though the factum of applicant No. 1 being the legally wedded wife of respondent had come 
into disput e, however, question of validity of marriage could not be decided in summary 
proceedings under Section 125 of the Code of Criminal Procedure. Learned Court below has 
further observed that denial of marriage by the respondent cannot be a ground at this stag e to 
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allow the applicants to die of starvation, destitution and vagrancy, simply on the ground that 
respondent has taken the plea that he is not the husband of applicant No. 1. Learned Court 
below has also observed that at the stage of passing interim orde rs, Court has to look into the 
basic purpose as to why Section 125 of the Code of Criminal Procedure was enacted and the 
reason was to make provision of interim maintenance for destitute wife as well as children so that 
they are not devoid of basic require ments of life, i.e. food and other basic necessities. On these 
bases, it was held by the learned Court below that the applicants had to be maintained till the 
Court prima facie comes to the conclusion about marriage between the respondent and applicant 
No. 1 and with regard to applicants No. 2 and 3 being born out of their wedlock. Learned Court 
below further held that the contention of the applicants that they were residing in the parental 
house of applicant No. 1 could not be disputed by the respondent an d there was pertinence in the 
contention of applicant No. 1 that she alongnwith her children were subjected to maltreatment 
and that she was not having any source of income nor any property to maintain herself. Learned 

Court below further held that respond ent has not disputed his ability to earn livelihood and that 

it was apparent that respondent was an able bodied person and was a man of means and on 
these bases, learned Court below partly allowed the application and has directed the respondent 
to pay an a mount of Rs. 1,000/ - each per month as maintenance in favour of the applicants by 
calculating the income of the respondent to be nominal income that was being earned by a 
labourer to the tune of Rs. 5,000/ - to 6,000/ - per month.  

7.   Feeling aggrieved by t he said order, the petitioner/respondent has filed this 
revision petition.  

8.   The sole ground on which learned counsel for the petitioner has urged that the 
impugned order is not sustainable in law is that when the present petitioner/respondent had 
denie d the factum of marriage having been solemnized between him and respondent/applicant 
No. 1 and the factum of respondents/applicants No. 2 and 3 being his children, learned trial 
Court could not have had passed order of grant of ad -interim maintenance in fa vour of the 
respondents/applicants.  

9.   I have heard the learned counsel for the parties and have also gone through the 
records of the case.   

10.   Admittedly, the order under challenge is an order of ad - interim maintenance 
passed by the learned Court be low and whether or not the applicants are entitled for 
maintenance, as has been prayed in the main petition filed under Section 125 of the Code of 
Criminal Procedure is yet to be adjudicated.  

11.   The Honõble Supreme Court in Savitri W/o Govind Singh Rawa t  Vs. Govind 
Singh Rawat  (1985) 4 Supreme Court Cases 337 has held that jurisdiction of a Magistrate under 
Chapter IX of the Code of Criminal Procedure is not strictly a criminal jurisdiction and while 
passing an order under the said Chapter, asking a pers on to pay maintenance to his wife, child or 
parent, as the case may be, the Magistrate is not imposing any punishment on such person for a 
crime committed by him. It has been further held by the Honõble Supreme Court that it is the 
duty of the Court to int erpret the provisions of Chapter IX of the Code of Criminal Procedure in 
such a way that the construction placed on them would not defeat the very object  of the 

legislation. Honõble Supreme Court has further held that it is quite common that applications 
made under Section 125 of the Code also take several months for being disposed of finally and in 
order to enjoy the fruits of the proceedings under Section 125, the applicant should be alive till 
the date of the final order and that the applicant can do in  a large number of cases only if an 
order for payment of interim maintenance is passed by the Court. It has been further held by the 
Honõble Supreme Court that every Court must be deemed to possess by necessary intendment all 
such powers as are necessary t o make its orders effective. The Honõble Supreme Court has 
further held:  

òHaving regard to the nature of the jurisdiction exercised by a magistrate under 
Section 125 of the Code, we feel that the said provision should be interpreted as 
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conferring power by necessary implication on the magistrate to pass an order 
directing a person against whom an application is made under it to pay a 
reasonable sum by way of interim maintenance subject to the other conditions 
referred to therein pending final disposal of the  application.ó 

12.   The Honõble Supreme Court in Dwarika Prasad Satpathy   Vs. Bidyut Prava 
Dixit , (1999) 7 SCC 675 has held that it is to be remembered that the order passed in an 
application under Section 125 Cr. P.C. does not finally determine the rights  and obligations of the 
parties and the said Section is enacted with a view to provide summary remedy for providing 
maintenance to a wife, children and parents. The Honõble Supreme Court has further held that 
the validity of the marriage for the purpose of  summary proceedings under Section 125 Cr. P.C. is 
to be determined on the basis of evidence brought on record by the parties and the standard of 
proof of marriage in such proceedings is not as strict as is required in a trial of offence under 

Section 494 IPC. The Honõble Supreme Court has further held that if the claimant in proceedings 
under Section 125 of the Code succeeds in showing that she and the respondent have lived 
together as husband and wife, the Court can presume that they are legally wedded sp ouses and 
in such a situation, the party who denies the marital status can rebut the presumption. Honõble 
Supreme Court has further held that from the evidence which is led, if the Magistrate is prima 
facie satisfied with regard to performance of marriage in proceedings under Section 125 of the 
Code of Criminal Procedure which are of a summary nature, strict proof of performance of 
essential rites is not required.  

13.   It has been held by the Honõble Supreme Court in Badshah Vs. Urmila Badshah 
Godse and ano ther  (2014) 1 Supreme Court Cases 188 that a liberal interpretation has to be 
given to the term ôwifeõ under Section 125 of the Code of Criminal Procedure and would include 
cases where a man and woman have been living as husband and wife for a reasonably l ong period 
of time, and strict proof of marriage should not be a precondition for claim of maintenance under 
Section 125 of the Code of Criminal Procedure.  

14.   Incidentally, a perusal of the reply filed by the present petitioner/respondent to 
petition fil ed under Section 125 of the Code of Criminal Procedure Code demonstrates that he has 
admitted the factum of the present respondent/applicant No. 1 being known to him, though he 
has denied relationship of husband and wife between himself and respondent/appl icant No. 1. 
Therefore, it is not the case of the present petitioner/respondent that respondent/applicant No. 1 
is a stranger. Besides this, prima facie no cogent explanation has come forth in the reply so filed 
by the petitioner as to why respondent/appli cant No. 1 would be falsely claiming herself to be his 
wife and further claim respondents/applicants No. 2 and 3 to be his children. Further, taking 
into consideration the fact that the impugned order is only an ad -interim order, all these aspects 
of the m atter are otherwise also required to be gone into by the learned Court below and it is 
always open to the petitioner to demonstrate before the learned Court below that present 
respondent No. 1 is not his wife or that present respondents No. 2 and 3 are not  his children. 
However, till the main petition filed under Section 125 of the Code of Criminal Procedure is 
decided, neither present respondent No. 1 nor respondents No. 2 and 3 can be left in oblivion and 
in this background, this Court does not find any i nfirmity or illegality in the order passed by the 

learned Court below granting ad -interim maintenance of  Rs. 1,000/ -  to each of the 

respondents/applicants during the pendency of the petition filed under Section 125 of the Code of 
Criminal Procedure. The amount of maintenance granted by the learned Court below can also not 
be said to be unreasonable and rather it is on the lower side.  

15.   Otherwise also, in view of the law laid down by the Honõble Supreme Court, there 
is no merit in the contention of the  learned counsel for the petitioner that learned Court below 
was not having any power to pass an ad interim order directing the present petitioner/respondent 
to pay maintenance to the present respondents/applicants till the issue was adjudicated upon as 
to whether respondent/applicant No. 1 is wife of the present petitioner/respondent and 
respondents/applicants No. 2 and 3  are his children.     
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16.   It is well settled law that the jurisdiction of High Court in revision is severely 
restricted and it cannot embark upon re -appreciation of evidence. The High Court in revision 
cannot in the absence of error on a point of law, re -appreciate evidence and reverse a finding. It 
has been further held by the Honõble Supreme Court that the object of the revisional jurisdiction 
was to confer upon superior criminal Courts a kind of paternal or supervisory jurisdiction in 
order to correct miscarriage of justice arising from misconception of law, irregularity of procedure, 
neglect of proper precaution or apparent harshness of treatment which has resulted in 
undeserved hardship to individuals. Learned counsel for the petitioner could not point out any of 
the above infirmities in the impugned order.   

17.   Therefore, in view of above discussion, I do not find any merit in the present 
revision petition. Thus, as the revision sans merit, the same is dismissed.  

**************************************************************************************************  

BEFORE HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE SURESHWAR THAKUR, J. 

Prabhu Dayal Sharma     é..Appellant.  

     Versus  

Suraj Mani      é..Respondent. 

  

 Cr. Appeal No. 212 of 2016  

      Decided on :   02/03/2017  

 

Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881 - Section 138 - Accused approached the complainant for 
financial help for his personal and domestic needs - the accused borrowed a sum of Rs. 2 lacs 
from the complainant and issued a cheque of Rs. 2 lacs towards the re -payment of the amount - 
the check was dishonoured with the remarks insufficient amounts - the accused failed to repay 
the amount despite the receip t of valid notice of demand - the accused was tried and acquitted by 
the Trial Court on the ground that the bank account against which the cheque was drawn was 
not owned, managed or controlled in his individual capacity by the accused - the accused was 
manag ing the account in the capacity of the secretary and there was no privity of account - held 
in appeal that accused had not led any evidence to prove the books of account were maintained 
by him in his capacity as secretary of the society ð the evidence led by the complainant proved the 
ingredients of offence punishable under Section 138 of N.I. Act - the accused was wrongly 
acquitted by the Trial Court - appeal allowed ð judgment passed by the Trial Court set aside and 

accused convicted of the commission of of fence punishable under Section 138 of N.I. Act.  

 (Para-8 & 9)  

For the Appellant:     Mr. J.L.Bhardwaj, Advocate.  

For the Respondent:    Mr. G.R.Palsra, Advocate.     

 

 The following judgment of the Court was delivered:  

 

Sureshwar Thakur, Judge (Oral)  

  The instant appeal stands directed against the impugned judgment rendered by 
the learned Judicial Magistrate 1 st Class, Manali, District Kullu, Himachal Pradesh, whereby he 
dismissed the complaint instituted therebefore under Section 138 of the Negotiable I nstruments 
Act by the complainant.  

2.   The brief facts of the case are that complainant and the accused were known to 

each other and in the month of October, 2008 the accused approached the complainant for 
financial help for his personal use and domestic needs and the accused had borrowed a sum of 
Rs.2,00,000/ - from the complainant and in discharge of his liability the accused has issued and 
handed over a cheque amounting to Rs.2,00,000/ - drawn on the Himachal Pradesh State 
Cooperative Bank Limited, branch  Balichowki in favour of the complainant.  As per the 
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complainant, on presentation, the said cheque was returned being dishonoured vide memo dated 
02.01.2009 with remarks insufficient funds.  As per the complainant, even after issuance and 
receipt of legal  notice no payment was made by the accused. After recording of preliminary 
evidence Court of the Judicial Magistrate 1 st Class, Manali, took cognizance against the accused 
and notice of accusation under Section 138 of the Negotiable Instruments Act was put  to the 
accused to which he pleaded not guilty and claimed trial.   

3.   In order to prove its case, the complainant examined himself as CW -1.  On 
closure of complainantsõ evidence, the statement of the accused under Section 313 of the Code of 
Criminal Proc edure, was recorded in which he pleaded innocence and claimed false implication.  
He chose to lead evidence in defence.  

4.    On an appraisal of the evidence on record, the learned trial Court returned 
findings of acquittal in favour of the accused.  

5.   The learned counsel for the complainant has concertedly and vigorously 
contended qua the findings of acquittal recorded by the learned trial Court standing not based on 

a proper appreciation of evidence on record, rather theirs standing sequelled by gross mi s-
appreciation by it of the relevant material on record.  Hence, he contends qua the findings of 
acquittal standing reversed by this Court in the exercise of its appellate jurisdiction and theirs 
standing replaced by findings of conviction.  

6.    The learn ed counsel appearing for the respondent has with considerable force 
and vigour contended qua the findings of acquittal recorded by the Court below standing based 
on a mature and balanced appreciation of evidence on record by the learned trial Court and 
the irs not necessitating any interference, rather theirs meriting vindication.  

7.    This Court with the able assistance of the learned counsel on either side has with 
studied care and incision, evaluated the entire evidence on record.   

8.   Negotiable instr ument comprised in Ext. CW -1/A holding therein a sum of 
Rs.2,00,000/ - stood issued by the accused/respondent qua the appellant complainant.  On its 
presentation before the bank concerned, it, on account of lack of sufficient funds for liquidating 
the amoun t recited therein, stood hence refused to be honoured by the bank concerned 
whereupon a complaint stood instituted by the aggrieved complainant under Section 138 of the 
Negotiable Instruments Act before the learned Magistrate concerned.  The learned Judici al 
Magistrate concerned initially convicted the accused whereupon with the latter standing 
aggrieved, preferred an appeal therefrom before the learned Sessions Judge, Kullu whereupon the 
learned Appellate Court while reversing the verdict pronounced by the  learned Judicial Magistrate 
concerned remanded the complaint for its fresh adjudication by the learned Judicial Magistrate 
1st Class, Manali, thereupon the latter proceeded to dismiss the complaint arising from dishonour 
of negotiable instrument comprised  in Ext.CW -1/A.   The reason as assigned by the learned trial 
Court to pronounce an order dismissing the complaint instituted therebefore by the complainant 
stands anchored upon the factum of the bank account number whereagainst cheque Ext.CW -1/A 
stood dra wn for meteing/liquidating the purported pecuniary liability arising from the proven 
commercial transaction inter se the accused vis.a.vis the complainant, standing neither owned, 
managed or controlled in his individual capacity by the respondent/accused r ather his managing 

the relevant account number whereagainst cheque Ext.CW -1/A stood issued, in the capacity of 
his being the Secretary of the Chhanjiwala Markanda CMP Society, thereupon it per se concluded 
qua their existing no privity of contract inter se  the accused and the complainant whereupon it 
stood constrained to dismiss the complaint instituted therebefore by the complainant. The reason 
aforesaid would hold vigour, only if cheque Ext.CW -1/A held vivid reflections therein qua the 
accused, in the cap acity of his holding the position of Secretary of the Society concerned 
signaturing Ext.CW -1/A, reflections whereof warranted a graphic pronouncement therein  
comprised in the signatures of the accused as stand endorsed thereon, holding thereunder the 
seal of the society concerned.  However, the aforesaid reflections are amiss therein hence 
constraining this Court to conclude qua the accused hence strategizing to mislead the 
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complainant qua the account number whereagainst Ext.CW -1/A stood issued for its sta nding 
drawn also his thereupon colouring the factum qua his not standing individually enjoined to 
liquidate vis -à-vis the complainant the amount constituted therein qua rather the society 
concerned holding the apposite liability to liquidate vis -à-vis the complainant the sum constituted 
therein, also it appears qua in his issuing a cheque apparently drawn against the accounts of the 
society, his with a malo animo  pre -contemplating a ground to thereupon contend qua with there, 
hence, existing no privity of a ny mercantile  pecuniary contract inter se them, thereupon his 
achieving success in rendering the apposite complaint as may come to be instituted by the 
aggrieved before the Court concerned, to suffer its dismissal.   The further factum of the accused 
not adducing evidence comprised in the books of accounts maintained by him in his capacity as 
Secretary of the Society concerned, with manifestations therein qua the amount held in the 
cheque, standing owned by the society visibly  the respondent renders the i nevitable inference 

qua the society concerned from whose account a cheque stood issued for its standing drawn, it 

thereupon not standing issued qua liquidation of its liability vis -à-vis the complainant rather it 
standing issued for liquidating the persona l liability of the accused vis -à-vis the complainant.  
The learned trial Magistrate has slighted the impact of the aforesaid material whereupon it has 
proceeded to dismiss the complaint in a most casual and cursory manner.  Since all the evidence 
as stands  adduced by the complainant before the learned trial Magistrate pointedly depicts 
therein qua satiation qua the ingredients constituted in Section 138 of the Negotiable 
Instruments Act standing begotten, thereupon it was incumbent upon the learned trial Ma gistrate 
to pronounce an order of conviction upon the accused whereas his pronouncing an order of 
acquittal upon the accused, resting it upon the aforesaid per se flimsy reason has sequelled his 
committing a manifest error of his grossly mis -appreciating b esides his not appreciating the 
aforesaid relevant and germane material.   

9.   In view of the above discussion, I find merit in this appeal which is accordingly 
allowed and the impugned judgment of the learned trial Court stands reversed and set aside.  
Accordingly, the respondent/accused stands convicted for the offence punishable under Section 
138 of the Negotiable Instruments Act.  The accused be produced on 16.3.2017 before this Court 
for his being heard on the quantum of sentence.     

      Record(s) o f the learned trial Court be sent back forthwith.  

***********************************************************************************************  

BEFORE HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE DHARAM CHAND CHAUDHARY, J. AND HONõBLE MR. 
JUSTICE VIVEK SINGH THAKUR, J.  

State of H.P.                  .......Appellant  

                  Versus  

Raghubir Singh and others      .......Respondents  

 

      Cr. Appeal No. 264 of 2009  

  Reserved on : 16.12.2016    

       Decided on: 2 nd  March, 2017  

 

Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section 376(2)(g) - Accused gang raped the prosecutrix ð they were 
tried and acquitted by the trial Court - an appeal was filed and the order was set aside ð the case 
was remanded with a direction to alter the charge from Section 376 read with Section 34 to 
Section 376 (2)(g) - the accused were tried and acquitted by the Trial Court - held in appeal that 
the prosecutrix was not proved to be minor ð different dates of birth were mentioned in the 
certificates brought on record by the prosecution - the radiological age of the prosecu trix was 
found to be 16 to 17 years and there can be a difference of three years ð thus, it was not proved 
that prosecutrix was minor ð she had voluntarily accompanied accused No. 5 ðhowever, she had 
not consented for sexual intercourse with the accused No . 5 - the other accused came and raped 
her ð the prosecutrix has supported the prosecution version ð minor improvements in her 
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statement are not sufficient to discard the same - the prosecution version was proved beyond 
reasonable doubt - appeal allowed and a ccused convicted of the commission of offence punishable 
under Section 376(2)(g) of I.P.C.   (Para-23 to 41)    

 

Cases referred:  

Raja and others V. State of Karnataka, 2016(10) SCC 506  
State of Punjab V. Gurmeet Singh and others, AIR 1996 SC 1393  
 

For the  appellant:   Mr. D.S. Nainta and Mr. Virender Verma, Addl. A.Gs.  

For the respondents:   Mr. R.L. Sood, Senior Advocate with Mr. Arjun Lal, Advocate.   

    

 The following judgment of the Court was delivered:  

 

Dharam Chand Chaudhary, Judge.  

  Aggrieved by t he judgment dated 24.09.2008 passed by learned Sessions Judge, 
Kullu in Session Trial No. 3 of 90/14 of 08, whereby the respondents Raghubir Singh, Hari Ram, 
Ravi Parkash, Sunil Kumar and Vijay Kumar (hereinafter referred as to ôaccused No. 1 to 5õ) have 
been acquitted of the charge under Section 376(2) (g) of the Indian Penal Code framed against 
each of them.   

2.  The prosecution case as disclosed from the statement of the prosecutrix PW -5 
(name withheld) recorded under Section 154 Cr.P.C shortly stated is  that with the permission of 
her mother Nimo Devi (PW -6) on 8.7.1989, she had gone to purchase shoe in the market at 
Manali.  While in the market, she visited ôstar videoõ to see matinee show.  In the video parlour, 
accused No. 5 (Vijay Kumar) was sitting next to her.  He started developing intimacy with the 
prosecutrix and asked her to accompany him to have bath at Vashisth.  Though she was 
reluctant to come out from the video parlour and accompany the said accused, however, on being 
persuaded by him, she left the parlour.  She was taken by the accused to Vashisth mor, where he 
brought a jeep bearing HPY -70.  The same was being driven by accused Munna and occupied by 
accused No. 3, Ravi Parkash.  She was dragged inside the jeep and taken to Solang Nalla sid e. On 
the way, vehicle was stopped on road side and accused No. 5 caught hold her hand and took her 
on river bank behind a big boulder. He forcibly opened her salwar.  She was made to lie down and 
thereby subjected her to sexual intercourse.  After such gh astly act committed by accused No. 5, 
she got up and was about to move from that place, however, in the meanwhile, one more taxi 
arrived there and three persons accused No. 4 Sunil, one Bittu and Ninnu alighted therefrom.  
She was again made to lie down an d they all also subjected her to sexual intercourse.  She being 
frightened could not speak anything. At that very time, one Tikam Ram and Raghu Mahant also 
came there.  Considering them that they are local persons, she accompanied them.  Accused No. 
5 and accused No. 4 accompanied by Bittu left for Manali from that place in a taxi.  Aforesaid 
Tikam Ram, Raghu Mahant, Munna and accused No. 3 Ravi Parkash and Ninnu made her to 
board jeep No. HPY -70, which proceeded towards Manali side.  They, however, made th e jeep to 
stop on Kenchi Mor.  Raghubir Mahant allegedly picked her up and brought out of the vehicle on 
the road and taking benefit of night hours and darkness, they all subjected her to sexual 

intercourse.  It is accused Tikam who lastly subjected her to  sexual intercourse.  They all fled 
away by leaving her alone on the road.  She any how or other could reach in her house at 
11/12.00 mid night and revealed the entire episode to her mother.  On the basis of statement 

Ext. P -g, FIR Ext. P -N was recorded ag ainst the accused persons under Section 376 of the Indian 
Penal Code.  

3.  The prosecutrix during the course of investigation has made the supplementary 
statement mark D -A.  According to her she was reluctant to accompany accused No. 5 to Solang 
Nalla, howe ver, on allurement made to her, accompanied him and when after being subjected by 
him forcibly to sexual intercourse, she was coming back from the place of occurrence, accused 
No. 4 accompanied by Bittu and Ninnu came there and they also caught hold her an d taken 
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behind the big boulder.  There she was threatened by them with dire consequences and 
succeeded in opening her salwar.  First it is accused No. 4 who had subjected her to sexual 
intercourse and thereafter his companion Ninnu and third person Bittu w as in the process of 
making him prepared to assault her sexually, however, in the meanwhile, Raghu Mahant and 
Tikam Ram arrived there and, therefore, said Bittu on account of afraid of said persons, failed to 
do so.  Said Raghu Mahant brought her to Solang  Nalla where she had tea with him.  Accused No. 
5 and accused No. 4 fled away in vehicle No. HPY 885 towards Manali side.  Ninnu, Ravi Parkash, 
accused No. 3 and Raghu Mahant after having tea occupied jeep No. HPY -70.  She was also made 
to sit in the said jeep.  The same was about to move, however, in the meanwhile, Chuni Lal, 
Pradhan of Barua also arrived there and said that he was also going to Bahang.  He was also 
made to sit in the jeep.  While in the jeep, he did not enquire about her whereabouts.  The  jeep 
when reached at Kenchi Mor was made to stop there on the road. Said Chuni Lal, Pradhan 
alighted therefrom and went ahead.  She also want to accompany him, however, Raghu Mahant 

(accused No. 1 @ Raghubir Singh) caught hold her, whereas, Munna who was on the wheel of the 

jeep taken out one bed sheet and they all subjected her to sexual intercourse turn by turn at an 
isolated place ahead Kenchi Mor.  

4.  On the registration of FIR Ext. P -N under Section 376 read with Section 34 of the 
Indian Penal Code ag ainst the accused persons, the prosecutrix was got medically examined from 
Dr. Shashi Thakur (PW -4) vide MLC Ext. P -F.  Her salwar Ext. P -2 was also taken into possession 
by PW-4.  For ascertaining the radiological age of the prosecutrix, her x -ray was con ducted vide 
skigram Ext. P -1 by PW -4 Dr. V.K. Mutreja.  The report is Ext. P -E.  The school certificate of the 
prosecutrix Ext. P -R was taken into possession from the school vide memo Ext. P -J, whereas, 
copy of abstract of family register Ext. P -T from the  Gram Panchayat.  The bed sheet was taken in 

possession vide recovery memo Ext. P -H.  Two vehicles bearing No. HPY -70 and HPY -885 were 
also seized by the police along with documents thereof. Accused No. 3 and Bittu @ Anil Kumar 
were arrested on 9.07.1989.  They were got medically examined vide MLCs Ext. P -A and P -C in 
CHC Manali.  Accused No. 1 was arrested on 22.07.1989 and also got medically examined vide 
MLC  Ext. P -D.  On receipt of report of chemical examiner, Ext. P -2 and completion of 
investigation C hallan was initially filed against accused Nos. 3, 5, one Bittu @ Anil Kumar and 
accused No. 1 Raghubir Singh, however, for want of evidence, accused Chuni Lal implicated by 
the prosecutrix in her supplementary statement mark D -A on 24.07.1989, he was kept  in column 
No. 2 of the Challan.  Accused No. 2 Hari Ram, Ninnu, accused No. 4 Sunil Kumar and Munna 
had absconded, hence were proceeded under Section 82 Cr.P.C.  The case against remaining 
accused was committed to the Sessions Court at Kullu.  

5.   Before o rder on charge was passed by learned trial Court, an application was 
filed by the prosecution under Section 319 Cr.P.C with a prayer to implicate accused No. 4 Sunil 
Kumar and accused No. 2 Hari Ram, Munna and Ninnu, who were absconded as accused 
persons.  Notice of the application was issued to the proposed accused persons.  Consequently, 
accused No. 2 and accused No. 4 had put in appearance and they were also added as accused 
persons. The remaining accused Munna and Ninnu were already declared proclaimed offender by 
learned Committal Court vide its order dated 15.3.1990.  The supplementary Challan was filed 
against accused No. 2 and 4 also.  

6.  On hearing learned Public Prosecutor and also learned defence counsel on the 
point of charge, no case was found to  be made out against accused Chuni Lal.  He was 
accordingly discharged. However, charge under Section 376/34 IPC was framed against accused 
persons and also against accused Sunil.  

7.  The accused, however, pleaded not guilty to the charge and claimed trial,  
therefore, the prosecution has examined 10 witnesses in all. The material prosecution witnesses 
are the prosecutrix PW -5, her mother Smt. Nimo Devi (PW -6), PW-7 Atma Ram is a witness to the 
recovery memo of bed sheet Ext. P -3, which according to him was t aken into possession in his 

presence vide recovery memo Ext. P -H.  The date of birth certificate Ext. P -I was also taken into 
possession in his presence vide memo Ext. P -K.  The photocopies of the RC and the jeep were also 
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taken into possession vide memo E xt. P -L.  The remaining prosecution witnesses i.e. PW -1 Dr. 
R.D. Chandel, PW -2 Dr. Krishan Bihari, PW -3 Dr. V.K. Mutreja and PW -4 Dr. Shashi Thakur 
have been associated as expert witnesses because PW -4 had conducted the medical examination 
of the prosecutr ix, whereas, PW -3 Dr. V.K. Mutreja examined the prosecutrix to ascertain her 
radiological age.  PW -1 and PW -2 have examined the accused persons to find out their 
competency to commit sexual intercourse.  The remaining prosecution witnesses i.e. Bhagi Ram 
(PW-8) is the investigating Officer.  Inspector Lekh Raj PW -9 has also investigated this case 
partly.  PW -10 Gian Chand, Secretary, Gram Panchayat, Nasogi was examined to prove the date 
of birth certificate Ext. P -S and abstract of parivar register Ext. P -T. 

8.  On the other hand, accused No. 5 in his statement recorded under Section 313 
Cr.P.C has admitted the prosecution case to the extent that the prosecutrix came to Manali 
bazaar for purchasing shoe for herself and went to video parlour and watched movie there.  It was 

also admitted that he was sitting in her side, but he did nothing and rather it is she who herself 
asked him to accompany her to Vashisth and Solang Nalla.  She accompanied him to Solang 
Nalla voluntarily and it is she who took him to the Na lla.  He, however, expressed his ignorance 
that accused Munna and Ravi also subjected her to sexual intercourse.  He, however, committed 
sexual intercourse with the prosecutrix with her consent.  It was also admitted that PW -1 Dr. 
R.D. Chandel had conducte d his medical examination and also that of accused No. 3 on 9.7.1989 
vide MLC Ext. P -A.  The said doctor had conducted the medical examination of accused No. 5 vide 
MLC Ext. P -B and that of accused Bittu @ Anil Kumar vide MLC Ext. P -C.  The rest of the 
inc riminating circumstances appearing against him in the prosecution evidence have either been 
denied being incorrect or for want of knowledge.  In his defence, while answering question No. 32 
and 33, it was stated that since the prosecutrix demanded Rs. 100/ - from him but he could only 

offer a sum of Rs. 20/ - which she refused to accept, therefore, it is for this reason, she deposed 
falsely against him.  In reply to question No. 34, it was further stated that the prosecutrix had 
developed intimacy with him si nce the last one year and on 2 -3 occasions, she had committed 
sexual intercourse with him.  She used to charge money for having sexual intercourse with her.  
They had been paying sometimes Rs. 20/ - and sometime even less amount also.  

9.  Accused Bittu @ Ani l Kumar in his statement recorded under Section 313 Cr.P.C 
has admitted that he was examined by PW -1 vide MLC Ext. P -C, however, denied the remaining 
incriminating circumstances appearing against him in the prosecution case either being incorrect 
or for wa nt of knowledge.  While answering question No. 33 and 34, it was stated that he was 

suffering from vineral decease hence did not join the prosecutrix when she invited him to have 
sexual intercourse with her.  She demanded money from him for which he refuse d and it is for 
this reason, case was lodged against him by her falsely.  

10.    Accused No. 2 Hari Ram while answering question No. 11 has stated that the 
prosecutrix came to Solang Nalla, where he was present along with Chuni Pradhan and accused 
No. 1 Ragh ubir Singh.  He was told by Chuni Lal, Pradhan to board the jeep.  Rest of the 
incriminating circumstances appearing against the said accused have either been denied being 
incorrect or for want of knowledge.  While answering question No. 32 and 34, it was stated that 
he being an employee of Chuni Pradhan has unnecessarily been dragged in this case.  

11.  Accused No. 4 Sunil Kumar while denying all the incriminating circumstances 

appearing against him in the prosecution evidence being wrong has stated while a nswering 
question No. 8 that accused Vijay had not committed rape with the prosecutrix at the time when 
he along with accused Munna and accused No. 3 Ravi Prakash reached there.  While answering 
question No. 32 and 34, his answer was that the prosecutrix h ad accompanied him earlier also, 
however, she did not charge money on such occasion.  This time she though invited him to have 
sexual intercourse with her, however, demanded Rs. 100/ - for the same. He offered only Rs. 50/ - 
which she refused to accept.  Sin ce he could not pay Rs. 100/ - to the prosecutrix, therefore, she 
lodged this case against him falsely.  

12.  Accused No. 3 Ravi Prakash has admitted that the prosecutrix was brought by 
them to Solang Nalla.  She accompanied accused Vijay Kumar voluntarily.  According to him, she 
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was not subjected to sexual intercourse.  He, however, admitted that he along with accused No. 1 
Raghubir Singh, Ninnu, accused No.  2 Hari Ram @ Tikam and Chuni Pradhan had subjected her 
to sexual intercourse.  He was medically exami ned vide MLC Ext. P -A by PW -1 Dr. R.D. Chandel 
on 9.7.1989. The said doctor also examined accused Bittu @ Anil Kumar and accused Vijay 
Kumar vide MLCs Ext. P -B and P -C respectively.  The rest of incriminating circumstances 
appearing against him in the pros ecution evidence have either been denied being wrong or for 
want of knowledge.  In his defence, while answering question No. 32 and 33, it was stated that 
the prosecutrix had demanded money, qua which he was told by accused No. 5 Vijay Kumar.  
According to  him he was invited by her to have sexual intercourse at her own.  Since he had no 
money, he was falsely implicated in this case.  

13.  Accused Raghubir Singh while denying the entire prosecution case being 
incorrect or for want of knowledge had stated that  at Solang Nalla, the prosecutrix was advised by 

Chuni Pradhan and Hari Ram @ Tikam Ram to go to her house. While answering question No. 32 
and 33 his answer was that since he has good relations with Chuni Pradhan, therefore, it is for 
this reason alone wa s implicated falsely in this case.  

14.  The accused, however, when given an opportunity to lead evidence in their 
defence have opted for not producing any evidence.  

15.  Therefore, learned trial Court on hearing the parties on both sides and on 
appreciation  of the evidence available on record has arrived at a conclusion that the prosecution 
has failed to prove its case against the accused persons beyond all reasonable doubt and had 
acquitted all the accused vide judgment dated 30.9.1992.  

16.  A Division Bench  of this Court vide order dated 28.03.2008 passed in Criminal 
Appeal No. 103/99, filed earlier by the State of Himachal Pradesh against judgment of acquittal 

dated 30.9.1992 passed by learned trial Court had set aside the same and remanded the case to 
the trial Court to alter the charge from Section 376 read with Section 34 of I.P.C. to  the charge of 
gang rape under Sub -section (2) (g) of Section 376 of the Indian Penal Code and to try and decide 
the case afresh as per law.  

17.  On remand the case when lis ted on 2.8.2008 in the trial Court, the prosecutrix 
was recalled to the witness box, however, she stated that her statement recorded earlier as PW -5 
may only be read in evidence and that to the amended charge she had nothing more to add.  
When subjected to  cross -examination her answer was that now she did not remember the facts of 
the case, therefore, leaned Public Prosecutor as per his statement recorded separately had 

adopted the statement of the prosecution witnesses recorded initially and further stated  that he 
did not want to lead any more evidence or to re -examine the witnesses, the prosecution already 
examined.  The prosecution evidence was thus ordered to be closed.  Learned defence counsel 
had also adopted the cross -examination of the witnesses alre ady conducted, as per their joint 
statement recorded on that day.  

18.  Learned trial Judge on hearing learned Public Prosecutor and learned defence 
counsel has again arrived at a conclusion that from the evidence available on record, neither it is 
proved th at the prosecutrix was below 16 years of age nor that she was subjected to sexual 
intercourse forcibly i.e. against her will and without her consent.  In view of the evidence available 

on record, the present, however, was found to be a consensual act of in tercourse.  The accused 
have, therefore, been acquitted of the charge framed under Section 376(2) (g) IPC against each of 
them.  

19.  Aggrieved by the impugned judgment, the appellant -State has questioned the 
legality and validity thereof on the grounds inte r-alia  that the prosecution evidence as has come 
on record by way of own testimony of the prosecutrix and also the admission of the accused 
persons in their statements recorded under Section 313 Cr.P.C is suggestive of that the accused 

have subjected the p rosecutrix, a minor below 16 years of age to sexual intercourse against her 
will and without her consent.  The evidence qua her age below 16 years produced by the 
prosecution has erroneously been ignored.  The medical evidence as has come on record by way 
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of the testimony of PW -4 Dr. Shashi Thakur has also been erroneously brushed aside.  As a 
matter of fact, the testimony of PW -4 has satisfactorily established that the prosecutrix was 
subjected to sexual intercourse.  Undue weightage was given to that part  of her statement in 
which it was stated that no injury could be noticed by her on the person of the prosecutrix 
irrespective of her categoric statement in cross -examination that in case of forcible intercourse 
the injuries on the body of the prosecutrix a re bound to occur.  

20.  As per the prosecution case, the prosecutrix was subjected to sexual intercourse 
by nine persons.  Out of whom Challan was prepared against six accused persons, whereas, two 
had absconded and name of Chuni Pradhan specifically disclo sed by the prosecutrix in her 
statement recorded during the course of trial was initially deleted by the police from the array of 
accused being Pradhan of Ilaqua.  It has further been submitted that the evidence available on 
record has been appreciated in a slip -shod and perfunctory manner and the findings acquitting 

the accused persons of the charge have been based on hypothesis, conjecture and surmises.  The 
impugned judgment as such, has been sought to be quashed and set aside.  

21.  Mr. D.S. Nainta, learn ed Additional Advocate General has argued that the 
solitary statement of the prosecutrix in this case is sufficient to bring guilt home to the accused, 
in view of the plea they themselves raised in their defence.  It is also argued that the prosecutrix 
was minor at the time of occurrence, therefore, the plea that she was the consenting party as 
sought is hardly of any consequence.  It is established that all the accused had ravished an 
innocent village and minor girl and for such ghastly act, they should ha ve been convicted and 
sentenced in accordance with law.  

22.  On the other hand, according to Mr. R.L. Sood, learned Senior Advocate assisted 
by Mr. Arjun Lal, Advocate the prosecution has failed to prove its case against the accused 
persons beyond all reaso nable doubt.  According to Mr. Sood, it is not at all proved that the 
prosecutrix was minor but the own evidence produced by the prosecution itself reveals that she 
was major and had attained the age of discretion.  Even her own statement is suggestive of that 
she was a consenting party to sexual intercourse committed with her by the accused persons.  
He, therefore, has urged that well considered and reasoned judgment, whereby the accused have 
been acquitted of the charge need no interference by this Court in the present appeal.  The appeal 
has, therefore, been sought to be dismissed.  

23.  At the very out set, it is clarified that out of nine accused, charge was framed 
against six namely, Raghubir Singh, Hari Ram, Ravi Parkash, Sunil Kumar, Vijay Kumar and An il 
Kumar @ Bittu.  Accused Munna and Ninnu had absconded and were declared proclaimed 
offender.  Challan against Chuni Pradhan was not filed allegedly for want of sufficient evidence 
and his name was placed in column No. 2 of the Challan.  Later on an appl ication under Section 
319 Cr.P.C filed by the prosecution though he was arrayed as one of the accused persons, 
however, vide order dated 24.12.1991 passed in the trial at the stage of consideration of charge, 
no case was found to be made out against him ev en prima -facie and as such, he was discharged.  
The order of discharge of the said accused was not assailed, however, in the grounds of present 
appeal and also in that of criminal appeal No. 103/93, previously filed against the judgment 
dated 30.9.1992 pas sed by learned trial Court initially in this case the order discharging the said 
accused has been assailed on the ground that irrespective of statement Ext. P -G and the 

supplementary statement mark D -A of the prosecutrix not implicate accused Chuni Lal, Pr adhan 
in the commission of the offence, however, she in her statement recorded in the Court has 
specifically stated that said Chuni Lal Pradhan had also exploited her sexually and this fact was 
revealed by her to the police when her statement (supplementar y) was recorded.  The complaint, 
therefore, is that the police had deleted the name of said accused merely on account of he being 
the Pradhan of ilaqua.  This part of the controversy is left open to be considered in this judgment 
at a later stage.  Such de tail, however, was necessary for the purpose of completion of the facts 
because initially six accused were charged and tried with the commission of offence punishable 

under Section 376 IPC.  However, on finding that in the impugned judgment the name of onl y five 
accused figured, it transpired from the trial Court record that after remand of the case vide order 
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dated 28.3.2008, passed by a co -ordinate Bench of this Court, learned trial Judge had to issue 
summons to the accused as they failed to put in appear ance on the ate fixed by this Court.  It is 
accused Raghubir Singh, Vijay Kumar, Ravi Parkash, Hari Ram and Sunil Kumar could be served 
with the summons so issued and as regards accused Anil Kumar @ Bittu, he was reported to 
have expired.  It is so recorde d by learned trial Court in the order passed on 28.5.2008.  

24.  The present is a case of gang rape.  Therefore, the accused have been charged 
with the commission of offence punishable under Section 376(2) (g) of the Indian Penal Code.  
What is rape is defin ed under Section 375 of the Indian Penal Code.  The necessary ingredients to 
infer the commission of offence of rape against a woman are: firstly, the accused committed 
sexual intercourse with a woman secondly, such sexual intercourse was (i) against her w ill, and 
(ii) without her consent, thirdly, whether such consent was obtained by putting her or any of her 
relation or interested person in fear of death or hurt, fourthly consent was taken under deceitful 

belief that accused was her husband fifthly, the c onsent was taken when she was incapable of 
understanding its nature and consequences due to (i) unsoundness of mind, (ii) intoxication, (iii) 
administration of any stupefying drug or substance by the accused personally or through some 
one else and sixthly,  when accused is husband and woman was below 16 years of age (now 18 
years).  

25.  The present is a case where according to the prosecution, the prosecutrix a minor 
below 16 years was subjected to sexual intercourse by the accused persons and as such falls 
within the sixth situation hereinabove.  

26.  In a case of rape of a minor, it is the age aspect which assumes considerable 
significance. The prosecution claims the age of the prosecutrix below 16 years.  As per date of 
birth certificate Ext. P -S issued by P W-10, the Secretary, Gram Panchayat, Nasogi.  The date of 
birth of the prosecutrix is 1.1.1978.  The school leaving certificate Ext. P -R find mentioned her 
date of birth as 2.2.1974.  The third document is the extract of parivar register, in which her age 
find mentioned as four years.  Now if coming to the legal position, the entries in the birth and 
death register have to be believed as primary evidence of course if original record is produced.  
The particulars of the person who got entered entries qua bir th of the persons whose age is to be 
determined must establish on record.  The another primary piece of evidence in this regard can 
be the date of birth entered in the primary school or the school where such person was admitted 
in first/nursery/K.G class a s the case may be, however, subject to further evidence i.e. statement 
of the person at whose instance such admission was made in the school and declaration qua the 
date of birth and other particulars mentioned in the admission form,  in case such person i s alive 
and also the production of the original record maintained in the school by the headmaster or any 
other employee of the school in the discharge of his official duties.  We may draw support in this 
regard from the judgment of a Single Bench of this C ourt in Criminal Appeal No. 419 of 2012 , 
titled Ramu  V. State of Himachal Pradesh , decided on 21 st  November, 2014 .  The relevant 
extract of this judgment is reproduced here as under: - 

19. The primary evidence qua the date of birth of a person is the entry in the 
Birth and Death Register. As noticed supra, the date of birth of the prosecutrix 
has been entered in the Birth and Death Register at the instance of some Govind 

Ram. Said Govind Ram has not been associated during the course of 

investigation. In case  the entries were made at the instance of grand -father of the 
prosecutrix, he should have been examined. The production of a certificate 
allegedly from the Birth and Death Register, which is neither properly paged nor 
contains any certificate and rather pa ges in between the last entry dated 4 th  
September, 1996 and the entry qua the date of birth of the prosecutrix are blank, 
is not sufficient to discharge the onus by the prosecution to prove that the 
prosecutrix is born on 5 th  August, 1997. A reference can be made to the 
judgment of the Apex Court in Birad Mal Singhvi  v. Anand Purohit 1988 
(Supp) SCC 604,  which reads as follows:  
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"To render a document admissible under Section 35, three conditions must 
be satisfied, firstly, entry that is relied on must be one  in a public or other 
official book, register or record; secondly, it must be an entry stating a fact 
in issue or relevant fact; and thirdly, it must be made by a public servant in 
discharge of his official duty, or any other person in performance of a dut y 
specially enjoined by law. An entry relating to date of birth made in the 
school register is relevant and admissible under Section 35 of the Act but 
the entry regarding the age of a person in a school register is of not much 
evidentiary value to prove th e age of the person in the absence of the 
material on which the age was recorded."  

20.  Similar is the ratio of the judgment again that of Honõble Apex Court Madan 
Mohan Singh and others  v. Rajni Kant and another, AIR 2010 SC 2933 , 

which reads as follows:  

ò18. Therefore, a document may be admissible, but as to whether the entry 

contained therein has any probative value may still be required to be 
examined in the facts and circumstances of a particular case. The aforesaid 
legal proposition stands fortified by the judgments of this Court in Ram 
Prasad Sharma Vs. State of Bihar AIR 1970 SC 326; Ram Murti Vs. State of 
Haryana AIR 1970 SC 1029; Dayaram & Ors. Vs. Dawalatshah & Anr. AIR 
1971 SC 681; Harpal Singh & Anr. Vs. State of Himachal Pradesh AIR 1981 
SC 36 1; Ravinder Singh Gorkhi Vs. State of U.P. (2006) 5 SCC 584; Babloo 
Pasi Vs. State of Jharkhand & Anr. (2008) 13 SCC 133; Desh Raj Vs. Bodh 
Raj AIR 2008 SC 632; and Ram Suresh Singh Vs. Prabhat Singh @Chhotu 
Singh & Anr. (2009) 6 SCC 681. In these cases, i t has been held that even if 
the entry was made in an official record by the concerned official in the 
discharge of his official duty, it may have weight but still may require 
corroboration by the person on whose information the entry has been made 
and as to whether the entry so made has been exhibited and proved. The 
standard of proof required herein is the same as in other civil and criminal 
cases. 

19. éééééééééééééééééé.. 

20. So far as the entries made in the official record by an official or person 
auth orized in performance of official duties are concerned, they may be 
admissible under Section 35 of the Evidence Act but the court has a right to 
examine their probative value. The authenticity of the entries would depend 
on whose information such entries s tood recorded and what was his source 
of information. The entries in School Register/ School Leaving Certificate 
require to be proved in accordance with law and the standard of proof 
required in such cases remained the same as in any other civil or crimina l 
cases.ó 

21. Significantly, in the statement under Section 313 of the Code of Criminal 

Procedure of the accused a question has been put to him that the age of the 

prosecutrix was between 15½ - 16½ years. This reveals that the prosecution 
itself is not sur e as to what was the exact age of the prosecutrix at that time and 
rather as per its own version, her age was 15½ - 16½ years. No question has 
been put to the accused that the prosecutrix being born on 5 th  August, 1997 was 
minor, in his statement under Sec tion 313 of the Code of Criminal Procedure. 
Therefore, such incriminating circumstance appeared in the prosecution evidence 
cannot be used against him. It is held so by the Apex Court  in Sharad 
Birdhichand Sarda  v. State of Maharashtra, AIR 1984 SC 1622 , as under:  

ò142. Apart from the aforesaid comments there is one vital defect in some of 
the circumstances mentioned above and relied upon by the High Court, viz., 
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circumstances Nos. 4, 5, 6, 8, 9, 11, 12, 13, 16 and 17. As these 
circumstances were not put to the appellant in his statement under Section 
313 of the Criminal Procedure Code they must be completely excluded from 
consideration because the appellant did not have any chance to explain 
them. This has been consistently held by this Court as far back as 1953 
where in the case of Hate Singh Bhagat Singh v. State of Madhya Bharat 
AIR 1953 SC 468 this Court held that any circumstance in respect of which 
an accused was not examined under Section 342 of the Criminal Procedure 
Code cannot be used against him . Ever since this decision, there is a catena 
of authorities of this Court uniformly taking the view that unless the 
circumstance appearing against an accused is put to him in his 
examination under Section 342 or Section 313 of the Criminal Procedure 
Code, the same cannot be used against him. In Shamu Balu Chaugule v. 

State of Maharashtra, (1976) 1 SCC 438 this Court held thus:  

"The fact that the appellant was said to be absconding, 
not having been put to him under Section 342, Criminal 
Procedure Code, coul d not be used against him . 

144. It is not necessary for us to multiply authorities on this point as this 
question now stands concluded by several decisions of this Court. In this 
view of the matter, the circumstances which were not put to the appellant 
in his examination under Section 313 of the Criminal Procedure Code have 
to be completely excluded from consideration.ó  

22. This Court has held in State of H.P.  v. Phurva and others, Latest HLJ 
2011 (HP) 490 , as under:  

ò19. In present like cases, age of the Prosecutrix is of utmost importance. 
Prosecutrix though at the time of her examination has stated that she was 
17 years of age, yet there is no document with respect to the date of birth 
obtained by the police during investigation of the case, from the con cerned 
Panchayat or from any School or Institution where she was admitted and 
studied. However, the prosecution has put its reliance only on the 
ossification report Ext. PW10/C showing her between 16 -17 years on the 
basis of the epiphysis of bones. To prov e this report PW10 Dr. G. D. Gaur 
was examined. His opinion is based upon the study of Dr. M.L. Aggarwal 
and I.C. Pathak in Punjab Region which has no hilly terrace. He also 
admitted that the development of bone depends on hereditary, dietary, 

harmonious f actors, climatic condition and it varies from place to place. He 
also admitted that assessment of the age on the basis of fusion of bones is 
not a perfect science. It is also equally fallacious to apply the study of Dr. 
M.L. Aggarwal and I.C. Pathak to hil ly terrace with respect to their studies 
which they have conducted in Punjab region. Admittedly, both the parties, 
in this case belong to tribal area of Lahaul where development of the bones 
differs considerably from the subject which is in the plain and w armer 
areas. The pubic signs appear early in warmer and lower parts of India 

whereas physical development, fusion of bones and also puberty is always 
delayed in the hilly areas. Thus giving the benefit of +2 years on both sides, 
as per the Modiõs Jurisprudence, the age of the prosecutrix comes to 18 -19 
years at the relevant time and in any case above the age of discretion.ó 

27.  If coming to the case in hand, neither certificate Ext. P -S nor Ext. P -R can be 
termed as primary evidence to infer that the prosec utrix was born on 1.1.1978 or 2.2.1974 for the 
reason that PW -10 Gian Chand, Secretary Gram Panchayat, Nasogi has not produced the original 
Birth and Death register being not available as the same according to him was deposited in the 
office of Chief Medic al Officer, Kullu.  Since no -one has been associated nor examined during the 
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course of trial from the school nor record such as admission and withdrawal register produced, 
therefore, school leaving certificate Ext. P -R cannot be treated as legal and valid evidence qua the 
date of birth of the prosecutrix as 2.2.1974.  

28.  Now if coming to the extract of parivar register Ext. P -T, the same is again of no 
help to the prosecution for the reason that firstly the date of birth of the prosecutrix does not find 
men tioned therein and rather she has been shown four years of age in this document and 
secondly, the entries in the parivar register cannot be treated as legal and acceptable evidence 
qua date of birth or age of a person.  Support in this regard can also be d rawn from the judgment 
of a Co -ordinate Bench of this Court in Ajnana Devi @ Anju V. State of Himachal Pradesh along 
with its connected matters, decided on 24 th  June, 2016.  The relevant extract of the judgment 
reads as follows: - 

19. In similar circumstanc es this Court has already held such certificate not to 

have established the correct date of birth. [State of H.P. v. Narender Kumar alias 
Hira and others, 2010 Cri.L.J. 3545].  

20. The Apex Court in  Birad Mal Singhvi v. Anand Purohit, (1988) Supp. 1 SCC 
604 has  held that òTo render a  document admissible under Section 35, three 
conditions must be satisfied, firstly, entry that is relied on must be one in a 
public or other official book, register or record;  secondly, it must be an entry 
stating a fact in i ssue or relevant fact; and thirdly, it must be made by a public 
servant in discharge of his official duty, or any other person  in performance of a 
duty specially enjoined by law. An entry relating to date of birth made in the 
school register is relevant a nd admissible under Section 35 of the Act but the 
entry regarding the age of a person in a school register is of not much evidentiary 

value to prove the age of the person in the absence of the material on which the 
age was recorded." [Emphasis supplied]  

21 . The principle stands reiterated in Ravinder Singh Gorkhi vs. State of U.P, 
(2006) 5 SCC 584 and  Ram Suresh Singh vs. Prabhat Singh, (2009) 6 SCC 681.  

22. As such, not much credence can be lent to the certificates more so when it 
has not come on record a s to who got these entries recorded at the time of 
admission of the child in the school. Consequently certificates (Ext.PW -8/B and 
Ext.PW -12/A) cannot be accepted to be legal evidence proving the factum of date 
of birth of the prosecutrix.  

23. Thus, it can  safely be held that the findings returned by the Court below qua 
the age of the prosecutrix are totally borne out from the record.  

29.  If coming to the ocular version qua this aspect of the matter,  the prosecutrix on 
8.4.1992 while in the witness box ha d disclosed her age as 17 years.  Since the occurrence is 
dated 8.7.1989, therefore, if the age so given by her on the date of her examination is believed to 
be true, she was +14 years when assaulted by the accused sexually.  Though, she has not been 
cross -examined qua her age aspect as she disclosed in her examination -in -chief.  There being no 
documentary evidence showing her age below 16 years of age and the certificates Ext. P -S and P -
R rather contain two different date of births i.e. 1.1.1978 and 2.2.19 74 respectively.  Therefore, it 

cannot be believed that she was 17 years of age on the date of her examination i.e. 8.4.1992 or 
above fourteen years on the date of occurrence i.e. 8.7.1989.  

30.  Now if coming to the testimony of her mother PW -6, the prosecu trix was her 
second child as the eldest one has died.  According to her she had married at the age of 16 years, 
however, voluntarily stated that at the age of 14 years and the child who had expired was born to 
her when she was 18 years of age.  However, ag ain said that at the age of16 years.  She expressed 
her ignorance that prosecutrix was born to her after two years of her marriage, however, it is 
denied that the prosecutrix is of 20 years of age.  Her statement is vague and absurd so far as the 
age of th e prosecutrix is concerned.  Therefore, the same cannot also be believed to be true to 
arrive at a conclusion that on the day of occurrence the prosecutrix was below 16 years of age.  
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31.  On the other hand, the radiological age of the prosecutrix has been a ssessed 
between 16 to 17 years as has come in the statement of PW -3 Dr. V.K. Mutreja.  This witness has 
also admitted that there could be variation of three years on either side while determining the 
radiological age. Therefore, the medical evidence which has been considered in its right 
perspective by learned trial Court, it cannot be said that the prosecutrix was below 16 years of 
age.  

32.  In view of the discussion qua age aspect of the prosecutrix, the prosecution has 
miserably failed to prove that she was 16 years of age on the day when assaulted sexually.   

33.    Therefore, assuming her age above 16 years, the next question which has 
engaged our attention is whether the present is a case of commission of sexual intercourse with 
the prosecutrix by the a ccused persons with her consent or forcibly, i.e. without her consent and 
against her will.  In the given facts and circumstances and also the evidence as has come on 

record by way of sole testimony of the prosecutrix, the present, to us, appears to be a c ase where 
the prosecutrix at the most can be said to have accompanied accused No. 5 Vijay Kumar 
voluntarily because as per her own testimony, the said accused was sitting by her side in the 
video parlour and he made her to agree to accompany him to Vashist h bath, though she was 
taken to Solang Nalla side.  She seems to have acquaintance with the said accused as it has come 
in her statement that he had shown his interest to solemnize marriage with her.  As per 
arrangement between them, when came out of the p arlour, she walked ahead of accused No. 5 as 
he had told her to wait for him on the bridge in the town itself.  Accordingly, she reached on the 
bridge and accused No. 5 came behind in a taxi which was being occupied by accused Munna 
and accused No. 3 Ravi Prakash.  She was made to sit in the jeep and taken to Solang Nalla side.  
Meaning thereby that she only agreed to accompany accused Munna and Ravi Prakash.  As per 
further version, accused stopped the vehicle on road side and she was taken by accused No. 5 
Vijay to Nalla in the valley side, whereas, his co -accused Munna and Ravi Prakash got themselves 
concealed on the road nearby the jeep.  Accused No. 5 behind a big boulder committed sexual 
intercourse with her without her consent as according to her she resisted (I said no) commission 
of rape with her by the said accused.  Though she had got up, however, in the meanwhile accused 
Munna and accused No. 3 Ravi Prakash as well as accused No. 4 Sunil @ Bittu (since dead) had 
also came there in a Gypsy with acc used Ninnu. Accused No. 4 caught hold her arm and he as 
well as his co -accused Anil @ Bittu, Ninnu and Munna (proclaimed offender) have also assaulted 
her sexually.  She cried before they could commit sexual intercourse with her, howver, accused 

No. 4 thre atened her to keep shut lest they would do away with her life.  Not only this but as per 
her further testimony, around 6.00 p.m. accused No. 1 Raghubir, accused Chuni Pradhan, 
accused Hira Lal (name wrongly stated as he is accused No. 2 Hari Ramj) met her at Solang Nalla. 
On seeing them that they are local persons, she went to them.  Accused Chuni Pradhan and 
Raghubir (Accused No. 1) told her to go to her house.  She could not reveal the incident of rape 
having taken place with her to the said accused as sh e was immediately lifted and put in the 
Gypsy which was boarded by accused No. 1 Raghubir Singh, Munna, Chuni Pradhan and 
accused No. 2 Hari Ram @ Tikam.  She was brought by them to Kenchi Mor.  By that time, it was 
almost dark. At Kenchi Mor, accused No. 1 Raghubir Singh, Accused Ninnu, Accused No. 3 Ravi 
Prakash, accused No. 2 Hari Ram and accused Chuni Pradhan had subjected her to sexual 
intercourse.  She insisted and requested the said accused persons that she wanted to go home 

and that drop her at her place lest her parents would beat her, but of no avail.  She was left in 
the road and they all went to her respective places.  She shouted on them that she also wants to 
go with them but they did not stop the Gypsy and as such she was left behind on the ro ad.  She 
remained on the road for longtime and when a truck came from Lahaul side, she took lift in that 
truck and came to Manali bazaar from where she went to her house.  

34.  Above statement of the prosecutrix that she was subjected to sexual intercourse 
by each and very accused persons need no corroboration because as noticed hereinabove, 
accused No. 5 Vijay Kumar, deceased accused Anil Kumar @ Bittu, accused No. 1 Raghubir 
Singh, accused No. 2 Hari Ram, accused No. 3 Ravi Prakash and accused No. 4 Sunil Kumar who 
have been charged with the commission of offence punishable under Section 376(2)(g) IPC have 
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admitted that they subjected the prosecutrix to sexual intercourse.  The explanation as set -forth 
by them, however, is that it is she who invited them to  have sexual intercourse with her.  They 
were subjecting her to sexual intercourse with her consent earlier also. However, on this 
occasion, she demanded money i.e. Rs. 100/ - from each of them and as accused No. 5 offered Rs. 
20/ -, whereas, accused No. 4 R s. 50/ - and accused No. 3 Ravi Prakash and accused Anil @ Bittu 
had no money to pay to her, therefore, it is for this reason, she implicated them in this case 
falsely.  

35.  Mr. R.L. Sood, learned arguing counsel while drawing the attention of this Court 
to the statement of prosecutrix in her cross -examination that she walked ahead of accused No. 5 
and waited for him at the bridge where he came with his co -accused Munna (proclaimed offender) 
and accused No. 3 Ravi Prakash in a vehicle, she boarded the vehicle , her admission that it was a 
crowded area where shops and residences were in existence, went to Nalla with accused Vijay 

Kumar by covering a distance of two furlang where she was sexually assaulted by the said 
accused, accused Munna and accused No. 3 came  there in another Gypsy, accused No. 4 Sunil, 
accused Anil @ Bittu (since dead) and accused Ninnu (proclaimed offender) also came there in the 
said Gypsy and subjected her to sexual intercourse, establish that she was a consenting party to 
sexual intercour se by the accused with her. According to Mr. Sood, she did not raise any hue and 
cry and rather walked ahead of accused No. 5 while going to bridge through Manali market.  She 
boarded the Gypsy voluntarily at her own.  The Gypsy crossed the shops in existe nce on road 
side.  She did not cry for help.  Her further testimony that she saw accused Raghubir Singh, 
accused Chuni Pradhan and accused Hari Ram sitting in Solang Nalla and went to them who 
advised her to go to house, her conduct in not narrating the in cident of sexual assault with her to 
them and her admission that she took tea and biscuits with them at Solang Nalla also 

demonstrates that she had no grudge against the accused persons, who according to him had 
subjected her to sexual intercourse with her  consent.  Had it not been so, she would have 
complained to accused No. 1 Raghubir Singh, accused Chuni Pradhan and accused No. 2 Hari 
Ram against their co -accused who had already assaulted her sexually when she met them.  Also 
that instead of going to hom e as advised by the said accused, she took tea and biscuits with 
them.  Not only this but she according to her statement accompanied the said accused persons in 
the Gypsy to Kenchi Mor. Therefore, if she was subjected to sexual intercourse by the said 
accu sed also, such an act with her was also voluntary and consensual.   

36.  We are not in agreement with the argument so addressed on behalf of the 

accused person for the reason that all the accused had ganged up and in a planned manner.  
Accused No. 5 managed  her to accompany him from the video parlour.  As already pointed out, 
the present at the most can be said to be a case of voluntarily accompanying the said accused by 
the prosecutrix.  She was not a consenting party to accompany the other accused.  She wa s not a 
consenting party even with accused No. 5.  The said accused has rather subjected her to sexual 
intercourse forcibly against her will and without her consent because she has categorically stated 
that she resisted the commission of such an act with h er by the said accused ôby saying noõ but 
he did not stop.  Even if it is believed that she was a consenting party, the said consent was only 
qua commission of sexual intercourse with her by accused No. 5 and not by the said accused 
persons for the reason that firstly it is accused No. 5 who had taken her to the Nalla behind the 
big boulder and subjected her to sexual intercourse there.  His co -accused i.e. accused No. 4 

Sunil, accused Anil @ Bittu (since dead), accused Ninu and Munna (proclaimed offender) had also 
come down at such a stage when she had already got up after being assaulted sexually by 
accused No. 5. Though she cried before the aforesaid accused persons who have ravished her 
sexually but of no avail as accused No. 4 threatened her to keep shu t lest, they would do away 
with her life.  No cross -examination of the prosecutrix qua this aspect of the matter has been 
conducted.  While in the witness box she has categorically stated that accused No. 1 Raghubir 
Singh, accused No. 2 Hari Ram and accuse d Chuni Lal Pradhan who were present at Solang Nalla 
had made her to board Gypsy with them and they also boarded the same with accused Munna 
and Ninnu (proclaimed offender) and accused No. 1 Raghubir Singh.  They all subjected her to 
sexual intercourse at Kenchi Mor. She was subjected to sexual intercourse by all of them at that 
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place.  By that time it became dark.  A tender age girl in the company of five able bodied persons 
could have not got herself freed from them.  Therefore, the argument so addressed on their behalf 
that she did not raise any hue and cry is hardly of any help to the accused for the reason that 
raising hue and cry would have been of no help to her nor she could have got herself freed from 
their clutches by anyone as it was a case of gan g rape.  How such a ghastly act with a girl of 
tender age like the prosecutrix by the accused many in number could have been avoided by her 
or can be treated as a consensual act?  The findings recorded by learned trial Judge that after 
such a ghastly act h aving been committed with the prosecutrix, she would have so scared that on 
seeing local people (accused No. 1 Raghubir Singh, accused No. 2 Hari Ram) narrated the 
incident to them instead of having tea and biscuits with them. She would have tried to rush to 
her house as advised by accused No. 1, accused Chuni Pradhan and not agreed to travel with 
them in their taxi, in which not only the said two accused but accused Munna, Ninnu and 
accused Chuni Pradhan were also sitting for the reason that the so called local persons i.e. 

accused No. 1 and accused No. 2 whom the prosecutrix had believed to be of some help to her 

were as a matter of fact not her sympathizer because had it been so, they would have given lift to 
her in their vehicle and dropped safe at her i n Manali town or taken her to police station to lodge 
FIR against the incident.  No doubt, as per her version said accused No. 1 and accused Chuni 
Pradhan had advised her to go to home but when it was 6.00 p.m. by that time and in view of 
topography of Man ali town and Solang Nalla where sun sets at early hours of the day and the 
possibility of it being dark at that time, cannot be ruled out.  Since they offered tea and biscuits 
to her, therefore, obviously she may have accepted the same believing them her s ympathizer.   It 
is they who made her to board the taxi and it being darkness she boarded the taxi but their illegal 
designs to subject her to sexual intercourse on the way most probably were not in her knowledge.  
Therefore, accused No. 1 Raghubir Singh, accused No. 2 Hari Ram and prima -facie  accused 
Chuni Pradhan (discharged from the case) as well as co -accused Munna and Ninnu (proclaimed 
offender) by taking undue advantage of their position to dominate the will of the prosecutrix who 
had been traveling w ith them in a state of helplessness was also subjected to sexual intercourse 
by each of them, which again cannot be said to be an act of consensual sexual intercourse.  The 
observations made by learned trial Judge that she would have tried to rush to her h ouse as 
advised by accused No. 1 and accused Chuni Pradhan are again far fetched for the reason that in 
view of the time being 6.00 p.m. and the night already having set in, how a lonely tender age girl 
could have traveled to her native place at Manali. Th is aspect has not been taken into 
consideration by learned trial Judge.  The above said accused who being locals and considered by 
her to be of some help to her have taken undue advantage of her loneliness and they also 
subjected her to sexual intercourse.   Therefore, instead of criticizing the prosecutrix, learned trial 
Judge should have taken into consideration such unbecoming behaviour of the said accused.  
The argument addressed by Mr. R.L. Sood, learned arguing counsel qua this aspect of the matter 
and  law laid down by the apex Court in Raja and others  V. State of Karnataka, 2016(10) SCC 
506  are of no help to their case.  Not only this but the law laid down by the apex Court in Rajaõs 
case (supra) is also distinguishable on facts.   

37.  The improvements  that she raised hue and cry at Solang Nalla when accused 
tried to commit rape with her and accused Sunil Kumar had threatened to kill her and that Bittu 
did not commit rape on her at Solang Nalla but at Kenchi Mor, even if are there, is hardly of any 

cons equence because the fault, if any, lies on the part of the investigating agency and the 
possibility of the I.O. having not recorded her statement as per her version, which in the case in 
hand is just possible as the accused being influential persons, they seem to have influenced the 

investigation of the case also. At the most, the investigation can be said to be faulty and as such 
the version of the prosecutrix in the witness box cannot be said to be false, more particularly, 
when the accused have admittedl y assaulted her sexually.  Her testimony that it took 5 -6 
minutes to accused Vijay to convince her to accompany him to Vashisth bath could have not been 
considered to arrive at a conclusion that she was a consenting party to the sexual intercourse 
committe d by the accused person with her for the reason that the said accused had asked to 
accompany her to Vashisth bath and not Solang Nalla and she consented only to accompany him 
and none else.  She may have agreed to accompany accused No. 5 as he was known to  her 
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because as per her version, he offered himself to solemnize marriage with her.   How 
accompanying voluntarily with a known person could be taken to believe that she was a 
consenting party to have sexual intercourse with such person; learned trial Judg e has failed to 
explain.  When she never consented to accompany other accused persons and even for the 
commission of sexual intercourse with her by accused Vijay, therefore, it is established that she 
objected to and resisted such ghastly act committed upo n her by the accused persons.  In view of 
evidence on record, her so called consent was obtained by them under fear of her own life, 
causing hurt to her.  

38.  As noticed hereinabove, the accused have not denied that they have subjected 
the prosecutrix to se xual intercourse.   However, their defence is that since they failed to pay 
money to her, she demanded from each of them, therefore, it is for this reason, they have been 
implicated in this case falsely.  When it is proved and held by us that she was not a  consenting 

party and rather subjected to sexual intercourse without her consent and against her will, 
therefore, the plea so raised is hardly of any help to them.  It is well settled that even a woman of 
easy virtue and for that matter a prostitute cannot  also be subjected to sexual intercourse against 
her will and without her consent.  Learned trial Judge has failed to appreciate this aspect of the 
matter.  Instead of appreciating that nine males have sexually assaulted a tender aged girl and 
holding them  guilty of the commission of offence, learned trial Judge has went on to criticize the 
prosecutrix.  Even if she was of easy virtue could have never consented to have sexual intercourse 
with this much number of persons (accused herein) i.e., nine.  Such an  approach of learned trial 
Court in this matter cannot be termed as legally and factually sustainable.  The present is a case 
where sole testimony of the prosecutrix is sufficient to bring the guilt home to the accused 
persons.  The Apex Court in State of Punjab  V. Gurmeet Singh and others, AIR 1996 SC 

1393  has held that own statement of the prosecutrix if inspires confidence is sufficient to bring 
guilt home to the accused persons.  

39.  As noticed supra, the prosecutrix in unequivocal terms has supported h er 
version in her statement Ext. P -G recorded under Section 154 Cr.P.C. She has also stated 
whatever she has deposed in her supplementary statement mark D -A, while in the witness box.  
In her cross -examination, she has categorically stated that she disclos ed the name of Chuni 
Pradhan on each and every occasion when her statements were recorded by the police.  Even 
accused Ravi Prakash while answering question No. 13 in his statement under Section 313 
Cr.P.C. has admitted that besides Raghubir, Ninnu, Hari R am @ Tikam Ram and Chuni Pradhan 

had also subjected the prosecutrix to sexual intercourse at Kenchi Mor.  The so called 
improvements to her earlier version in Ext. P -G or mark D -A to our mind are not owing to her 
acts and conduct but the possibility of the  I.O. having not recorded her statement as per her 
version cannot be ruled -out.  She has only been cross -examined to show that she did not raise 
any hue and cry irrespective of taken in the vehicle by the accused through Vashisth bazaar 
where shops and hou ses are in existence, Palchan through the barricades put by the army and 
irrespective of tourist flow to Solang Nalla area.  Though, it is correct, however, initially they were 
only three accused i.e. accused No. 5 Vijay Kumar, accused No. 3, Ravi Prakash and accused 
Munna, who was driving the taxi on their way to Solang Nalla side.  As observed hereinabove, she 
had voluntarily accompanied accused Vijay, however, it cannot be inferred that she did so to have 
sexual intercourse with the said accused, what to  speak of the remaining accused namely Ravi 

Prakash and accused Munna the (proclaimed offender). As per her statement under Section 154 
Cr.P.C and also her testimony while in the witness box the said accused got themselves hided on 
the road nearby the Gyps y and they appeared at the place where she was subjected to sexual 
intercourse by the said accused when she had already got up after having exploited sexually by 
accused Vijay against her will and without her consent.  The present as such is a case where 
accused had ganged up and it was part of the conspiracy they hatched that accused No. 5 Vijay 
who had intimacy with her was assigned the task to bring her so that she could be subjected to 
sexual intercourse by them turn by turn and in a manner as discussed  hereinabove as well as 
having come on record.  
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40.   Therefore, not only accused No. 5 Vijay but his co -accused No. 1 to 4 namely, 
Raghubir Singh, Hari Ram, Ravi Prakash and Sunil Kumar (respondents herein) all have 
assaulted the prosecutrix sexually witho ut her consent and against her will.  The present being a 
case of gang rape, they should have been convicted and sentenced by learned trial Court.  The 
findings of acquittal recorded by the Court below for all the reasons discussed hereinabove are 
neither legally nor factually sustainable. In view of the evidence discussed hereinabove, accused 
persons Munna and Ninnu who are absconding have also prima -facie assaulted the prosecutrix 
sexually.  Their guilt, however, is yet to establish as and when they will surrender in the Court or 
produced in custody by police after holding trial against them. As discussed hereinabove, charge 
should have also been framed against accused Chuni Lal as prima -facie case is made out against 
him also.  The order of his discharge as such is not legally sustainable.  

41.  In view of what has been said hereinabove, the present is not a case where it can 

be said that the prosecution has failed to prove its case against the accused beyond all 
reasonable doubt.  The reappraisal of the evi dence by us rather leads to the only conclusion that 
all the accused persons have assaulted the prosecutrix sexually against her will and without her 
consent.  The charge under Section 376(2)(g) of the Indian Penal Code framed against them is, 
therefore, f ully established on record.  Being so, the only inescapable conclusion would be that 
the accused have committed the offence punishable under Section 376(2)(g) of the Indian Penal 
Code.  They all, therefore, are convicted accordingly.  The findings of their  acquittal as recorded 
by learned trial Judge are quashed and set aside.  They are directed to surrender to their bail 
bonds and be produced in the Court on 31.03.2017 for being heard on the quantum of sentence.  

42.  Before parting with this judgment, we sh all be failing in our duty if not issue a 
direction to the appellant -State to file a report qua the steps taken to ascertain the whereabouts 
of the proclaimed offenders Munna and Ninnu and also qua attachment of their moveable and 
immovable property, if an y, well before the next date.   We also leave it open to consider and pass 
appropriate orders qua the prosecution of accused Chuni Lal in this case on the next date after 
affording an opportunity of being heard to him. Notice, therefore, be issued to said Chuni Lal also 
for the date fixed on his address to be filed by the appellant -State within a week from today. 
Judgment to continue.  

**********************************************************************************************  

BEFORE HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE MANSOOR AHMAD MIR, C.J.  

ICICI Lombard General Insurance Company Limited  éAppellant. 

      Versus  

Smt. Preeti and others      éRespondents. 

             FAO No. 427 of 2012  

             Decided on: 03.03.2017  

 

Motor Vehicles Act, 1988 - Section 166 - MACT held that the deceased being a daily wager was 
earning Rs. 300/ - per day for 25 days in a month and assessed his income as Rs. 7,500/ - per 
month - held, that the wages of a daily wager are not more than Rs. 200/ - per day - therefore, the 
monthly income of the dec eased would have been Rs. 6,000/ - per month ð 1/3 rd  was to be 

deducted towards personal expenses - the claimants have lost source of dependency of Rs. 
4,000/ - per month - the deceased was aged 23 years at the time of accident ð multiplier of 18 was 
rightly a pplied by the Tribunal ð claimants are entitled to Rs. 4,000/ - x 12 x 18= Rs. 8,64,000/ - 
under the head loss of dependency - claimants are also entitled to Rs. 10,000/ - each under the 
heads loss of consortium, loss of estate, loss of love and affection and funeral expenses - thus, 
claimants are entitled to Rs. 9,04,000/ - with interest awarded by the Tribunal. (Para - 5 to 11)  

 

Cases referred:  

Sarla Verma (Smt) and others versus Delhi Transport Corporation and another,  (2009) 6 

Supreme Court Cases 121  
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Reshma Kumari & Ors. versus Madan Mohan & Anr., 2013 AIR SCW 3120  
 

For the appellant:  Mr. Jagdish Thakur, Advocate.  

For the respondents:  Mr. Umesh Kanwar, Advocate, vice Mr. Manish Sharma, 
Advocate, for respondents No. 1 to 4.  

 Mr. Kishore Pundeer, Advocate, for respondent No. 5.  

 Nemo for respondent No. 6.  

 

 The following judgment of the Court was delivered:  

 

Mansoor Ahmad Mir, Chief Justice.  (Oral)  

 Subject matter of this appeal is award, dated 18 th  September, 2012, made by the 
Motor Accident Claims Tribunal ( III), Shimla, H.P. (for short "the Tribunal") in M.A.C. Petition No. 
27 -S/2 of 12/09, titled as Smt. Preeti and others versus Shri Dhirender Singh Chauhan and 
others, whereby compensation to the tune of  11,10,000/ - with interest @ 8% per annum from 
the d ate of the petition till its realization came to be awarded in favour of claimants No. 1, 2 & 4 
(for short òthe claimantsó) and against the insurer (for short òthe impugned awardó). 

2. The claimants, owner -insured and driver of the offending vehicle have n ot 
questioned the impugned award on any count, thus, has attained finality so far it relates to them.  

3.  Appellant -insurer has called in question the impugned award on the grounds 
taken in the memo of appeal.  

4.  Learned counsel for the appellant -insurer ar gued that the Tribunal has fallen in 
an error while calculating the compensation for the reason that the deceased was a daily wager 
and at the relevant point of time, i.e. in the year 2009, the minimum wages prevalent in the State 
of Himachal Pradesh for d aily wager were  100/ - per day.  

5.  I have gone through the record and the impugned award and am of the 
considered view that the Tribunal, in para 9 of the impugned award, has fallen in an error in 
holding that the deceased, being a daily wager, was earning   300/ - per d ay for 25 days in a 
month and assessing his income to be  7,500/ - per month.  

6.  The wages of a daily wager, as on today, are not more than  200/ - per day.  
Keeping all the facts in view, it can be safely held that the monthly income of the deceased woul d 
have been  6,000/ - per month.  One third was to be deducted towards his personal expenses in 
view of the law laid down by the Apex Court in the case titled as Sarla Verma (Smt) and others 
versus Delhi Transport Corporation and another, reported in  (2009 ) 6 Supreme Court Cases 
121, which was upheld by a larger Bench of the Apex Court in Reshma Kumari & Ors. versus 
Madan Mohan & Anr., reported in 2013 AIR SCW 3120.  Accordingly, it is held that the 
claimants have lost source of dependency to the tune of   4,000/ - per month.  

7.  The deceased was 23 years of age at the time of the accident.  Thus, the Tribunal 
has rightly applied the multiplier of '18' in view of Sarla Verma's and  Reshma Kumari's cases 
(supra) read with the Second Schedule appended with the M otor Vehicles Act, 1988 (for short 
òMV Actó). 

8. Viewed thus, the claimants are held entitled to  4,000/ - x 12 x 18 =  8,64,000/ - 
under the head 'loss of income/dependency'.  

9.  The claimants are also held entitled to  10,000/ - each under the heads 'loss of 
consortium', 'loss of estate', 'loss of love and affection' and 'funeral expenses'.  

10.  Viewed thus, it is held that the claimants are entitled to compensation to the 
tune of  8,64,000/ - +   10,000/ - +  10,000/ - +  10,000/ - +  10,000/ - =  9,04,000/ - with 
interest as awarded by the Tribunal.  
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11.  The awarded amount be released in favour of the  claimants strictly as per the 
terms and conditions contained in the impugned award after proper identification through 
payee's account cheque or by depositing the same in their respective bank accounts.  

12.  Excess amount, if any, be released in favour of the appellant -insurer through 
payee's account cheque.  

13.  Having glance of the above discussions, the impugned award is modified, as 
indicated hereinabove, and the appeal is disposed of accordingly.  

14.  Send down the record after placing copy of the judgme nt on Tribunal's file.  

*******************************************************************************************  

BEFORE  HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE MANSOOR AHMAD MIR, C.J.  

National Insurance Company Limited     éAppellant. 

      Versus  

Shri Kartar Singh and other s    éRespondents. 

 

               FAO    No. 309 of 2015  

      a/w CO No. 39 of 2015  

              Decided on: 03.03.2017  

 

Motor Vehicles Act, 1988 - Section  149 - The offending vehicle was a tractor ð the driver was 
competent to drive light motor vehicle - held, that there is no requirement of endorsement in the 
driving licence - in these circumstances, the insurer was rightly held liable - appeal dismissed.  

   (Para-15 to 21)  

Cases referred:  

Chairman, Rajasthan State Road Transport Corporation & ors. versus  Smt. Santosh & Ors., 2013 
AIR SCW 2791  
National Insurance Company Ltd. versus Annappa Irappa Nesaria & Ors., 2008 AIR SCW 906  
Kulwant Singh & Ors. versus Oriental Insurance Company  Ltd.,  JT  2014  (12)  SC 110  
Baldev Singh versus Jagdish Chand & another , I L R  2016  (II) HP 977  

Oriental Insurance Company versus Gulam Mohammad (since deceased) & others, Latest HLJ 
2014 (HP) 244  
Joginder Singh @ Pamma versus Vikram @ Vickey and others, Latest HLJ 2014 (HP) Suppl. 292  
Oriental Insurance Company versus Sud esh Kumari and others, 2014 (2) Shim. LC 918  
 

For the appellant:  Mr. Anil Tomar, Advocate.  

For the respondents:  Ms. Anjali Soni Verma, Advocate, for respondents No. 1 (a) and 1 (b).  

 Mr. Mukul Sood, Advocate, for respondents No. 2 and 3.  

 

 The following ju dgment of the Court was delivered:  

 

Mansoor Ahmad Mir, Chief Justice.  (Oral)   

 This appeal is directed against award, dated 16 th  December, 2014, made by the 
Motor Accident Claims Tribunal (I), Kangra at Dharamshala, H.P. (for short "the Tribunal") in 
MACP No. 114 -K/13/2011, titled as Subhi Singh and another versus Kartar Singh and others, 
whereby compensation to the tune of  5,57,000/ - with interest @ 7.5% per annum from the date 
of filing of the claim petition till its realization came to be awarded in favour of the claimants and 
the insurer came to be saddled with liability (for short òthe impugned awardó). 

2. The owners -insured of the offending vehicle have not questioned the impugned 
award on any count, thus, has attained finality so far it relates to them.  
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3.  The appellant -insurer has questioned the impugned award on the grounds taken 
in the memo of the appeal.  

4.  The cl aimants have called in question the impugned award by the medium of 
cross objections on the ground of adequacy of compensation.  

4.  Heard learned counsel for the parties.  

5.  The impugned award merits to be upheld and the appeal as well as the cross -
objectio ns is to be dismissed for the following reasons:  

6.  The claimants filed claim petition under Section 163 -A of the Motor Vehicles Act, 
1988 (for short òMV Actó) for grant of compensation as per the break-ups given in the claim 
petition on the ground that th ey lost their son, in the vehicular accident, which had occurred due 
to the use of tractor, bearing registration No. HP -36 -3462, on 18 th  October, 2010, in which 

deceased-Karan Singh, who was driving the offending vehicle, sustained injuries and succumbed 
to the injuries.  

7.  The respondents resisted the claim petition on the grounds taken in the 
respective memo of objections.  

8.  On the pleadings of the parties, following issues came to be framed by the 
Tribunal:  

ò1. Whether Karan Singh on 18.10.2010 at 9.40 a.m. at Maroh Ghat (Dohab) had 
passed away due to use of the Vehicle No. HP -36 -3462? OPP  

2. If issue No. 1 is proved in affirmative to what amount of compensation the 
petitioners are entitled to and from whom? OPP  

3. Whether driver of the tractor was not h olding effective and valid driving licence 
at the time of accident? OPR  

4. Whether tractor No. HP -36 -3462 was being driven without valid registration -
cum-fitness certificate and route permit? OPR  

5. Whether the petition is not maintainable? OPR  

6. Relief.ó 

9.  Parties have led evidence.   

10.  The Tribunal after scanning the evidence, oral as well as documentary, awarded 
compensation in favour of the claimants in terms of the impugned award and saddled the 
appellant -insurer with liability.  Hence, the appeal.  

11.  Learned counsel for the appellant -insurer contested the impugned award on the 
following two grounds:  

(i) That the driver of the offending vehicle was not having a valid and effective 
driving licence to drive the same; and  

(ii) That the offending vehic le was not having a valid fitness certificate.  

12.  The dispute involved in the instant appeal  and the cross -objections revolves 

around issues No. 2, 3 and 4 only. There is no challenge to the findings returned by the Tribunal 
on issue No. 1, thus, the sam e are upheld.  

13.  I have gone through the record.  It is apt to record herein that the Tribunal has 
wrongly recorded in the impugned award that the insurer has not led any evidence. Perusal of the 
record does disclose that the insurer has examined RW -1, Sh ri Sanjeev Singh, Licensing Clerk 
from the office of RLA Dehra and RW -2, Shri Sachin Walia, Junior Clerk from the office of RLA, 
Dharamshala.  
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14.  RW-2, Shri Sachin Walia, Junior Clerk from the office of RLA, Dharamshala, has 
deposed that the driver of the offending vehicle, i.e. deceased -Karan Singh, was competent to 
drive light motor vehicle.  

15.  Learned counsel for the appellant -insurer further argued that the driving licence 
was not having an endorsement.  The said argument is not tenable for the followi ng reasons:  

16.  A Division Bench of the High Court of Jammu and Kashmir  at  Srinagar,  of  
which I (Justice Mansoor Ahmad Mir, Chief Justice) was a member, in a case titled as National 
Insurance Co. Ltd. versus Muhammad Sidiq Kuchey & ors., being  LPA No. 180 of 2002, 
decided on  27 th  September, 2007, has discussed this issue and held that a driver having licence 
to drive  òLMVó requires no òPSVó endorsement.  It is apt to reproduce the relevant portion of the 
judgment herein:  

òThe question now arises as to whether the driver who possessed driving licence 
for driving abovementioned vehicles, could he drive a passenger vehicle?  The 
answer, I find, in the judgment passed by this court in case titled National 
Insurance Co. Ltd. Vs. Irfan Sidiq Bhat, 2004 (II) S LJ 623, wherein it is held that 
Light Motor Vehicle includes transport vehicle and transport vehicle includes public 
service vehicle and public service vehicle includes any motor vehicle used or 
deemed to be used for carriage of passengers.  Further held, that the authorization 
of having PSV endorsement  in terms of Rule 41 (a) of the Rules is not required in 
the given circumstances.  It is profitable to reproduce paras 13 and 17 of the 
judgment hereunder: -  

ò13. A combined reading of the above provisions l eaves no room for doubt 
that by virtue of licence, about which there is no dispute, both Showkat 
Ahamd and Zahoor Ahmad were competent in terms of section 3 of the Motor 
Vehicles Act to drive a public service vehicle without any PSV endorsement     
and exp ress authorization in terms of rule 4(1)(a) of the State Rules.  In other 
words, the requirement of the State Rules stood satisfied.  

é.......................  

17. In the case of Mohammad Aslam Khan (CIMA no. 87 of 2002) Peerzada 
Noor-ud -Din appearing as wit ness on behalf of Regional Transport Officer did 
say on recall for further examination that PSV endorsement on the licence of 
Zahoor Ahmad was fake.  In our opinion, the fact that the PSV endorsement 

on the licence was fake is not at all material, for, eve n if the claim is 
considered on the premise that there was no PSV endorsement on the licence, 
for the reasons stated above, it would not materially affect the claim.  By 
virtue of òC to Eó licence Showkat Ahmad was competent to drive a 
passenger vehicle.  In fact, there is no separate definition of passenger 
vehicle or passenger service vehicle in the Motor Vehicles Act.   They  come 
within the ambit of public service vehicle under section 2(35).  A holder of 
driving licence with respect to òlight Motor Vehicleó is thus competent to drive 
any motor vehicle used or adapted to be used for carriage of passengers i.e. a 
public service vehicle.ó 

In the given circumstances of the case PSV endorsement was not required at all.ó 

17.  The mandate of Sections 2 and 3 of  the MV Act came up for consideration before 
the Apex Court in a case titled as Chairman, Rajasthan State Road Transport Corporation & 
ors. versus Smt. Santosh & Ors., reported in 2013 AIR SCW 2791, and after examining the 
various provisions of the MV Act held  that  Section  3 of the Act casts an obligation on the driver 
to hold an   effective driving licence for the type of vehicle, which he intends to drive.  It is apt to 
reproduce paras 19 and 23 of the judgment herein:  

ò19. Section 2(2) of the Act defi nes articulated vehicle which means a motor vehicle 
to which a semi -trailer is attached; Section 2(34) defines public place; Section 2(44) 
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defines 'tractor' as a motor vehicle which is not itself constructed to carry any load; 
Section 2(46) defines `traile r' which means any vehicle, other than a semi - trailer 
and a side -car, drawn or intended to be drawn by a motor vehicle. Section 3 of the 
Act provides for necessity for driving license; Section 5 provides for responsibility of 
owners of the vehicle for con travention of Sections 3 and 4; Section 6 provides for 
restrictions on the holding of driving license; Section 56 provides for compulsion for 
having certificate of fitness for transport vehicles; Section 59 empowers the State to 
fix the age limit of the ve hicles; Section 66 provides for necessity for permits to ply 
any vehicle    for  any  commercial  purpose;  Section  67 empowers the State to 
control road transport; Section 112 provides for limits of speed; Sections 133 and 
134 imposes a duty on the owner s and the drivers of the vehicles in case  of 
accident and injury to a person; Section 146 provides that no person shall use any 
vehicle at a public place unless the vehicle is insured. In addition thereto, the Motor 
Vehicle Taxation Act provides for impos ition of passenger tax and road tax etc.  

20. é....................... 

21. é...................... 

22. é..................... 

23. Section 3 of the Act casts an obligation on a driver to hold an effective driving 
license for the type of vehicle which he inte nds to drive. Section 10 of the Act 
enables the Central Government to prescribe forms of driving licenses for various 
categories of vehicles mentioned in sub -section (2) of the said Section. The 
definition clause in Section 2 of the Act defines various cat egories of vehicles which 
are covered in broad types mentioned in sub -section (2) of Section 10. They are 
'goods carriage', 'heavy goods vehicle',  'heavy  passenger  motor vehicle', 'invalid 
carriage', 'light motor vehicle', 'maxi -cab', 'medium goods vehi cle', 'medium 
passenger motor vehicle', 'motor -cab', 'motorcycle', 'omnibus', 'private service 
vehicle', 'semi - trailer', 'tourist vehicle', 'tractor', 'trailer' and 'transport vehicle'.ó 

18.    The Apex Court in another case titled as National Insurance Co mpany Ltd. 
versus Annappa Irappa Nesaria & Ors.,  reported in  2008 AIR SCW 906, has also discussed the 
purpose of amendments, which were made in the year 1994 and the definitions of 'light motor 
vehicle', 'medium goods vehicle' and the necessity of having a  driving licence.  It is apt to 
reproduce paras 8, 14 and 16 of the judgment herein:  

ò8. Mr. S.N. Bhat, learned counsel appearing on behalf of the respondents, on the 
other hand, submitted that the contention raised herein by the appellant has 
neither been  raised before the Tribunal nor before the High Court. In any event, it 
was urged, that keeping in view the definition of the 'light motor vehicle' as 
contained in Section 2(21) of the Motor vehicles Act, 1988 ('Act' for short), a light 
goods carriage woul d come within the purview thereof.  

A 'light goods carriage' having not been defined in the Act, the definition of the 'light 
motor vehicle' clearly  indicates  that  it  takes  within  its umbrage, both a 
transport vehicle and a non -transport vehicle.  

Strong reliance has been placed in this behalf by the learned counsel in Ashok 
Gangadhar Maratha vs. Oriental Insurance Company Ltd., [1999 (6) SCC 620].  

9. é.................. 

10. é............... 

11. é............... 

12. é.............. 

13. é.............. 

14. Rule 14 prescribes for filing of an application in Form 4, for a licence to drive a 
motor vehicle, categorizing the same in nine types of vehicles.  
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Clause (e) provides for 'Transport vehicle' which has been substituted by G.S.R. 
221(E) with effect fr om 28.3.2001. Before the amendment in 2001, the entries 
medium goods vehicle and heavy goods vehicle existed which have been 
substituted by transport vehicle. As noticed hereinbefore, Light Motor Vehicles also 
found place therein.  

15. é..........................  

16. From what has been noticed hereinbefore, it is evident that 'transport vehicle' 
has now been substituted for 'medium goods vehicle' and 'heavy goods vehicle'. 
The light motor vehicle continued, at the relevant point of time, to cover both, 'ligh t 
passenger carriage vehicle' and 'light goods carriage vehicle'.  

A driver who had a valid licence to drive a light motor vehicle, therefore, was 
authorised to drive a light goods vehicle as well.ó   

19.    The Apex Court in the latest judgment in the case  titled as Kulwant Singh & 
Ors. versus Oriental Insurance Company  Ltd.,  reported  in  JT  2014  (12)  SC 110, held 
that PSV endorsement is not required.  

20.  The argument of the learned counsel for the appellant -insurer that the driver was 
not competent t o drive the offending vehicle, i.e. tractor, is devoid of any force for the reason that 
this Court in FAO No. 187 of 2010,  titled as Baldev Singh versus Jagdish Chand & another,  
decided on 8 th  April, 2016, has held that tractor falls within the definition of 'light motor vehicle'.  

21.  The same principle has been laid down by this Court in the cases titled as 
Oriental Insurance Company versus Gulam Mohammad (since deceased) & others, reported 
in Latest HLJ 2014 (HP) 244; Joginder Singh @ Pamma versus Vikram @ Vickey and others, 
reported in Latest HLJ 2014 (HP) Suppl. 292; and Oriental Insurance Company versus 
Sudesh Kumari and others, reported in 2014 (2) Shim. LC 918.  

22.  Having said so, the findings recorded by the Tribunal on issue No. 3 are upheld 
for the  reasons recorded hereinabove.  

23.  It was for the insurer to plead and prove that the offending vehicle was not having 
fitness certificate and that was the cause of the accident.  No evidence to this extent has been led 
by the insurer.  Thus, the Tribunal has rightly returned findings on issue No. 4 and the same are, 
accordingly, upheld.  

24.  The amount awarded is just and cannot be said to be inadequate.  

25.  Having glance of the above discussions, the impugned award is upheld and the 
appeal as well as the c ross -objections is dismissed.  

26.   Registry is directed to release the awarded amount in favour of the claimants 
strictly as per the terms and conditions contained in the impugned award through payee's 
account cheque or by depositing the same in their resp ective bank accounts.  

27.   Send down the record after placing copy of the judgment on Tribunal's file.  

*******************************************************************************************  

BEFORE HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE MANSOOR AHMAD MIR, C.J. 

National I nsurance Company Ltd.   é..Appellant                                 

           Versus  

Shri Prem Chand & others    é..Respondents  

 

 FAO No. 170 of 2012  

 Decided on : 03.03.2017  
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Motor Vehicles Act, 1988 - Section 149 - MACT saddled the insurer with liability with a right to 
recovery ð insurer filed an appeal ð held, that the vehicle was insured - the interest of third party 
cannot be defeated - even if, the insured had committed breach of the terms and conditions of the 
policy, the insurer is liable to pay the amount with a right of recovery ð appeal dismissed.  

 (Para-2 to 10)  

 

For the Appellant  :  Mr. Ashwani K. Sharma, Senior Advocate, with Mr. Jeewan 
Kumar, Advocate.  

For the respondents:       Mr. Naveen K. Bhardwaj, Advocate, for respondent No. 1.  

 Mr. Anu p Rattan, Advocate, for respondent No. 2.  

 

 The following judgment of the Court was delivered:  

 

Mansoor Ahmad Mir, Chief Justice  (oral)    

  Challenge in this appeal is to judgment and award, dated 16 th  March, 2012, 
made by the Motor Accident Claims Trib unal -I, Kangra at Dharamshala (HP)  (for short ôthe 
Tribunalõ)  in MAC Petition No. 15-P/II of 2008, titled as Prem Chand versus Rajni Gupta & 
others , whereby compensation to the tune of  Rs. 1,87,800/ - with interest @ 9% per annum from 
the date of filing of the claim petition till its realization and costs to the tune of Rs.  2,000/ -  was 
awarded in favour of the claimant and the insurer -appellant came to be saddled with liability, 
with right of recovery (for short "the impugned award").  

2.  The claimant, o wner and driver have not questioned the impugned award on any 
count.  Thus, it has attained finality so far the same relates to them.  

3.  The appellant -insurer has questioned the impugned award on the grounds taken 
in the memo of appeal.   

4.   Learned Couns el for the appellant -insurer argued that the Tribunal has fallen in 
an error in saddling the insurer with liability and the driver was not having a valid and effective 

driving licence at the relevant time.  

5.   I wonder why the appellant -insurer has filed appeal.   

6.   The offending vehicle was insured and the claimant is the third party.   

7.   It is a beaten law of the land that interests of third party cannot be defeated and 
even if the owner -insured has committed breach, the insurer has to satisfy the aw ard, with right 
of recovery.  

8.    Having said so, I am of the considered view that the Tribunal has rightly saddled 
the insurer with the liability,  granted right of recovery.  

9.    Accordingly, the impugned award is upheld and the appeal is dismissed.    

10.    The Registry is directed to release the awarded amount in favour of the claimant, 
strictly in terms of conditions contained in the impugned award, through payees account cheque 
or by depositing the same in his account.    

11.    Send down the record s after placing a copy of the judgment on the Tribunal's file.    

*******************************************************************************************  
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BEFORE  HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE MANSOOR AHMAD MIR, C.J. 

Shri Randip Singh    é..Appellant 

     Versus  

Ikram Khan and another   ..éRespondents. 

 

FAO (MVA) No. 44 of 2012.  

     Date of decision: 3 rd  March, 2017.  

 

Motor Vehicles Act, 1988 - Section 166 - Appellant was registered owner of the vehicle but had 
sold the same to R on 12.9.1996 ð the vehicle was purcha sed by J in the year 2003 by an 
agreement ð the vehicle was also released in favour of J ð held, that the person who is in actual 
possession and control of the vehicle at the time of accident has to satisfy the liability ð since, J 

was in actual possession  and control of the vehicle, therefore, he has to satisfy the entire liability 
ð appeal allowed and J directed to satisfy the entire liability. (Para -4 to 7)  

 

Case referred:  

Lakhwinder Singh Versus Seema Devi and others,  I L R  2016  (V) HP 1502   

 

For t he appellant:  Mr.B.C. Negi, Sr. Advocate, with Mr. Pranay Partap Singh, 
Advocate.  

For  the respondents:  Mr.Bimal Gupta, Sr. Advocate with Mr. Vineet Vashisht, 
Advocate, for respondent No.1.  

 Mr. Naresh Gupta, Advocate, for respondent No.2.  

 

 The followin g judgment of the Court was delivered:  

 

Mansoor Ahmad Mir, Chief Justice , (Oral).      

  This appeal is directed against the judgment and award dated 3.12.2011, passed 
by the Motor Accident Claims Tribunal -II Sirmaur District at Nahan, HP, hereinafter refe rred to 
as òthe Tribunaló, for short, in MAC Petition  No. 118-N/2 of 2005, titled Ikram Khan versus Sh. 
Jiwan Singh and another, whereby compensation to the tune of Rs.1,94,642/ - alongwith interest 
@ 7.5% per annum was awarded in favour of the  claimant  and respondents in the claim petition 
came to be saddled with the liability, for short òthe impugned awardó, on the grounds taken in the 
memo of appeal.  

2.   Claimant and Jiwan Singh owner ðcum - driver of Three Wheeler No. HP -50 -0235, 
have not questioned th e impugned award on any ground, thus the same has attained the finality, 
so far as it relates to them.  

3.   Appellant has questioned the impugned award on the grounds taken in the 
memo of appeal.  

4.   Precisely, the case of the appellant is that though he w as registered owner of the 

offending vehicle but he had sold the vehicle to  Raj Kumar in terms of sale letter Ext. RW1/A on 
12.9.1996 and in the year 2003, the vehicle was purchased by Jiwan Singh in terms of agreement 
Ext. RW1/B and had produced the docu ments before the Tribunal below. Both the documents 
have been proved, which is recorded in para 12 of the impugned award.  

5.   During the pendency of the appeal, the documents have been sought from the 
Investigating Agency. The police produced the Photosta t copies of documents which were taken 
on record and do disclose that during the investigation, the offending vehicle was seized and 
stood released in favour of Jiwan Singh, on his application, on the ground that he was the owner 
and possessor of the said vehicle at the relevant point of time, i.e. the date of accident. The 
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agreement Ext. RW1/B is also on record. Having said so, Jiwan Singh was having control of the 
vehicle at the relevant point of time.  

6.   This Court in FAO No.314 of 2011, titled,  Lakhwi nder Singh Versus Seema 
Devi and others  decided on 7.10.2016, held that the person who is in actual possession of the 
vehicle and is under control of the same at the time of accident has to satisfy the liability. It is apt 
to reproduce paras 25 and 26 of t he said judgment herein.  

ò25.  The Apex Court in case titled as HDFC Bank Ltd. vs. Kumari Reshma 
and Ors, 2014 AIR SCW 6673 held that a person who is in possession of the 
vehicle in terms of a hire purchase agreement or agreement of lease or agreement 
of hypothecation is the owner of the said vehicle.  It is apt to reproduce paragraphs 
10 and 24 of the said judgment hereunder:  

ò10. On a plain reading of the aforesaid definition, it is demonstrable that a 
person in whose name a motor vehicle stands register ed is the owner of the 
vehicle and, where motor vehicle is the subject of hire -purchase agreement or 
an agreement of hypothecation, the person in possession of the vehicle under 
that agreement is the owner. It also stipulates that in case of a minor, the 
guardian of such a minor shall be treated as the owner. Thus, the intention of 
the legislature in case of a minor is mandated to treat the guardian of such a 
minor as the 'owner'. This is the first exception to the definition of the term 

'owner'. The second  exception that has been carved out is that in relation to a 
motor vehicle, which is the subject of hire -purchase agreement or an 
agreement of lease or an agreement of hypothecation, the person in 
possession of vehicle under that agreement is the owner. Be  it noted, the 
legislature has deliberately carved out these exceptions from registered 
owners thereby making the guardian of a minor liable, and the person in 
possession of the vehicle under the agreements mentioned in the dictionary 
clause to be the owne rs for the purposes of this Act.  

24. On a careful analysis of the principles stated in the foregoing cases, it is 
found that there is a common thread that the person in possession of the 
vehicle under the hypothecation agreement has been treated as the own er. 
Needless to emphasise, if the vehicle is insured, the insurer is bound to 
indemnify unless there is violation of the terms of the policy under which the 
insurer can seek exoneration.ó 

26.   The Apex Court further held that the person who is in actual 
possession of the vehicle and is under control of the same at the time of accident 
has to satisfy the liability.  It is apt to reproduce paragraphs 13, 15, 16 and 25 
hereunder:  

ò13. In this context, we may refer to a two-Judge Bench decision in 
Rajasthan Sta te Road Transport Corporation V. Kailash Nath Kothari & 
Others, 1997 7 SCC 481. In the said case, plea was taken by the 
Rajasthan State Road Transport Corporation (RSRTC) before the High 
Court that as it was only a hirer and not the owner of the bus, it co uld not 
be fastened with any liability for payment of compensation but the said 
stand was not accepted. It was contended before this Court that the 
Corporation not being the owner of the bus was not liable to pay any 
compensation arising out of the acciden t because driver who was driving 

the bus at the relevant time, was not in the employment of the owner of the 
bus and not of the Corporation and hence, it could not be held vicariously 
liable for the rash and negligent act of the driver. The Court referred to the 
definition in Section 2(3), which defines "contract carriage", Section 2(19), 
which defines the "owner", Section 2(29), which defines "stage carriage" 
and Section 42 that dealt with "necessity of permits". Be it stated, these 
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provisions reproduced b y the Court pertained to Motor Vehicles Act, 1939 
(for short, 'the 1939 Act'). The owner under the 1939 Act was defined as 
follows:  

"2. (19) 'owner' means, where the person in possession of a motor vehicle 
is a minor, the guardian of such minor, and in re lation to a motor vehicle 
which is the subject of a hirepurchase agreement, the person in possession 
of the vehicle under that agreement;"  

The Court referred to the conditions 4 to 7 and 15 of the agreement and in 
that context held thus:  

"The admitted fact s unmistakably show that the vehicle in 
question was in possession and under the actual control of RSRTC for the 
purpose of running on the specified route and was being used for carrying, 
on hire, passengers by the RSRTC. The driver was to carry out 
instru ctions, orders and directions of the conductor and other officers of the 

RSRTC for operation of the bus on the route specified by the RSRTC".  

While dealing with the definition of the owner under the 1939 Act, the 
Court ruled that the definition of owner un der Section 2(19) of the Act is not 
exhaustive. It has, therefore to be construed, in a wider sense, in the facts 
and circumstances of a given case. The expression owner must include, in 
a given case, the person who has the actual possession and control of  the 
vehicle and under whose directions and commands the driver is obliged to 
operate the bus. To confine the meaning of "owner" to the registered owner 
only would in a case where the vehicle is in the actual possession and 
control of the hirer would not b e proper for the purpose of fastening of 
liability in case of an accident. The liability of the "owner" is vicarious for 
the tort committed by its employee during the course of his employment 
and it would be a question of fact in each case as to on whom ca n 
vicarious liability be fastened in the case of an accident.  

15. In this context, it is profitable to refer to a two -Judge Bench decision in 
National Insurance Co. Ltd. V. Deepa Devi & Ors., 2008 1 SCC 414.  In the 
said case the question arose whether in the event a car is requisitioned for 
the purpose of deploying the same in the election duty, who would be 
liable for payment of compensation to the victim of the accident in terms of 
the provisions of 1988 Act. The Court referred to the definition of 'owne r' in 
the 1939 Act and the definition of 'owner' under Section 2(30) of the 1988 
Act. In that context, the Court observed that the legislature either under the 
1939 Act or under the 1988 Act had visualized a situation of this nature. 
The Court took note of  the fact that the respondent no. 3 and 4 continued 
to be the registered owners of the vehicle despite the fact that the same 
was requisitioned by the District Collector in exercise of the power 
conferred upon him under the Representation of People Act, 19 51 and the 

owner of the vehicle cannot refuse to abide by the order of requisition of 
the vehicle by the District Collector. Proceeding further, the Court ruled 
thus:  

"...... While the vehicle remains under requisition, the owner does not 
exercise any cont rol thereover. The driver may still be the employee of the 
owner of the vehicle but he has to drive it as per the direction of the officer 
of the State, who is put in charge thereof. Save and except for legal 
ownership, for all intent and purport, the regi stered owner of the vehicle 
loses entire control thereover. He has no say as to whether the vehicle 
should be driven at a given point of time or not. He cannot ask the driver 
not to drive a vehicle on a bad road. He or the driver could not possibly say 
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tha t the vehicle would not be driven in the night. The purpose of requisition 
is to use the vehicle. For the period the vehicle remains under the control of 
the State and/or its officers, the owner is only entitled to payment of 
compensation therefor in terms  of the Act but he cannot not exercise any 
control thereupon. In a situation of this nature, this Court must proceed on 
the presumption that Parliament while enacting the 1988 Act did not 
envisage such a situation. If in a given situation, the statutory de finitions 
contained in the 1988 Act cannot be given effect to in letter and spirit, the 
same should be understood from the common sense point of view.  

16. Elaborating the concept, the Court referred to Mukesh K. Tripathi V. 
Senior Divisional Manager LIC, 2 004 8 SCC 387, Ramesh Mehta V. 
Sanwal Chand Singhvi, 2004 5 SCC 409, State of Maharashtra V. Indian 
Medical Assn., 2002 1 SCC 589, Pandey & Co. Builders (P) Ltd., V. State of 
Bihar, 2007 1 SCC 467 and placed reliance on Kailash Nath Kothari , 

National Insu rance Co. Ltd. V. Durdadahya Kumar Samal, 1988 2 TAC 25 
and Chief Officer, Bhavnagar Municipality V. Bachubhai Arjanbhai, 1996 
AIR(Guj) 51 and eventually opined the State shall be liable to pay the 
amount of compensation to the claimant and not the registe red owner of 
the vehicle and consequently the appellant therein, the insurance 
company.  

25. In Purnya Kala Devi , a three -Judge Bench has categorically held that the 
person in control and possession of the vehicle under an agreement of 
hypothecation should  be construed as the owner and not alone the registered 
owner and thereafter the Court has adverted to the legislative intention, and ruled 
that the registered owner of the vehicle should not be held liable if the vehicle is not 
in his possession and contr ol. There is reference to Section 146 of the Act that no 
person shall use or cause or allow any other person to use a motor vehicle in a 
public place without insurance as that is the mandatory statutory requirement 
under the 1988 Act. In the instant case, the predecessor -ininterest of the appellant, 
Centurion Bank, was the registered owner along with respondent no.2. The 
respondent No. 2 was in control and possession of the vehicle. He had taken the 
vehicle from the dealer without paying the full premium to  the insurance company 
and thereby getting the vehicle insured. The High Court has erroneously opined 
that the financier had the responsibility to get the vehicle insured, if the borrower 
failed to insure it. The said term in the hypothecation agreement do es not convey 
that the appellant financier had become the owner and was in control and 
possession of the vehicle. It was the absolute fault of the respondent no.2 to take 
the vehicle from the dealer without full payment of the insurance. Nothing has been 
brought on record that this fact was known to the appellant financier or it was 
done in collusion with the financier. When the intention of the legislature is quite 
clear to the effect, a registered owner of the vehicle should not be held liable if the 

vehi cle is not in his possession and control and there is evidence on record that the 
respondent no.2, without the insurance plied the vehicle in violation of the statutory 
provision contained in Section 146 of the 1988 Act, the High Court could not have 
mulct ed the liability on the financier. The appreciation by the learned Single Judge 
in appeal, both in fact and law, is wholly unsustainable.ó      

7.   In view of the above discussion, it is held that Jiwan Singh, who was in actual 
possession of the offending  vehicle, had the control of the offending vehicle, at the time of 
accident and thus, has to satisfy the entire liability.  

8.   Having said so, the impugned award is modified by providing that Jiwan Singh 
respondent No. 2 herein has to satisfy the award in toto . 
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9.    Accordingly, the appeal is allowed and the impugned award is modified as 
indicated hereinabove.  

10.   Respondent No. 2 Jiwan Singh is directed to deposit the amount before the 
Tribunal below, if not already deposited, and on deposit, the Tribuna l is directed to release the 
same in favour of the claimant.   

11.   Send down the record forthwith, after placing a copy of this judgment.   

***********************************************************************************  

       

 BEFORE HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE MANSOOR AHMAD MIR, C.J.  

Reliance General Insurance Company Limited   éAppellant. 

Versus  

Smt. Bulo Devi and others     éRespondents. 

 

                FAO No. 469 of 2012  

              Decided on: 03.03.2017  

 

Motor Vehicles Act, 1988 - Section 149 - No eviden ce was led by the insurer to prove that the 
driver did not have a valid licence or he had committed breach of the terms and conditions of the 
policy ð the insurer was rightly saddled with liability - appeal dismissed. (Para -12 and 13)  

 

For the appellant:  Mr . Jagdish Thakur, Advocate.  

For the respondents:  Mr. Rupinder Singh, Advocate, for respondents No. 1 to 6.  

 Respondent No. 7 already ex -parte.  

 Mr. Rajender Dogra, Advocate, for respondents No. 8 to 11.  

 

 The following judgment of the Court was delivered:  

 

Mansoor Ahmad Mir, Chief Justice.  (Oral)  

 Subject matter of this appeal is award, dated 27 th  June, 2012, made by the Motor 
Accident Claims Tribunal -I, Sirmaur District at Nahan, H.P. (for short "the Tribunal") in MAC 
Petition No. 56 -MAC/2 of 2008, title d as Smt. Bulo Devi and others versus Shri Rakesh Kumar 
and others, whereby compensation to the tune of  5,00,000/ - with interest @ 7.5% per annum 
from the date of the petition till its realization came to be awarded in favour of the claimants and 
against the insurer (for short òthe impugned awardó). 

2. The claimants, owner -insured and driver of the offendi ng vehicle have not 
questioned the impugned award on any count, thus, has attained finality so far it relates to them.  

3.  Appellant -insurer has called in question the impugned award on the grounds 
taken in the memo of appeal.  

4.  Learned counsel for the app ellant -insurer argued that the driver of the offending 
vehicle was not having a valid and effective driving licence to drive the same and the amount 
awarded is excessive.  

5.  Both these arguments are not tenable for the following reasons:  

6.  The claimants, being the victims of the vehicular accident, which was caused by 
the driver, namely Shri Rakesh Kumar, while driving tractor, bearing registration No. HR -04A -
7307, rashly and negligently on 13 th  February, 2008, at about 12.15 P.M., near Parmeshwar Gas 
Fact ory on Suketi Kala Amb Road, filed the claim petition before the Tribunal for grant of 
compensation to the tune of  12,00,000/ -, as per the break -ups given in the claim petition.  
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7.  The claim petition was resisted by the respondents and the following issues came 
to be framed by the Tribunal:  

ò1. Whether Ganesh Saha died on account of rash or negligent driving of tract or No. 
HR-04 -7307 by respondent No. 1 Rajesh Kumar on 13.02.2008 at about 12.15 PM 
near Parmeshwar Gas Factory on Saketi -Kala Amb road, as alleged? OPP  

2. In case issue No. 1 is proved in affirmative, to what amount of compensation the 
petitioners are enti tled to and from whom? OPP  

3. Whether the driver of the vehicle in question did not possess a valid and 
effective driving licence at the relevant time, as alleged? OPR -3 

4. Whether the tractor in question was being plied in violation of the terms and 
condi tions of the insurance policy, as alleged? OPR -3 

4-A. Whether the offending vehicle bore registration No. HR -04 -A-7307, or not? OPP  

5. Relief.ó 

8.  Parties have led evidence.  

9.  The Tribunal after scanning the evidence, oral as well as documentary, awarded 
compensation in favour of the claimants and saddled the appellant -insurer with liability in terms 
of the impugned award.  Hence, the appeal.  

Issues No. 1 and 4 -A.  

10.  The Tribunal, while determining issues No. 1 and 4 -A, held that the claimants 
have proved  that the driver, namely Shri Rakesh Kumar, had driven the offending vehicle rashly 
and negligently on 13 th  February, 2008, at about 12.15 P.M., near Parmeshwar Gas Factory on 
Suketi Kala Amb Road, in which deceased -Ganesh Saha sustained injuries and succu mbed to the 
said injuries.  There is no challenge to the said findings.  Accordingly, the findings returned by 
the Tribunal on issues No. 1 and 4 -A are upheld.  

11.  Before dealing with issue No. 2, I deem it appropriate to determine issues No. 3 
and 4.  

Issu e No. 3:  

12.  It was for the insurer to lead evidence to prove that that driver of the offending 
vehicle was not having a valid and effective driving licence to drive the same.  I have gone through 
the detailed discussions made by the Tribunal in paras 12 t o 14 of the impugned award and am 
of the considered view that the Tribunal has rightly determined issue No. 3 against the insurer 
and is, accordingly, upheld.  

Issue No. 4:  

13.  It was for the insurer to plead and prove that the owner -insured has committed 
willful breach of the terms and conditions contained in the insurance policy, has not led any 
evidence to this effect.  Accordingly, the findings returned by the Tribunal on issue No. 4 are 
upheld.  

Issue No. 2:  

14.  I have gone though the discussions made by  the Tribunal in para 11 of the 
impugned award. The Tribunal has rightly made the assessment, needs no interference.  
Accordingly, the findings returned by the Tribunal on the said issue are upheld.  

15.  Having said so, the impugned award is well reasoned a nd legal one, needs no 
interference.  

16.  Having glance of the above discussions, the impugned award is upheld and the 
appeal is dismissed.   
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17.  The awarded amount be released in favour of the claimants strictly as per the 
terms and conditions contained in  the impugned award after proper identification through 
payee's account cheque or by depositing the same in their respective bank accounts.  

18.   Send down the record after placing copy of the judgment on Tribunal's file.  

*********************************** ************************************************************  

       

BEFORE HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE SURESHWAR THAKUR, J. 

State of H.P.      é..Appellant. 

  Versus  

Kewal Singh                 é..Respondent. 

 

Cr. Appeal No. 69 of 2008   

     Decided on : 3.3.2017  

 

Indian Penal Code, 1860 - Section 279, 337 and 338 - Accused was driving a jeep in a rash and 
negligent manner and struck his jeep against B ð B sustained simple and grievous injuries - he 
was taken to hospital, where he succumbed to the injuries ð the accused  was tried and acquitted 
by the Trial Court - held in appeal that PW -1 had supported the prosecution version - mere fact 
that PW -3 and PW -4 had turned hostile will not make the prosecution case suspect - no 
mechanical defect was found in the vehicle ðthe acci dent was caused  due to the high speed of the 
vehicle ð the Trial Court had wrongly acquitted the accused - appeal allowed - accused convicted of 
the commission of offences punishable under Sections 279, 337 and 338 of I.P.C. (Para -9 to 22 ) 

 

For the Appellan t:     Mr. M.L Ch auhan, Additional Advocate General.   

For the Respondent:   Mr. Divay Raj Singh, Advocate.  

 

 The following judgment of the Court was delivered:  

 

Sureshwar Thakur, Judge (oral)  

  The instant appeal stands directed against the impugned jud gment of 7.11.2007 
rendered by the learned Judicial Magistrate, 1 st Class, Court No.II, Una, District Una, H.P. in 
Criminal Case No. 9 -II -99/98, whereby the learned trial Court acquitted the respondent (for short 
òaccusedó) for the offences charged. 

2.  Br ief facts of the case are that on 30.7.1998 at around 7.30 p.m. near Shiv 
Mandir, Dangoli the accused was found driving a jeep bearing registration No. DLK -D-5372 on a 
public road, in a rash and negligent manner so as to endanger human life and personal sa fety of 
others and while driving as such accused struck his jeep against Baryam Singh and thereby 
caused Baryam Singh simple and grievous injuries and thereby committed offence under Sections 
279, 337 and 338 of IPC.  After the accident the accused could n ot control his vehicle which was 

coming in high speed and went down on the road. Injured Baryam Singh who taken to District 
Hospital Una where he succumbed to injuries on 1.9.1998.  This incidence was witnessed by Ram 
Kishan and Charan Dass and the matter was reported to the police.  After completing all codal 
formalities and on conclusion of the investigation into the offence, allegedly committed by the 
accused challan was prepared and filed in the Court.  

3.   Notice of accusation stood put to the accused by the learned trial Court qua his 
committing offences punishable under Sections 279, 337 and 338 of the Indian Penal Code to 
which he pleaded not guilty and claimed trial.  

4.   In order to prove its case, the prosecution examined 10 witnesses.  On closure of 
prosecution evidence, the statement of the accused under Section 313 of the Code of Criminal 
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Procedure was recorded in which he claimed false implication.  However, he did not choose to 
lead any evidence in defence.  

5.  On an appraisal of evidence on rec ord, the learned trial Court returned findings 
of acquittal qua the accused.  

6.  The learned Additional Advocate General has concertedly and vigorously 

contended qua the findings of acquittal recorded by the learned trial Court standing not based on 
a prop er appreciation of evidence on record, rather, theirs standing sequelled by gross mis -
appreciation of material on record.  Hence, he contends qua the findings of acquittal being 
reversed by this Court in the exercise of its appellate jurisdiction and their s being replaced by 
findings of conviction.  

7.   The learned counsel appearing for the respondent/accused has with considerable 

force and vigor contended qua the findings of acquittal recorded by the Court below standing 
based on a mature and balanced appr eciation of evidence on record and theirs not necessitating 
interference, rather theirs meriting vindication.  

8.   This Court with the able assistance of the learned counsel on either side has with 
studied care and incision, evaluated the entire evidence o n record.   

9.   An FIR qua the ill -fated occurrence stood lodged by the complainant, therein he 
sustained injuries as pronounced in the apposite MLC comprised in PW -8/A. The apposite 
opinion enunciated therein by the Doctor, unfolds qua injury No.7 sustain ed by the 
victim/complainant being grievous in nature.  

10.   To prove the genesis of the occurrence, the prosecution had led into the witness 
box three eye witnesses to the occurrence who respectively deposed as PW -1, PW-2 and PW -3.   

11.   The learned tria l Court on an analysis of the testimony of PW -1 Charan Dass 

holding revelations therein qua his deceased father at the time when his person stood struck by 
the vehicle driven by the accused, his standing not accompanied by PW -4 Surinder Kaur nor by 
PW-2 Ram Krishan, concluded qua the prosecution abysmally failing to sustain the charge. 
However, the inference aforesaid drawn by it, on anvil of PW -1 articulating in his deposition 
comprised in his cross -examination qua his father at the relevant time of occurr ence standing not 
accompanied by other eye witnesses thereto yet cannot enhance any concomitant conclusion as 
stands drawn by it qua the prosecution thereupon failing to prove the charge against the accused 
nor also it was apt for the learned trial Magistr ate to thereupon conclude qua ipso facto the 
testimony of PW -1, an eye witness to the occurrence holding no credence.  

12.   The learned counsel appearing for the respondent has contended qua with the 
deceased complainant in the aforesaid complaint, recordi ng the factum qua at the relevant time, 
his standing accompanied only by PW -4, his daughter -in -law hence eroding in its entirety  the 
version qua the ill -fated incident testified by PW -1, an eye witness to the occurrence besides he 
contends qua the testimo ny of PW -2 (Ram Krishan) who qua the ill -fated occurrence deposed with 
intra -se harmony with PW -1 likewise holding no probative worth significantly when the name of 
PW-1 likewise stands unrecorded in the apposite complaint.  

13.   An incisive scanning of the  entire evidence, significantly the one existing in the 
cross -examination of PW -1 holding underscorings therein qua the factum of the house of the 

deceased complainant standing located at a distance of 10 meters from the relevant site of 
occurrence, thereu pon even if the complainant, in the FIR lodged qua the occurrence had 
proceeded to record therein only the presence thereat alongwith him of his daughter -in -law (PW -
4) who, however turned hostile also though PW -3 (Surinder Singh), also a purported eye witn ess 
to the occurrence turned hostile yet thereupon the factum of PW -1 not witnessing the relevant 
incident would reiteratedly for the reasons alluded hereinafter not hence stand effaced.  

(a)  The omission of the deceased complainant, to, in his complaint record the factum 
of PW-1, his son accompanying him at the relevant site of occurrence would stand subsumed by 
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the factum qua uncontrovertedly the house of the deceased standing located at a distance of 10 
meters from the relevant site of occurrence wheref rom PW -1 testified with aplomb qua his 
witnessing the occurrence, in testification whereof he inculpated the guilt of the accused.  

(b)   Furthermore, the evident factum of the deceased taking, to,  trudge the road for 
crossing from its one side to the oth er side obviously disabled him to notice the presence outside 
his homestead of PW -1, his son, whereupon he stood precluded to record in the FIR qua PW -1 
witnessing the occurrence.   

14.   Consequently the mere factum qua no unfoldment occurring in the appo site FIR 
qua PW -1, accompanying him at the relevant site of occurrence, would not constrain any 
inference qua the ocular version qua the incident rendered by him wherein he has graphically 
inculpated the guilt of the accused warranting its standing ousted from consideration nor any 
inference can be erectable qua its holding no probative sinew.   

15.   Moreover, the factum pronounced by PW -1 in his cross -examination qua at the 
relevant time of occurrence the deceased complainant being alone whereas the inform ant 

disclosing qua his thereat standing accompanied by PW -4 his daughter -in -law, though visibly 
contradicts the deposition qua the aforesaid facet existing in the cross -examination of PW -1 yet 
thereupon the version qua the incident initially propounded in the apposite FIR would  not perse 
stand belied whereas preeminently  thereupon the testimony of PW -1 stands rendered 
discardable, conspicuously when the defence fails to belie the presence of PW -4 at the site of 
occurrence, testimony whereof for reasons al luded hereinabove succors the genesis of the 
prosecution case.   

16.   Be that as it may other eye witnesses to the incident who deposed as both PW -3 
(Surinder Singh) and PW -4(Surinder Kaur) turned hostile, significantly PW -4 who stands unveiled 

by the inf ormant to be accompanying him at the relevant time also omitted to lend support to the 
prosecution case.   Nonetheless the opening part of the  testimony of PW -4 apparently underlines 
the factum qua hers at the relevant site of occurrence accompanying her deceased father -in -law 
also the identity of the relevant vehicle stands emphasized therein whereupon the prosecution 
has visibly succeeded in proving, the enunciations in the FIR qua the informant at the relevant 
time standing accompanied by PW -4.  Moreove r PW-4 in her examination -in -chief has therein 
made vivid communications qua at the relevant time whereat she was accompanying her father -
in -law, the latter thereat concerting to cross from one side of the road to the other, whereat a jeep 
driven at an exc essive high speed arrived whereupon it collided with her deceased father -in -law.  
The aforesaid communication made by PW -4 in her examination -in -chief wherein she identified 
the relevant vehicle yet with PW -4 feigning ignorance qua the identity of the accu sed, stemmed an 
inference qua the incriminatory role of the accused standing not firmly proven.  

17.   For determining with invincibility the aforesaid facet, it is imperative to advert 
qua the reason prevailing upon the learned APP concerned to proceed to seek permission of the 
learned trial Court to declare her hostile, with a further permission to cross -examine her, 
permission whereof stood accorded to him, ensuing from the factum of hers in her deposition 
reneging from her previous statement recorded in writing wherewithin she had named the 
accused to be driving the relevant vehicle whereas in her deposition comprised in her 

examination -in -chief, she feigned ignorance qua the factum of the accused occupying the wheel of 
the relevant vehicle. The apposite reneging by PW -4 qua the factum aforesaid would not give 
capitalization to the defence to either contend nor it was apt for the learned trial magistrate to 
conclude qua thereupon the prosecution failing to prove the guilt of the accused arousable from 
PW-4 not voicing in her deposition qua the accused at the relevant time occupying the wheel of 
the relevant vehicle.   

18.   Any formation of any inference qua existence of trite, relevant clinching evidence 
for thereupon with invincibility concluding qua the a ccused hence not standing proven to man 
the driverõs seat of the relevant vehicle warrants an allusion to the statement of the accused 
recorded under Section 313 of Cr.P.C wherein apposite disclosures stand enjoined to carry a 
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denial qua the accused occupy ing the drivers seat of the relevant vehicle.  However an allusion 
thereto marks the factum of the accused not therein pointedly denying the factum of his manning 
the driverõs seat of the relevant vehicle.  In sequel thereto it stands concluded qua the defence 
acquiescing qua the factum of the accused occupying the driverõs seat of the relevant vehicle 
thereupon with PW -4 in the opening part of her examination -in -chief identifying the relevant 
vehicle also renders proven the inculpatory role of the accused in the ill -fated mishap dehors the 
factum of hers in the later part thereof omitting to in corroboration vis -à-vis her previous 
statement recorded in writing depose qua the accused occupying the driverõs seat of the relevant 
vehicle.   

19.   Reiteratedly co nspicuously when the effect of the omission qua the aforesaid 
facet stands benumbed also stands dispelled by the apposite acquiescence(s) emanating from the 
aforesaid omission of the defence to thereupon belie qua the accused manning the driverõs seat of 

the relevant vehicle. In addition PW -2 has with firmness lent corroboration vis -à-vis PW-4 qua the 
relevant factum probandum. The mere factum of his name remaining un -enunciated by the 
informant in the apposite FIR cannot render his testimony to be incredib le, inference wherefrom 
ensues qua his identity being unknown to the complainant.   Moreover, with the defence while 
subjecting him to cross -examination not putting any apposite suggestion(s) to him for belying his 
presence at the relevant site of incident , contrarily enhances an inference qua the defence 
concomitantly conceding qua the factum of his at the time contemporaneous to its occurrence 
being available at the relevant site of mishap.  In aftermath his testimony comprised in his 
examination -in -chief  when remains un -eroded of its sanctity despite his facing the ordeal of an 
exacting cross -examination hence renders it to acquire accentuated credence.  

20.   The learned counsel for the accused has contended qua with the mechanical 
expert one Jeet Singh (P W-7) who examined the relevant vehicle pronouncing in his testification  
qua it  not depicting qua any dents or damages standing entailed thereon whereupon the 
testimony of PW -1 qua, its, after colliding, with the person of the victim/deceased, its rolling  
down, standing apparently contradicted whereupon he contends qua the version qua the 
occurrence propounded by PW -1 holds no vigor.  However since PW -1 for the reasons ascribed 
hereinabove did not eye witness the occurrence, the effect of his testimony qua  the occurrence 
standing belied by PW -7, cannot enhance the propagation made by the defence qua the latter 
deserving an order affirming the verdict of acquittal recorded by the learned trial Magistrate.   

21.   The learned trial  Magistrate on anvil of the testimonies of the prosecution 
witnesses qua the deceased suffering an auditory impairment had thereupon concluded qua his 
standing rendered incapacitated to discern the arrival behind him of the relevant vehicle 
whereupon it further concluded qua no penal ly inculpable negligence standing ascribable vis -à-
vis the accused.  Assuming the deceased was suffering from an auditory impairment nonetheless 
the defence has neither reared (a)qua the deceased abruptly arriving at the site of occurrence (b) 
the accused sounding the horn of his vehicle, for alarming the deceased to give way to the vehicle 
driven by the accused. Omissions aforesaid, constrain an inference qua the defence acquiescing 
qua the factum of the accused by omitting to blow the horn of the relevant  vehicle, his thereupon 
not adhering to the standards of due care and caution rather when he evidently was driving his 

vehicle at a high speed he hence provenly visibly committed a grave penal misdemeanor 
wherefrom the tenacity of the aforesaid defence is rendered frail.  

22.     The crux of the above discussion is that the appeal is allowed and the impugned 
judgment rendered by the learned trial Court whereby it recorded findings of acquittal qua the 
accused stands reversed and set aside. Accordingly, the r espondent/accused stands convicted for 
the offence(s) punishable under Sections 279,337 and 338 of the Indian Penal Code. Let the 
accused/convict be produced on 30.3.2017 before this Court for his being heard on the quantum 
of sentence.  Records of the lea rned trial Court be sent back forthwith.  

********************************************************************************************  
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BEFORE HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE MANSOOR AHMAD MIR, C.J. 

The National Insurance Co. Ltd.      é..Appellant 

     Versus  

Smt. Sw arna Devi and another   ..éRespondents. 

 

FAO (MVA) No. 111 of 2012.  

         Date of decision: 3 rd  March, 2017.  

 

Motor Vehicles Act, 1988 - Section  149 - Insurance Act, 1938 - Section 64 -VB- Insurer 
contended that the premium was paid by means of cheque which was bounced and, therefore, it 
is not liable - held, that there is no proof of the fact that insured was informed of the dishonour of 
the cheque ð in these circumstances, insurer was rightly held liable to pay the amount.  

 (Para-2 to 5)  

Case referred:  

The New India Assurance  Company Ltd. versus Chura Mani and others , ILR 2016 (II) HP 1021  

 

For the appellant:  Mr. Narender Sharma, Advocate.  

For  the respondents:  Mr.  Sunil Mohan Goel, Advocate.  

 

 The following judgment of the Court was delivered:  

 

Mansoo r Ahmad Mir, Chief Justice , (Oral).   

  This appeal is directed against the judgment and award dated 18.1.2012, passed 
by the Motor Accident Claims Tribunal -III District Kangra, HP, hereinafter referred to as òthe 
Tribunaló, for short, in MACP RBT  No. 185-K/07/10, titled Smt. Swarna Devi versus Rakesh 
Gupta and another, whereby compensation to the tune of Rs.85,000/ - alongwith interest @ 9% 
per annum was awarded in favour of the  claimant   and   insurer  came   to   be   saddled with 
the liability, for sho rt òthe impugned awardó, on the grounds taken in the memo of appeal.  

2.  Claimant and owner -cum -driver have not questioned the impugned award on any 
ground, thus the same has attained the finality, so far as it relates to them.  

3.   Insurer has questioned  the impugned award on the grounds taken in the memo 
of appeal.  

4.   Learned counsel for the appellant argued that the insured had paid the premium 
by cheque which was bounced and notice was issued to the insured as well as to the Registering 
Authority. Ins ured has specifically  pleaded that he was not intimated and there is no proof on 
the file to that effect. The Tribunal has discussed this issue in paras 23 to 28 of the impugned 
award and held that the insurer had not satisfied the aforesaid formalities.  

5.   This Court in FAO No. 221 of 2010 , titled The New India Assurance  
Company Ltd. versus Chura Mani and others , decided on 8.4.2016 , held that if intimation is 

not given and during that period, the accident happens, it is the insurer, who is liable. It is apt to 
reproduce paras 6 to 10 of the said judgment herein.  

  ò6. In terms of Section 64 -VB of the Insurance Act, 1938 (hereinafter referred to as 

òthe Insurance Actó) read with the provisions of Sections 147 to 149 of the Motor 
Vehicles Act, 1988 (for short òMV Actó), the insurer has to intimate the insured, 
which has not been done in the present case, and if intimation is not given and 
during that period, the accident happens, it is the insurer, who is liable.  

  7.The Apex Court in the case titled as New India Assurance Co. Ltd. versus Rula 
and others, reported in  AIR 2000 Supreme Court 1082, has held that the insurer 
has to mandatorily intimate the owner by way of notice about the cancellation of 
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insurance policy and if the accident occurs between the period till the cancellation 
is conveyed, it is the insurer, who is liable.  It is apt to reproduce para 11 of the 
judgment herein:  

ò11. This decision, which is a 3 -Judge Bench decision, squarely covers the 
present case also.  The subsequent cancellation o f the Insurance Policy in 
the instant case on the ground that the cheque through which premium 
was paid was dishonoured, would not affect the rights of the third party 
which had accrued on the issuance of the Policy on the date on which the 
accident took p lace.  If, on the date of accident, there was a Policy of 
Insurance in respect of the vehicle in question, the third party would have 
a claim against the Insurance Company and the owner of the vehicle 
would have to be indemnified in respect of the claim of  that party.  
Subsequent cancellation of Insurance Policy on the ground of non -payment 
of premium would not affect the rights already accrued in favour of the 

third party.ó 

  8.The matter again came up for consideration before the Apex Court in Deddappa 
& Ors. versus The Branch Manager, National Insurance Co. Ltd., reported in 2007 
AIR SCW 7948, and the same principle has been laid down.  It is apt to reproduce 
paras  26 to 28 of the judgment herein:  

ò26. We are not oblivious of the distinction between the statutory liability 
of the Insurance Company vis -a-vis a third party in the context of Sections 
147 and 149 of the Act and its liabilities in other cases. But the same 
liabilities arising under a contract of insurance would have to be met if the 
contract i s valid. If the contract of insurance has been cancelled and all 
concerned have been intimated thereabout, we are of the opinion, the 
insurance company would not be liable to satisfy the claim.  

27. A beneficial legislation as is well known should not be c onstrued in 
such a manner so as to bring within its ambit a benefit which was not 
contemplated by the legislature to be given to the party. In Regional 
Director, Employees' State Insurance Corporation, Trichur v. Ramanuja 
Match Industries [AIR 1985 SC 278] , this Court held :  

"We do not doubt that beneficial legislations should have liberal 
construction with a view to implementing the legislative intent but where 
such beneficial .legislation has a scheme of its own there is no warrant for 
the Court to trave l beyond the scheme and extend the scope of the statute 
on the pretext of extending the statutory benefit to those who are not 
covered by the scheme."  

We, therefore, agree with the opinion of the High Court.  

28. However, as the appellant hails from the lo west strata of society, we 
are of the opinion that in a case of this nature, we should, in exercise of 
our extra -ordinary jurisdiction under Article 142 of the Constitution of 

India, direct the Respondent No.1 to pay the amount of claim to the 
appellants h erein and recover the same from the owner of the vehicle viz., 
Respondent No.2, particularly in view of the fact that no appeal was 
preferred by him. We direct accordingly.  

  9.In the case  titled as United India Insurance Co. Ltd. versus Laxmamma & 
Ors., r eported in  2012 AIR SCW 2657,  the Apex Court has discussed the law 
developed on the issue and ultimately held that if cancellation order is not made 
and conveyed and if the accident occurs till the cancellation is made, the insurer is 
liable.  It is profit able to reproduce para 19 of the judgment herein:  
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ò19. In our view, the legal position is this : where the policy of insurance is 
issued by an authorized insurer on receipt of cheque towards payment of 
premium and such cheque is returned dishonoured, the l iability of 
authorized insurer to indemnify third parties in respect of the liability 
which that policy covered subsists and it has to satisfy award of 
compensation by reason of the provisions of Sections 147(5) and 149(1) of 
the M.V. Act unless the policy  of insurance is cancelled by the authorized 
insurer and intimation of such cancellation has reached the insured before 
the accident. In other words, where the policy of insurance is issued by an 
authorized insurer to cover a vehicle on receipt of the cheq ue paid towards 
premium and the cheque gets dishonored and before the accident of the 
vehicle occurs, such insurance company cancels the policy of insurance 
and sends intimation thereof to the owner, the insurance company's 
liability to indemnify the third  parties which that policy covered ceases 

and the insurance company is not liable to satisfy awards of compensation 
in respect thereof.ó 

  10.The same view has been taken by this Court in the cases titled as M/s New 
Prem Bus Service versus Laxman Singh & a nother,  reported in Latest HLJ 
2014 (HP) 579, and  United India Insurance Company Ltd. Versus Smt. 
Sanjana Kumari & others, reported in Latest HLJ 2014 (HP) 1140.ó 

6.  Learned counsel for the appellant frankly conceded that one of the postal receipts 
has nei ther been produced on record nor proved by the insurer - appellant, as discussed by the 
Tribunal.  

7.  The insurer has not proved that the mandate of law was followed in letter and 
spirit.  

8.  Having said so, the impugned award is well reasoned, needs no inter ference.  

9.  Viewed thus, the impugned award is upheld and the appeal is dismissed.  

10.  Registry is directed to release the awarded amount in favour of the claimant 

strictly as per the terms and conditions contained in the impugned award through payee's 
account cheque or by depositing the same in her bank account.  

11.  Send down the record after placing copy of the judgment on Tribunal's file.  

*******************************************************************************************  

BEFORE HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE MANSOOR AHMAD MIR, C.J. AND HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE 
TARLOK SINGH CHAUHAN, J.  

COPC Nos.216 and 217 of 2016.  

Judgment reserved on: 28.02.2017.  

Date of decision: March 06, 2017.  

1.  COPC No.216 of 2016.  

Abhilash Chand and others      .é.Petitioners.   

    Versus  

Sanjay Gupta and others     é..Respondents.  

2.  COPC No.217 of 2016.  

Anil Kumar and others       .é.Petitioners.   

          Versus  

Sanjay Gupta and others      é..Respondents.  

     

Contempt of Courts Act, 1972 - Section 12 - The respondents were directe d to implement the 
policy framed by them within a period of 6 months ð State Government formulated a policy for 
taking over the services of the petitioners and similarly situated persons with the condition 
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precedent that all those who are to be benefited b y the policy should not have any litigation 
pending - the respondents are not implementing their policy - held, that the tables filed by the 
respondent show that the judgment stands complied with ð no case of willful contempt is made 
out ð petition dismissed . (Para-9 to 16)  

 

Cases referred:  

Priya Gupta and Anr. versus Addl. Secy., Ministry of Health and Family Welfare and Ors. 2013 
Criminal law Journal 732  
Kshiti Goswami and others versus Subrata Kundu and others (2013) 11 SCC 618  
S.V.A. Steel Re -Rolling Mi lls Limited and others versus State of Kerala and others (2014) 4 SCC 
186  
 

For the Petitioners     :  Mr.M.L.Sharma, Senior Advocate with Mr.B.L.Soni and Mr.Aman 
Parth Sharma, Advocates.    

For the Respondents:  Mr.Shrawan Dogra, Advocate General with Mr.Anu p Rattan, 
Mr.Romesh Verma, Additional Advocate Generals and Mr.J.K.Verma, 
Deputy Advocate General.   

 

 The following judgment of the Court was delivered:  

 

Tarlok Singh Chauhan, Judge.  

  Both these contempt petitions have been filed against the judgment r endered by 
this Court in CWP No.937/2015, titled as ôAbhilash Chand & others versus State of Himachal 
Pradesh and othersõ alongwith connected matters decided on 03.11.2015 whereby the 
respondents were directed to implement the policy framed by them within a period of six months, 
as would be evident from the operative portion of the judgment which reads thus: - 

ò3.  In view of the above, we deem it proper to dispose of the writ petitions by 

directing the Authorities concerned to implement the said Policy as e arly as 
possible, preferably within six months.  Ordered accordingly.ó 

2.   It is averred that it was only on account of the directions passed by this Court 
that the State Government formulated the policy for taking over the services of the petitioners as 
well as similarly situated persons with a condition precedent that all those who are to be 
benefited  by the policy should not have any litigation pending.  The petitioners with bonafide 
belief that their services would be regularized withdrew the petition earlier filed by them, but 
would complain that the respondents were not implementing their own policy notified on 3 rd  
October, 2015, as was undertaken by them.  

3.   The respondents have filed their reply wherein it is averred that though there has 
been som e delay in implementing the policy, however, the same stands implemented in its letter 
and spirit.  

  We have heard the learned counsel for the parties and gone through the records 
of the case.  

4.   Shri M.L.Sharma, learned Senior Counsel, assisted by Shri  B.L.Soni and Shri 
Aman Parth Sharma, Advocates, for the petitioners would vehemently argue that since the 
respondents have failed to implement the judgment within the stipulated period and un -
necessarily dilly -dallying the matter, therefore, they should b e prosecuted and punished for 
having willfully and deliberately flouting the orders passed by this Court and thereby committed 
the contempt.  

5.   Learned Senior Counsel for the petitioners in order to buttress his submissions 
has placed reliance on the fol lowing observations of the Honõble Supreme Court in Priya Gupta 
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and Anr. versus Addl. Secy., Ministry of Health and Family Welfare and Ors. 2013 
Criminal law Journal 732 which read thus:  

ò13. As already noticed, the violations are admitted on the part of this contemnor. 
The tendering of apology by him, though at the initial stage of the hearings, cannot 
be accepted by the Court inasmuch as violation of the orders of the Court is willful, 
intentional, and prejudicial. Such conduct, not only has the adverse e ffect on the 
process of admissions and disturbs the faith of people in the administration of 
justice, but also lowers the dignity of the Court by unambiguously conveying that 
orders of this Court, its directions and prescribed procedure can be manipulated or 
circumvented so as to frustrate the very object of such orders and directions, 
thereby undermining the dignity of the Court. Administration of justice is a matter 
which cannot be ignored by the Court and the acceptance of apology tendered by 

the contemn or would amount to establishing a principle that such serious violations 
would not entail any consequences in law. This would, thus encourage repetition of 
such offences, rather than discouraging or preventing others from committing 
offences of similar nat ure as it would have no preventive or deterrent effect on 
persons for committing such offences in future. Thus, it is not a case where the 
Court should extend mercy of discharging the accused by acceptance of apology, 
as it would amount to encouraging simi lar behaviour.  

20. The provisions of the Act do not admit any discretion for the initiation of 
proceedings under the Act with reference to an order being of general directions or 
a specific order inter se the parties. The sine qua non to initiation of proc eedings 
under the Act is an order or judgment or direction of a Court and its wilful 
disobedience. Once these ingredients are satisfied, the machinery under the Act 
can be invoked by a party or even by the Court suo motu. If the contention raised 
on behalf  of the contemnor is accepted, it will have inevitable consequences of 
hurting the very rule of law and, thus, the constitutional ethos. The essence of 
contempt jurisprudence is to ensure obedience of orders of the Court and, thus, to 
maintain the rule of law. History tells us how a State is protected by its Courts and 
an independent judiciary is the cardinal pillar of the progress of a stable 
government. If over -enthusiastic executive attempts to belittle the importance of the 
Court and its judgments and o rders, and also lowers down its prestige and 
confidence before the people, then greater is the necessity for taking recourse to 
such power in the interest and safety of the public at large. The power to punish for 
contempt is inherent in the very nature an d purpose of the Court of justice. In our 
country, such power is codified. It serves at once a dual purpose, namely, as an 
aid to protect the dignity and authority of the Court and also in aiding the 
enforcement of civil remedies. Looked at from a wider pe rspective, contempt power 
is also a means for ensuring participation in the judicial process and observance of 

rules by such participants. Once the essentials for initiation of contempt 
proceedings are satisfied, the Court would initiate an action uninflue nced by the 
nature of the direction i.e. as to whether these directions were specific in a lis 
pending between the parties or were of general nature or were in rem.ó 

6.   He further placed reliance on the following observations of the Honõble Supreme 
Court in Kshiti Goswami and others versus Subrata Kundu and others (2013) 11 SCC 618  
which read thus: - 

ò11. It is not in dispute that the Selection Committee had recommended the names 
of 179 candidates including the respondents. Shri Pijush Roy, learned counsel for 
the petitioners stated that out of 179 candidates recommended by the Selection 
Committee, 161 were appointed and the remaining 18 persons were not appointed 
despite the directions given by the Tribunal and the High Court because the merit 
list had beco me defunct. He made strenuous effort to persuade us to take the view 
that in exercise of contempt jurisdiction the High Court cannot issue direction for 
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implementation of the order, violation of which led to the initiation of the contempt 
proceedings, but we have not felt persuaded to agree with him. Rather, we are in 
complete agreement with the High Court that one of the objects of the contempt 
jurisdiction which is exercised by the High Court under Article 215 of the 
Constitution read with the Contempt of  Courts Act, 1971 is to ensure faithful 
implementation of the direction given by it.  This is precisely what the Division 
Bench of the High Court has done in this case.  Therefore, we do not find any valid 
ground or justification to entertain the petitione rsõ challenge to the impugned order.  

12.  With the above observations, the special leave petition is dismissed.  

13.    The Chief Secretary, Government of West Bengal, the Principal Secretary, 
Public Works Department (Roads), West Bengal and the Chief Eng ineer, Public 
Works Department (Roads), West Bengal are directed to implement order dated    
12 -9-1997 passed by the High Court in Principal Secy., Writersõ Building v. 
Santanu Mitra WPST No.169 of 1997, order dated    12 -9-1997 (Cal) within a 

period of fo ur weeks from today. The appointments to be made hereinafter shall be 
effective from the date of the order of the Tribunal. It should be specifically 
mentioned in the appointment letters that the appointees shall get all consequential 
benefits including se niority except the pay which shall be notionally fixed.ó 

7.   Continuing further with his submissions, learned Senior Counsel for the 
petitioners, would then rely upon the following observations of the Honõble Supreme Court in 

S.V.A. Steel Re -Rolling Mills Limited and others versus State of Kerala and others (2014) 4 
SCC 186 which are as under: - 

ò30. Before laying down any policy which would give benefits to its subjects, the 
State must think about pros and cons of the policy and its capacity to give the 
benefits. Without proper appreciation of all the relevant factors, the State should 
not give any assurance, not only because that would be in violation of the 
principles of promissory estoppel but it would be unfair and immoral on the part of 
the State not to  act as per its promise.ó 

8.   Lastly, learned Senior Counsel for the petitioners, would bank upon the 
judgment rendered by a Co -ordinate Bench of this Court in which one of us (Honõble the Chief 

Justice was a member) in COPC No.11/2016 titled ôDr.Rattan Singh versus Shri A.D.N. Vajpayee 
and othersõ and connected matters decided on 09.11.2016, more particularly, the following 
observations: - 

ò10. Their lordships of the Honõble Supreme Court in Bihar Finance Service 
House Construction Coop. Society Ltd. V. Gau tam Goswami reported in 
(2008) 5 SCC 339 have held as under:  

ò33. This Court while exercising its jurisdiction under the Contempt of 
Courts Act or Article 129 of the Constitution of India must strive to give 
effect to the directions issued by this Court. W hen the claim of the parties 
had been adjudicated upon and has attained finality, it is not open for any 
party to go behind the said orders and seek to take away and/ or truncate 
the effect thereof. [See T.R. Dhananjaya v. J. Vasudevan (1995) 5 SCC 
619]  

34. In Prithawi Nath Ram v. State of Jharkhand and Others (2004) 7 SCC 
261], this Court held:  

"5. While dealing with an application for contempt, the court is 
really concerned with the question whether the earlier decision 
which has received its finality ha d been complied with or not. It 
would not be permissible for a court to examine the correctness of 
the earlier decision which had not been assailed and to take a 
view different than what was taken in the earlier decision.ó 
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It was furthermore observed:  

"6. On the question of impossibility to carry out the direction, the 
views expressed in T.R. Dhananjaya v. J. Vasudevan need to be 
noted. It was held that when the claim inter se had been 
adjudicated and had attained finality, it is not open to the 
respondent to go behind the orders and truncate the effect thereof 
by hovering over the rules to get around the result, to legitimize 
legal alibi to circumvent the order passed by a court."  

35. Moreover undertakings had been given by the respondents before this 
Court  from time to time. What they have done or intend to do is only the 
compliance thereof. The petitioner had to wait for a long time to get the 
fruits of requisition made by it for acquisition of land. The lands were 
acquired in 1983 on the basis of the requ isition made by it in 1973.  

11. Their lordships of the Honõble Supreme Court in Sudhir Vasudeva v. M. 

George Ravishekaran reported in (2014) 3 SCC 373 have held as under:  

ò15. The power vested in the High Courts as well as this Court to punish 
for contempt  is a special and rare power available both under the 
Constitution as well as the Contempt of Courts Act, 1971. It is a drastic 
power which, if misdirected, could even curb the liberty of the individual 
charged with commission of contempt. The very nature of the power casts 
a sacred duty in the Courts to exercise the same with the greatest of care 
and caution. This is also necessary as, more often than not, adjudication 
of a contempt plea involves a process of self determination of the sweep, 
meaning and ef fect of the order in respect of which disobedience is alleged. 
Courts must not, therefore, travel beyond the four corners of the order 
which is alleged to have been flouted or enter into questions that have not 
been dealt with or decided in the judgment or  the order violation of which 
is alleged. Only such directions which are explicit in a judgment or order or 
are plainly self evident ought to be taken into account for the purpose of 
consideration as to whether there has been any disobedience or willful 
violation of the same. Decided issues cannot be reopened; nor the plea of 
equities can be considered. Courts must also ensure that while considering 
a contempt plea the power available to the Court in other corrective 
jurisdictions like review or appeal is n ot trenched upon. No order or 
direction supplemental to what has been already expressed should be 
issued by the Court while exercising jurisdiction in the domain of the 
contempt law; such an exercise is more appropriate in other jurisdictions 

vested in the  Court, as noticed above. The above principles would appear 
to be the cumulative outcome of the precedents cited at the bar, namely, 
Jhareswar Prasad Paul and Another vs. Tarak Nath Ganguly and 
Others[3], V.M.Manohar Prasad vs. N. Ratnam Raju and Another[4 ], Bihar 
Finance Service House Construction Cooperative Society Ltd. vs. Gautam 
Goswami and Others[5] and Union of India and Others vs. Subedar 
Devassy PV[6].ó 

12. Before concluding, we are constrained to observe that despite there being 
numerous direction s, as noticed in the show cause notices, responsible officers 
manning decision making posts, sat over the matter purposely and intentionally, 
solely with a view to defeat the rightful claim of the petitioners. Had the petitioners 
not come to this Court by way of present contempt petitions, probably, they would 
have been denied rightful claim as extended to them vide Notification dated 
2.8.2014. Normally, after seeing the conduct of the respondents, this Court would 
not have shown any lenience to the officer s concerned but after taking into 
consideration the latest reply to the show cause notice, wherein they have 
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tendered unconditional apology for not obeying the direction of this court, this court 
drops the notice of contempt issued against the respondents.  However, they are 
cautioned to remain more vigilant and prompt, in future, while discharging their 
duties.ó 

9.   Obviously, there cannot be any dispute with the ratio in the judgments relied 
upon by the learned counsel for the petitioners. The rule of law is a fundamental feature of our 
Constitution.  The right to obtain judicial redress is a feature of its basic structure.  In a 
contempt petition as indeed, in every other case the decision must necessarily rest on the facts of 
that case.  There can be no d oubt that where there has been an unequivocal, deliberate and 
willful disobedience to the order of Court, punishment for contempt of Court is called for and 
should be unhesitatingly imposed upon the party, if found guilty. The law of contempt is to 
secure public respect and confidence in judiciary and judicial process. The purpose of contempt 

proceedings is to preserve and maintain the flow of stream of justice in its unsullied form and 
purity.  But it should be remembered that the Courtõs power to punish for contempt in summary 
proceedings must be sparingly used and with circumspection by making appropriate allowances 
for common human fallings within reasonable limits.  

10.   This Court has lucidly considered the legal position in COPC No.753/2015 titled 
Shr i Uma Dutt versus Shri Srikant Baldi and others, decided on 09.12.2015 and observed as 
under: - 

 ò9. While it is duty of the Court to punish a person who tries to obstruct the 
course of justice or brings to disrepute the institution of judiciary.  However, this 
power has to be exercised not casually or lightly, but with great care and 
circumspection.  Contempt proceedings serve a dual purpose of vindication of the 
public interest by punishment of the contumacious conduct and coercion to compel 
the contemnor to do what the law requires of him.  

 10.  A question whether there is contempt of Court or not is a serious one.   The 
Court is both the accuser as well as the judge of the accusation.  It behoves the 
Court to act with as great circumspection as possible m aking all allowances for 
errors of judgment and difficulties arising from inveterate practices in Courts and 
tribunals. It is only when a clear case of contumacious conduct not explainable 
otherwise, arises that the contemnor must be punished.  Punishment under the law 
of Contempt is called for when the lapse is deliberate and in disregard of oneõs 

duty and in defiance of authority.   

 11.   While dealing with the contempt petitions, the Courts are not required to 
travel beyond the four corners of order, whi ch is alleged to have been disobeyed or 
disregarded deliberately and willfully.  In this connection, it shall be apposite to 
make a fruitful recapitulation of a recent judgment of the Honõble Supreme Court in 
Ram Kishan Vs. Tarun Bajaj and others 2014 AIR SCW 1218, wherein it was held 
that: - 

  ò9. Contempt jurisdiction conferred onto the law courts power to punish an 
offender for his willful disobedience/contumacious conduct or obstruction 
to the majesty of law, for the reason that respect and authority 
commanded by the courts of law are the greatest guarantee to an ordinary 
citizens that his rights shall be protected and the entire democratic fabric 
of the society will crumble down if the respect of the judiciary is 
undermined. Undoubtedly, the contempt jur isdiction is a powerful weapon 
in the hands of the courts of law but that by itself operates as a string of 
caution and unless, thus, otherwise satisfied beyond reasonable doubt, it 
would neither fair nor reasonable for the law courts to exercise jurisdict ion 
under the Act. The proceedings are quasi - criminal in nature, and 
therefore, standard of proof required in these proceedings is beyond all 
reasonable doubt. It would rather be hazardous to impose sentence for 
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contempt on the authorities in exercise of contempt jurisdiction on mere 
probabilities. (Vide: V.G. Nigam & Ors. v. Kedar Nath Gupta & Anr., AIR 
1992 SC 2153; Chhotu Ram v. Urvashi Gulati & Anr., AIR 2001 SC 3468; 
Anil Ratan Sarkar & Ors. v. Hirak Ghosh & Ors., AIR 2002 SC 1405; Bank 
of Baroda v. S adruddin Hasan Daya & Anr., AIR 2004 SC 942; Sahdeo 
alias Sahdeo Singh v. State of U.P. & Ors., (2010) 3 SCC 705; and National 
Fertilizers Ltd. v. Tuncay Alankus & Anr., AIR 2013 SC 1299).  

  10. Thus, in order to punish a contemnor, it has to be establish ed that 
disobedience of the order is wilful. The word wilful introduces a mental 
element and hence, requires looking into the mind of person/contemnor by 
gauging his actions, which is an indication of ones state of mind. Wilful 
means knowingly intentional,  conscious, calculated and deliberate with 
full knowledge of consequences flowing therefrom. It excludes casual, 
accidental, bonafide or unintentional acts or genuine inability. Wilful acts 

does not encompass involuntarily or negligent actions. The act has  to be 
done with a bad purpose or without justifiable excuse or stubbornly, 
obstinately or perversely. Wilful act is to be distinguished from an act done 
carelessly, thoughtlessly, heedlessly or inadvertently. It does not include 
any act done negligently o r involuntarily. The deliberate conduct of a 
person means that he knows what he is doing and intends to do the same. 
Therefore, there has to be a calculated action with evil motive on his part. 
Even if there is a disobedience of an order, but such disobedi ence is the 
result of some compelling circumstances under which it was not possible 
for the contemnor to comply with the order, the contemnor cannot be 
punished. Committal or sequestration will not be ordered unless contempt 
involves a degree of default or  misconduct. (Vide: S. Sundaram Pillai, etc. 
v. V.R. Pattabiraman; AIR 1985 SC 582; Rakapalli Raja Rama Gopala Rao 
v. Naragani Govinda Sehararao & Anr., AIR 1989 SC 2185; Niaz 
Mohammad & Ors. etc.etc. v. State of Haryana & Ors., AIR 1995 SC 308; 
Chordia Au tomobiles v. S. Moosa, AIR 2000 SC 1880; M/s. Ashok Paper 
Kamgar Union & Ors. v. Dharam Godha & Ors., AIR 2004 SC 105; State of 
Orissa & Ors. v. Md. Illiyas, AIR 2006 SC 258; and Uniworth Textiles Ltd. 
v. CCE, Raipur, (2013) 9 SCC 753).  

  11. In Lt. Col. K.D. Gupta v. Union of India & Anr., AIR 1989 SC 2071, this 
Court dealt with a case wherein direction was issued to the Union of India 
to pay the amount of Rs. 4 lakhs to the applicant therein and release him 
from defence service. The said amount was paid to the applicant after 
deducting the income tax payable on the said amount. While dealing with 
the contempt application, this Court held that withholding the amount 
cannot be held to be either malafide or was there any scope to impute that 
the respondents intended to violate the direction of this Court.  

  12. In Mrityunjoy Das & Anr. v. Sayed Hasibur Rahaman & Ors., AIR 2001 
SC 1293, the Court while dealing with the issue whether a doubt persisted 
as to the applicability of the order of this Court to compl ainants held that it 
would not give rise to a contempt petition. The court was dealing with a 
case wherein the statutory authorities had come to the conclusion that the 
order of this court was not applicable to the said complainants while 
dealing with the case under the provision of West Bengal Land Reforms 
Act, 1955.  

  13. It is well settled principle of law that if two interpretations are possible, 
and if the action is not contumacious, a contempt proceeding would not be 
maintainable. The effect and purp ort of the order is to be taken into 
consideration and the same must be read in its entirety. Therefore, the 
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element of willingness is an indispensable requirement to bring home the 
charge within the meaning of the Act. (See: Sushila Raje Holkar v. Anil Ka k 
(Retd.), AIR 2008 (Supp -2) SC 1837; and Three Cheers Entertainment Pvt. 
Ltd. & Ors. v. C.E.S.C. Ltd., AIR 2009 SC 735): (2008 AIR SCW 7951).ó 

Similar view has been taken by this Bench in Contempt Petition No. 415 of 2014, 
Rulda Ram Vs. Rakesh Kanwar, decided on 28 th   February, 2015 .ó 

11.   As observed earlier, the only grievance of the petitioners is that the respondents 
have not complied with the judgment in question. However, we find that the respondents have 
placed on record a tabulated chart in both th e cases on the basis of which it can be gathered that 
the judgment infact stands complied with and the same is reproduced below: - 

òABSTRACT OF THE PETITIONERS OF COPC 216/2016 IN CWP No.937/2015. 

Sr. 

No. 

Particular of the case  Remarks  

1. Nos. of Petitione rs in COPC No.216/2016 in CWP CWP 
No.937/2015  

37 (Thirty Seven)  

2. Nos. of Petitioners to whom orders for conversion of services into 
Govt. contract are being issued after the completion of the final 
checking of documents/ certificates etc; which is under  process.  

15(Fifteen)  

3. Nos. of Petitioners exceeded the age of 45 years  04 (Four)  

4. Nos. of Petitioners who have not completed the required period 
upto 31/07/2015 for conversion  

of services as per Govt.  Notification dated 03/10/2015.  

  

18 (Eighteen ) 

 

1.   The Notification dated 03/10/2015 issued by the State Govt. is  enclosed as 
Annexure -A-1.  

2.   The letter dated 21/10/2015 issued by the State Govt. is enclosed as Annexure -A-II.  

3.  The letter dated 25/07/2016 alongwith Annexure -A issued by the St ate Govt. is 
enclosed as Annexure -A-III.ó 

òABSTRACT OF THE PETITIONERS OF COPC 217/2016 IN CWP No.1146/2015. 

Sr. 

No. 

Particular of the case  Remarks  

1. Nos. of Petitioners in COPC No.217/2016  

in CWP No.1146/2015  

80 (Eighty)  

2. Nos. of Petitioners to whom orders for conversion of services 
into Govt. contract are being issued after the completion of the 
final checking of documents/certificates etc; which is under 
process.  

13(Thirteen)  

3. Nos. of Petitioners exceeded the age of 45 years  02 (Two)  

4. Nos. of Petitioners who have not completed the required 
period upto 31/07/2015 for conversion of services as per 
Govt.  Notification dated 03/10/2015.   

65 (Sixty Five)  

 

1.   The Notification dated 03/10/2015 issued by the State Govt. is enclosed as 
Annexure -A-1.  

2.   The letter dated 21/10/2015 issued by the State Govt. is enclosed as Annexure -A-II.  
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3.  The letter dated 25/07/2016 alongwith Annexure -A issued by the State Govt. is 
enclosed as Annexure -A-III.ó 

12.   To be fair to the learned counsel for the petitione rs, he would argue that making 
the appointments of the petitioners subject to the final outcome of Special Leave Petition (C) 
No.20353/2016, titled ôRaj Kumar and another versus State of H.P. and others, is completely 

wrong and would further contend that e ven the appointment orders issued to some of the 
petitioners are contrary to the scheme itself.   

13.   We have noticed these contentions and are of the considered opinion that the 
respondents by making appointments of the petitioners subject to the outcome  of SLP(C) in Raj 
Kumarõs case have not flouted  or violated  the order passed by this Court and cannot, therefore, 
be said to have committed any contempt.  

14.   As regards the appointment orders of some of the petitioners, being in alleged 
violation of th e policy (policies), the same too does not violate any part of the directions passed by 
this Court, as this Court in its judgment had only directed the Authority concerned to implement 
the policy as early as possible, preferably within six months.  In case , the petitioner(s) is/are still 
aggrieved by any of condition(s) contained in their orders of appointments, they are free to 
approach the appropriate forum for redressal of their grievances.  

15.   The respondents have taken all necessary steps to comply w ith the judgment of 
this Court and, therefore, in the given circumstances, we are not satisfied that a case of willful 
contempt is made out.  

16.   Having said so, we find no merit in these petitions and the same are dismissed.  
Pending application(s), if a ny, also stands disposed of.  Registry is directed to place a copy of this 
judgment on the file of connected matter.  

****************************************************************************************************  

BEFORE HONõBLE  MR. JUSTICE MANSOOR AHMAD MIR, C.J. AND HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE 

TARLOK SINGH CHAUHAN, J.  

General Secretary / Pradhan, Employees Union Central Cooperative Consumer Store, 
Shimla               éPetitioner 

        Versus  

Sh. K.C. Chaman           éRespondent. 

 

     COPC No. 963 of 201 5 in LPA No .4053 of 2013.  

     Judgment reserved on:  27.2.2017   

     Date of Decision :  06 .03. 2017.  

 

Contempt of Courts Act, 1972 - Section 12 - The petitioner -union comprising of employees of 
erstwhile Central Co -operative Consumers Store Shimla raised a n industrial dispute claiming 
regular pay scales at par with the employees of federation with arrears ð the reference was 
allowed ð writ petitions were filed and it was held that petitioners would be entitled to all 

monetary benefits which were being paid to them on 18.6.1994 including increments and other 
emoluments ð LPA was filed, which was partly allowed - the judgment was modified by directing 

H.P. State Co -operative Marking and Consumers Federation Limited, Shimla to do the needful 
and take follow up a ction ð a contempt petition was filed pleading that the corporation has not 
complied with the orders passed in the writ petition ð held, that power of contempt has to be 
exercised with great care and circumspection ð the petitioners were held entitled to p ay scales 
which were payable to them on 18.6.1994 and were specifically held disentitled to the DA and 
ADA etc. at par with the regular employees of the federation ð the plea of the entitlement of 
revised pay scales at par with the employees of the federat ion was never upheld by the Court ð 



 

91 

the members of the union cannot claim any benefit over and above to what they were held 
entitled in the judgment - contempt petition dismissed.(Para -12 to 17)  

 

For the  Petitioner   Mr.  J. L. Bhardwaj, Advocate.  

For the r espondent   Ms. Ranjan a Parmar, Senior Advocate, with Ms. Rashmi Thakur, Advocate.  

 

 The following judgment of the Court was delivered:    

 

Tarlok Singh Chauhan, Judge    

  This contempt petition has been filed against the respondent for his alleged 
willful  disobedience of the directions passed by this Court in LPA No. 4053 of 2013 whereby 
according to them the members of the petitioner -Union were held entitled to the service benefits 

at par with the regular employees of the H. P. State Cooperative Marketing  and Consumers 
Federation Ltd., Shimla (for short the ôFederationõ). However, before adverting to the directions 
passed by this Court, it would be necessary to recapitulate the facts.  

CWP No. 342 of 2008  

2.   The petitioner -Union comprises of the employees  of the erstwhile Central 
Cooperative Consumers Store, Shimla (for short ôConsumer Storeõ), which currently is under 

liquidation. The   Consumer Store requested  the H.P. State Cooperative Marketing and 
Consumers Federation Ltd. Shimla (for short ôFederationõ) to take up the services of the members 
of the petitioner -Union for procurement and distribution of control articles vide letter dated 
10.6.1994. The Federation vide its letter dated 18.6.1994 agreed to utilize 12 shops only for 
management purpose alon gwith 18 workers (10 salesmen and 8 helpers). Condition No.4 of the 
aforesaid letter stipulated as under:  

 ò4. The workers employed in the running of these 12 shops will remain on your roll 
and Himfed will make payment of their salaries through you at the present pay 
scale being drawn by each worker.ó 

3.   Aggrieved by the aforesaid condition, the members of the petitioner -Union raised 
a dispute by invoking Section 72 of the Himachal Pradesh Cooperative Societies Act, 1968 
(hereinafter referred to as ôActõ). The same came to be decided by the Deputy Registrar 
(Administration) vide his order dated 26.7.2003 wherein it was held that there was no clause in 
the letter dated 18.6.1994 (supra) by virtue of which  the financial benefits to the petitioners 
could be f rozen. Meaning thereby, he held the members of the petitioner -Union to be entitled to 
revised pay scale without arrears of revised pay scales.  

4.   The employer i.e. Federation assailed this order by filing an appeal before the 
Additional Secretary (Cooper ation), who allowed the payment of arrears and allowances to the 

members of the petitioner -Union in the existing running pay scale  from 25.9.1998. The plea of 
the Federation that the arrears of pay be restricted to three years was also rejected vide order  
dated 3.12.2005. This order of Additional Secretary (Cooperation) was assailed by the Federation 
by means of CWP No. 272 of 2006. The same was decided on 21.6.2007 and the matter was 
remanded back to the Additional Secretary (Cooperation) for adjudication .  The Joint Secretary 

(Cooperation) decided the appeal on 3.12.2007 whereby he held that the emoluments of pay 
under the then pay scales could not be withheld to the members of the petitioner -Union and 
directed the payment of dearness allowance and other consequential benefits which these 
members were already getting on the date of agreement to be continued to be paid to them. 
However, they were not entitled to future dearness allowance etc. at par with the employees of the 
Federation. The prayer of the pe titioner -Union to their entitlement of revised pay scale was also 
rejected.  

5.   Aggrieved by the aforesaid decision, the petitioner filed CWP No. 342 of 2008 
claiming therein the regular pay scale at par with the employees of the Federation with arrears o f 
consequential benefits like arrears of dearness allowance and other benefits etc.  
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  CWP No. 1001 of 2008  

6.   This writ petition was filed by the Federation wherein it too assailed the order 
passed by the Joint Secretary (Cooperation) on 3.12.2007 on the ground that the petitioners were 
only entitled to the rates as per agreement  dated 18.6.1994 (supra) and were not entitled to  
annual increments.  

  CWP No. 5030 of 2010  

7.   The petitioner -Union had earlier raised an industrial dispute vide Reference No. 
32 of 2001 wherein they laid claim to their entitlement to new pay scales with effect from 
1.10.1999 at par with the employees of the Federation alongwith all admissible benefits. The 
same was answered in their favour vide award dated 15.6.2010, which was assailed by the 
Federation by way of CWP No. 5030 of 2010. .  

8.   All the three petitions came to be decided by learned writ Court by way of 
common judgment dated 3.4.2012. CWP No. 342 of 2008 and CWP No. 1001 of 2008 were 
ordered to be dismissed, whereas CWP No. 5030 of 2010 was allowed and the award passed by 
the learned Labour Court dated 15.6.2010 was ordered to be set -aside. However, it was clarified 
that the petitioners would be entitled to all the monetary benefits which were being paid to them 
on 18 .6.1994 including increments and other emoluments.  

9.   The aforesaid decision was challenged by the Federation in two separate appeals 
being LPA No.477 of 2012 and LPA No. 4053 of 2013 and by the petitioner by filing LPA No. 107 
of 2015. All the three LPA s were disposed of on August 5, 2015 in the following terms:  

 ò4. Today, the learned Senior Advocate stated at the Bar that her client is ready to 
do the needful in terms of para -15 of the impugned judgment. Her statement is 
taken on record.  

 5. In the gi ven circumstances, the impugned judgment is modified by providing that 
all the three writ petitions are disposed of by directing the Himachal Pradesh State 
Cooperative Marketing and Consumers Federation Limited, Shimla to do the 
needful and take follow up action in terms of para -15 of the impugned judgment, 
within eight weeks from today.ó 

10.   Evidently, all these appeals were disposed of in terms of para -15 of the judgment 
passed by the learned writ Court and, therefore, it becomes necessary to reproduce h erein this 
paragraph in its entirety, which reads thus:  

 ò15. The Joint Secretary (Cooperation) in his order dated 3.12.2007 has held the 
workmen, as noticed above, entitled to annual increments. However, he has denied 
the D.A and A.D.A. etc. to the workme n at par with the regular employees of the 
federation . It is made clear by way of abundant precaution that the workmen will 
get the benefits, which were payable to the workmen on 18.6.1994. Rather, Mrs. 
Ranjana Parmar has undertaken at the Bar that the mon etary benefits to which 
the workmen were entitled on 18.6.1994 will be paid to them. She has also stated 
that the workmen have also been paid `1,000/ - due to rise in price index . There is 
merit in the contention of Mrs. Ranjana Parmar and Mr. K.D. Sood, Sr . Advocate 
that there was no master -servant relationship between the workmen and 

federation. The federation has merely agreed to help the workmen after the 
winding up proceedings were initiated. The Liquidator, legally speaking, could not 
order the federat ion to engage the workmen after the financial crises in the Central 
Cooperative Consumers Stores Limited (Super Bazar), Shimla. The Workmen were 
being paid what was agreed as per letter dated 18.6.1994. There is neither any 
illegality or perversity or proc edural impropriety in order dated 3.12.2007 . The 
same is upheld.ó    

11.   Mr. J.L. Bhardwaj, learned counsel for the petitioner would vehemently argue 
that the respondent despite having undertaken before this Court to pay the monetary benefits to 
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the workm en, has failed to do so. Whereas, Mrs. Ranjana Parmar, Senior Advocate, assisted by 
Ms. Rashmi Thakur, Advocate, would vehemently argue that the undertaking as given by her 
client is being strictly adhered to both in letter as well as in spirit.  

  We have  heard learned counsel for the parties and have gone through the records 
carefully and meticulously.   

12.   At the outset, it may be observed that it is more than settled that the power of 
contempt has to be exercised not casually or lightly, but with grea t care and circumspection. This 
aspect of the matter has already been considered by us in COPC No. 753 of 2015 titled Uma 
Dutt vs. Shri Srikant Baldi , decided on 9 th  December, 2015, wherein it was observed as under:  

 ò9.  While it is duty of the Court to p unish a person who tries to obstruct the 
course of justice or brings to disrepute the institution of judiciary.  However, this 
power has to be exercised not casually or lightly, but with great care and 
circumspection.  Contempt proceedings serve a dual pur pose of vindication of the 
public interest by punishment of the contumacious conduct and coercion to compel 
the contemnor to do what the law requires of him.  

 10.   A question whether there is contempt of Court or not is a serious one.   The 
Court is both the accuser as well as the judge of the accusation.   It behoves the 
Court to act with as great circumspection as possible making all allowances for 
errors of judgment and difficulties arising from inveterate practices in Courts and 
tribunals.   It is only  when a clear case of contumacious conduct not explainable 
otherwise, arises that the contemnor must be punished.  Punishment under the law 
of Contempt is called for when the lapse is deliberate and in disregard of oneõs 
duty and in defiance of authority.   

 11.   While dealing with the contempt petitions, the Courts are not required to 
travel beyond the four corners of order, which is alleged to have been disobeyed or 
disregarded deliberately and willfully.  In this connection, it shall be apposite to 
make a fruitful recapitulation of a recent judgment of the Honõble Supreme Court in 
Ram Kishan Vs. Tarun Bajaj and others 2014 AIR SCW 1218, wherein it was held 
that: - 

  ò9. Contempt jurisdiction conferred onto the law courts power to punish an 
offender for his  willful disobedience/contumacious conduct or obstruction to the 
majesty of law, for the reason that resp ect and authority commanded by the 

courts of law are the greatest guarantee to an ordinary citizens that his rights 
shall be protected and the entire d emocratic fabric of the society will crumble 
down if the respect of the judiciary is undermined. Undoubtedly, the contempt 
jurisdiction is a powerful weapon in the hands of the courts of law but that by 
itself operates as a string of caution and unless, th us, otherwise satisfied 
beyond reasonable doubt, it would neither fair nor reasonable for the law courts 
to exercise jurisdiction under the Act. The proceedings are quasi - criminal in 
nature, and therefore, standard of proof required in these proceedings i s beyond 
all reasonable doubt. It would rather be hazardous to impose sentence for 
contempt on the authorities in exercise of contempt jurisdiction on mere 
probabilities. (Vide: V.G. Nigam & Ors. v. Kedar Nath Gupta & Anr., AIR 1992 
SC 2153; Chhotu Ram v. Urvashi Gulati & Anr., AIR 2001 SC 3468; Anil Ratan 
Sarkar & Ors. v. Hirak Ghosh & Ors., AIR 2002 SC 1405; Bank of Baroda v. 
Sadruddin Hasan Daya & Anr., AIR 2004 SC 942; Sahdeo alias Sahdeo Singh 
v. State of U.P. & Ors., (2010) 3 SCC 705; and National Fer tilizers Ltd. v. 
Tuncay Alankus & Anr., AIR 2013 SC 1299).  

   10. Thus, in order to punish a contemnor, it has to be established that 
disobedience of the order is wilful. The word wilful introduces a mental element 
and hence, requires looking into the min d of person/contemnor by gauging his 
actions, which is an indication of ones state of mind. Wilful means knowingly 
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intentional, conscious, calculated and deliberate with full knowledge of 
consequences flowing therefrom. It excludes casual, accidental, bona fide or 
unintentional acts or genuine inability. Wilful acts does not encompass 
involuntarily or negligent actions. The act has to be done with a bad purpose or 
without justifiable excuse or stubbornly, obstinately or perversely. Wilful act is to 
be distin guished from an act done carelessly, thoughtlessly, heedlessly or 
inadvertently. It does not include any act done negligently or involuntarily. The 
deliberate conduct of a person means that he knows what he is doing and intends 
to do the same. Therefore, t here has to be a calculated action with evil motive on 
his part. Even if there is a disobedience of an order, but such disobedience is the 
result of some compelling circumstances under which it was not possible for the 
contemnor to comply with the order, t he contemnor cannot be punished. Committal 
or sequestration will not be ordered unless contempt involves a degree of default or 
misconduct. (Vide: S. Sundaram Pillai, etc. v. V.R. Pattabiraman; AIR 1985 SC 582; 

Rakapalli Raja Rama Gopala Rao v. Naragani Go vinda Sehararao & Anr., AIR 
1989 SC 2185; Niaz Mohammad & Ors. etc.etc. v. State of Haryana & Ors., AIR 
1995 SC 308; Chordia Automobiles v. S. Moosa, AIR 2000 SC 1880; M/s. Ashok 
Paper Kamgar Union & Ors. v. Dharam Godha & Ors., AIR 2004 SC 105; State of 
Orissa & Ors. v. Md. Illiyas, AIR 2006 SC 258; and Uniworth Textiles Ltd. v. CCE, 
Raipur, (2013) 9 SCC 753).  

   11. In Lt. Col. K.D. Gupta v. Union of India & Anr., AIR 1989 SC 2071, this 
Court dealt with a case wherein direction was issued to the Union of  India to pay 
the amount of Rs. 4 lakhs to the applicant therein and release him from defence 
service. The said amount was paid to the applicant after deducting the income tax 
payable on the said amount. While dealing with the contempt application, this 
Court held that withholding the amount cannot be held to be either malafide or was 
there any scope to impute that the respondents intended to violate the direction of 
this Court.  

   12. In Mrityunjoy Das & Anr. v. Sayed Hasibur Rahaman & Ors., AIR 2001 
SC 1293, the Court while dealing with the issue whether a doubt persisted as to 
the applicability of the order of this Court to complainants held that it would not 
give rise to a contempt petition. The court was dealing with a case wherein the 
statutory author ities had come to the conclusion that the order of this court was not 
applicable to the said complainants while dealing with the case under the provision 
of West Bengal Land Reforms Act, 1955.  

   13. It is well settled principle of law that if two interpr etations are possible, 
and if the action is not contumacious, a contempt proceeding would not be 
maintainable. The effect and purport of the order is to be taken into consideration 
and the same must be read in its entirety. Therefore, the element of willin gness is 
an indispensable requirement to bring home the charge within the meaning of the 
Act. (See: Sushila Raje Holkar v. Anil Kak (Retd.), AIR 2008 (Supp -2) SC 1837; and 

Three Cheers Entertainment Pvt. Ltd. & Ors. v. C.E.S.C. Ltd., AIR 2009 SC 735): 
(2008 AIR SCW 7951).ó 

 Similar view has been taken by this Bench in Contempt Petition No. 415 of 2014, 
Rulda Ram Vs. Rakesh Kanwar, decided on 28 th  February, 2015.   

13.    It would be evidently clear from para -15 of the judgment passed by learned writ 
Court (s upra) that the order passed by the Joint Secretary (Cooperation) dated 3.12.2007 was 
upheld in its entirety. Meaning thereby, the petitioners were only held entitled to get the benefits 
which were payable to them on 18.6.1994 and were specifically held dis entitled to the D.A. and 
A.D.A. etc. at par with the regular employees of the Federation. This conclusion can be further 

gathered from a perusal of paragraph 13 of the judgment of the learned writ Court, which reads 
thus:  
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 ò13. It is evident that the HIMFE D has only agreed to pay the salary to the 

workmen of their present pay scale as on 18.6.1994.It cannot be read in condition 
No.4 that the HIMFED has ever agreed to pay the workmen revised pay scales 
which were to be paid to its regularly appointed employe es. The terms and 
conditions are to be read as they are. Joint Secretary (Cooperation) has correctly 
interpreted clause 4 of the letter dated 18.6.1994 by coming to a conclusion that 
the workmen were only entitled to annual increments and other consequenti al 
benefits, which were available to them on this date. His findings that the workmen 
were not entitled to regular pay scale at par with the employees of federation are 
justifiable.ó  

14.   At this stage, Mr. J.L.Bhardwaj, learned counsel for the petitioner  would bank 
upon the letter issued by the Liquidator of the erstwhile employer of the petitioner -Union on 

31.7.2012 setting out therein the bill including increments and other emoluments to be paid to 
the petitioner w.e.f. June, 1994 which according to him  have been calculated on the basis of the 
order passed by learned writ Court.   

15 .  We have gone through the calculations and find that the same are based on 
complete misreading of the judgment rendered by the learned writ Court as has been affirmed by 
th is Court in LPAs, referred to above. The plea of entitlement of revised pay scales at par with the 
employees of the Federation was never upheld by this Court. To the contrary, a specific finding 
negating this plea has not only been recorded in paras 13 and  15 of the impugned judgment 
(supra), but a detailed discussion is also found in para 16 of the judgment rendered by learned 
writ Court, which reads thus:  

 ò16. Now, the court will advert to the challenge laid to award dated 15.6.2010. The 
workmen had rais ed the industrial dispute, which led to reference to the Industrial 
Tribunal -cum-Labour Court. The precise reference which has been made to the 
Industrial Tribunal -cum-Labour Court is that whether the workmen were entitled 
for grant of pay scales, annual i ncrement, additional dearness allowances, interim 
relief and other regular allowances admissible to them on the basis of revision of 
pay scale with effect from 1.1.1996. The learned Industrial Tribunal -cum-Labour 
Court has taken into consideration the stat ement of PW -1 Deep Ram. According to 

him, their counter -parts working in the federation were getting regular pay scale. 
PW-2 Sanjeev Sharma has deposed that the salesmen appointed on the regular roll 
of federation were getting salary of ``9,673/ - and `7,89 9 and the workmen were 
getting only 2,424/ -,` 3,183/ - and ` 2,604/ -. PW-3 Mehar Chand has testified that 
he was working as Sales Supervisor in the Super Bazar since 7.6.1966 to 
28.4.1994 and used to get the salary on the State Government pattern. RW -1 
Ramesh Bhaik has admitted in his cross -examination that the workmen were not 
getting the revised pay scale alongwith increments and other benefits. According to 
him, the fair price shops, which were earlier functioning under Super Bazar were 
now functioning un der the control of HIMFED. The learned Industrial Tribunal -cum-
Labour Court has misconstrued the letter dated 18.6.1994. It has already been 
noticed hereinabove that what was agreed by the HIMFED to be paid to the 
workmen was the existing pay scale drawn b y them. The learned Industrial 
Tribunal -cum-Labour Court has read something in condition No.4, which was not 
there. It was never agreed by the HIMFED that the workmen would get revised pay 
scale at par with the employees of the federation. The learned Indu strial Tribunal 
could not apply the principle of ôequal pay for equal workõ in view of specific terms 
and conditions used in letter dated 18.6.1994. The workmen have never become 
the employees of the federation. Even as per clause 4, they had to remain the  
employees of the Central Cooperative Consumers Store, Shimla . The learned 
Industrial Tribunal has further erred in law by relying upon the deliberations which 
had taken place on 28.9.1999. As far as proceedings dated 28.9.1999 are 
concerned, the Additiona l Secretary (Cooperation) wrote a letter to the Managing 
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Director on 29.1.2000 to inform him about the follow up action which was taken 
pursuant to the meeting held on 28.9.1999. The Managing Director of the 
federation apprised the competent authority on 1 5.2.2000 that it was running into 
losses and it could not accede to the demands of the employees of the Super Bazar. 
He also informed that the proceedings were also placed before the Board of 
Directors/Management of the federation wherein it was decided th at in view of 
continuous losses being sustained by the federation, the business of Super Bazar 
be transferred to Kailash District Federation. This information was supplied by the 
Managing Director of the federation on 15.2.2000 vide Annexure R -3 to Additio nal 
Registrar (Mont.), Cooperative Societies, Himachal Pradesh. Thereafter, the matter 
was reported by the Registrar Cooperative Societies to the State Government on 
23.2.2000. Thus, the fact of the matter is that no final decision was taken on the 
basis o f proceedings dated 28.9.1999. The learned Labour Court has erred in law 
by giving undue weightage to the proceedings dated 28.9.1999 while allowing the 

claim of the workmen. Thus, the Learned Labour Court has erred in law and has 
also not correctly apprec iated the oral as well as documentary evidence; the award 
is liable to be set aside.ó  

16.   From the aforesaid discussion, it is abundantly clear that the members of the 
petitioner -Union were never granted any benefit at par with the regular employees of t he 
Federation and rather the writ petition (CWP No. 342 of 2008) filed by them was dismissed and 
the award passed by the learned Labour Court -cum -Industrial Tribunal in their favour was 
specifically set -aside in the writ petition filed by the Federation (C WP No. 5030 of 2010. Therefore, 
the members of the petitioner -Union cannot claim any benefit over and above to what they were 

held entitled to in para -15 of the judgment passed by learned writ Court as affirmed by learned 
Division Bench in LPA No. 4053 of 2013 alongwith other connected cases.  

17.   Even otherwise, the petitioner has placed no material on record whereby it can be 
gathered  that they are not being paid an amount as specifically undertaken by the respondents 
before the learned writ Court and b efore the learned Division Bench in LPA.  

18.   Having said so, we find no merit in this petition and accordingly the notice issued 
to the respondent is ordered to be discharged. Petition stands disposed of.  

************************************************** ***************************************  

BEFORE HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE DHARAM CHAND CHAUDHARY, J. 

Harbans Singh      .......Petitioner  

     Versus  

M/s Alembic Ltd.     é... .Respondent  

 

                            CMPMO No. 309 of 2016     

        Decided on: 6 th  March, 2017  

 

Industrial Disputes Act, 1947 -Section 36 (4) - A reference was made by the Competent Authority 

on the demand raised by the petitioner - the reference was initially answered in favour of the 
petitioner ex -parte - however, the award was set aside o n an application moved by the respondent - 
- an application under Section 36(4) was filed, which was dismissed -held, that  the petitioner and 
respondent were initially represented by legal practitioners  - neither the petitioner nor the Labour 
Court had obje cted to the appearance by the Advocate ð the representation is not onlyat the state 
of appearance but during subsequent stages as well - the application was rightly dismissed by the 
Labour Court - writ petition dismissed. (Para -2 to 4)  

 

For the petitioner:   Mr. Pritam Singh Chandel, Advocate.  

For the respondents:   Mr. Rahul Mahajan, Advocate.  
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 The following judgment of the Court was delivered:  

    

Dharam Chand Chaudhary, Judge (Oral)  

   Challenge herein is to the order, Annexure P -1 passed in an applicati on under 
Section 36(4) of the Industrial Disputes Act, whereby the prayer that the petitioner -workman is 
appearing in person before Labour Court -cum -Industrial Tribunal below, therefore, the 
respondent -management be also to directed appear in person has be en declined and the 
application dismissed.  

2.  A reference registered as Reference Petition No. 10/2006 made by the competent 
authority on the demands raised by the petitioner is pending disposal before learned Labour 
Court -cum -Industrial Tribunal, Shimla.   The reference initially was answered in favour of the 
petitioner -workman ex-parte , however, on an application moved by the respondent -management, 

the ex -parte award was set -aside and the Reference Petition ordered to be decided on merits.  The 
order pass ed by the Labour Court was assailed in this Court in CWP No. 1910 of 2009.  The writ 
petition was dismissed with a direction to the Labour Court to take the Reference Petition to its 
logical end.  Even LPA No. 69/2011 filed by the petitioner -workman was al so dismissed vide 

judgment dated 25.5.2016.  The matter after its remand has now been landed in the Labour 
Court.  The petitioner -workman after remand of the case intends to conduct the proceedings in 
Reference Petition in person. Since the respondent -mana gement is represented by legal 
practitioner, therefore, this has led in filing the application under Section 36(4) of the Act by the 
petitioner -workman, which has been considered by learned Labour Court and dismissed vide the 
order under challenge.  

3.  Admi ttedly, initially not only the respondent -management but the petitioner -
workman was also represented by legal practitioner, they engaged on their behalf right from the 
institution of the Reference Petition till the disposal thereof by the Labour Court and during the 

course of proceedings in Civil Writ Petition as well as LPA aforesaid in this Court. Section 36(4), 
no doubt, provides for representation of a party in pending proceedings before a Labour Court or 
Industrial Tribunal by a legal practitioner, how ever, with the consent of opposite party to the 
proceedings and with the leave of Labour Court, Tribunal or National Tribunal as the case may 
be.  In the case in hand, the respondent -management when served with the notice in Reference 
Petition had put in a ppearance through Mr. Rahul Mahajan, Advocate before learned Labour 
court.  Neither the petitioner -workman nor learned Labour Court had objected to appearance by 
the management in this manner in the pending Reference Petition.  Therefore, not only the 
peti tioner -workman has consented for representation of the respondent -management by the 
counsel but the Labour Court has also permitted it to do so. Being so, at this stage, when the 
Reference Petition has been remanded by this Court for fresh disposal in acco rdance with law, the 
respondent -management cannot be relegated to the stage i.e. entering of appearance by it initially 
on its service in the Reference Petition because the provisions contained under Section 36(4) of 
the Act in the matter of appearance thr ough a legal practitioner postulates to that stage and not 
any subsequent stage like in the case in hand.  The arguments that after remand of the case by 
this Court, it has to be treated as a fresh case addressed on behalf of the petitioner -workman 
cannot be accepted nor persuade this Court to form an opinion that the remand of the case has 

relegated the same to the initial stage when the respondent -management had put in appearance. 
Now the pleadings are complete and the case after its remand shall proceed further from that 
stage onwards.  The submissions made by Mr. Chandel, learned counsel that the petitioner -
workman is a poor person, hence not in a position to engage a legal practitioner to conduct the 
case on his behalf are duly considered, however, are without any substance for the reason that 
the petitioner, if otherwise eligible may approach the concerned District Legal Services 
Authority/State Legal Services Authority for providing free legal aid to him.   

4.  With these observations, this petition is  dismissed. Pending application(s), if any, 
shall also stand disposed of.  
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5.  The parties through learned counsel representing them are directed to appear 
before learned Labour Court, Shimla on 29 th  March, 2017 .  The record be sent back forthwith so 
as to reach in the Court below well before the date fixed.  

***************************************************************************************  

 

BEFORE HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE MANSOOR AHMAD MIR, C.J. AND HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE 
TARLOK SINGH CHAUHAN, J.  

Sh. Jai Pal an d others     é..Appellants  

       Versus  

The State of HP and others    ..éRespondents  

 

    OSA No. 1 of 2017  

                 Date of decision: 6 th  March, 2017.  

 

Code of Civil Procedure, 1908 - Order 7 Rule 11 - Plaintiffs/appellants filed a suit for recover y of 
Rs. 29 lacs and Rs. 5 lacs as interest ð single Judge held that the suit did not fall within the 
pecuniary jurisdiction and ordered return of the plaint ð held, that the plaintiffs had claimed a 
decree of Rs. 34 lacs ð Rs. 5 lacs was not pendente lite  interest but was an interest till the filing of 
the suit ð the matter falls within the pecuniary jurisdiction of the Court - order set aside - plaintiffs 
directed to deposit the deficient court fees within eight weeks. (Para -2 to 5)    

 

For the appellants:  Mr. G.D. Verma, Sr. Advocate with Mr. B.C. Verma, Advocate.  

For  the respondents:  Mr. Shrawan Dogra with M/s Anup Rattan, and Varun Chandel, 
Additional Advocate Generals.  

 

 The following judgment of the Court was delivered:  

 

Mansoor Ahmad Mir, Chief Justi ce (Oral)   

  Subject matter of this appeal is the order dated 20 th  November, 2016, made by 
the learned Single Judge of this Court, whereby it has been held that the valuation of the suit 
does not fall within the pecuniary jurisdiction  of this Court and ac cordingly, the plaint was 
returned to the plaintiffs/appellants herein, for short òthe impugned orderó.  

2.  Plaintiffs/ appellants had filed suit before this Court for recovery of Rs.29 lacs 
and Rs. 5 lacs, as interest till filing of the suit. Thus, the c laim of the plaintiffs has to be gathered 
while reading the plaint and it is the averments contained in the plaint which determines the 
jurisdiction of the Court.  

3.   While going through all paras of the plaint, one comes to an inescapable 
conclusion that  the plaintiffs have claimed a decree for recovery of Rs.34 lacs in toto  till filing of 
the suit. The amount of Rs.5 lacs is not pendente  but is interest till filing of the suit, as observed 

by the learned Single Judge. Having said so, the amount claimed b y the plaintiffs in the suit falls 
within the pecuniary jurisdiction of this Court.  

4.   Accordingly, the impugned order is set aside.  

5.   Plaintiffs/appellants to deposit the deficient Court fees, within eight weeks.  

6.   List the suit before the learned Single Judge having the Roster. Accordingly, the 
appeal is disposed of, alongwith pending applications, if any.   

*************************************************************************************************  
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BEFORE HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE DHARAM CHAND CHAUDHARY, J.  

New India Assurance Company Ltd.    é...Appellant.  

          Versus  

Smt. Bhim Chhring Maghar & ors.    ééRespondents.  

 

       FAO(WCA) No. 169 of 2008.  

       Date of decision:  March 6, 2017.  

 

Employees Compensation Act, 1923 - Section 4 - Deceased was working as a beldar - a boulder 
slided from the hill side and hit the deceased on his head - he died on the spot - a compensation of 
Rs.2,58,336/ - was awarded by the Commissioner - a sum of Rs.1,52,313 was awarded as interest - 
Insurer was directed t o deposit the amount with interest within a period of one month from the 

date of the award or to pay the penalty - held, that the terms of the policy were not brought on 
record to show that insurer was  not liable to pay the interest - the liability to pay t he penalty is 
that of the insured and not of the insurer - hence, award modified to the extent that liability to pay 
the penalty imposed upon the insurer is quashed and set aside. (Para -7 to 9)  

 

Case referred:  

Ved Prakash Garg versus Premi Devi and others,  (1997) 8 Supreme Court Cases 1  

 

For the appellant:        Mr. B.M. Chauhan, Advocate.  

For the respondents:  Mr.  Bhoop Singh, Advocate, for respondent No. 1.  

 Mr. Ankur Sood, Advocate, court guardian, for minor 

respondents No. 2 and 3.  

 None for respond ent No. 4.  

  

 The following judgment of the Court was delivered:  

 

Dharam Chand Chaudhary, J. (Oral)     

  In this appeal, award dated 6.9.2007 passed by learned Commissioner under 
Workmenõs Compensation Act in case No. 2(2)Comp./2006 is under challenge.  This appeal has 
been preferred by the insurer -New India Assurance Company.  

2.   The grounds of challenge in a nut shell  are that learned Commissioner below has 
erred in law  while directing the insurer respondent No. 2 -appellant to pay the awarded amount 
together with interest @9% per annum from the date of accident.  Also that no liability to pay the 
interest could have been fastened upon the insurer/respondent No. 2 -appellant in violation of the 
terms and conditions of Workmenõs Compensation Insurance Policy in which the liability to pay 
interest and penalty by the insured is not covered.  Learned Commissioner below as such also 
stated to have erred in law in imposing the penalty upon the insurer -appellant under Section 4 -A 
of the Workmenõs Compensation Act.  

3.   Respondent No. 1 herein is the widow, whereas respondents No. 2 and 3 minor 
son and daughter (hereinafter referred to as petitioners -claimants) respectively, of deceased 
workman Dhaba Babu Rana.  The deceased was employed as a labourer by respondent  No. 4 Des 
Raj, a Government contractor.  On 11.5.2005 the deceased was working as Beldar on Harsar -
Kugti road in district Chamba at Hulanni Nallah.  A boulder slided from hill side and hit the 
deceased on his head.  As a result thereof he died on the spot  itself.  The deceased was 26 years 
of age and earning Rs. 2400/ - per month by way of  his wages at the relevant time.   Since he 
died during the course of his employment, therefore, Rs. 10,00,000/ - was claimed as 
compensation by petitioners -claimants.  
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4.   Learned Commissioner below on the basis of the pleadings of parties had framed 
the following issues:  

 i) What was the monthly wages of the deceased.  

 ii)  What was the age of the deceased at the time of  death?  

 iii)  Whether the deceased was comprehensive ly with the opposite party?  

 iv) If yes, the amount of compensation to be paid by the respondent No. 2.  

5.   All the issues were answered in favour of the claimants -petitioners and as a 
result thereof a sum of Rs. 2,58,336/ - awarded as compensation to them.   Besides, a sum of 
1,52,313/ - was also awarded towards interest on the awarded amount as directed by learned 
Commissioner below.  On failure of the insurer -appellant to deposit the awarded amount together 
with interest within a month from the date of awar d, to pay the penalty as provided under Section 
4-A of the Act.  

6.   This appeal has been admitted on the following substantial questions of law:  

1.  Whether the ld. Commissioner below has erred in law in fastening the 
liability of payment of interest upon the appellant from the date of 
accident.  Have not the ld. Commissioner below overlooked the 
Workmenõs Compensation Insurance Police-(law)(s) 1(i) clause wherein 
the interest and penalty is not covered.  

2.  Whether the ld. Commissioner has erred in law in d irecting the appellant 
to pay penalty as per Section 4 -A of the Workmen Compensation Act in 
its failure to deposit the awarded amount within thirty days from the 
date of announcement of award.  

7.   On hearing Mr. B.M. Chauhan, Advocate, learned counsel for insurer -appellant 
and Mr. Bhoop Singh, Advocate  on behalf of respondent -claimant No. 1 and Mr. Ankur Sood, 
Advocate, Court guardian on behalf of minor respondents No. 2 and 3 and on perusal of the 
entire record, the first substantial question of law not a t all arise for determination in this appeal 
for the reason that the so called terms and conditions of Workmen Compensation Insurance 
Policy  exempting the insurer respondent No.2 -appellant from its liability to pay the interest on 
the awarded amount has n ot been seen the light of day being not produced in evidence during the 
course of trial of the claim petition before learned Commissioner below.  Therefore,  when there is 
no material available on record, it cannot be said that appellant -respondent No. 2 i s not liable to 
pay the interest as awarded by learned Commissioner on the awarded amount.  

8.   If coming to the second substantial question of law the same is covered in favour 
of the insurer -appellant by the judgment of Apex Court  in (1997) 8 Supreme Co urt Cases 1 , 
titled Ved Prakash Garg  versus  Premi Devi and others   as it has been held in this judgment 
that the liability to pay the amount of penalty under Section 4 -A(3) of the Act is that of the 
insured and not that of the insurer.  Therefore, the impu gned order qua imposition of penalty 
though vague and cryptic as the Commissioner below has not determined the percentage and 
extent of penalty, is not legally sustainable.  Even if any penalty was to be imposed in this case, 
the same should have been impo sed upon the insured respondent No. 4 and not against the 

insurer -appellant.  Therefore, that part of the impugned award is not legally sustainable, hence 
quashed.   

9.   In view of the foregoing reasons, this appeal partly succeeds.  The impugned 
award to the extent of holding insurer -appellant liable to pay the amount of penalty is quashed 
and set aside.  The same shall stand modified accordingly.  The appeal is disposed of.  

********************************************************************************* ************  
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BEFORE HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE MANSOOR AHMAD MIR, C.J. AND HON'BLE MR. JUSTICE 
TARLOK SINGH CHAUHAN, J.  

Raj Kumar        éPetitioner. 

      Versus  

Bharat Sanchar Nigam Limited and others    éRespondents. 

 

      CWP No.   1423 of 2016  

      Decided  on: 06.03.2017  

 

Constitution of India, 1950 - Article 226 - Petitioner had not approached the Tribunal within a 
reasonable time and had invoked the jurisdiction of the Tribunal after the lapse of ten years - 
held, that a person who is a fence sitter cannot c laim any benefit after noticing that the same had 

been granted to similarly situated persons - Tribunal had rightly dismissed the original 
application - writ petition dismissed. (Para -3 to 6)  

 

Cases referred:  

Nadia Distt. Primary School Council vs. Sristidh ar Biswas,  AIR 2007 SC 2640  
Ghulam Rasool Lone vs. State of J & K, 2009 AIR SCW 5260  
State of Uttar Pradesh & Ors. v. Arvind Kumar Srivastava & Ors., JT 2014 (12) SC 94  
 

For the petitioner:      Mr. V.D. Khidtta, Advocate.  

For the respondents:  Mr. Rajiv J iwan, Advocate.  

 

 The following judgment of the Court was delivered:  

 

Mansoor Ahmad Mir, Chief Justice.  (Oral)   

 Subject matter of this writ petition is order, dated 3 rd  March, 2016 (Annexure P -
3), made by the Central Administrative Tribunal, Chandigarh Bench, Circuit at Shimla (for short 
òthe Tribunaló) in OA No. 1683/HP/2013, titled as Raj Kumar versus Bharat Sanchar Nigam Ltd. 
and others, whereby the OA filed by the writ petitioner came to be dismissed (for short òthe 
impugned orderó). 

2. We have gone through the impugned order.  It appears that the writ petitioner 
had not approached the Tribunal within a reasonable time and invoked the jurisdiction of the 
Tribunal after ten years, that too, after noticing that the benefits have been granted by the 
Trib unal to the similarly situated persons.  

3.  It is beaten law of the land that delay takes away the settings of law and a 
person, who is fence -sitter cannot claim any benefit after noticing that the same has been granted 
to the similarly situated persons, is  caught by delay and laches, as held by the Apex Court in the 
case titled as Nadia Distt. Primary School Council vs. Sristidhar Biswas, reported in  AIR 2007 
SC 2640 . It is apt to reproduce the relevant portion of para 4 herein:  

ò4. We have heard learned co unsel for the parties. Learned counsel for the 
appellants submitted that the persons who had not approached the Court in time 
and waited for the result of the decision of other cases cannot stand to benefit. The 
Court only gives the benefit to the persons who were vigilant about their rights and 
not who sit in fence. Mallickõs case was decided in 1982, in 1989 Dibakar Pal filed 
the petition and thereafter in 1989 respondents herein filed the writ petition. 
Thereafter petition filed by Dibakar Pal challengin g the panel of 1980 was 
hopelessly belated. Likewise the present writ petition filed by the respondents 
herein. The explanation that the respondents waited for the judgment in Mallickõs 
case of  Dibakarõs case, is hardly relevantééó 
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4.   The Apex Court in a nother case titled as  Ghulam Rasool Lone vs. State of J & 
K, reported in  2009 AIR SCW 5260,  laid down the same principles of law. It is apt to reproduce 
relevant portion of paras 14 and 18 herein:  

ò14. The discretionary jurisdiction under Article 226 of th e Constitution may, 
however, be denied on the ground of delay and latches. It is now well settled that 
who claims equity must enforce his claim within a reasonable timeéé. 

18. While considering the question of delay and latches on the part of the 
petitione r, the court must also consider the effect thereof. Promotion of Hamidullah 
Dar was effected in the year 1987. Abdul Rashid Rather filed his writ petition 
immediately after the promotion was granted. He, therefore, was not guilty of any 
delay in ventilatin g his grievances. It will bear repetition to state that the petitioner 
waited till Abdul Rashid Rather was in fact promoted. He did not consider it 
necessary either to join him or to file a separate writ petition immediately 
thereafter, although even accor ding to him, Abdul Rashid Rather was junior to him. 

The Division Bench, therefore, in our opinion rightly opined that the petitioner was 
sitting on the fence.ó  

5.   The same principles of law have been laid down by the Apex Court in the case 
titled as Stat e of Uttar Pradesh & Ors. v. Arvind Kumar Srivastava & Ors., reported in  JT 
2014 (12) SC 94 , wherein it has been held as under:  

ò23. ..éé 

 1    éé.. 

(2)  However, this principle is subject to well recognized exceptions in the form of 
laches and delays as w ell as acquiescence.  Those persons who did not challenge 

the wrongful action in their cases and acquiesced into the same and woke up after 
long delay only because of the reason that their counterparts who had approached 
the Court earlier in time  succeede d in their efforts, then such employees cannot 
claim that the benefit of the judgment rendered in the case of similarly situated 
persons be extended to them.  They would be treated as fence -sitters and laches 
and delays, and/or the acquiescence, would be a  valid ground to dismiss their 
claim.ó 

24. Viewed from this angle, in the present case, we find that the selection process 
took place in the year 1986.  Appointment orders were issued in the year 1987, but 
were also cancelled vide orders dated June 22, 198 7.  The respondents before us 
did not challenge these cancellation orders till the year 1996, i.e. for a period of 9 
years.  It means that they had accepted the cancellation of their appointments.  
They woke up in the year 1996 only after finding that some  other persons whose 
appointment orders were also cancelled got the relief.  By that time, nine years had 
passed.  The earlier judgment had granted the relief to the parties before the  
Court. It would also be pertinent to highlight that these respondents have not 
joined the service nor working like the employees who succeeded in earlier case 
before the Tribunal.  As of today, 27 years have passed after the issuance of 
cancellation orders.  Therefore, not only there was unexplained delay and laches in 
filin g the claim petition after period of 9 years, it would be totally unjust to direct 
the appointment to give them the appointment as of today, i.e. after a period of 27 
years when most of these respondents would be almost 50 years of age or above.ó 

6.  Viewed  thus, the Tribunal has rightly made the discussion in para 10 of the 
impugned order and dismissed the OA, needs no interference.  

7 Having said so, the impugned order is upheld and the writ petition is dismissed 
alongwith all pending applications.  

******** **********************************************************************  
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BEFORE HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE SURESHWAR THAKUR, J. 

Rasal Singh     é..Appellant. 

    Versus  

State of H.P     é..Respondent. 

 

      Cr. Appeal No. 70 of 2009  

      Decided on : 6.3.2017  

 

Indi an Penal Code, 1860 - Section 307 and 323 - Complainant had asked his brother to take the 
cattle for drinking water - when brother of the complainant reached near the old house, his 
parental uncle (accused) asked as to why he had come there and started abusin g him ð brother of 
the complainant objected, on which accused inflicted a blow of axe on the forehead ð when the 

complainant tried to lift his brother, accused pelted stones due to which complainant sustained 
injuries ð the accused was tried and convicted by the Trial Court - held in appeal that PW -4 is an 
interested witness and independent witnesses were not examined by the prosecution ð witness to 
the recovery resiled from his testimony - further, no disclosure statement was recorded prior to 
effecting reco very - axe was not sent to FSL for examination and is, therefore, not connected to 
the accused ð the defence version is made probable by the injury sustained by the accused - the 
victims were the aggressors and accused was in possession ð the Trial Court ha d wrongly 
convicted the accused - appeal allowed - judgment passed by the Trial Court set aside.  

 (Para-9 to 24)  

 

For the Appellant:     Mr. Ashwani K Sharma, Sr. Advocate with Mr. Ishan   
    Thakur, Advocate.  

For the Respondent:     Mr. Vivek Singh Attri , Deputy  Advocate General.  

 

 The following judgment of the Court was delivered:  

 

Sureshwar Thakur, Judge  

  The instant appeal stands directed against the impugned judgment of 28.3.2009 
rendered by the learned Additional Sessions Judge (1) Kangra at Dhar amshala  in sessions Case 
No. 25 -K /2002  H.P., whereby he convicted the appellant (hereinafter referred to as òaccusedó) 
for his committing an offence punishable under Sections 307 and 323 of IPC  also sentenced him 
as follows: -   

ò the accused is convicted and sentenced under Section 307 IPC for rigorous 
imprisonment for three years and fine of Rs.20,000/ - (Twenty Thousand Only) and 
in default to the payment of fine he shall further undergo simple imprisonment for 6 
months. The accused is further convicte d and sentenced under Section 323 IPC for 
simple imprisonment for 1 years and the fine of Rs.5000/ - (Rs.Five thousand only) 
and in default of payment of fine he shall further undergo simple imprisonment for 
2 months. The fine if realized is ordered to be a warded as compensation under 
Section 357 Cr.P.C to the injured Gian Singh to the extent of Rs.20,000/ - and to the 
injured Waryam Singh to the extent of Rs.5000/ .ó  

2.   Brief facts of the case are that on 18.5.2001 a telephonic information was 
received in the police station from Medical Officer Sub Divisional Hospital, Kangra in which it was 
informed that the injured had been brought to the hospital and after incorporating the entry into 
the daily diary the police party headed by ASI Sunita Thakur went to t he hospital where the 
statement of  Baryam Singh was recorded under Section 154 Cr.P.C., who disclosed that he being 
resident of village Daka Palera and his elder brother Gian Singh who is being in Military service 
and on leave had come over to his house a nd on the same day i.e. 18.5.2001 at about 9 a.m. 
when he was working in the fields and instructed his elder brother to take the cattle for drinking 
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water as the cattle were grazing over the vacant land and when his brother started collecting 
cattle for ta king drinking water and when reached near the old house where his parental uncle 
Rasal Singh asked his brother as to why he had come there and started calling bad names as well 
as challenged him as to why he had come there and when his brother objected to his parental 
uncle then his parental uncle gave Axe blow to his brother over his forehead and thereby his elder 
brother  fell -down and when he tried to lift his brother then his parental uncle pelted stones 
which hit him and after raising hue and cry the o ther people gathered on the spot and he lifted 
his brother for medical assistance to Sub Divisional Hospital, Kangra.  The police after recording 
the statement of the complainant under Section 154 Cr.P.C sent the same to the police station for 
registration  of the FIR and thereafter on medical examination of the injured the injuries were 
found to be grievous with sharp edged weapon.  During investigation the blood stain towel, 
Banyan and blood stain soil were taken into possession and the weapon of offence a n Axe blood 
stained was also taken into possession and these were sent to State FSL and the report of the 

State FSL opined the human blood over these articles.  On completion of the investigation the 

police comes to the conclusion that the accused committe d offence under Section 307 and 323 
IPC and thereafter put up the final report under Section 173 Cr.P.C. before Judicial Magistrate 
first Class, Kangra on 4.3.2002 and the case has been committed for sessions trial vide order 
dated 9.8.2002 by the Judicial  Magistrate 1 st Class, Kangra.    

3.   The accused stood charged by the learned trial Court for his committing an 
offence punishable under Section 307 and 323 IPC to which he pleaded not guilty and claimed 
trial.  

4.   In order to prove its case, the prosecut ion examined 18 witnesses.  On closure of 
prosecution evidence, the statement of the accused under Section 313 of the Code of Criminal 
Procedure was recorded in which he pleaded innocence and claimed false implication.  He chose 
to lead evidence in defence  and examined one DW.  

5.  On an appraisal of the evidence on record, the learned trial Court returned 
findings of conviction against the accused for his committing offences punishable under Sections 
307 and 323 of  IPC.    

6.   The learned Sr. counsel appeari ng for the accused has concertedly and vigorously 
contended qua the findings of conviction recorded by the learned trial Court standing not based 
on a proper appreciation of evidence on record rather theirs standing sequelled by gross mis -
appreciation by i t of the relevant material on record.  Hence he contends qua the findings of 
conviction warranting reversal by this Court in the exercise of its appellate jurisdiction and theirs 
standing replaced by findings of acquittal.  

7.   The learned Deputy Advocate General has with considerable force and vigor 
contended qua the findings of conviction recorded by the Court below standing based on a 
mature and balanced appreciation of evidence on record and theirs not necessitating interference 
rather meriting vindicat ion.  

8.   This Court with the able assistance of the learned counsel on either side has with 
studied care and incision evaluated the entire evidence on record.  

9.   Injured complainant Gian Singh as pronounced by MLC Ext. PW1/A proven by 
PW1, suffered on h is person, the hereinafter extracted injuries .  Injury No.1 stands testified by 
PW1 to be grievous in nature.  In his testification he has made communications holding echoings 
qua injury No.1 being causable with the user of Axe Ex.P1 recovered under Memo E x. PW-3/C.   

 òInjury cut wound over forehead extending to right parietal region, 4 -1/2ó x 

Ĵó in size, margins clean cut, underlying skull found fractured, dura and brain 
tissue visible from wound.  Fresh bleeding present. He was advised X -Ray skull, 
AP and lateral and CT Scan for head and was referred to surgical specialist for 

opinion and further management.   
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 He was seen by Dr. R.K Abrol, Surgeon, whose findings are noted on the 
MLC. Ex.PW-1/A. He referred the patient to Neuro Surgeon at P.G.I Chandigar h for 
further management.  

 As per PGI Chandigarh, out door slip No. C.R. 255495 X -ray skull shows 
fracture frontal bone and C.T Scan shows fracture frontal bone with underlying 
contusions. As per that record he remained admitted at P.G.I from 18.5.2001 to  
20.5.2001 . As per this opinion, injury No.1 is grievous in nature.  The injury No.1 
is grievous in nature caused by a sharp weapon with alleged duration probable.ó 

10.   Also PW1 in his deposition has made vivid underscorings therein in cogent proof 
of ML C PW1/B wherewithin reflections stood encapsulated qua the existence on the person of 
Waryam Singh, the hereinafter extracted injuries.    

òContusion on the dorsum of left forearm at the junction of middle and lower 1/3 rd  

over lying abrasion reddish in col our. I issued MLC Ex.PW -1/B which bears my 
signature. These injuries can be possible with kick and fist blows.ó 

11.   He testifies qua the injuries observed by him to be occurring on the person of 
waryam Singh standing sequelled on his standing belaboured b y kick and fist blows.  
Importantly, he has also disclosed in his testification qua the injury(s) noticed by him to be 
existing on the person of Gian Singh, endangering the latterõs life.  With PW1 vividly proclaiming 
in his testification qua the injuries noticed by him to be occurring on the person of victims 
aforesaid standing caused at a stage besides at a time contemporaneous to the eruption of the ill -
fated occurrence thereupon the learned trial Court had recorded a firm conclusion qua hence the 
testif ication of PW1 proving the factum of the injuries as stood sustained by the aforesaid victims 
in the ill -fated occurrence hence standing also proven to stand sustained by them in the manner 
pronounced in the apposite FIR.    

12.   Moreover, both the victims /injured (PWs 5 and 11) testified a version qua the ill -
fated occurrence bereft of any taint of any gross inter -se contradictions standing encapsulated in 
their respective examinations -in -chief vis -à-vis their respective cross -examinations also their 
respective testifications qua the relevant occurrence are free from any taint of stark 
embellishments besides improvements upon the version enunciated in the FIR.  Consequently 
with the testimonies of the injured/victims standing bereft of any visible taint of any inter -se or 
intra -se contradictions nor their respective testimonies making any unearthings qua theirs 
improving or embellishing vis -à-vis their previous statements recorded qua the occurrence by the 
Investigating Officer concerned, imperatively constr ains this Court to conclude qua their 
respective testimonies  warranting imputation of  credence thereon significantly when Gian Singh 
stood inflicted with injuries in the ill -fated occurrence by purported user of axe Ex.P -1 by the 
accused on his person  b esides co -victim Waryam Singh sustained injuries on his standing 
belaboured by the accused with kick and fist blows. Furthermore with PW -1 as unfolded 
hereinabove testifying qua the existence of injuries noticed by him to be occurring on the person 
of the victim Gian Singh standing caused by user thereon of òaxeó besides his testifying qua the 

existence of injuries noticed by him to occur on the person of co -victim /injured Waryam Singh 
being ascribable to his standing belaboured by fist and kick blows, giv es succor to the 
prosecution case.   

13.   Be that as it may, despite the testifications of injured/victims for the reasons 
aforesaid warranting imputation of credence also despite a purported eye witness to the 
occurrence who testified as PW -4 (Munshi Ram)  deposing with intra -se harmony with the 
injured/complainant, wherein he ascribes an incriminatory role to the accused, does give leverage 
to an inference qua the prosecution thereupon invincibly succeeding in proving the charge 
against the accused.  

14.   However, the testifications of injured/victims, support whereof stands purveyed 
by PW-4, all loose their respective probative sinew, conspicuously with PW -4 being an interested 
witness, interestedness whereof of PW -4 spurs from in his holding a relationshi p of father of the 
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victims, whereupon his testimony acquires a taint of active interestedness. Even though the 
interestedness of a prosecution witness, does not perse render his testification to warrant its 
ouster yet the testification hereat of a purporte d independent witnesses, does stand stained with 
a vice of active interestedness, conclusion whereof gathers galvanization from the factum of his in 
his cross -examination testifying qua at the stage when he arrived at the site of occurrence 9 -10 
persons al ready recording their presence thereat, however with the Investigating officer omitting 
to cite as prosecution witnesses any of the persons, who apart from PW -4 besides apart from the 
injured were evidently available at the site of occurrence, persons wher eof holding no relation 
with either the accused or the victim/injured could obviously hence narrate an impartisan 
version qua the occurrence, whereas the omission of the investigating Officer to either record 
their statements or to cite them as prosecution  witnesses has hence necessarily precluded the 
emergence of truth qua the occurrence rather has sequelled eruption of a smothered version qua 
the occurrence thereupon the testifications of the injured/complainant besides  of PW -4 are 
rendered incredible, t heirs hence purveying a colored version qua the incident.  

15.   The learned trial Court while pronouncing an order of conviction upon the 
accused had relied upon the purported efficacious recovery of weapon of offence i.e. Axe (Ex. P -1), 
recovery whereof s tood effectuated under recovery memo Ex. PW -3/C.  However, a witness to 
recovery memo (PW -3 Satish Kumar) reneged from his previous statement recorded in writing. 
Nonetheless the factum of a witness qua the apposite recovery memo reneging from his previous  
statement recorded in writing would not erode the factum of user of axe Ex.P -1 by the accused on 
the person of the victim/injured Gian Singh, importantly when the defence acquiesces qua the 
factum of a scuffle occurring inter -se the victims vis -à-vis the accused, in sequel whereto the 
apposite injuries stood sustained by them also with PW -3 admitting the existence of his 

signatures on the apposite recovery memo renders attractable the provisions of Sections 91 and 
92 of the Indian Evidence Act, 1872 provis ions whereof stand extracted hereinafter, wherein 
stands encapsulated the trite principle qua his orally digressing from the recorded recitals held in 
the apposite memo whereon he admits the occurrence of his signatures thereon, hence being 
inconsequential , corollary whereof is qua thereupon the recitals occurring therein dehors PW -3 
orally reneging therefrom standing hence proven. However the mere factum of acquiescence, if 
any, of the defence  qua the factum of a scuffle occurring on the relevant date, at  the site of 
occurrence, would not perse constrain any conclusion from this Court qua thereupon the 
prosecution also proving the factum qua an efficacious recovery of axe at the instance of the 
accused by the investigating Officer standing effectuated unde r an apposite memo nor it would 
foster any conclusion qua the prosecution proving its user by the accused upon the 
victim/injured Gian Singh, conspicuously evidently when preceding the purported efficacious 
recovery of axe Ex.P -1 under an apposite memo no disclosure statement stands recorded by the 
Investigating Officer concerned. The Investigating Officer concerned stood  enjoined with a dire 
legal necessity to prior to effectuating recovery of weapon of offence, his during the course of 
holding the accuse d to custodial interrogation his recording the disclosure statement of the 
accused, holding unfoldments therein qua the place of its concealment or hiding by him, 
necessity whereof stands cornered within the domain of Section 27 of the Indian Evidence Act,  
1872 provisions whereof stand extracted hereinafter also therein it stands propounded qua 
thereupon an admissible besides a relevant custodial confessional statement of accused 

assuredly making its emergence in sequel whereto the subsequent recovery of th e weapon of 
offence at the instance of the accused would hold immense evidentiary clout, contrarily when 
without preceding thereto, the apposite statutorily warranted custodial confessional disclosure 
statement of the accused remained unrecorded, thereupon  any bald recovery of any weapon of 
offence by the investigating Officer at the instance of the accused would be hence wholly naked 
nor would it be construable to be an admissible besides a relevant piece of incriminatory evidence 
vis -à-vis the accused, si gnificantly when the mandate of law warrants effectuation of the relevant 

recovery at the instance of the accused not under a composite recovery memo rather warrants 
recording prior thereto an admissible custodial disclosure statement of the accused.  In o ther 
words, the recording of a disclosure statement of the accused by the Investigating officer prior 
effectuating any recovery at the instance of the accused, is preemptory, its embodying the 
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custodial confessional statement of the accused, omission to re cord whereof renders 
inconsequential besides inadmissible any recovery under a naked bald recovery memo.  

ò 91. Evidence of terms of contracts, grants and other dispositions of 
property reduced to form of documents - When the terms of a contract, or of a 
grant, or of any other disposition of property, have been reduced to the form of a 
document, an in all case in which any matter is required by law to be reduced to 
the form of a document, no evidence shall be given in proof of the terms of such 
contract, gra nt or other disposition of property, or of such matter, except the 
document itself, or secondary evidence of its contents in cases in which 
secondary evidence is admissible under the provisions hereinbefore containedéó.   

92. Exclusion of evidence of oral agreement - When the terms of any such 
contract, grant or other disposition of property, or any matter required by law to 

be reduced to the form of a document, have been proved according to the last 
section, no evidence of any oral agreement or statement sh all be admitted, as 

between the parties to any such instrument or their representatives in interest, 
for the purpose of contradicting, varying, adding to, or subtracting from, its 
terms:  

Proviso (1)  Any fact may be proved which would invalidate any documen t, or 
which would entitle any person to any decree or order relating thereto; such as 
fraud, intimidation, illegality, want of due execution, want of capacity in any 
contracting party, [want of failure] of consideration, or mistake in fact or law;  

Proviso (2).- The existence of any separate oral agreement as to any matter on 
which a document is silent, and which is not inconsistent with its terms, may be 
proved. In considering whether or not this proviso applies, the Court shall have 
regard to the degree of  formality of the document:  

Proviso (3). - The existence of any separate oral agreement, constituting a 
condition precedent to the attaching of any obligation under any such contract, 
grant or disposition of property, may be proved:  

Proviso(4). - The existen ce of any distinct subsequent oral agreement to rescind or 
modify any such contract, grant or disposition of property, may be proved, except 
in cases in which such contract, grant or disposition of property is by law 
required to be in writing, or has been registered according to the law in force for 
the time being as to the registration of documents:  

Proviso (5). Any usage or custom by which incidents not expressly mentioned in 
any contract are usually annexed to contracts of that description, may be proved : 

provided that the annexing of such incident would not be repugnant to, or 
inconsistent with, the express terms of contract:  

Proviso(6). - Any fact may be proved which shows in what manner the language of 
a document is related to existing facts.ó 

ò27. How much of information received from accused may be proved - provided 
that when any fact is deposed to as discovered in consequence of information 

received from a person accused of any offence, in the custody of a police officer, 
so much of such information, w hether it amounts to a confession or not, as 
relates distinctly to the fact thereby discovered, may be proven.ó 

16.   Hereat, tritely with the Investigating Officer concerned prior to his effectuating 
recovery of weapon of offence not recording the apt cust odial admissible disclosure statement of 
the accused renders the indispensable canon held within the domain of Section 27 of the Indian 
Evidence Act qua the accused prior to  his facilitating the Investigating Officer to effectuate 
recovery of the purporte d weapon of offence, his making an admissible relevant custodial 
confessional statement remains wholly un -satiated hence rendering recovery, if any, at the 

instance of the accused, of the purported weapon of offence to hold no probative vigor nor also it 
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can be concluded qua the prosecution thereupon proving qua òaxeó with purported user whereof 
injuries stood sustained by the victim standing used thereon by the accused.    

17.   The learned Deputy Advocate General has contended qua with the defence during 
the course of PW -4 standing subjected to cross -examination putting an affirmative suggestion to 
PW-4 Munshi Ram, qua an axe standing handed over to the police by the wife of the accused, 
whereat the Investigating Officer visited the house of the accused, su ggestion whereof evoking  an 
answer in the affirmative from PW -4, qua its thereupon acquiescing qua, for the reasons 
aforesaid, the inefficacious recovery of axe standing hence rendered inconsequential besides its 
adversial effect vis -à-vis the prosecution , also hence standing effaced.  However the aforesaid 
submission addressed by the learned defence counsel, founders in the face of  (a) axe standing 
undispatched by the investigating Officer to the FSL whereupon it is befitting to conclude qua the 
omission  aforesaid standing prodded by the factum of its not holding any blood stains.  

Concomitantly, the òaxeó as stood delivered by the wife of the convict Rasal Singh to the 
Investigating Officer whereat the latter visited the abode of convict accused Rasal Si ngh, cannot 
constrain any conclusion qua thereupon the defence acquiescing qua the factum, of the 
accused/convict conceding to the factum of òaxeó standing used by him for delivering, a blow on 
the head of victim/injured Gian Singh. Contrarily with the def ence putting an affirmative 
suggestion to PW -4 holding echoings therein qua the collection of òaxeó standing made by the 
Investigating Officer from the house of accused Rasal Singh whereto it obtained an affirmative 
answer thereto from him, yet thereupon t he learned PP concerned not proceeding to seek the 
permission of the learned trial Court, to proceed to cross -examine him qua his deposing a version 
contrary to the one enunciated in the apposite recovery memo wherein reflections are held qua 
the accused h anding over axe to the Investigating Officer also constrains a conclusion qua the 

pronouncements occurring in the apposite recovery memo holding no sanctity of truth whereupon 
the recovery of weapon of offence by the investigating officer concerned is cons truable to be an 
invented recovery bereft of holding tandem with the statutory mandate.   

18.   The accused/convict in his statement recorded under Section 313 of Cr.P.C had 
therein proclaimed qua, his too, while exercising the right of private defence of p roperty besides 
for thwarting an imminent threat emanating to his person arising from the factum of the victim(s) 
respectively wielding dandas, hence sustaining injuries in the relevant scuffle,  especially when 
the relevant endangerments on remaining unco ncerted to be repulsed, an invasion upon his 
property by the victim besides imminent danger to his body would stand sequelled.  Even though 

the aforesaid propagation made by the accused/convict in his defence does hold his acquiescence 
qua his purportedly striking the head of the victim injured with an axe blow nonetheless the 
aforesaid acquiescence perse would not render him penally inculpable.   

19.   The reason for this Court concluding qua the accused succeeding in propagating 
his exculpatory defence in the relevant scuffle which occurred inter -se him with the 
victims/injured,  wherein he, too, received a blow on his head, spurs from the factum of the 
investigating officer concerned merely for benumbing his defence hence, holding an impartisan, 
skewed bes ides a slanted investigation.  An inference qua the investigating Officer concerned 
muting the defence of the accused visibly emerges, from the reasons ascribed hereinafter (a) PW -1 

in his testification making underscorings qua his examining the accused/co nvict in sequel 

whereto  he testifies qua his noticing the injuries occurring on the person of the accused standing 
sequelled with user thereon, of dandas; (b) the aforesaid factum pronounced by PW -1 in his 
testification stands espoused by the learned Depu ty Advocate General to, in the absence of the 
accused/convict lodging an FIR with the Investigating Officer concerned besides with the defence 
not concerting to belie a dis -affirmative answer purveyed by the I.O qua a suggestion put to him 
by the defence q ua the accused   lodging  an FIR qua the relevant occurrence thereupon standing 
hence unrelatable to the ill -fated occurrence. However, the espousal of the Deputy Advocate 
General suffers emasculation.  

20.   Preeminently when DW -1 (Rajinder Singh), a witn esses adduced in propagation 
of the aforesaid defence reared by the accused had emphatically in his examination -in -chief 
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deposed qua on the relevant day injured/victims Waryam Singh besides Gian Singh standing 
respectively armed with an axe and a danda. He  has also proven in his testification comprised in 
his examination in chief qua his also noticing oozing of blood from the injuries delivered on the 
head of the accused/convict Rasal Singh by user thereon respectively of axe and danda by the 
aforesaid. The  testification qua the aforesaid factum occurring in the examination -in -chief of DW -
1 remained un -concerted by the learned PP concerned to be shred of truth.  

21.   The factum of the learned PP concerned also while holding DW -1 to cross -
examination putting suggestion to him couched in an affirmative phraseology qua his standing 
cited as a prosecution witness, suggestion evoked an alike affirmative answer from DW -1 also 
holds visible echoings qua the prosecution thereupon acquiescing qua the factum of DW -1 be ing 
an eye witness to the occurrence. However he stood un -examined by the prosecution. Construing 
the aforesaid non -examination of DW -1 as a PW, in conjunction with the Investigating Officer 

omitting to join in his investigations other eye witnesses to the  occurrence despite their 
availability thereat, evident availability whereof stood evidently proven by PW -4, constrains a 
conclusion qua the investigating Officer actively contriving a smothered version qua the 
occurrence.  Even if DW -1 has made underscori ngs in his deposition contrary to the one held in 
his previous statement recorded in writing nonetheless when the relevant factum probandum qua 
Waryam Singh standing armed with an axe and Gian Singh standing armed with a Danda 
whereby he dispels factum of  user of òaxeó by the accused on the head of victim Gian Singh, 
factum whereof stood failingly concerted to be torn of its truth by the learned PP during the 
course of his holding him to an exacting cross -examination rather in course thereof affirmative 
su ggestions stood purveyed to him holding therein communications qua his eye witnessing the 
occurrence suggestions whereof evoked from DW -1 an affirmative response also foments an 

inference qua with the prosecution hence acquiescing qua the underscorings mad e by DW -1 in 
his examination ðin -chief qua Waryam Singh holding an axe and Gian Singh holding a danda  also 
its thereupon acquiescing qua the underlinings made by DW -1 qua theirs with their respective 
user delivering blows on the head of the accused in sequ el whereof the accused sustaining 
injuries thereon whereupon the testification of DW -1 warrants  imputation of credence.  

22.   The learned Deputy Advocate General contended qua DW -1 not eye witnessing 
the occurrence given his testifying qua his at the rele vant time breaking stones besides with DW -
1 in his cross -examination deposing qua his at the relevant time standing lodged inside a ditch,  
holding a depth of 5/6 feet wherefrom the learned Deputy Advocate General submits qua hence it 
being impossible for him to eye witness the occurrence hence rendering his testimony to be 
incredible. A wholesome reading of the testimony of DW -1 comprised in his examination -in -chief 
contrarily underscores qua his breaking stones whereafter in sequel to his  hearing cries, he 
arose from his position inside the ditch whereat he noticed qua blood oozing from the head injury 
sustained by Rasal Singh also he therein underlines qua his noticing blood oozing from the head 
injury of Gian Singh, underscorings occurring therein rende red uneroded of the tenacity.  
Consequently the factum of his fragmentarily acquiescing qua a suggestion put to him by the 
learned PP qua his standing lodged inside a ditch, holding a depth of 5/6 feet, whereupon he 
stood incapacitated to eye witness the o ccurrence hence looses its entire tenacity.  The eliciting of 

the aforesaid  acquiescence by the PP concerned from DW -1, acquiescence whereof stands 
engendered by a pointed apposite suggestion standing purveyed to him by the PP concerned, 

perse would benum b the credibility of the relevant echoings qua the afore -stated factum 
probandum embodied in his examination -in -chief,  whereupon the espousal of the defence stands 
anchored, conspicuously when the PP concerned also to his apposite suggestions to DW -1 elic ited 
acquiescences from DW -1 qua throughout the ongoing scuffle inter -se the accused vis -à-vis the  
victim, his remaining inside a ditch, omission whereof nurses a derivative qua DW -1 
intermittently remaining inside the ditch whereupon it is befitting to c onclude qua at the relevant 
juncture his standing not lodged inside the ditch  rather his standing therein, sequel whereof is 
qua his relevant testification wherein he ascribes an inculpatory role qua the victim(s) wielding 
weapons of offence, with user wh ereof they struck the head of the accused hence holding an aura 
of truth. Moreso when the unfoldments made by him in his examination -in -chief qua his noticing 
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injuries on the person of the convict and also on the person of the victim(s), remain un -shattere d, 
during the course of his standing held to an exacting cross -examination, thereupon his testimony 
embodied in his examination -in -chief stands construable to be holding a truthful ocular account, 
predominantly with the prosecution conceding qua the Invest igating Officer recording his 
previous statement in writing, acquiescence  whereof stems from the PP concerned while holding 
DW-1 to cross -examination, his eliciting an affirmative answer from him to his apposite 
suggestion qua the Investigating Officer re cording his statement under Section 161 Cr.PC, 
statement whereof stood reneged by DW -1  nonetheless wherefrom an unflinching conclusion 
stands nursed qua  thereupon his deposition holding a sacrosanct pedestal of truth.  

23.   Moreover when for the reasons  aforesaid DW -1, an eye witness to the occurrence, 
has vividly disclosed qua the factum of the victims/injured initiating an aggression upon the 
accused besides with both DW -1 and the Investigating Officer deposing in tandem qua the 

accused holding possess ion of the disputed site of occurrence, boosts, in coagulation with the 
aforesaid discussion, an inference, qua the accused in exercising his right of private defence of 
property besides for baulking an imminent threat to his body, reared from the victims evidently 
standing armed with weapons of offence also theirs holding a higher numerical strength vis -à-vis 
him his thereupon with òanyó sharp edged weapon purportedly delivering blows on the head of 
Gian Singh, delivering whereof by him stands hence proven  to fall within the statutory exceptions 
to criminal liability also significantly when this Court concludes qua the investigating officer 
concerned contriving the genesis of the case.  

24.   In view of above discussion, the appeal is allowed and the impugned  judgment of 
28.3.2009 rendered by the learned Additional Sessions Judge (1), Kangra at Dharamshala is set 
aside.  The accused is acquitted of the offences charged.  The fine amount, if any, deposited by 

the accused is ordered to be refunded to him.  Bail bonds, if any, furnished by the accused are 
discharged.  Records be sent down forthwith.  

***************************************************************************************************  

BEFORE HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE SANDEEP SHARMA, J. 

Tula Ram               ...Petitioner.  

  Versus  

Prem Singh                            ...Respondent.                                                                                

 

           Cr. Revision No. 317 of 2015.  

            Date of Decision: 6.3.2017.  

 

Negotiable Instr uments Act, 1881 - Section 138 - Complainant advanced a sum of Rs.60,000/ - 
to the accused - the accused issued a postdatedcheque for Rs.60,000/ - the cheque was 
dishonoured for want of sufficient funds - the amount was not paid despite the receipt of the 
notice  ð the accused was tried and convicted by the Trial Court - an appeal was filed, which was 
dismissed - held in revision that the complainant had categorically supported the prosecution 
version - the defence version was not proved ð the complainant had success fully proved the basic 
ingredients of the offence punishable under Section 138 of N.I. Act ð the accused had failed to 

rebut the presumption under N.I Act - he was rightly convicted by the Trial Court - revision 
dismissed. (Para-10 to 16)  

 

Cases referred:   

State of Kerala Vs. Puttumana Illath Jathavedan Namboodiri (1999) 2 Supreme Court Cases 452  
Krishnan and another Versus  Krishnaveni and another, (1997) 4 Supreme Court Case 241  
 

For the petitioner:  Mr. Raman Prashar, Advocate.  

For the respondents:   Mr. Rav inder Singh Jaswal, Advocate, for respondent No.1.  

Mr. P.M. Negi, Additional Advocate General for respondent. No.2.  
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 The following judgment of the Court was delivered:  

 

Sandeep Sharma, J. (Oral)  

  Instant criminal revision petition filed under Section 3 97 read with Section 401 of 
the Cr.PC, is directed against the judgment dated 02.06.2015, passed by the learned Additional 
Sessions Judge (II), Shimla, District Shimla, HP, in Criminal Appeal No. RBT -230 -S/10 of 2014, 
affirming the judgment and order of co nviction dated 21.7.2014/27.10.2014, passed by the 
learned Additional Chief Judicial Magistrate, Court No. (2), Shimla, H.P., in Case No. 966 -3 of 

2014/11, whereby the accused -petitioner (òthe accusedó for short) has been sentenced to undergo 
simple impris onment for six months for the offence punishable under Section 138 of the 
Negotiable Instruments Act ( in short òthe Actó) and to pay compensation of Rs. 75,000/- to the 
complainant.  

2.  Briefly stated facts as emerge from the record are that the respondent  (herein 
after referred to as the complainant) filed a complaint under Section 138 of the Act, in the court 
of learned Additional Chief Judicial Magistrate, Court No. (2), Shimla, H.P., against the present 
petitioner stating therein that since parties (the  accused and the complainant) were known to 

each other, the accused requested the complainant to arrange Rs. 60,000/ - for his personal and 
business requirement.  Accordingly, the complainant on the aforesaid request advanced him an 
amount of Rs. 60,000/ - in September, 2010.  The accused with a view to discharge his liability 
issued a post dated cheque bearing No. 318635 dated 10.1.2011, (Ext.CW1/A)  amounting to Rs. 
60,000/ -, of his account maintained in Punjab National Bank, Kunihar.  However, fact remains  
that on presentation, cheque in question was dishonored vide memo dated 17.1.2011 
(Ext.CW1/B) for want of sufficient funds in the account of the accused.  

3.  After receipt of the aforesaid memo, the complainant got legal notice (Ext.CW1/C) 
issued on 22.1.2 011 to the accused through registered post as well as UPC on 24.1.2011 calling 

upon him to make the payment good but since no payment was made within the stipulated 
period, he was compelled to initiate proceedings under Section 138 of the Act.  Learned Cou rts 
below on the basis of material adduced on record by the respective parties, held the accused 
guilty of having committed offence punishable under Section 138 of the Act and accordingly 
convicted and sentenced him as per the description already given abo ve.  

4.  The accused being aggrieved with the judgment of conviction passed by the 
learned trial Court, filed an appeal under Section 374 of Cr.PC, before the Court of learned 
Additional Sessions Judge (II), Shimla, District Shimla, HP, who vide judgment da ted 02.06.2015, 
dismissed the appeal preferred by the accused, as a result of which judgment of conviction 

passed by the learned trial court came to be upheld. In the aforesaid background, the present 
petitioner approached this Court seeking his acquittal after setting aside the judgment of 
conviction recorded by the courts below.  

5.  Mr. Raman Prashar, Advocate, representing the petitioner, vehemently argued 
that the judgments of conviction and sentence recorded by the courts below, are not sustainable 
as t he same are not based upon the correct appreciation of evidence available on record and, as 
such, same deserve to be quashed and set -aside.  While referring to the impugned judgments 

passed by the courts below, Mr. Prashar  strenuously argued that bare per usal of the judgments 
suggests that courts below failed to appreciate the evidence in its right perspective, which has led 

to recording of erroneous findings to the detriment of the petitioner and as such, same cannot be 
allowed to sustain. Mr. Prashar fur ther contended that order of learned trial Court is not in 
conformity with the law because admittedly, the complaint was filed before the expiry of statutory 
period of fifteen days from the receipt of notice by the accused and as such, the complaint filed by 
the complainant ought to have been dismissed by the court below being premature.  He also 
stated that bare perusal of the evidence suggests that the courts below overlooked the evidence of 
material witnesses and failed to return contingent and satisfact ory finding qua that effect.  While 
inviting attention of this Court to the statement given by the witnesses, Mr.  Prashar, contended 
that courts below ignored the deposition made by the defendant who categorically stated that the 
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complainant had not retur ned cheque and that was lying with his Advocate.  He also stated that 
learned court placed undue reliance upon the report of handwriting expert, who in his opinion 
gave no detailed reasons for the findings given by him and as such, same could not be taken into 
account by the courts below while recording conviction of the petitioner accused.  He further 
stated that opinion of handwriting expert was not conclusive but it could be corroborative.  In the 
aforesaid background, Mr. Prashar prayed for acquittal of  the petitioner accused after setting 
aside the judgment of conviction recorded by the courts below.  

6.  Per contra, Mr. Ravinder Jaswal, Advocate and P.M. Negi, learned Additional 
Advocate General, representing respondent No.1 and respondent No.2 -State, r espectively, 
supported the impugned judgments passed by the courts below.   Mr. Jaswal vehemently argued 
that bare perusal of the impugned judgments suggests that same are based upon the correct 
appreciation of the evidence available on record and courts b elow have very meticulously dealt 

with each and every aspect of the matter.   Mr. Negi, reminded this Court of its limited powers 
while exercising its revisionary powers under Section 397 of the Cr.PC, to re -appreciate the 
evidence, especially, when it stan ds duly proved on record that the courts below have dealt with 
each and every aspect of the matter very meticulously.  In this regard, rel iance is plac ed upon the 
judgment passed by Honõble Apex Court in case òState of Kerala Vs. Puttumana Illath 
Jathaveda n Namboodirió (1999) 2 Supreme Court Cases 452, wherein it has been  held as 
under: - 

òIn its revisional jurisdiction, the High Court can call for and examine the 
record of any proceedings for the purpose of satisfying itself as to the 
correctness, legality  or propriety of any finding, sentence or order. In 
other words, the jurisdiction is one of supervisory jurisdiction exercised by 
the High Court for correcting miscarriage of justice. But the said 
revisional power cannot be equated with the power of an app ellate court 
nor can it be treated even as a second appellate jurisdiction. Ordinarily, 
therefore, it would not be appropriate for the High Court to re -appreciate 

the evidence and come to its own conclusion on the same when the 
evidence has already been ap preciated by the Magistrate as well as 
Sessions Judge in appeal, unless any glaring feature is brought to the 
notice of the High Court which would otherwise tantamount to gross 
miscarriage of justice.ó 

7.  I have heard learned counsel for the parties as wel l carefully gone through the 
record  

8.  True, it is that this Court has very limited powers under Section 397 Cr.PC while 
exercising its revisionary jurisdiction but in the instant case, where accused person has been 
convicted and sentenced, it would be apt  and in the interest of justice to critically examine the 

statements of the prosecution witnesses solely with a view to ascertain that the judgments passed 
by learned courts below are not perverse and same are based on correct appreciation of the 
evidence on record.   

9.  As far as scope of power  of this Court while exercising revisionary jurisdiction 
under Section 397 is concerned,  the Honõble Apex Court in Krishnan and another Versus   

Krishnaveni and another, (1997) 4 Supreme Court Case 241 ; has  held tha t in case Court 
notices that there is a failure of justice or misuse of judicial mechanism or procedure, sentence or 

order is  not correct, it is salutary duty of the High Court to prevent the abuse of  the process or 
miscarriage of justice or to correct i rregularities/incorrectness committed by inferior criminal 
court in its judicial process or illegality of sentence or order. The relevant para of the judgment is 
reproduced as under: - 

8.     The object of Section 483 and the purpose behind conferring the 
r evisional power under Section 397 read with Section 401, upon the High 
Court is to invest continuous supervisory jurisdiction  so as to prevent 
miscarriage of justice or to correct irregularity of the procedure or to mete 
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out justice. In addition, the inhe rent power of the High Court is preserved 
by Section 482. The power of the High Court, therefore, is very wide. 
However, the High Court must exercise such power sparingly and 
cautiously when the Sessions Judge has simultaneously exercised 
revisional power under Section 397(1). However, when the High Court 
notices that there has been failure of justice or misuse of judicial 
mechanism or procedure, sentence or order is not correct, it is but the 
salutary duty of the High Court to prevent the abuse of the proc ess or 
miscarriage of justice or to correct irregularities/ incorrectness committed 
by inferior criminal court in its judicial process or illegality of sentence or 
order.ó 

10.  This Court with a view to ascertain the genuineness and correctness of the 

submi ssions having been made by the learned counsel for the petitioner carefully perused the 
entire record, perusal whereof nowhere suggests that there is any illegally and infirmity in the 
judgments passed by the courts below, rather same appear to be based on  correct appreciation of 
evidence adduced on record.  The complainant Prem Singh (CW1) categorically deposed before the 
Court that he knew the accused for last 15 years and in the year September, 2011, the accused 
had taken Rs. 60,000/ - from him and for th e  purposes of repayment, issued a cheque 
Ext.CW1/A.  CW1 also stated that on presentation, cheque is question was dishonoured vide 
memo Ext.CW1.B.  He also proved on record demand notice Ext.CW1/C, got issued to the 
accused through his counsel by register ed post and UPC.  The complainant also proved on record 
the aforesaid receipts (Ext.CW1/D and Ext.CW1/E). It has also come in his statement that the 
accused had received notice vide receipt Ext.CW1/F, which was duly replied by him vide 

Ext.CW1/G.  In his c ross examination, CW1 specifically denied the suggestion put to him that he 
had only taken Rs. 20,000/ - and in lieu of this, he had repaid Rs. 60,000/ - qua which receipt 
was also issued.  Similarly, he admitted that cheque was not filled by the accused but  he 
categorically denied that the accused returned the amount taken by him and he filed false 
complaint against the accused, whereas accused in his statement recorded under Section 313 
Cr.PC, admitted having  borrowed Rs. 20,000/ - only and claimed that his  blank cheque was 
taken as security.  He also stated that he had paid Rs. 60,000/ - including interest in installments 
vide receipt dated 27.7.2011 and his blank cheque was misused.   

11.  The accused in his defence examined two witnesses namely Sh. Padam Ch auhan, 

DW1 and Sh. Om Parkash DW2. Sh. Padam Chauhan, DW1 stated before the Court that in July 
2011, the accused had given Rs. 60,000/ - to the complainant vide receipt Ext.DW1/A, which 
bears his signatures at Mark -B.  He also stated that receipt was scribe d by the brother of the 
accused and Mark -A bears signature of the complainant. He also stated that when cheque was 
demanded by the accused, the complainant stated that cheque is with the Advocate and he shall 
return the same within 7 -8 days, however, in cr oss examination, this witness stated that he is not 
aware as to whether the accused had taken money from the complainant. He also denied the 
suggestion put to him that the Ext.DW1/A was prepared wrongly.  

12.  Sh. Om Parkash DW2, who happened to be younger brother of the accused, 

stated that one year back, accused called him in the shop with an amount of Rs. 30,000 and he 

visited the shop of the accused with Rs. 30.000/ -.  He also stated that at the instance of the 
complainant, Ext.DW1/A was written and he h ad paid Rs. 30,000/ - to the accused and accused 
had paid amount of Rs. 60,000/ - to the complainant.  He also stated that at the time of scribing 
of the Ext.DW1/A, the accused, complainant and the witness Padam Chand were present.  He 
also stated that when the accused demanded his cheque, the complainant told him that the same 
is with the advocate and shall return the same within 4 -5 days.  He also in his cross examination 
stated that he cannot say that when the accused received notice of complainant.   

13.  It emerge from the record of the court below that writing Ext.DW1/A was sent to 

the handwriting expert on the request of the accused for comparison of signature in ôQ1õ along 
with other admitted specimen signatures/handwriting and report of the expert was received in 
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the matter as per which Q1 on Ext.DW1/A was not written by the person, who admitted 
signatures A1 to A7 and specimen writing S1 to S44. The accused also filed objection to the 
report of expert stating therein that the expert, nowhere stated tha t handwriting can vary, if the 
posture of a person is different.   

14.  In the instant case, as clearly emerge from the record, the complainant 
successfully proved on record the basic ingredients of proving the offence punishable under 
Section 138 of the Ac t against the accused.  The complainant while appearing as CW1 
categorically proved on record that he had advanced an amount of Rs. 60,000/ - to the accused, 
in lieu whereof cheque amounting to Rs. 60,000/ - was issued by the accused.  Ext.CW1/B clearly 
suggests that cheque in question was presented for encashment but same was dishonored.  
Similarly by proving Ext.CW1/C, CW/D and CW/E , the complainant successfully proved on 
record that after dishonouring of the cheque, he got legal notice issued calling upon  the accused 

to make the payment good within the stipulated period.  Ext.CW1/F as well as Ext.CW1/G clearly 
suggest that notice as referred above, was duly received by the accused.  Cross examination 
conducted on the complainant, nowhere suggests that the defence was able to shatter the 
testimony of the complainant, who in no certain terms, stated before the Court that he had 
advanced amount of Rs. 60,000/ - to the accused on return basis. He also denied that the 
accused had only taken Rs. 20,000/ -, in lieu whereof, he had paid Rs. 60,000/ -, qua which 
receipt was issued.   

15.  True it is, in cross examination, the complainant admitted that the cheque was 
not filled by the accused  but same cannot be sufficient to hold that the cheque was not issued by 
the acc used in lieu of amount taken by him from the complainant until the counter is proved.  As 
per Section 118 of the Act, it shall be presumed, until the contrary is proved, that every 
negotiable instrument was made or drawn for consideration. Similarly, Secti on 139 provides that 
unless the contrary is proved, it shall be presumed that holder of the cheque received the cheque, 
for the discharge of whole or part of any debt or liability.  As per provisions of Section 20 of the 
Act, it is open for the person to s ign and deliver blank and incomplete instrument and it is 
equally open for the holder to fill up blank instrument and specify amount therein.  Hence, there 
is no force in the defence taken by the accused that he had given a blank cheque to the 
complainant as a security.  Similarly, there is no dispute that accused can rebut the 
presumptions as referred supra, by preponderance of the probabilities and is not required to 
rebut the presumptions beyond reasonable doubt.  But in the instant case, as has emerged from 

the record, the accused failed to take  consistent defence, if any, qua the issuance of cheque by 
him.  In his statement recorded under Section 313 Cr.PC, the accused, on one hand stated that 
he only took Rs. 20,000/ - from the complainant and has alre ady returned Rs. 60,000/ - with 
interest.  In his cross examination, he stated that he issued cheque Ext.CW1/A for security.  He 
also stated that he has repaid Rs. 60,000/ - with interest.  If statement made by accused under 
Section 313 is read juxtaposing h is statement, especially, cross examination before the Court, it 
can be safely concluded that the accused had issued cheque Ext.CW1/A.  Hence, there cannot be 
any dispute with regard to the issuance of cheque by him in favour of the complainant.  Accused 
with a view to prove that he paid Rs. 60,000/ to the complainant also produced DW1 Padam 
Chauhan, who claimed that  he signed on Ext.DW1/A.  Similarly, Om Parkash DW2, who claimed 
that he scribed the receipt Ext.DW1/A happened to be the brother of the accus ed .  DW2 in his 

deposition made before this Court stated that he gave Rs. 30,000/ - to the accused, who gave Rs. 
60,000/ - to the complainant. Even aforesaid defence witnesses adduced on record by the accused 
proves on record that an amount of Rs. 60,000/ - was taken by the accused from the 
complainant, who unequivocally stated that he advanced an amount of Rs. 60,000/ - to the 
accused.  Since, there is ample evidence on record as has been discussed above, that accused 
had taken Rs. 60,000/ - from the complaina nt, there is strong presumption of truth attached to 
the version put forth by the complainant that accused in order to discharge his liability issued 
cheque amount of Rs. 60,000 Ext.CW1/A, perusal whereof, clearly suggests that accused issued 
cheque dated 1.10.2011 amounting to Rs. 60,000/ - in favour of the complainant, which was 
ultimately dishonored on 17.1.2011.  At the cost of repetition,  it may be stated that after 
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dishonoring of the cheque, the complainant took all measures to get the amount recovere d  as 
required under Section 138 of the Act and as such, there is sufficient compliance on the part of 
the complainant as far as Section 138 of the Act is concerned.  Similarly, this court sees that 
pursuant to the demand notice issued by the complaint, ac cused sent reply i.e. Ext.CW1/G 
wherein he admitted having taken Rs. 60,000/ - from the complainant, but in aforesaid 
communication, he claimed that he already repaid entire amount but interestingly, no receipt was 
executed.  Perusal of contents of the repl y, clearly falsify the defence taken by the accused under 
Section 313 Cr.PC as well as statement before the Court that he had only taken Rs. 20,000/ - 
from the complainant.  In reply to the demand notice, accused claimed that he had returned 
entire amount, whereas defence witnesses stated before the Court that amount was paid vide 
Ext.DW1 by the accused to the complainant in lieu of amount i.e. Rs. 20,000/ - taken by him.  It 
may be noticed that Ext.DW1/A is dated 28.7.2011, which suggests that amount was pai d in the 
presence of witnesses.  Perusal of Ext.DW1/A, which is dated 28.7.2000 falsify the earlier stand 

taken by the accused wherein he in his reply dated 11.1.2011 to the demand notice categorically 

stated that entire amount of Rs. 60,000/ - stands paid to the complainant.  If accused had already 
paid the amount prior to sending his reply dated 11.1.2007  to the legal notice Ext.CW1/G, where 
was the occasion for him to repay the entire amount as reflected in Ext.DW12/A.  Hence, this 
court sees all reasons  to draw adverse inference against the petitioner accused, who apparently in 
his desperation to defeat the genuine claim of the complainant took contradictory defenses/pleas 
as well as placed on record contrary documentary evidence.  As per the report of t he handwriting 
expert, signature on Ext.DW1/A, were not found to be same as per admitted specimen signatures 
and writing and as such, version put forth by DW2 i.e. brother of the accused was rightly not 
taken into consideration by the courts below being in terested witness.  Perusal of demand notice 
Ext.CW1/C, nowhere suggests that it was not issued within the stipulated period.  Perusal of 
Ext.CW1/D i.e. postal receipt clearly suggests that same was posted on 24.1.2011, whereas 
Ext.CW1/E and Ext.CWF clearly  suggests that same was received and replied by the accused vide 
letter Ext.CW1/G as, such, there is nothing on record to suggest that the complaint was filed 
before the expiry of the stipulated date.  

16.  After bestowing my thoughtful consideration, I see  no reason to differ with the 
well reasoned finding returned by the courts below which are based upon the proper appreciation 
of the evidence available on record. Accordingly, present petition is dismissed and judgments 
passed by the Courts below are uphel d.  Petitioner accused is directed to surrender himself before 
the learned trial Court forthwith to serve the sentence as awarded by learned trial Court.  
Needless to say that order dated 17.9.2015, passed by this Court, whereby sentence imposed by 
the Cou rt below was suspended, shall stand vacated automatically.  

*********************************************************************************************  

BEFORE HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE DHARAM CHAND CHAUDHARY, J . 

Anju Thakur      éé.Petitioner. 

    Versus  

State  of H.P. & ors.     éé.Respondent. 

    

   Cr.MMO No. 211 of 2016.  

   Decided on:   07.03.2017.  

 

Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973 - Section 320 - An application was filed for compounding the 
offences punishable under Sections 406, 420, 506 read with Section 12 0-B of I.P.C. on the 
ground  that matter has been compromised between the parties - the charge was framed for the 
commission of offence punishable under Section 420 of I.P.C read with Section 120 -B and 506 of 
I.P.C., which is compoundable with the permissio n of the Court, however,the application was 
dismissed on the ground that offence punishable under Section 120 -B of I.P.C is not 
compoundable - held, that the offence punishable under Section 120 -B of I.P.C is not an 
independent and substantive offence ð the  substantive offences are punishable under Sections 
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506 and 420 of I.P.C. ð the matter has been compromised between the parties and there is every 
possibility that it will result in acquittal ð therefore, the petition allowed - FIR and further 
proceedings p ending against the petitioner are ordered to be quashed. (Para - 3 to 7)  

 

For the petitioner:  Mr. Anil Thakur, Advocate, vice counsel.  

For the respondents:  Mr. Neeraj K. Sharma, Dy. Advocate General for the respondent -State.  

 Mr. Vikas Chandel, Advocate f or respondent No. 2.  

 Mr. Vinit Thakur, Advocate, vice counsel for respondent No. 3.  

 

 The following judgment of the Court was delivered:  

 

Justice  Dharam Chand Chaudhary, J (Oral).  

  Complaint herein is that learned Chief Judicial Magistrate, Shimla has 
erroneously dismissed the application filed under Section 320 Cr.P.C. seeking permission to 
compound the offence punishable under Sections 406, 420, 506 read with Section 120 -B of the 
Indian Penal Code, vide impugned order dated 21.1.2016, Annexure P -3. 

2.   Petitioner herein is the accused in Cr. Case No. 198 -2 of 13/11.  The 
complainant (respondent No. 2 herein) has filed an application under Section 320 Cr.P.C. for 
withdrawal of the case FIR No. 29/2010 registered against her under Sections 406, 420, 506 and 
120 -B IPC.  The impugned order reveals that the charge against the accused -petitioner has only 
been framed under Section 420 read with Sections 120 -B and 506 IPC.  In view of the provisions 
contained under Section 320 Cr.P.C., an offence punishable und er Section 506 IPC can be 
compounded by the person intimidated i.e. the complainant even without the permission of the 
Court.  Further, an offence punishable under Section 420 IPC can only be compounded by the 
person cheated but with the permission of the Court.  Learned trial Court, however, has 
dismissed the application for the sole reason that the offence punishable under Section 120 -B 
IPC is not compoundable either with the permission of the Court or otherwise.  

3.   It is significant to note that an off ence under Section 120 -B IPC is not an 
independent and substantive offence and rather its commission can be inferred only in those 
cases where the offender was a party to criminal conspiracy and the conspiracy so hatched led to 
the commission of an offence  punishable with death or rigorous imprisonment for a term over two 
years or upwards.  Now, if coming to the punishment for the commission of an offence punishable 
under Section 120 -B IPC, an offender has to be punished in the same manner as if he had 
abet ted the commission of substantive offence consequent upon such conspiracy.  The 
substantive offences in the case in hand for which the accused -petitioner has been charged with 
are punishable under Sections 506 and 420 IPC.  As noticed supra, the same are c ompoundable 
with and without the permission of the Court by the person intimidated and the person cheated, 
viz. the complainant.   

4.   There seems to be some settlement arrived at between the parties, as is apparent 
from the perusal of the contents of the application Annexure P -2.  It is consequent upon such 
settlement, an application under Section 320 Cr.P.C. was filed for compounding of the offence, 

the accused -petitioner  allegedly committed.  When the complainant intends to compound the 
offence and ther e being settlement between him and the accused petitioner, it cannot be believed 
by any stretch of imagination that he would be going to depose against her during the course of 
trial of the case.  Therefore, in these circumstances, allowing criminal procee dings to continue 
against the accused -petitioner, otherwise would also amount to abuse of process of law.   

5.   Learned trial Judge seems to have been influenced on account of the fact that the 
offence punishable under Section 120 -B IPC does not find menti on in the table below Section 320 
Cr.P.C.  However, he has omitted to take note of Section 320(3) Cr.P.C. which provides that when 
the substantive offence is compoundable under this Section, the abetment of such an offence or 
intention to commit such offen ce or when the accused is liable with the aid of  Section 34 or 149 
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IPC, the same may also be compounded in the like manner.  Since there is a provision under 
Section 120 -B IPC to punish an offender for the commission of offence in the capacity of an 
abett or of a substantive offence and as such substantive offence is compoundable under Section 
320 Cr.P.C as in the case in hand, the offence under Section 120 -B IPC should have also been 
allowed to be compounded, as provided under Section 320(3) Cr.P.C.   

6.   For all these reasons and also that there being amicable settlement arrived at 
between the parties, there is every possibility of the trial ending in acquittal, the pending criminal 
proceedings against the accused -petitioner deserves to be quashed.   

7.   Consequently, the FIR and further proceedings in criminal case No. 198 -2 of 
13/11 pending disposal against the accused -petitioner before learned Chief Judicial Magistrate, 
Shimla are ordered to be quashed.  The petition is accordingly allowed and stands dis posed of.   

8.   An authenticated copy of this judgment be sent to learned trial Court for being 
taken on record and compliance.   

****************************************************************************************************  

BEFORE HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE SANDEEP SHARMA, J.  

Savita         é.Petitioner 

   Versus  

State of H.P. and others                é.Respondents 

 

   Civil Writ Petition No. 9187 of 2011  

               Date of Decision 7 th   March 2017  

 

Constitution of India, 1950 - Article 226 - Petitioner w as appointed as Anganwari worker in the 

month of August, 2007 ð an appeal was preferred against the appointment on the ground that 
petitioner is not resident of survey area of Anganwari center ð the appeal was allowed and the 
appointment of the petitioner was set aside - the petitioner preferred a second appeal before 
Divisional Commissioner, which was dismissed - direction was issued to conduct fresh interview 
to select eligible candidate strictly in accordance with the scheme/guidelines issued by the 
depart ment ð a writ petition was filed, which was disposed of with a direction to the Appellate 
Authority to consider the case afresh ð again it was held that petitioner is not a resident of 
survey/feeding area and her appointment was against the guidelines ð th e present writ petition 
has been filed against the order passed by Appellate Authority ð held, that it was specifically held 
in the writ petition that the person should be resident of Village/ward, where the Center is 
located ð it was specifically stated i n the affidavit of respondent No. 4 that part of the Village 
where house of the petitioner is situated does not fall under the feeder area of Anganwari, where 
she was appointed - patwari had also reported the same fact - no document was placed on record 
to s how that the house of the petitioner falls within the feeder area ð the Appellate Authority had 
rightly set aside the appointment of the petitioner ð petition dismissed. (Para -9 & 10)  

 

For the Petitioner:  Ms. Anjali Soni Verma, Advocate.  

For Respondents N os. 1 to 4:  Shri P.M. Negi, Additional Advocate General.  

For Respondent No.5:  Ms. Seema Guleria, Advocate.  

 

 The following judgment of the Court was delivered:  

 

Sandeep Sharma, J.  (oral)  

   Petitioner being aggrieved and dissatisfied with order dated 2 6.9.2011 passed by 
Additional Deputy Commissioner, Kangra at Dharamshala, exercising the powers of Appellate 
Authority under the Scheme for engagement of Anganwari Workers/Helpers under ICDS, whereby 
her appointmnet as Anganwari Worker at Anganwari Centre,  Bhurlahad was set aside, 
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approached this Court by way of instant writ petition filed under Article 226 of Constitution of 
India, seeking therein following reliefs: - 

(i) That writ in the nature of certiorari may kindly be issued by quashing 
impugned order date d 26.9.2011, Annexure P -4, passed by the learned 
Additional Deputy Commissioner, Kangra at Dharamshala, i.e. 
respondent No.3, being illegal and arbitrary.  

(ii ) That the respondents may further be directed to continue the petitioner 
to work as Anganwari worker i n Anganwari Centre, Bhurlahad, District 
Kangra, H.P.  

(iii ) That the respondents may very kindly be directed to produce the entire 
record pertaining to the case of the petitioner for the kind perusal of this 
Honõble Court. 

(iv) That the petition may kindly be allowed with costs throughout.  

(v) Any other order, which this Honõble Court deems just and proper in the 

facts and circumstances of the case may also kindly be passed in favour 
of the petitioner.ó 

2.   Briefly the facts, as emerged from record, are that petitioner, persuant to 
interview conducted by respondents, was appointed as Anganwari Worker in the month of August 
2007 at Anganwari Centre Bhurlahad, District Kangra H.P. vide Annexure P -1.  Respondent No.5, 
being aggrieved with appointment of petitioner, preferred  an appeal before Appellate Authority 
under the Scheme for engagement of Anganwari Workers/Helpers, which came to be registered as 
appeal No. 110/Kangra. However, Appellate Authority accepted the appeal of respondent No.5 on 
the ground that petitioner is n ot resident of survey area of Anganwari Centre, Bhurlahad and 

accordingly, quashed the selection of petitioner. Being dissatisfied with aforesaid order passed by 
Appellate Authority, petitioner preferred second appeal before the Divisional Commissioner, 
Kangra at Dharamshala bearing No. 112 of 2009. Learned Divisional Commissioner, Kangra at 
Dharamshala, vide order dated 21.6.2010, dismissed the appeal having been preferred by 
petitioner and directed the authorities concerned to conduct fresh interview to s elect an eligible 
candidate as Anganwari Worker for Anganwari Centre in question strictly in accordance with 
Scheme/Guidelines issued by the Social Justice and Empowerment Department.  

3.   It further emerge from the record that petitioner being dissatisfie d with rejection 
of her appeal by Divisional Commissioner preferred a civil writ petition bearing No. 4051 of 2010 

before this Court seeking quashment of orders dated 21.6.2010 and 24.2.2009 passed by 
Divisional Commissioner, Kangra at Dharamshala as well as Additional Deputy Commissioner, 
Kangra at Dharamshala respectively. However, the fact remains that aforesaid petition, having 
been preferred by petitioner, was disposed of by the Division Bench of this Court vide judgment 
dated 26.7.2010, strictly in te rms of its earlier judgment rendered in CWP No. 1096 of 2010 on 
17.5.2010. Perusal of judgment dated 17.5.2010, passed in CWP No. 1096 of 2010, clearly 
suggests that Court, while delivering judgment considered various issues and directed the 
Appellate Auth ority to consider the case afresh, in the light of 
clarification/directions/observations made in judgment. It would be profitable to reproduce 

relevant paras of aforesaid judgment, which directly deal with proposition/question involved in 
present case.  

ò10.  Another dispute pertains to the feeding area.  Clause 4(a) of the Guidelines 
provides for the same, which reads as follows: - 

òResident of the village (in case of Rural  Area)/ward (in case of Urban 
Area) where Anganwadi Centre is located or belongs to the feeding 
villages/wards of the Anganwadi area.ó 

11.  A contention is raised by some of the petitioners  that the feeding area has 
to be understood as the survey area. We are afraid the contention as per the policy 
as it stood at the relevant time cannot be accepted. The policy at that time only 
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prescribed that the person should be the resident of the village/ward, depending 
upon the rural or the urban area, as the case may be, where the centre is located. 
It is sufficient if the applicant belongs to the f eeding villages/wards of the 
Anganwadi area. The eligibility has to be understood as on the date of the 
application, in terms of the policy, which ruled the field at the relevant time. 
Needless to say, that in case there is no candidate available from the respective 
feeding areas, prescribed under clause 4(a), it is open to the authorities to exercise 
its power under Clause 11 of the Policy Guidelines for appropriate relaxation.ó 

4.   In the aforesaid background, matter was taken up afresh for consideration  by 
Additional Deputy Commissioner, Kangra at Dharamshala. It emerges from order dated 
26.9.2011 that persuant to aforesaid jdugment passed by Division Bench of this Court, 
respondents No. 5 and 6 preferred afresh appeal before Additional Deputy Commission er, Kangra 

at Dharamshala, which came to be registered as appeal No. 30 of 2011, laying therein challenge 
to the appointment of petitioner herein. It also emerges from order, referred above, that 
respondent No. 5, who happened to be appellant in appeal, re ferred above, failed to put in 
appearance despite several opportunities and accordingly, appeal on her behalf was ordered to be 
filed, whereas respondent No. 6, who happened to be appellant No. 2 before the Additional 
Deputy Commissioner, raised issues of survey/feeding area and income.  

5.   Learned Additional Deputy Commissioner, vide order dated 26.9.2011, came to 
conclusion that petitioner is not resident of survey/feeding area and village also and as such, her 
appointment is against the guidelines for ap pointment of Anganwari Workers/Helpers and 
accordingly, set aside the appointment given to petitioner. Appellate Authority also held 
respondent No. 6, Raksha Devi, who was next in the merit, ineligible for appointment. In the 
aforesaid background, petition er being aggrieved and dissatisfied with aforesaid order dated 
26.9.2011 passed by Additional Deputy Commissioner preferred instant writ petition seeking 
reliefs, as have been mentioned hereinabove.  

6.   Ms.Anjali Soni Verma, learned counsel representing t he petitioner, vehemently 
argued that impugned order dated 26.9.2011 passed by Additional Deputy Commissioner 
purportedly in compliance of order dated 26.7.2010 passed in CWP No. 4051 of 2010, deserves to 
be quashed and set aside being contrary to very spi rit of judgment referred hereinabove. With a 
view to substantiate her aforesaid argument, she made this Court to travel through para 10 of 
judgment dated 17.5.2010 passed in CWP No. 1096 of 2010 to demonstrate that candidates 
belonging to feeding villages/ wards of Anganwari area were held to be eligible for appointment to 
the post of Anganwari Worker. She further stated that as per policy, in vogue at that relevant 
time, person should be the resident of village/ward, depending upon the rural or urban area, as 
the case may be, where the Centre is located. She further stated that Additional Deputy 
Commissioner, while passing impugned order, again placed reliance on survey register to 
conclude that petitioner resides out of feeding area of Anganwari Centre, Bhu rlahad and as such, 
impugned order being contrary to law laid down by this Court is not sustainable in the eyes of 
law and as such, same deserves to be quashed and set aside.  

7.   Mr.P.M. Negi, learned Additional Advocate General, supported the impugned 
order dated 26.9.2011 passed by Additional Deputy Commissioner. He vehemently argued that 

bare perusal of aforesaid order clearly suggests that case of petitioner was considered afresh in 
the light of judgment passed by Division Bench of this Court and autho rity concerned, after 
summoning the report of concerned Patwari, proceeded to hold that appointment of petitioner 
was against the guidelines for appointment of Anganwari Workers/Helpers. He also supported the 
appointment of respondent No.5, Sudesh Kumari, by stating that she was rightly held to be 
entitled for appointment as Anganwari Worker at Anganwari Centre Bhurlahad, because she was 
resident of Bhurlahad, which was feeding area/village of Anganwari Centre, Bhurlahad.  

8.   I have heard learned counsel r epresenting the parties and gone through the 
record.  
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9.   The Division Bench of this Court specifically in paras No. 10 and 11 of judgment 
passed in CWP No. 1096 of 2010 held that as per policy, in vogue at that relevant time, person 
should be resident of village/ward, depending upon the rural or urban area, as the case may be, 
where Centre is located. Learned Division Bench further held that it is sufficient, if the candidate 
belongs to feeding villages/wards of Anganwari area. While perusing record of the  case during 
proceedings, this Court could lay its hand to supplementary affidavit filed by respondent No.4, in 
compliance to order dated 9.10.2012 passed by this Court. (Page 42 of Paper Book) and it would 
be apt to reproduce following paras of supplement ary affidavit: - 

ò1. I, Chanderlekha Kapoor wife of Shri Joginder Paul  Kapoor, Aged 56 years, 
posted as Chief Development Project Officer, Kangra, District Kangra do 
hereby solemnly affirm and declare on oath as under: - 

  That the present petition was list ed before the Honõble Court on 9.10.2012 
when the Honõble Court passed the following order ò Smt. Chanderlekha 
Kapoor, the 4 th  respondent is present in person and had produced the 

record. The petitioner is resident of Balol, in that village there existed t hree 
Anganwari center, namely Bhurlahad, Degarlahad and Balol Khas. The 
record produced by the 4 th  respondent does not specifically pinpoint the 
feeder area under each Anganwari center. The 4 th  respondent to file 
supplementary affidavit stating as to wheth er that point of village Balol, 
where the house of petitioner is situated, falls under the feeder area of 
Anganwari Center Bhurlahad or not. If not, under feeder area of which 
Anganwari Center that part of the village falls.ó 

2. That in this regard it is r espectfully submitted that, that part of village Balol 
where the house of the petitioner is situated does not fall under the feeder 
area of Bhurlahad. It is further respectfully submitted that, that part of 
village falls under the Anganwari center Balol Kh as.ó 

Perusal of aforesaid affidavit clearly suggests that this Court had directed respondent No. 4, who 
had come along with record, specifically to pinpoint the feeder area under which Anganwari 
Centre is situated. Respondent No. 4, in aforesaid affidavit,  has specifically stated that part of 
village Balol, where house of petitioner is situated, does not fall under feeder area of Bhurlahad. 
She further stated that that part of village falls under Anganwari Centre Balol Khas. Though 
petitioner, by way of rej oinder, made an attempt to rebut the aforesaid assertion made by 
respondent No. 4 in her supplementary affidavit but interestingly placed no document on record 
suggestive of fact that her residence/village falls within feeder area of Anganwari Centre 
Bhurl ahad. Mr.Anjali Soni Verma, with a view to refute aforesaid contention of respondent No. 4, 
invited attention of this Court to Annexure P -6 i.e. certificate issued by Pardhan, G.P. Balol, Block 
Development Office, Tehsil Baroh, District Kangra (H.P.) to de monstrate that village Balol Khas, to 
which petitioner belongs falls under Gram Panchayat Balol and as such, she was rightly offered 
appointment as Anganwari Worker at Bhurlahad. This Court, after carefully examining the 
material adduced by respective part ies, is not inclined to accept aforesaid contention raised by 
learned counsel representing the petitioner, because it clearly emerge from the impugned order 
passed by Additional Deputy Commissioner that with a view to verify the residence of petitioner 

her ein  and location of Anganwari, report of Shri Rakesh Kumar, Patwari at Patwar Circle Balol 
was summoned, who categorically stated that Anganwari Centre Bhurlahad situates in Mohal 
Bhurlahad, whereas residence of present petitioner falls in Mohal Mahulahad . At the cost of 
repetition, it may again be stated that respondent No. 4, in her supplementary affidavit, has 
specifically stated that house of petitioner does not fall under feeder area of Bhurlahad and as 
such this Court sees no reason to interfere in i mpugned order, having been passed by Additional 
Deputy Commissioner, which otherwise appears to be based upon correct appreciation of 
evidence adduced by respective parties as well as observations made by this Court in CWP No. 
4051 of 2010.  
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10.   Conseque ntly, in view of above, this Court sees no merit in present petition and 
accordingly, same is dismissed being devoid of any merit.  Petition stands dispiosed of including 
all pending miscellaneous application(s) if any.  

*********************************** **************************************************************  

 BEFORE HONõBLE MR. JUSTICE SURESHWAR THAKUR, J.  

United India Insurance Ltd.   é..Appellant.   

 Versus  

Fulan Devi and others    .. ...Respondents.  

 

FAO No.: 58 of 2013  

Date of Decision : 07/03/ 2017  

  

Employees Compensation Act, 1923 - Section 4 - Deceased was employed under respondent 
No.1 - he died in an  accident ð it was contended that the insurer is not liable as the vehicle was 
transferred by respondent No.1 to respondent No.4 and there is no p rivity of contract between 
respondent No.1 and the insurer ð held, that it was proved that deceased was employed as driver 
by respondent No.4 and the insurer was rightly held liable ð the deceased was drawing wages of 
Rs.3,000/ - per month and daily expenses  of Rs. 100/ - - the compensation of Rs.3,14,880/ - 
cannot be said to be excessive ð appeal dismissed and penalty of Rs.1 lac imposed upon the 
respondent No.4.   (Para- 3 to 5)  

 

For the Appellant:  Mr. Vivek Negi, Advocate.     

For the respondents:    Mr. Paw an Gautam, Advocate, for  respondents No. 1 and 2.  

 Mr. Ajay Sharma, Advocate for respondents No. 3 and 5.  

 

 The following judgment of the Court was delivered:  

 

Sureshwar Thakur, Judge (oral)   

   The Insurer/appellant herein stands aggrieved by the appos ite pronouncement 
recorded by the learned Civil Judge (Jr. Division) -cum -Commissioner Employeeõs Compensation 
Barsar, District Hamirpur, wherefrom it for reversing the apposite verdict has instituted the 
instant appeal herebefore.   

2.  This Court admitted  the instant appeal on 11.3.2014 on the hereinafter extracted 
substantial questions of law: - 

a) òWhether the impugned award against the appellant is sustainable in the 
face of the fact that there was no employer -employee relationship between the 
deceased (Kar am Chand) and owner of the vehicle in question and the insured 
(Ms. Rishika), whom alone appellant had undertaken to indemnify under the 
contract of insurance.  

b) Whether the impugned award against the appellant is sustainable in the 
face of specific admissio ns on the part of respondents No. 1 and 2 in the claim 
petition that deceased Sh. Karam Chand was employed with respondent No.3 Sh. 
Chander Shekher, whom the appellant had never undertaken to indemnify and 
with whom appellant had no privity of contract?  

c) Whether impugned award is a result of collusion between respondents 

No. 1 and 2 on one hand and respondent No.4 on the other (who intentionally 
chose not to contest the claim petition).  

d) Whether the impugned award can be sustained in view of the violation of 
provisions of Section 4(a) of the Workmenõs Compensation Act, 1923?ó 




